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jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef b]xfosf ljifox¿ pk/ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{ lgDg ldlt, ;do / :yfgdf a:g] ePsf]n] ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL 
dxfg'efjx¿sf] hfgsf/L tyf pkl:yltsf] nflu sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf ^& -@_ adf]lhd of] ;"rgf k|sflzt ul/Psf] 5 . 

;ef a:g] ldlt, ;do / :yfg
ldlt M	 @)*@ kf}if @% ut] (January 9, 2026)  z'qmaf/  
;do M	 laxfg !!M!% ah] .
:yfg M	 sfsL{ AofGSj]6, aa/dxn, sf7df8f}F 

5nkmnsf ljifox¿ M

-s_ 	;fdfGo k|:tfj M
1.	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 k|:t't cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg dfly 5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ . 
2.	 n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxtsf] @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtsf] jf;nft, cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa 

tyf gub k|jfx ljj/0f / ;f]xL cjlwsf] jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0f;Fu ;Da4 cg';"rLx¿ ;d]t 5nkmn u/L kfl/t 
ug]{ . 

3.	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj u/] cg';f/ @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtdf sfod /x]sf] r'Qmf k'FhL ?=$,#!,@^,@!,%!#.&* sf] 
)=&%Ü n] x'g] /sd ?= #,@#,$$,^^!.#% gub nfef+z -nfef+z s/ k|of]hgsf] nflu_ kfl/t ug]{ .

4.	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/z adf]lhd sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !!! cg';f/ cfly{s jif{ @)*@÷*# sf] 
n]vfk/LIf0f ug{ afXo n]vfk/LIfs lgo'QmL / lghsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug]{ . 

-v_ 	 ljz]if k|:tfj M

1.	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj u/] adf]lhd xfn sfod /x]sf] r'Qmf k'FhL ?=$,#!,@^,@!,%!#.&* sf] !$=@%Ü n] x'g] 
/sd ?= ^!,$%,$*,%^%.&! a/fa/sf] af]g; z]o/ hf/L ug]{ k|:tfj kfl/t ug]{ . pQm cg'kftdf af]g; z]o/ hf/L 
ubf{ x'g cfpg] leGg cÍ (fraction) nfO{ klxn]sf] leGg cÍ;Fu ;dfof]hg u/L afFsL x'g cfpg] leGg cÍnfO{ kl5 
;dfof]hg ug]{ u/L oyfjt /fVg] . 

2.	 o; ;+:yfsf] clws[t k'FhL ?= %,)),)),)),))).– -cIf/]kL kfFr ca{ dfq_ nfO{ a[l4 u/L ?= *,)),)),)),))).– 
-cIf/]kL cf7 ca{ dfq_ sfod ug]{ / ;f]xL adf]lhd k|aGwkqsf] bkmf %-s_ df /x]sf] ;DalGwt bkmfdf cfjZos 
;+zf]wg ug]{ . 

3.	 o; ;+:yfsf] hf/L tyf r'Qmf k'FhL j[l4 ug]{ / ;f]xL adf]lhd k|aGwkqsf] bkmf %-v_ / -u_ df /x]sf] ;DalGwt 
bkmfx¿df cfjZos ;+zf]wg ug]{ . 

4.	 cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj cGtu{t ePsf] ljQLo ljj/0fsf] cg';"rL $=#% df 
plNnlvt vr{ ?= !,@),@^,#*!.%& sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)%-!_-u_ sf] k|of]hgsf nflu cg'df]bg ug]{ .

5.	 k|aGwkq ;+zf]wg ;DaGwdf g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{ tyf cGo lgofds 
lgsfoaf6 :jLs[t u/fpgsf] nflu cfjZostf cg';f/ ;f]df yk36 kl/dfh{g, ;+zf]wg tyf ;Rofpgsf] nflu 
lgb]{zg cg';f/ ug'{kg]{ ;Dk"0f{ sfo{ ug{ ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ clVtof/L lbg] . 

-u_ 	 ljljw .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] cf1fn],
sDkgL ;lrj,

;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
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jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL cGo hfgsf/L
!=	 jflif{s ;fwf/0f;ef k|of]hgsf nflu ldlt @)*@÷(÷( ut] o; ;+:yfsf z]o/ bflvn vf/]h btf{ lstfa aGb /xg] 

5 . g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh lnld6]8df ldlt @)*@÷(÷* ;Dd sf/f]af/ eO{ k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf 
z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L nIdL ;g/fO{h Soflk6n lnld6]8, sdnkf]v/L, sf7df8f}Fdf k|fKt z]o/ gfd;f/Lsf] lnvtsf] cfwf/df 
z]o/wgL btf{ lstfadf sfod z]o/wgLx¿n] ;f] ;efdf efu lng, dtbfg ug{ tyf af]g; z]o/ tyf gub nfef+z kfpg] 
Joj:yf ldnfOPsf] a]xf]/f cg'/f]w 5 .

@=	 z]o/wgL btf{ k'l:tsf aGb ePsf] ldltdf sfod z]o/wgLx¿sf] 7]ufgfdf jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf ;lxtsf] jflif{s 
k|ltj]bg k7fOg]5 . ;fy} pQm k|ltj]bg ;+:yfsf] j]a;fO{6 www.skbbl.com.np  df klg x]g{ ;lsg]5 . sDkgL P]gsf] 
bkmf *$ adf]lhdsf] ;+lIfKt cfly{s ljj/0f o;} ;"rgf ;fy k|sflzt ul/Psf] 5 . s'g} sf/0fj; pk/f]Qm ;"rgf tyf 
k|ltj]bg k|fKt gug'{ x'g] z]o/wgLx¿n] o;} ;"rgfnfO{ cfwf/ dfgL cfˆgf] s'g} kl/ro v'Ng] k|df0fkq -kmf]6f] ePsf]_ tyf 
z]o/ cef}ltsLs/0f u/]sf] ljj/0f b]lvg] BOID No. lxtu|fxL vftf g+= ;fydf lnO{ ;efdf efu lng cfpg' x'g cg'/f]w 
ul/G5 . 

#=	 ;efdf efu lng k|To]s z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿ ;ef x'g] :yfgdf pkl:yt eO{ ToxfF /x]sf] xflh/L lstfadf b:tvt ug'{ 
kg]{5 . xflh/L lstfa ;ef x'g] lbg laxfg (M)) ah]b]lv v'nf /xg]5 . 

$=	 ljBdfg z]o/wgLnfO{ dfq k|f]S;L lbg ;lsg]5 . k|f]S;L kmd{ ;ef x'g' eGbf &@ 306f cufj} o; sDkgLsf] aa/dxn, 
sf7df8f}F l:yt s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf btf{ u/fpg' kg]{5 . Ps hgf z]o/wgLn] Ps eGbf a9L k|f]S;L lbPdf kl5 btf{ x'g 
cfpg] k|f]S;L ab/ x'g]5 . 

%=	 gfafns jf czQm z]o/wgLsf] tkm{af6 nut lstfadf plNnlvt ;+/Ifsn] dfq ;efdf efu lng, dtbfg ug{, k|f]S;L 
lbg ;Sg]5 . 

^=	 ;+o'Qm ?kdf z]o/ vl/b ul/Psf] cj:yfdf To:tf] z]o/wgLsf] tkm{af6 ;j{;Ddt ?kdf lgo'Qm k|ltlglw cyjf To;/L 
lgo'Qm gePdf z]o/wgL btf{ lstfadf klxn] gfd pNn]v ePsf] z]o/wgLn] dfq ;efdf efu lng / dtbfg ug{ kfpg]5 . 

&=	 ;+ul7t ;+:yf z]o/wgL ePdf To:tf ;+ul7t ;+:yfåf/f dgf]gLt JolQmn] Nofpg] cflwsfl/s kq jf clVtof/ k|fKt 
JolQmn] lbg] k|f]S;L kmf/ddf ;+:yfsf] 5fk / cflwsf/Ls JolQmsf] b:tvt x'g' kg]{5 .

*=	 ljljw zLif{s cGtu{t ug'{kg]{ 5nkmnsf] ljifo af/] ;ef x'g] lbg eGbf & lbg cufj} sfof{no ;do leq cWoIfHo"nfO{ 
;Daf]wg u/L ;+:yfsf] sfof{nodf lnlvt hfgsf/L lbg'kg]{5 . pQm lnlvt hfgsf/LnfO{ cf}lrTotf x]/L 5nkmndf 
;dfj]z ug{ ;Sg] ePtf klg kfl/t x'g] k|:tfjsf] ?kdf eg] ;dfj]z ul/g] 5}g . 

9.	 ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL yk hfgsf/Lsf] nflu o; ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 www.skbbl.com.np df x]g{ jf aa/dxn, sf7df8f}F 
l:yt o; ;+:yfsf] /lhi68{ sfof{nodf ;Dks{ /fVg ;lsg]5 .
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;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, sf7df8f}F .

k|aGwkqdf ;+zf]wg ;DaGwL k|:tfj
;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=sf] k|aGwkqdf b]xfo adf]lhd ;+zf]wg ul/Psf] 5 M

!=	 k|aGwkqsf] bkmf % sf] v08 -s_, -v_ / -u_ sf] ;§f b]xfo adf]lhdsf] v08 -s_,-v_ / -u_ /flvPsf] 5 M

æ-s_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] clws[t k'FhL ?=*,)),)),)),))).– -cIf/]kL cf7 ca{ dfq_ x'g]5 . pQm k'FhLnfO{ ?=!)).– 
b/n] *,)),)),))) yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df ljeflht ul/Psf] 5 .

-v_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L k'FhL ?=$,(@,&!,&),)&(.$( -cIf/]kL rf/ ca{ aofgAa] s/f]8 PsxQ/ nfv ;Q/L 
xhf/ pgf;L ?k}ofF / k};f pgGrf; dfq_ x'g]5 . ;f] k'FhLnfO{ k|lt z]o/ ?= !)).– sf b/n] $,(@,&!,&)).– 
-cIf/]kL rf/ s/f]8 aofgAa] nfv PsxQ/ xhf/ ;ft ;o_ yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 .

-u_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL ?=$,(@,&!,&),)&(.$( -cIf/]kL rf/ ca{ aofgAa] s/f]8 PsxQ/ nfv ;Q/L 
xhf/ pgf;L ?k}ofF / k};f pgGrf; dfq_ x'g]5 .Æ
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;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, sf7df8f}F .

k|aGwkqdf ;+zf]wg ;DaGwL k|:tfj -ltg dxn]_

qm=;+=
bkmf÷ 

pkbkmf÷ 
v08

xfnsf]] Joj:yf ;+zf]lwt k|aGwkq ;+zf]wg ug'{kg]{ sf/0f

! % -s_

æ-s_ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] clws[t k'FhL 
?=%,)),)),)),))).– -cIf/]kL kfFr ca{ 
dfq_ x'g]5 . pQm k'FhLnfO{ ?=!)).– b/n] 
%,)),)),))) yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df 
ljeflht ul/Psf]  
5 .

æ-s_ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] clws[t k'FhL 
?=*,)),)),)),))).– -cIf/]kL cf7 
ca{ dfq_ x'g]5 . pQm k'FhLnfO{ ?=!)).– 
b/n] *,)),)),))) yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df 
ljeflht ul/Psf]  
5 .

Jofj;flos ljsf; tyf 
/0fgLltsf cfwf/df 
clws[t k'FhL j[l4 ug'{kg]{ 
ePsf]n] . 

@ % -v_

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L k'FhL 
?=$,#!,@^,@!,%!#.&* -cIf/]kL rf/ ca{ 
PstL; s/f]8 5AaL; nfv PsfO{; xhf/ 
kfFr ;o t]¥x ?k}ofF / k};f c7xQ/ dfq_ 
x'g]5 . ;f] k'FhLnfO{ k|lt z]o/ ?= !)).– sf 
b/n] $,#!,@^,@!%.– -cIf/]kL rf/ s/f]8 
PstL; nfv 5AaL; xhf/ b'O{ ;o kGw|_ 
yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 .

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L k'FhL 
?=$,(@,&!,&),)&(.$( -cIf/]kL rf/ 
ca{ aofgAa] s/f]8 PsxQ/ nfv ;Q/L 
xhf/ pgf;L ?k}ofF / k};f pgGrf; dfq_ 
x'g]5 . ;f] k'FhLnfO{ k|lt z]o/ ?= !)).– sf 
b/n] $,(@,&!,&)).– -cIf/]kL rf/ s/f]8 
aofgAa] nfv PsxQ/ xhf/ ;ft ;o_ yfg 
;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 .

;~rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj 
u/] adf]lhd !$=@% 
k|ltztsf b/n] af]g; ;]o/ 
ljt/0f ubf{ ;f]xL xb;Dd 
hf/L k'FhL j[l4 ug'{kg]{ 
ePsf]n] .

# % -u_

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL 
?=$,#!,@^,@!,%!#.&* -cIf/]kL rf/ 
ca{ PstL; s/f]8 5AaL; nfv PsfO{; 
xhf/ kfFr ;o t]¥x ?k}ofF / k};f c7xQ/ 
dfq_x'g]5 .

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL 
?=$,(@,&!,&),)&(.$( -cIf/]kL rf/ ca{ 
aofgAa] s/f]8 PsxQ/ nfv ;Q/L xhf/ 
pgf;L ?k}ofF / k};f pgGrf; dfq_ x'g]5 .

;~rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj 
u/] adf]lhd !$=@% 
k|ltztsf b/n] af]g; z]o/ 
ljt/0f ubf{ ;f]xL xb;Dd 
r'Qmf k'FhL j[l4 ug'{kg]{ 
ePsf]n]] .
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cf=j= @)*@÷*# sf] nflu n]vfk/LIfssf] lgo'lQm Pj+ kfl/>lds ;DaGwdf

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cf=j @)*@÷*# sf] n]vfk/LIfs lgo'lQmsf ;DaGwdf n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltaf6 sf]6]zg dfu ubf{ -!_ PYC 
& Chartered Accountants  Putalisadak,  Kathmandu, -@_ J.B. Rajbhandaary & Dibins, Chartered Accountants, 
Kumaripati, Lalitpur / -#_ S. Basnet & Co. Chartered Accountants, DilliBazar, Kathmandu af6 k|fKt ePsf] 
sf]6]zg pk/ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltaf6 lj:t[t ?kdf cWoog÷ljZn]if0f ul/Psf] . n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/z adf]lhd o; 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cf=j @)*@÷*# sf] n]vfk/LIfs lgo'lQmsf nflu b]xfo adf]lhdsf zt{ ;'ljwfx? sfod x'g] u/L PYC & 
Chartered Accountants Putalisadak, Kathmandu nfO{ lgo'Qm ug{ o; jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;dIf k|:tfj k]z ul/Psf] 5 . 

s_	 kfl/>lds tyf ;]jf, zt{ ;'ljwfx?

-!_ 	cf=j= @)*@÷*# sf] n]vfk/LIf0f ug{, ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL jflif{s cg'kfngf k|ltj]bg k|dfl0fs/0f ug{, 
sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf &* adf]lhdsf k|ult ljj/0f k|dfl0ft ug{, s/ n]vfk/LIf0f ug{, kl/of]hgf n]vfk/LIf0f 
ug{ / n+ukmd{ k|ltj]bg tof/ nufotsf sfo{x? ug{ n]vfk/LIfsnfO{ Eof6 afx]s /sd ?= !),)),)))÷–-cIf/]lk 
bz nfv dfq_ kfl/>lds pknAw u/fpg] .

-@_	 lkmN8 tyf cGo vr{ b]xfo adf]lhd pknAw u/fpg] .

•	 l;=P k|lt lbg #,))) -s/ ;lxt_

•	 cGo k|lt lbg @,%)) -s/ ;lxt_

•	 s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf vfhf vr{ k|lt lbg ? #))÷–-s/ ;lxt_

•	 l6s6 -a; / Kn]gsf]_ jf:tljs 

•	 6\ofS;L ef8f M Po/kf]6{÷a;kfs{ af6 sfof{no;Dd jf:tljs .

-#_	 n]vfk/LIfsn] ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu ;Demf}tf u/]sf] & -;ft_ lbgleq n]vfk/LIf0fdf ;+nUg x'g] hgzlQm ljj/0f 
;d]tsf] lj:t[t of]hgf tyf sfo{s|d -Audit Plan_ k]z ug'{kg]{5 .

-$_	 ldlt @)*# efb|d;fGt leq clGtd n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg pknAw u/fpg'kg]{5 .

-%_	 cGo s'/fx? ;Demf}tfdf pNn]v u/] cg';f/ x'g]5 .

-v_ n]vfk/LIf0f sfo{nfO{ Jojl:yt t'Nofpg ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Joj:yfkg / n]vfk/LIfs aLr plNnlvt ;]jf, zt{ / 
;'ljwfx?sf] clwgdf /xL lgh n]vfk/LIfs;Fu lj:t[t ?kdf sfo{;Dkfbg ;Demf}tf ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfpg] .
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;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
-g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 …3Ú ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf_

s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, aa/dxn, sf7df8f}F, g]kfn

-sDkgL P]gsf] bkmf &!-#_ tyf o; lgb]{lzsfsf] lgod %-v_ ;Fu ;DalGwt_

;fwf/0f ;efdf cfkm\gf] k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug]{÷k|f]S;L  
pknAw u/fpg] lgj]bgsf] 9f“rf

>L ;~rfns ;ldlt,

;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8, 

================= sfof{no, ========================== .

ljifo M k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] af/] .

dxfzo,
=========================== lhNnf ==================================================== kflnsf j8f g+= ====================

a:g] d÷xfdL ========================================================== n] To; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] ;+jt\ 

@) ============= ;fn ============= dlxgf ================= ut] =================sf lbg x'g] ======== jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf 

d÷xfdL :jo+d\ pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsfn] pQm ;efdf d]/f÷xfd|f] tkm{af6 efu lng tyf 

dtbfg ug{sf nflu =========================lhNnf =========================== kflnsf j8f g+= ========================= 

a:g] >L ========================== ================ ========================= ==================== nfO{ d]/f]÷xfd|f] k|ltlglw 

lgo'Qm u/L k7fPsf] 5'÷ k7fPsf 5f}+ .

k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ePsf] JolQmsf]M

x:tfIf/sf] gd"gf M

z]o/wgL eP z]o/k|df0fkq g+= M

z]o/wgL geP gful/stf k|df0fkq g+= M

z]o/wgL g+=÷lxtu|fxL g+= M

lgj]bs

ldlt M							       b:tvt M

gfd M

7]ufgf M

z]o/k|df0fkq g+= M

z]o/ ;Vof M

z]o/wgL g+=÷lxtu|fxL g+= M

b|i6Ao M	 of] lgj]bg ;fwf/0f;ef x'g' eGbf sDtLdf &@ 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;DalGwt sfof{nodf k]z ul/;Sg' 
kg]{5 . PseGbf a9L k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_sf] gfpF pNn]v u/]df k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ kmf/d /2 ul/g] 5 .
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cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, 

;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] o; 
rf}la;f}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt ;Dk"0f{ cfb/0fLo 
z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 
xflb{s :jfut Pjd\ clejfbg ub{5' . o; cj;/df oxfFx¿ 
;dIf o; ;+:yfsf] rf}la;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg k|:t't ug{ kfpFbf 
Hofb} v'zL nfu]sf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ cyf{t 
@)*@ cfiff9 #@ ut]sf] ;+lIfKt cfly{s ljj/0f /fli6«o 
:t/sf] b}lgs klqsfdf k|sfzg u/L z]o/wgLn] dfu u/]sf] 
avtdf pknAw u/fpg o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no 
/ z]o/ /lhi6«f/ nIdL ;g/fO{h Soflk6n ln= sdnkf]v/L,  
sf7df8f}Fdf /fVg'sf ;fy} j]a;fO6df ;d]t k|sfzg 
ul/;lsPsf] 5 . 

sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)(-!_ adf]lhd x'g] u/L @)*@ 
cfiff9 d;fGtsf] jf;nft, cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf] gfkmf 
gf]S;fg lx;fa / ;f]xL cjlwsf] gub k|jfxsf] ljj/0f ;lxt 
lgodgsf/L lgsfon] lglb{i6 u/]sf] 9fFrfdf ;Dk"0f{ ljQLo 
ljj/0fx¿ tof/ u/L ;f]xL P]gsf] bkmf !)(-$_ n] tf]s]sf 
ljj/0f ;lxtsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg ;d]t :jLs[ltsf nflu o; 
ul/dfdo ;efdf k|:t't ug{] cg'dlt rfxG5' . 

k|ltj]bgnfO{ ;'wf/ ug{, ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfufdL lbgdf 
sfo{qmd Pjd\ sfo{lbzf tof/ ug{ tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] p2]Zo 
k|flKtdf k|efjsfl/tf a9fpg ;bfem}F oxfFx¿af6 /rgfTds 
;'emfj, ;Nnfx, ;xof]u / dfu{bz{gx¿ k|fKt x'g] g} 5 eGg] 
s'/fdf xfdL ljZj:t 5f}F .

-s_ 	 ljut jif{sf] sf/f]af/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg

	 tTsfnLg sDkgL P]g cGtu{t lj=;+= @)%* ;fn 
c;f/ @@ ut] klAns lnld6]8 sDkgLsf] ?kdf  æ;fgf 
ls;fg ljsf; a}Í ln=Æ :yfkgf ePsf] xf] . a}Í tyf 
ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g, @)&# nfu' ePkl5 gfd 
kl/jt{g eO{ æ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf 
ln=Æ ePsf] 5 . o;n] k|rlnt a}Í tyf ljQLo ;+:yf 
;DaGwL P]g adf]lhd g]kfn /fi6« a}Íaf6 …3Ú ju{sf] 
/fli6«o :t/sf] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf ?kdf :jLs[lt 
k|fKt u/L Ps k|d'v yf]sshf{ k|bfos ;+:yfsf ?kdf 

sf/f]af/ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] u|fdL0f 
ljkGg tyf ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] cfly{s / ;fdflhs 
ljsf;sf nflu pgLx¿n] g} :jfldTj lnPsf / 
;~rfng u/]sf ;d'bfodf cfwfl/t ;Ifd ;+:yfx¿ 
dfkm{t n3'ljQ tyf ;fdflhs ljsf;sf sfo{qmdx¿ 
;~rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . 

1=	 P]ltxfl;s k[i7e"ld

	 ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; sfo{qmd / ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
P]ltxfl;s k[i7e"ld oxfF ;+If]kdf k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 M

-c_ 	 ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; cfof]hgf

	 u|fdL0f ul/asf] cfly{s cj:yfdf ck]lIft ;'wf/ u/L 
u|fdL0f ljkGgtf sd ub}{ b]zsf] ;du| cfly{s cj:yfdf 
;'wf/ Nofpg] nIo /fv]/ g]kfn ;/sf/ tyf cGt/f{li6«o 
;ª\3;+:yflar ePsf] ljrf/–uf]i7Lsf] kmn:j?k 
;g\ !(&% -lj=;+=@)#@_ df g]kfndf ;fgf ls;fg 
ljsf; sfo{qmdsf] yfngL eof] . s[lif ljsf; a}Íaf6 
b]z e/sf tTsfnLg ^ ;o %@ ufpF ljsf; ;ldltsf 
sl/a @ nfv !) xhf/ ;fgf ls;fg kl/jf/ ;d]6]/ 
ufpFufpFdf ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; cfof]hgfx¿ vf]nL 
sfo{qmdsf] lj:tf/ ul/of] . s[lif ljsf; a}Ísf] u|fdL0f 
ljsf; PsfOsf] ?kdf oL cfof]hgfx¿n] u|fdL0f ;fgf 
ls;fgx¿sf] cfly{s tyf ;fdflhs ljsf; ug]{ dfq 
geO{ ljQLo ;fwg ;|f]tdf pgLx¿sf] kx'Fr a9fpg ;d]t 
7'nf] d2t k'¥ofP .

-cf_ 	;fgf ls;fg ;+:yfut ljsf;

	 ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; cfof]hgfsf] lj:tf/;Fu} 
o;sf] lbuf]kgfnfO{ lnP/ ljleGg 5nkmnx¿ ;'? 
eP . ;fy} sfo{qmd leq} nlIft ju{sf] :jfldTj 
:yfkgf, ;zQmLs/0f / g]t[TjbfoL e"ldsf :yfkgf 
x'g'kg{] cfjZostf dx;'; x'Fb} uof] . sfo{qmdsf] 
lj:tf/ vr{ Go"gtd laGb'df /fVb} nfutsf] b[li6sf]0fn] 
;d]t k|efjsf/L agfpg] Pjd\ :yfgLo txdf g]t[Tj 
ljsf; u/L sfo{qmdnfO{ lbuf] ?kdf ;~rfng x'g] 
pkfosf] vf]hL :j?k ;fgf ls;fg ;+:yfut ljsf;sf] 
cjwf/0ff NofO{of] . cf=j= @)$@÷$# b]lv tTsfnLg 
hL=6L=h]8= tyf s[lif ljsf; a}Ísf] ;+o'Qm k|of;df 

;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=sf] rf}la;f}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf k|:t't 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg 
-sDkgL P]g, @)^# bkmf !)( -$_ ;Fu ;DalGwt_

cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@
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;fgf ls;fg ljsf; sfo{qmdleq :yfgLo ?kdf g} 
;+:yfut ljsf; ug]{u/L ;DalGwt ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] 
k|ToIf ;xeflutf a9fpg ;d"x, cGt/;d"x / d"n ;ldlt 
u/L tLg txsf] :yfgLo ;fË7lgs :j?ksf] cEof; ;'? 
ul/of] . g]t[Tj Pjd\ Joj:yfksLo Ifdtf ljsf;sf 
nflu ljljw sfo{qmdx¿ ;~rfng eP . 

	 ;+:yfut ljsf; sfo{qmdsf] ;fdflhs kIf Hofb} 
k|efjsf/L b]lvof] . ;fgf ls;fgx¿df g]t[Tj axg 
ug]{ ;Lksf] k|efjsf/L ?kdf ljsf; eof] . :yfgLo 
cfjZostf cg';f/sf ljifox¿df :yfgLo ;fgf ls;fg 
g]t[Tjn] lg0f{o k|s[ofdf kl/kSjtf / ;Ifdtf k|bz{g     
u/] . o;af6 ;fgf ls;fgx¿n] :jtGqtfk"j{s cfkm\gf] 
;Ë7g ;~rfng ug{ ;Sg] s'/fdf s[lif ljsf; a}Í 
ljZj:t eof] . ;fgf ls;fgsf o:tf ;+:yfx¿nfO{ s'g 
sfg'gL :j?kdf ;+:yfut ug]{ eGg] pkfox¿sf] vf]hL 
x'g yfNof] . tTsfnLg cj:yfdf o:tf ;Ë7gnfO{ 
btf{ ug{ ;Sg] pkfox¿df sDkgL, ;fdflhs ;+:yf 
-u]}/;/sf/L ;+:yf_ jf ;xsf/Lsf] :j?kdWo] s'g} Ps 
pQd ljsNk 5fGg ;lsg] b]lvof] . ;fgf ls;fgx¿;Fu 
5nkmn / cGt/lqmofx¿ eP . sfg'gL / Joj:yfksLo 
k/fdz{x¿ lnO{P . lj1x¿sf ;'emfjx¿ k|fKt eP . 
/, cGtdf o:tf ;+:yfx¿nfO{ ;xsf/L :j?kdf sfg'gL 
dfGotf k|bfg ug{ plrt x'g] pQd ljsNk 7x/ eof] .

-O_ 	 ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 

	 ;+:yfut ljsf; sfo{qmdn] :yfgLo ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] 
g]t[Tj / Joj:yfksLo Ifdtfdf NofPsf] kl/jt{g :j?k 
pgLx¿ cfkm}F s[lif ljsf; a}Í ;dIf …;fgf ls;fg 
ljsf; cfof]hgfsf] Joj:yfkg x:tfGt/0f u/L lngÚ 
dfu ug{ ;Sg] cj:yfdf k'u] . ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] uflj; 
:t/df lgdf{0f ePsf ;Ë7gnfO{ pQd ljsNksf] ?kdf 
k|rlnt ;xsf/L P]g adf]lhd btf{ ul/of] . cf= j= 
@)%)÷%! b]lv s[lif ljsf; a}Ín] ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; 
cfof]hgfsf] Joj:yfkg / :jfldTj ltg} :yfgLo ;fgf 
ls;fgx¿sf] :yfgLo ;xsf/L ;+:yfnfO{ x:tfGt/0f ug{ 
;'? u¥of] . o; k|sf/ g]kfnn] Pp6f nfdf] cEof; kl5 
u|fdL0f ;zQmLs/0f / lbuf] ;Ë7gsf] gljgtd df]8]n 
ljsf; ug{ ;kmn eof] . log} ;xsf/Lx¿nfO{ ;fgf 
ls;fg ;xsf/L gfdfs/0f ul/of] . oL ;fgf ls;fg 
;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿nfO{ s[lif ljsf; a}Ísf] Joj:yfkgdf 
/x]sf] ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; cfof]hgfsf ;Dk"0f{ ;DklQ 
tyf bfloTjx¿ x:tfGt/0f ul/of] . ;xsf/L ;+:yfnfO{ 

cfjZos kg]{ yf]s shf{ s[lif ljsf; a}Ín] g} pknAw 
u/fpg] Joj:yf ldnfO{of] . ;+:yfx¿ :jtGq?kdf 
;~rfng x'g yfn] / s[lif ljsf; a}Ín] !( jif{b]lv 
ljsf; ub}{ cfPsf] sfo{qmdaf6 k|ToIf ;+nUgtf qmdzM 
x6fpFb} nUof] . 

-O{_ 	 cf/Pd8L;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf -;fljs ?/n 
dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; 8]enkd]06 ;]06/ ln=_ M

	 ;g\ !(&) sf] bzsdf u|fdL0f a}+s aª\nfb]zaf6 
n3'shf{ z'?jft ePkl5 g]kfndf ;d]t u|fdL0f df]8]ndf 
ljQLo ;]jf k|bfg ug{ ;/sf/L, lghL tyf u}/ ;/sf/L 
If]qaf6 n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿sf] :yfkgf e} ;~rfng x'g 
yfn] . n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿sf] cfjZos k|j4{g tyf 
ljsf;sf nflu ljlzi6 ;]jf cfjZos b]lv g]kfn 
;/sf/ tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+Ísf] ljz]if kxndf @)%% 
;fn sflt{s !# ut] g]kfn /fi6« a}Í, tTsflng !# 
j6f jfl0fHo a}Í, % j6f u|fdL0f ljsf; a}Í, lgIf]k 
ladf tyf shf{ ;'/If0f lgud / lgw{g ;+:yfsf] z]o/ 
nufgLdf cf/Pd8L;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] :yfkgf 
ePsf] lyof] . o;sf] k|d'v sfd n3'ljQ ;]jf k|bfg ug]{ 
;+:yfx¿nfO{ yf]s shf{ k|bfg ug'{sf ;fy} tL ;+:yfx¿sf] 
;+:yfut Ifdtf ljsf; ug]{ /x]]sf] lyof] . cf/Pd8L;L 
:yfkgf kZrft g]kfndf n3'ljQ If]qsf] ljsf; ePsf] 
b]lvG5 . cf/Pd8L;Ln] n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿sf] ;ª\Vof 
j[l4dfq gu/L cfˆgf ;fem]bf/ ;+:yf dfkm{t pNn]Vo 
?kdf ljQLo kx'Fr k'¥ofPsf] 5 . 

-p_ 	 ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= M

	 s[lif ljsf; a}Ísf] Jofj;flos k|fyldstfdf ePsf] 
kl/jt{g, ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; sfo{qmdn] xfl;n u/]sf] 
pknlAw, ;/sf/sf] bfloTj / ev{/ :yfkgf ePsf ;fgf 
ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿nfO{ ;Ifd / ;jn :yfgLo 
u|fdL0f ;+:yf aGg ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] Pjd\ n3'ljQ 
;]jfaf6 jl~rt If]qdf ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ 
u7g u/L ljkGg tyf ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] cfly{s tyf 
;fdflhs ljsf;sf nflu ljQLo kx'Fr lj:tf/ ug]{ 
ljlzi6 p2]Zosf ;fy s[lif ljsf; a}+ssf] cu'jfO{ / 
g]kfn ;/sf/ Pjd\ ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿sf] 
;d]t ;xeflutfdf g]kfn ;/sf/, s[lif ljsf; a}Í ln=, 
gljn a}Í ln=, g]kfn a}Í ln= / @! j6f ;fgf ls;fg 
;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿sf] ;+:yfks z]o/ :jfldTjdf lj=;= 
@)%* ;fn c;f/ @@ ut] ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; a}+ssf] 
?kdf o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] :yfkgf ePsf] lyof] . 
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-pm_ 	;fljs ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf 
ln= / ;fljs cf/Pd8L;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf 
ln= Ps cfk;df uflePsf] M

	 kl/jlt{t ;Gbe{df g]kfnsf] s[lif tyf n3'ljQsf] 
If]qdf nufgL ug]{ j}slNks Pjd\ ;an ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] vfFrf], g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] clVtof/ 
u/]sf] df}lb|s gLlt, ljQLo If]qsf] tLa| k|lt:kwf{, 
nufgLsf cj;/ cflb uxg ljifox¿nfO{ 
Wofgdf /fvL Ps ;jn / ;Ifd n3'ljQ ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] ?kdf :yflkt eO{ ljQLo ;]jf k|bfg 
ug{, cGt/f{li6«o, /fli6«o, tyf :yfgLo kx'Fr, 
cg'ej / IfdtfnfO{ cem a9L k|efjsf/L 
agfO{ nlIft ju{sf] ;]jfdf k|lt:kwf{df pqg / 
nufgLstf{x¿sf] nufgLsf] ;'/Iffsf] k|Tofe"lt 
;lxt ;dofg's'n plrt k|ltkmn k|bfg ug{sf 
nflu Ps ;an k'FhLo'Qm pTs[i6 n3'ljQ ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] ?kdf :yflkt x'g] clek|fon] g]kfn /fi6« 
a}+s, a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf lgodg ljefusf] kq 
;+Vof M a}=lj=lg=lj=÷dh{/÷^^÷)&(÷*) sf] ldlt 
@)*)÷)@÷@$ sf] clGtd :jLs[lt kq cg';f/ ;fgf 
ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf / cf/Pd8L;L 
n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 Ps cfk;df ufleP/ 
;+:yfsf] gfd æ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo 
;+:yf lnld6]8Æ /lx, ldlt @)*)÷)#÷@$ af6 æ;fgf 
ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8Æ gfdaf6 
sf/f]jf/ ;~rfng ePsf] 5 .

-P_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf sfo{x¿ (Functions)

	 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿, cGo 
;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿, n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿ -o;kl5 
;fem]bf/ ;+:yf elgPsf]_ nfO{ lwtf] lnO{ jf glnO{ 
yf]sshf{ / k6s] shf{ k|bfg ug]{ . 

	 g]kfn /fi6« a}Ísf] dfu{bz{g cg'?k ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
tyf n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿sf] sf/f]jf/sf] cg'udg, 
lg/LIf0f tyf ;'k/Lj]If0f ug]{ / cfjZos lgb]{zg 
lbg] .

	 n3' Joj;fo Pj u|fdL0f ljQ ahf/sf] ljsf;, 
lj:tf/, k|j4{g / ;'b[9Ls/0f ug]{ tyf ljQLo Pj+ 
k|fljlws ;xof]u pknAw u/fpg] / cfjZos 
tflnd pknAw u/fpg ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] .

	 ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] ;+:yfut Pjd\ dfgj ;+zfwg 
ljsf; ug{ cfjZos ;xof]u ug]{ .

	 ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿;Fusf] ;xsfo{df s[lif 

d"No>[ª\vnf ;d]tsf kl/of]hgf :yfkgf u/L 
ljkGg tyf ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] cfDbfgL / 
/f]huf/Lsf cj;/df clea[l4 Pj+ ul/jL lgjf/0f 
;DaGwL sfo{df ;3fp k'¥ofpg] .

	 d'n'sdf 5l/P/ /x]sf] k"FhLnfO{ PsLs[t u/L 
;+:yfut nfugL tyf :j:y k|lt:kwf{sf dfWodaf6 
ljQLo dWo:ytfsf] ;]jf pknAw u/fpg] .

	 s[lif, s[lif Joj;fo, pBf]u, ;]jf, Jofkf/ tyf cGo 
pTkfbgzLn Joj;fosf] :yfkgf, ljsf;, lj:tf/ 
/ Ifdtf Pjd\ pTkfbsTj a[l4sf nflu cfjZos 
ljQLo ;fwg cfGTl/s tyf afXo >f]taf6 h'6fO{ 
d'n'ssf] cf}Bf]lus, Jofkfl/s Pjd\ s[lif If]qsf] 
ljsf;df ultzLntf Nofpg ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] .

	 k|rlnt sfg'gsf] cwLgdf /xL /fli6«o tyf 
cGt/f{li6«o ;+3÷;+:yfaf6 C0f jf cg'bfg k|fKt 
u/L n3'ljQ If]qsf] k|a4{g tyf ljsf;sf nflu 
cfjZos sfo{ ug]{ .

2=	 Jofj;flos k|s[of -k|bfg ul/g] ;]jf / k|s[of_ 

-s_	 ;|f]t Joj:yfkg M  

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] k"0f{ a}+lsË sfo{x¿ gug]{ ePsf]n] 
a}Í tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿af6 k|fKt x'g] ljkGgju{ shf{ 
g} o;sf] k|d'v ljQLo ;|f]t xf] . g]kfn ;/sf/n] 
pknAw u/fpFb} cfPsf] kz'kfng sHff{ -df;'hGo tyf 
b'UwhGo_, t/sf/L v]tL shf{ o;sf] csf]{ d'Vo ljQLo 
;|f]t xf] . o;/L g} u|fdL0f pBd kl/of]hgf shf{ -P8LaL 
;|f]t_ k|fKt x'Fb} cfPsf] 5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] g]kfn 
;/sf/ dfkm{t cGt/f{li6«o ljQLo ;+3÷;+:yf / ;xof]uL 
lgsfoaf6 ;d]t shf{ k|fKt ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . o;sf 
cltl/Qm ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ k'FhL, hu]8f sf]if, 
;l~rt d'gfkmf / cGo cg'bfgaf6 klg k'FhL Joj:yfkg 
ub{} cfPsf] 5 .

-v_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;]jf k|jfx ;+/rgf M 

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 

;+:yfx¿, cGo ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ tyf n3'ljQ ljQLo 

;+:yfx¿nfO{ yf]sshf{ tyf k'g/shf{ ;]jf pknAw 

u/fpF5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] !@ j6f zfvf sfof{no 

dfkm{t ;]jf pknAw u/fpFb} cfPsf] 5 . ;+:yfx¿sf] 

cg'udg, lg/LIf0f tyf shf{ k|jfx ug{sf nflu ;a} 

sfof{nox¿ lhDd]jf/ 5g\ . ljQLo ;+:yfn] ljkGg 

tyf ul/ax¿df n3'ljQ ;]jf k'¥ofpg ;fgf ls;fg 
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s[lif ;xsf/L, cGo ;xsf/L ;+:yf tyf n3'ljQ ljQLo 

;+:yfx¿ dfkm{t yf]s shf{ pknAw u/fpFb} cfPsf] 5 . 

;Demf}tfdf pNn]v ul/g] ztf{g';f/ nlIft ju{df pQm 

shf{ k|jfx ug]{ lhDd]jf/L ltg} ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] 

x'g]5 . ;+:yfx¿n] k|efjsf/L ;]jf k|bfg ug{ ;s'g 

eg]/ o; ljQLo ;+:Yffn] ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] Ifdtf 

clej[l4 nufot cGo k|fljlws ;xof]u ;d]t pknAw 

u/fpF5 . o;sf cltl/Qm ljkGg tyf ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] 

;+:yfut Ifdtf tyf ;fdflhs ;jnLs/0fsf nflu 

;/sf/ tyf cGo bft[;+:yf / ;fgf ls;fg ;+:yfx¿sf] 

lardf /x]/ k'nsf] sfd klg ub{} cfPsf] 5 . ;fgf 

ls;fg ;xsf/L cg';/0f sfo{qmd dfkm{t b]zsf ljleGg 

u|fdL0f ;d'bfosf dlxnf, blnt, dw]zL, hghflt / 

cGo lk5l8Psf ju{nfO{ ;]jf k'¥ofpFb} cfPsf] 5 .

-u_	 ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu cfj4tf M

c= 	 cfj4tf k|fKt ug{ clgjfo{ M o; ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu 
sf/f]af/ ug{ OR5's ;xsf/L÷n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿n] 
o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/df cfj4tfsf nflu 
cfj]bg ug'{ k5{ . To:tf ;+:yfx¿sf] sfg'gL, 
ljQLo, Joj:yfksLo tyf ;'zf;gsf ljifodf 
ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;+:yfut k/LIf0f ub{5 . ;+:yfut 
k/LIf0f ubf{ s'g} sdL sdhf]/Lx¿ kfO{Pdf ;f] 
;'wf/ eO;s]kl5 dfq ;+:yfx¿nfO{ cfj4 ug{] / 
;]jfx¿df ;l/s u/fpg] sfo{ ub{5 .

cf=	 cfj4tf÷sf/f]af/ ug{sf nflu dfkb08x¿M 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;]jfdf cfj4 x'g b]xfo 
cg';f/sf ljQLo ;"rsx¿, ;'zf;g ;DaGwL 
dfkb08x¿ / ;+:yfut cg'ej xfl;n u/]sf] 
x'g'kb{5 .

1=	 ljQLo ;"rsx¿ M 
tflnsf – 1 ljQLo ;"rsx¿

qm=
;+=

;"rsx¿
ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu sf/f]af/ z'? u/]sf] jif{

s}lkmot
klxnf] bf];|f]÷t];|f] t];|f] jif{ kl5

! afx\o  C0f÷nufgLdf /x]sf] C0f cg'kft <70Ü <70Ü <70Ü
n=lj= ;+:yfsf] 

xsdf g]=/f=a}+ssf] 
lgb]{zg cg';f/

@ g]6jy{ wgfTds g]6jy{ x'g' kg]{
# ;~rfng :j;Ifdtf >100Ü >105Ü >110Ü
$ jflif{s c;'nLb/ >90Ü >90Ü >90Ü

2=	 ;'zf;g ;DaGwL Go"gtd dfkb08 M

1.	 ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= 
nfO{ dfGo x'g] ljQLo sf/f]af/sf] k|rlnt bf]xf]/f] 
n]vf k|0ffnL -Double Entry Accounting 
System_ sf] cfwf/df x/–lx;fa lstfa 
cBfjlws ?kdf /fVg] u/]sf] / afXo n]vf 
k/LIfsåf/f k|To]s jif{ n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf] x'g'kg]{, 

2.	 ;+:yfut cg'ej M sDtLdf @ jif{b]lv nlIft 
;d"x÷ju{sf JolQmx¿df art ;Íng / shf{ 
k|jfx ug]{ sfo{ ub}{ cfO{ /x]sf] x'g'kg]{ .

3.	 u|fxs÷;fem]bf/ ;+:yfdf lgDgfg';f/sf ;~rfns 
kbflwsf/L / sd{rf/L /x]sf] cj:yfdf pQm ;+:yf 
o; ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 shf{ k|fKt ug{ cof]Uo 
x'g]5,–  

-s_	u|fxs÷;fem]bf/ ;+:yfsf ;~rfns kbflwsf/L, 
sd{rf/L tyf lghsf Psf3/ kl/jf/x¿sf] gfddf 
s'g} lsl;dsf] efsf gf3]sf] shf{ afFsL /x]sf] . 

-v_	u|fxs÷;fem]bf/ ;+:yfsf ;~rfns, sd{rf/L / 
cGo s'g} klg ;b:ox¿sf] gfddf u|fxs÷;fem]bf/ 
;+:yfn] tf]s]sf] shf{ lng kfpg] clwstd 
;LdfeGbf a9L shf{ k|jfx ePsf] .  

-u_  ;~rfns, sd{rf/L / cGo s'g} klg ;b:ox¿sf] 
gfddf u|fxs÷;fem]bf/ ;+:yfdf a]?h' tyf 
km5\of}{6 x'g'kg]{ ;do ;LdfeGbf ! dlxgf jf 
;f]eGbf a9L cjlwn] k]:sL afFsL /x]sf] . 

-3_	 u|fxs÷;fem]bf/ ;+:yfsf ;~rfns kbflwsf/L 
/ sd{rf/Lx¿n] cGo a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu 
shf{ lnO{ efsf g3fO{ /x]sf] jf cGo a}+s tyf 
ljQLo ;+:yfx¿n] sfnf];"rLdf /fv]sf] Pjd\ 
cGo a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu lnPsf] shf{ ltg{ 
g;ls 6f6 kN6]sf] .

-3_	 shf{ nufgL Joj:yf M

!=	 yf]s shf{ k|bfos M n3'ljQ If]qsf nflu yf]s shf{ 
k|jfx ug]{ sfo{ g} o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|d'v Joj;fo 
xf] . o;n] ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿, cGo 
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;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ tyf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿nfO{ 
n3'ljQ k|of]hgsf nflu yf]s shf{ k|jfx ub{5 . 
cf=j= @)&&÷&* b]lv u|fdL0f pBd nufgL kl/of]hgf 
cGtu{t Pl;ofnL ljsf; a}Ísf] C0f ;xof]udf g]kfn 
;/sf/ dfkm{t ;fgf tyf demf}nf s[lif pBd Joj;fo 
shf{ sfo{qmd sfof{Gjog ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . h;df 
;fd"lxs÷;xsf/L kl/of]hgf ?=$ s/f]8;Dd / JolQmut 
kl/of]hgf ?= ! s/f]8;Dd k|lt kl/of]hgf shf{ nufgL 
ug]{ Joj:yf 5 . nufgLnfO{ Jojl:yt ug{ shf{ gLlt, 
sfo{ljlw, dfkb08 th'{df ul/Psf] 5 . oL gLlt lgod 
/ sfo{ljlwx¿ k|rlnt sfg'g, s]Gb|Lo a}Ísf] lgb{]zg 
Pjd\ n3'ljQsf dfGotf / cEof; cg'?k /x]sf 5g\ . 

@=	 nlIft ;d'bfo -hg;ª\Vof_ M ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿n] 
tkl;n adf]lhdsf ;d'bfodf shf{ k|jfx ug'{ kg]{ 
Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 M 

•	 kxf8 jf lxdfndf !% /f]kgL jf t/fO{df ! 
laufxfeGbf sd hUuf ePsf] jf cfˆgf] pTkfbg 
/ sdfO{af6 jif{e/ vfg nfpg gk'Ug] kl/jf/ 

•	 lgoldt cfDbfgL gePsf cfly{s ?kdf cToGt 
sl7g cj:yfdf hLjg lgjf{x ul//x]sf] JolQm jf 
kl/jf/ 

•	 cGo a}+s ljQLo ;+:yf tyf ;/sf/Ldf shf{ 
afFsL gePsf] JolQm tyf kl/jf/

•	 blnt, dw];L, lk5l8Psf ug{, dlxnf tyf n3' 
Pjd\ ;fgf pBdLx¿

#= 	 lwtf];DaGwL Joj:yf M ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf tyf cGo ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿n]  shf{ k|fKt ug{sf 
nflu tf]lsPsf dfkb08x¿ k'/f u/]sf] x'g'kb{5 . ljQLo 
;+:yfn] shf{ k|jfx ubf{ ;+:yfx¿;Fu ;fdfGot lwtf] 
lnFb}g t/, ;+:yfsf ;~rfns tyf Joj:yfkssf] 
JolQmut hdfgL, ;+:yfut hdfgL h:tf cfjZos 
sfuhkqx¿ lng] u/]sf] 5 . 

$=	 shf{ :jLs[t ;LdfM ljQLo ;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{nox¿n] 
?= @) s/f]8;Dd / s]Gb|Lo sfof{non] ?= $) s/f]8;Dd 
shf{ ;Ldf -qm]8L6 PS;kf]h/ lnld6_ :jLs[t ug{ ;Sg] 
clwsf/ /x]sf] 5 . ;f] eGbf dflysf] shf{ ;~rfns 
;ldltn] :jLs[t ug]{ Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 .

%=	 ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 k|bfg ul/g] shf{sf k|sf/x¿ M 
ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 k|bfg ul/g] shf{nfO{ d'Vo u/L b]xfo 
cg';f/sf tLg ju{df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 M 

-s_	 yf]s shf{ M ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu cfj4 ;+:yfx¿nfO{ 
sfo{If]q leqsf nlIft ju{÷;d'bfosf] 
cfjZostf cg';f/ v'b|f shf{ k|jfx ug{ ljQLo 
;+:yfn] yf]s shf{ k|bfg ug{ ;Sg]5 . 

-v_	 ;+:yfut shf{ M ;fem]bf/ ;+:yf :jod\n] nlIft 
ju{÷;d"xsf] Joj;fo k|jw{gdf ;xof]u k'Ug]] 
pBf]u jf Joj;fo ;~rfng ug{, ;+:yfsf] 
cTofjZos ef}lts k"jf{wf/ vl/b jf lgdf{0f ug{ 
/ ljljw sf/0fn] ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfdf t/ntf ;Í6 
pTkGg ePdf ;f] ;d:of ;dfwfg ug{ o; ljQLo 
;+:yfn] ;+:yfut shf{ k|bfg ug{ ;Sg]5 . 

-u_	 kl/of]hgf shf{ M ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;DalGwt 
lgodgsf/L lgsfosf] cg'dlt÷:jLs[lt lnO{ 
cfo cfh{g;Fu ;DalGwt kl/of]hgfx¿df 
cfjZstf cg';f/sf] ækl/of]hgf shf{Æ nufgL 
ug{ ;Sg]5 . kl/of]hgf shf{ ;+rfng ug{sf] nflu 
ljQLo ;+:yfn] 5'6\6} kl/of]hgf shf{ ;DaGwL 
sfo{ljlw jf kl/of]hgfsf] cfjZostf adf]lhd 
5'6\6f 5'6\6} kl/of]hgf shf{ gLlt tyf sfo{ljlw 
agfpg ;Sg] 5 . ;f] Joj:yf ePsf] cj:yfdf 
kl/of]hgf shf{x¿sf] ;+rfng ;DjlGwt 
kl/of]hgf shf{ ;+rfng gLlt tyf sfo{ljlw 
adf]lhd ug'{ kg]{5 .

3=	 ljut jif{x¿sf] ljQLo cj:yf M

	 d'n'ssf] ;du| cfly{s kl/j]zsf lar n3'ljQ If]qdf 
tLj| k|lt:kwf{ x'Fbf xF'b} klg o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] n3'ljQs 
;]jf lj:tf/ ub}{ ljQLo ;+:yfn] pNn]vgLo ;'wf/ ug{ 
;kmn ePsf] 5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfkm\gf s'n 
!$^# ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿ dfkm{t cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df 
ljkGg tyf ;fgf ls;fg kl/jf/df ;]jf lj:tf/ u/L s'n 
(,$!,&#! kl/jf/nfO{ n3'ljQ ;]jf k'¥ofpg ;kmn 
ePsf] 5 . 

	 cf=j= @)*)÷*! df s'n ;~rfng cfDbfgL ?= @ 
cj{ !( s/f]8 $! nfv /x]sf]df cf=j= @)*!÷*@ 
df !& k|ltztn] 36]/ ?= ! cj{ *! s/f]8 @* nfv 
/x]sf] 5 . ;fy} cf=j= @)*)÷*! df v'b d'gfkmf ?= 
(@ s/f]8 !( nfv /x]sf]df cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df %=)
( k|ltztn] 36]/ ?= *& s/f]8 %) nfv /x]sf] 5 .  
cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df o; ;+:yfn] af]g; z]o/sf] 
dfWodaf6 !#=#) k|ltztn] z]o/ k'FhL j[l¢ ug{ ;kmn 
ePsf] 5 . 
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tflnsf – 2 ljQLo ljj/0fsf] ;f/f+z 
-? xhf/df_

qm;+ ljj/0f  @)*@ c;f/ @)*! c;f/ jl4÷-x|f;_

! z]o/ k'FhL 4312621.5 3,806,374 13.30Ü

@ hu]8f 4,143,622 3,904,482 6.12Ü

# ;l~rt d'gfkmf 1,849,112 1,757,956 5.19Ü

$ C0f ;fk6L 26,736,100 31,587,080 -15.36Ü

% s'n nufgLdf /x]sf] /sd 35,907,341 39,624,996 -9.38Ü

^ cGo nufgL 27,635 26,250 5.27Ü

& ;~rfng d'gfkmf 1,276,345 1,316,985 -3.09Ü

* v"b d'gfkmf 875,006 921,944 -5.09Ü

( k'FhL kof{Kttf -k|ltztdf_ 16.62Ü 14.71Ü 12.99Ü

tflnsf – 3  s]xL dxTjk"0f{ ljQLo ;"rsx¿

qm;+ ljj/0f ;"rsfª\s cf=j=*!÷*@ cf=j=*)÷*!

1 v'b gfkmf÷s'n cfDbfgL k|ltzt k|ltzt 30.02 22.13

2 Jofh cfDbfgL÷shf{ tyf ;fk6 k|ltzt 7.66 9.76

3 sd{rf/L vr{÷s'n ;~rfng vr{ k|ltzt 12.09 7.95

4 s'n lgIf]k tyf ;fk6Ldf Jofh vr{ k|ltzt 3.58 5.73

5 sd{rf/L af]g;÷s'n sd{rf/L vr{ k|ltzt 86.63 77.86

6 v'b gfkmf÷s'n ;DklQ cg'kft 2.11 2.08

7 s'n ;~rfng vr{÷s'n ;DklQ k|ltzt 3.35 5.12

8 a's g]6jy{ -k|lt z]o/_ ?= 239.38 249.24

-v_ 	/fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltaf6 sDkgLsf] 
sf/f]af/nfO{ s'g} c;/ k/]sf] eP ;f] c;/

1=	 n3'ljQsf] ljZj k|;· / ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; cleofgM

	 /fli6«o / cGt/f{li6«o If]qdf n3'ljQsf ljleGg 
df]8]nx¿ cjnDag ul/Psf 5g\ . tL df]8]nx¿eGbf 
;fgf ls;fg ljsf; sfo{qmdn] cjnDag u/]sf] df]8]n 
leGg 5 . of] ;]jf k|bfos df]8]n geP/ nlIft ju{sf] 
:jfldTj lgdf{0f Pjd\ ;xeflutfTds df]8]n klg xf] . 
o;sf nflu u|fdL0f ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+/rgfsf] 
k|0ffnL ljsf; ePsf] 5 . ljut s]xL jif{b]lv 
n3'ljQsf] ;Gbe{nfO{ lnP/ ljZj:t/df s]xL ulDe/ 
ax;x¿ ;'? ePsf 5g\ . o; If]qdf b]lvPsf ljrng 
/ ;'wf/sf sbdx¿nfO{ o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ulDe/tfsf 
;fy lnPsf] 5 . :yfgLo :t/df ;+:yf Pjd\ :JffldTj 
l;h{gf, :yfgLo k'FhL lgdf{0f, ;xsf/L l;4fGt, d"No 

dfGotf / u|fxs ;+/If0f l;4fGt cg'kfngnfO{ dxTj 
lbO{Psf] 5 . /fli6«o / cGt/f{li6«o ;Dd]ng, uf]i7L Pjd\ 
cg';Gwfgx¿df qmdzM ;fgf ls;fg df]8]nsf] klxrfg 
/ k|;f/ lj:tf/ x'Fb} uPsf] 5 . ljZjJofkLs/0fsf nflu 
o;sf] k|fl1s kIfdf cem w]/} d]xgt ug{ afFsL g} 5 .

2=	 ljZj cy{tGq M

	 cfly{s ultljlwdf ;':ttf cfO{ ;g\ @)@% df ljZj 
cy{tGqsf] j[l4b/ sd x'g] cg'dfg /x]sf] 5 . v'nf, 
pbf/Ls/0f tyf ljZjJofkLs/0fsf] dfGotf / :yflkt 
l;4fGtsf] k|lts"n x'g]u/L ljZj cy{tGq ;+/If0fjfbtkm{ 
pGd'v x'Fb} uPsf] kl/l:yltdf 7"nf cy{tGqaLr Ps 
cfk;df eG;f/ b/ a9fpg] xf]8afhLn] ljZj cy{tGqdf 
ax'cfoflds k|efj kg]{ b]lvPsf] 5 . vf;u/L, ljZj 
Jofkf/df ;do ;dodf b]lvPsf] tgfj, Go"g nufgL 
/ pRr ;fj{hlgs C0f nufot cfk"lt{ z[ªvnfdf 
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b]lvPsf] cj/f]wsf] k|efj ljZj cfly{s j[l4b/df 
kg]{ cg'dfg ul/Fb} cfPsf] 5 . ljsl;t, pbLodfg tyf 
ljsf;zLn cy{tGqsf] d'b|f:kmLlt 36\b} uPsf]n] ;g 
@)@% df ;du| d"No:t/df sd rfk kg]{ cg'dfg 5 . 
oBlk, 7"nf cy{tGq aLrsf] Jofkf/ k|lt:kwf{sf sf/0f 
cfofltt j:t'sf] d"No j[l4 x'g uO{ ;du| d"No:t/ 
a9\g ;Sg] hf]lvd /x]sf] 5 . ljZj cfly{s Pjd\ 
/fhgLlts kl/b[Zodf b]lvPsf] cl:y/tfn] nufgL / 
pkef]udf sdL cfO{ pTkfbgdf x|f; cfpg] b]lvG5 . 
kl/jlt{t kl/b[iodf b]lvPsf] ;+/rgfut cj/f]w x6fO{ 
ljQ Pjd\ df}lb|s gLlt aLr k|efjsf/L ;dGjo 
sfod ug'{kg]{ b]lvG5 . cGt/fli6«o ljsf; ;xfotfdf 
cfPsf] ;+s'rg, ljleGg b]zx¿lar al9/x]sf] åGå, 
hg;flª\Vos ;+/rgfdf b]lvPsf] kl/jt{g / cfk|jf;L 
>ldsdf ul/Psf] s8fO{sf sf/0f cltsd ljsl;t 
Pjd\ ljsf;zLn d'n'ssf] ;|f]t kl/rfngsf] bfo/f 
;fF3'/f] x'Fb} uPsf] cj:yfdf xfd|f] h:tf] d'n'sn] 
cfGtl/s ;|f]t / /f]huf/L clej[l4 ug{ cfly{s gLltdf 
;dofg's'n kl/dfh{g ug'{kg]{ cfjZostf b]lvPsf] 5 .

3=	 g]kfnsf] ;du| cfly{s cj:yf M

	 g]kfnsf] ;+3Lo k|0ffnLdf ;+3, & k|b]z, &%# :yfgLo 
tx / && lhNnf /x]sf 5g\ . s'n &%# :yfgLo 
txdf ^ dxfgu/kflnsf, !! pkdxfgu/kflnsf, @&^ 
gu/kflnsf / $^) ufpFkflnsf /x]sf 5g\ . /fli6«o 
hgu0fgf @)&* sf] cg';f/ g]kfnsf] hg;ª\Vof @ 
s/f]8 (! nfv (@ xhf/ $*) /x]sf] 5 eg] hg;+Vof 
j[l4b/ k|ltjif{ )=(# k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . 

	 g]kfn ;/sf/ cy{ dGqfnosf] cf=j= @)*!÷*@ 
sf] cfly{s ;j{]If0fsf] k|ltj]bg cg';f/ g]kfnsf] 
cy{tGqsf cfGtl/s Pjd\ afXo kl/;"rs ;an tyf 
;'b[9 aGb} uPsf] b]lvG5 . s[lif pBf]u ;]jf If]qsf] 
pTkfbg a9\g] cg'dfg 5 . cfly{s lqmofsnfkdf 
a9f]Q/L x'Fb} uP;Fu} rfn' cfly{s jif{df d'n'ssf] 
cy{tGq dWod b/n] lj:tf/ x'g] cg'dfg 5 . @)*! 
c;f]hdf b]zsf ljleGg :yfgdf uPsf] af9L klx/f] 
h:tf ljkb\hGo 36gfsf] sf/0f ef}lts k"jf{wf/, s[lif 
nufotsf If]qdf Iflt k'u]sf] lyof] . ;/sf/af6 ePsf] 
zL3| k|ltsfo{ / Jofj;flos jftfj/0fdf ;'wf/sf nflu 
ul/Psf gLltut Joj:yfsf sf/0f cfly{s ultljlwdf 
;sf/fTds k|efj k/]sf] b]lvG5 . To;}u/L pkef]Qmf 
d'bf:kmLlt jflif{s nIosf] ;Ldfleq /x]sf] b]lvG5 . 
pTkfbgd"ns If]qdf Go"g nufgL tyf Jofkf/ c;Gt'ng 

ePklg ljk|]if0f cfk|jfx, e|d0f cfo nufotsf k|flKt 
a9]sf]n] rfn' vftf / zf]wgfGt/ l:ylt b'j} artdf /x]sf 
5g\ . kmn:j?k, ljb]zL ljlgdo;l~rlt xfn;Dds} 
pRr /x]sf] 5 . cfly{s lqmofsnfkdf ePsf] lj:tf/n] 
/fh:j kl/rfngdf ;'wf/ ePsf] 5 . ;fj{hlgs vr{sf] 
t'ngfdf /fh:j kl/rfng kof{Kt gePsf]n] ;|f]t 
kl/rfngdf bafa kg{ uO{ ;fj{hlgs C0fsf] cfsf/ 
a9\b} uPsf] 5 . t;y{, ;|f]t Joj:yfkgnfO{ k|efjsf/L 
agfO{ ;/sf/sf] C0f dflysf] lge{/tf sd ub}{ ljQLo 
:yfloTj sfod ug{ cfjZos b]lvPsf] 5 . k|b]z / 
:yfgLo txsf] cfGtl/s ;|f]t kl/rfng Go"g /xFbf 
;+l3o ;/sf/ dflysf] lge{/tfdf sdL cfpg ;s]sf] 
5}g . a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfdf nufgLof]Uo k'FhL kof{Kt 
/x]sf] / shf{sf] Aofhb/ 36]sf] ePtfklg lghL If]qtkm{ 
k|jfx x'g] shf{ ck]lIft ?kdf a9\g ;s]sf] 5}g . a}+s 
tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgliqmo shf{ a9]sf] 5  .

4=	 n3'ljQsf] cj:yf

-c_	 /fli6«o cfly{s kl/b[io M 

	 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ c;f/ d;fGt;Dddf ljQLo 
If]qdf kx'Fr clej[l4 x'Fb} hfg'sf] ;fy} ljQLo sf/f]af/ 
pNn]Vo lj:tf/ ePsf] 5 . jfl0fHo a}Í, ljsf; a}Í / 
ljQ sDkgL :yfkgfsf nflu Ohfht lbg] sfo{ :yug 
ul/Psf] / k'FhL j[l4 ;DaGwL gLltsf sf/0f a}Í tyf 
ljQLo ;+:yf dh{/÷k|flKtdf ;fd]n x'Fb} uPsfn] a}Í tyf 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;ª\Vof 36\b} uPsf] 5 . oBlk ljut 
s]lx jif{otf ljQLo If]qsf] ljsf; tyf ;'b[9Ls/0fsf 
nflu ePsf gLltut Joj:yfsf] k|efjsf/L sfof{Gjog 
/ ;'wf/sf sf/0f ljQLo kx'Fr clej[l4 x'g'sf ;fy} 
jfl0fHo a}Ísf zfvfx¿ ;a}h:tf] :yfgLo lgsfodf 
:yfkgf eO;s]sf] sf/0fn] ubf{ ljQLo sf/f]af/df ;d]t 
pNn]Vo lj:tf/ ePsf] 5 . 

	 @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtdf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿sf] 
zfvf ;ª\Vof $(^! / ;b:o ;ª\Vof #=*Ü n] a[l4 
eO{ (@ nfv @! xhf/, C0fL ;ª\Vof !=^Ü n] a[l4 eO{ 
@& nfv ̂  xhf/ /x]sf] 5 . n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿df 
@!&!& hgf sd{rf/Lx¿ sfo{/t /x]sf 5g\ h'g @)*! 
c;f/ d;fGtsf] t'ngfdf )=)%Ü n] sdL xf] . 

	 cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿sf] s'n 
lgIf]k !#=)&Ü n] j[l¢ eO{ ? ! va{ (( ca{ &% 
s/f]8 ^) nfv k'u]sf] 5 . To;}u/L pQm ;+:yfx¿sf] 
cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df shf{ /sd ^=(Ü n] j[l4 eO{ ? 
$ va{ (! ca{ *) s/f]8 @ nfv k'u]sf] 5 . 
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-cf_	 ljQLo kx'Fr lj:tf/df n3'ljQ If]q cu|0fL M

	 d'n'sn] cjnDag u/]sf] bL3{sfnLg ljsf;sf 
nIox¿;Fu ;fd~h:otf sfod ug]{ u/L ljQLo 
If]q ljsf; /0fgLlt tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}Ísf] /0fgLlts 
of]hgf;Fu tfbfTDotf /xg] u/L sfo{qmd ;~rfng 
ul/g]5 . ljQLo ;'zf;g / ;Dj4{g (Financial 
Governance and Consolidation) nfO{ hf]8 lbFb} 
e'QmfgL k|0ffnLsf] cfw'lgsLs/0f dfkm{t ljQLo kxF'r 
clej[l4 ug]{ ljQLo If]q sfo{qmdsf] p2]Zo /x]sf] 5 .  

	 g]kfn ;/sf/ / /fi6« a}Ísf] aLpk'FhL nufgLdf :yfkgf 
eO{ g]kfn /fi6« a}Ídfk{mt ;~rfng x'Fb} cfPsf] u|fdL0f 
:jfjnDag sf]if sfo{qmdsf] ;~rfng o; ljQLo 
;+:yfdfk{mt x'g] u/L x:tfGt/0f ul/Psf] 5 .  

	 @)*@ c;f/ d;fGt;Dddf a}Í tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
;ª\Vof !)& /x]sf] 5, h;dWo] @) jfl0fHo a}Í, !& 
ljsf; a}Í, !& ljQ sDkgL, %@ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf 
/ ! k"jf{wf/ ljsf; a}Í /x]sf  5g\ . To;}u/L a}Í tyf 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] zfvf ;ª\Vof !!,%@* k'u]sf] 5 . 

	 @)*@ c;f/ d;fGt;Dddf %@ j6f n3'ljQ ljQLo 
;+:yfx¿dWo] ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo 
;+:yf, km:6{ dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf / 
cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf u/L # j6f yf]sshf{ 
k|bfos n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf /x]sf 5g\ eg] afFsL $( 
j6f v'b|f shf{ k|jfx ug]{ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿ 
/x]sf 5g\ . 

	 @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtdf $( j6f v'b|f shf{ nufgL 
ug]{ n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿sf] shf{ nufgL ?=$ va{ $% 
ca{ /x]sf] 5 . yf]s shf{ nufgL ug]{ # j6f n3'ljQ 
;+:yfx¿sf] n// o; cjlwdf ?=$^ ca{ ^# s/f]8 
k'u]sf]df ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
?=#$ ca{ @& s/f]8 -&#Ü_, kmi6{ dfO{qmf] kmfO{gfG;sf] 
?=^ ca{ ( s/f]8 -!#Ü_ / cf/P;8L;Lsf] ?= ^ ca{ 
@* s/f]8 -!#Ü_ /x]sf] 5 . o; k|sf/sf yf]s shf{ 
k|bfos ;+:yfx¿dWo] ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ 
ljQLo ;+:yf ln= n3'ljQ shf{ k|bfosx¿sf] k|d'v ;+:yf 
aGg k'u]sf] 5  .

-u_	 k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt;Dd rfn' cfly{s jif{sf] 
pknlAw / eljiodf ug'{ kg]{ s'/fsf] ;DaGwdf 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff M 

1=	 rfn' cfly{s jif{sf s]xL ljQLo ;"rsx¿

	 cf=j=@)*!÷*@ sf] c;f]h d;fGtsf] v'b d'gfkmf ?= 
#@ s/f]8 !* nfv /x]sf]df rfn' cf=j= @)*@÷*# 
sf] c;f]h d;fGtdf ?= @@ s/f]8 *% nfv x'g uPsf] 
5 . @)*! sf] c;f]hdf s'n shf{ tyf ;fk6 ?= #$ 
ca{ *% s/f]8 $ nfv /x]sf]df @)*@ ;fn c;f]h 
d;fGt ;Dddf ?= ## ca{ %@ s/f]8 #^ nfv /x]sf] 
5 . @)*! c;f]hdf s'n lgliqmo shf{ @=$^ k|ltzt 
/x]sf]df @)*@ ;fn c;f]h d;fGtdf #=)& k|ltzt 
ePsf] 5 . 

tflnsf – 4 s]xL dxTjk"0f{ ljQLo ;"rsx¿

qm;+ ljj/0f ;'rsfª\s  @)*@ c;f]h @)*! c;f]h jl4÷-x|f;_

1 C0f ;fk6L ?=xhf/df     25,066,998 28,575,221 -12.28Ü

2 s'n nufgLdf /x]sf] /sd ?=xhf/df      33,523,637 34,850,354 -3.81Ü

3 ;~rfng d'gfkmf ?=xhf/df         326,426 463,299 -29.54Ü

4 v'b d'gfkmf ?=xhf/df        228,498 321,815 -29.00Ü

5 k'FhL kof{Kttf k|ltzt 18.20Ü 15.30Ü 18.97Ü

2=	 shf{ ;]jfx¿

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] b]xfo cg';f/sf ljleGg shf{x¿ 
pknAw u/fpFb} cfPsf] 5 h;sf b]xfo adf]lhdsf 
ljz]iftfx¿ 5g\M

-s_ 	n3'shf{ M u|fdL0f ;d'bfosf dlxnf, blnt, ljkGg 
ju{nfO{ n3'ljQ ;]jfsf] lj:tf/ ug{ cfjZos 
kg]{ k'FhLnfO{ n3' shf{sf] ?kdf ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;fgf 

ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf x¿, cGo ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ 
tyf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿nfO{ yf]s shf{sf] ?kdf 
pknAw u/fpFb5 . cfˆgf] k"FhL ckof{Kt eO{ C0f 
nufgLdf ;d:of ePdf ;+:yfx¿n] cfjZostf cg';f/ 
of] shf{ dfu ug{ ;Sb5g\ .

-v_ 	kz'kfng -df;'hGo÷b'UwhGo_ shf{ M g]kfn ;/sf/sf] 
C0f ;xof]udf ljQLo ;+:yfn] cf=j= @)^&÷^* 
b]lv xfn;Dd lg/Gt/ ?kdf kz'kfng shf{ sfo{qmd 
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sfof{Gjog u/]sf] 5 . df;' tyf b'UwhGo kbfy{sf] pTkfbg 
a9fO{ df;' tyf b'UwhGo kbfy{sf] cfoft k|lt:yfkgdf 
;3fpm k'¥ofpg ljQLo ;+:yfn] of] shf{ sfof{Gjogdf 
NofPsf] xf] . kz'kfns ;fgf ls;fgx¿nfO{ jflif{s 
&Ü Aofhb/df kz'kfng shf{ pknAw u/fpg] u/L 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/df cfj4 ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ 
dfkm{t jflif{s &Ü Aofhb/df kz'kfns ls;fgx¿nfO{ 
of] shf{ pknAw u/fpg] Joj:yf ldnfPsf] 5 . g]kfn 
;/sf/af6 ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ 
;Dddf ?=!* ca{ #* s/f]8 kz'kfng shf{ k|fKt 
ePsf]df g]kfn ;/sf/nfO{ ?=^ ca{ (% s/f]8 *# 
nfv #$ xhf/ lkmtf{ eO{ ?= !! cj{ $@ s/f]8 (! 
nfv ^^ xhf/ kl/rfng x'Fb} cfPsf] 5 . 

-u_ 	 t/sf/L v]tL shf{ M ;fgf ls;fgnfO{ t/sf/L v]tLdf 
Jofj;flos ?kdf nfUg clek|]l/t ug]{] p2]Zon] kxf8df 
Ps /f]kgL / t/fO{df !=% sÝf eGbf a9L If]qkmndf 
t/sf/L v]tL ug]{ ;fgf ls;fgnfO{ nlIft u/L cf=j= 
@)&^÷&& b]lv Jofj;flos t/sf/L v]tL shf{ 
sfo{qmd sfof{Gjogdf NofOPsf] 5 . rfn' cf=j= 
@)*@÷*# df klg of] shf{sf] lg/Gt/tf /x]sf] 5 . 
g]kfn ;/sf/af6 o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ cfly{s jif{ 
@)*!÷*@ ;Dddf ?=@ ca{ @@ s/f]8 ^) nfv shf{ 
k|fKt eO{ ?= !^ s/f]8 g]kfn ;/sf/nfO{ e'QmfgL u/L 
afFsL ?= @ ca{ ^ s/f]8 ^) nfv kl/rfngdf /x]sf] 
5 . 

-3_ 	 s[lif shf{ M ls;fgsf nflu pGgt ljpljhg sfo{qmd 
nfu' ePsf dWo] klZrdsf ?s'd k"j{, ?s'd klZrd, 
u'NdL, c3f{vfFrL, ;Nofg, Ko"7fg / /f]Nkf lhNnfsf 
*# ;xsf/L dfkm{t of] shf{ sfo{qmd kl/rfng x'Fb} 
cfPsf]] 5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ k|fKt shf{ /sd 
?=*) s/f]8 dWo] ?=$) s/f]8 e'QmfgL u/L xfn ?=$) 
s/f]8 shf{ kl/rfngdf /x]sf] 5 . 

-ª_ 	 u|fdL0f pBd shf{ M ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo 
;+:yf ln= dfkm{t sfo{qmd sfo{fGjog ug{] u/L g]kfn 
;/sf/ / Pl;ofnL ljsf; a}Ílar l8;]Da/ !), @)!( 
df u|fdL0f pBd nufgL kl/of]hgf (Rural Enterprise 
Financing Project) ;Demf}tf eP adf]lhd ;fgf tyf 
demf}nf ls;fg pBdLsf] shf{df ;xh kx'Fr ;'lglZrt 
u/L u|fdL0f s[lif pBdsf] k|jw{g ug{] d'Vo p2]Zon] of] 
shf{ sfo{qmd nfu' ePsf] 5 . n3'ljQsf] ;Ldf eGbf 
a9L -;fd"lxs÷;xsf/L k|lt kl/of]hgf ?=$ s/f]8;Dd 
/ JolQmut kl/of]hgf ?=! s/f]8;Dd_ sf] Joj;fo ug{ 

;Ifd s[lif pBdLx¿nfO{ nlIft u/L of] shf{ sfo{qmd 
;~rfng ePsf] 5 . pQm shf{ cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ 
;Dddf o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ ?= % ca{ &) s/f]8 k|fKt 
eO{ ?= @$ s/f]8 %) nfv ^) xhf/ g]kfn ;/sf/nfO{ 
e'QmfgL u/L afFsL ?= % ca{ $% s/f]8 $( nfv $) 
xhf/ kl/rfngdf /x]sf] 5 . 

-r_ 	 u|fdL0f :jfjnDag shf{ M g]kfn ;/sf/ dlGqkl/ifbsf] 
ldlt @)&% dª\l;/ @$ sf] lg0f{o adf]lhd tof/ eO{ 
g]kfn ;/sf/ -dfggLo dGqL:t/_ sf] ldlt @)&% 
kmfu'g @& sf] lg0f{on] :jLs[t æu|fdL0f :jfjnDag 
shf{ sfo{k4lt, @)&%Æ adf]lhd g]kfn /fi6« a}Í 
dfkm{t ;~rfng x'Fb} cfPsf] u|fdL0f :jfjnDjg sf]ifnfO{ 
@)&^ ;fpg ! ut]b]lv o; ljQLo ;+:yf dfkm{t u|fdL0f 
:jfjnDag shf{sf] ?kdf sfo{fGjog ul/Psf] 5 . o; 
ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ ?=(* s/f]8 %^ nfv !^ xhf/ !&^ 
/ k};f &! dfq ;Demf}tfsf] avtdf k|fKt eO{ cf=j= 
@)*!÷*@ ;Dd g]kfn ;/sf/ / g]kfn /fi6« a}+snfO{ 
s'n ?=&) s/f]8 %^ nfv !^ xhf/ e'Qmfg u/L xfn 
?=#( s/f]8 *@ nfv $& xhf/ kl/rfng x'Fb} cfPsf]    
5 . 

-5_	 ;x'lnotk"0f{ shf{ M afudtL k|b]z ;/sf/;Fusf] ;xsfo{ 
/ C0f ;xof]udf afudtL k|b]z leqsf ;fe]mbf/ ;xsf/L 
;+:yfx¿ dfkm{t ;~rfng x'g] u/L @)&& dª\l;/af6 
pTkfbg tyf /f]huf/L l;{hgfsf nflu ;x'lnotk"0f{ 
shf{ sfo{qmd sfof{Gjogdf NofPsf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ 
@)&(÷*) ;Dddf afudtL k|b]z ;/sf/af6 k|fKt ?= ! 
cj{ ^$ s/f]8 shf{ k|fKt eO{ xfn;Dd afudtL k|b]z 
;/sf/nfO{ ?=*) s/f]8 @& nfv e'Qmfg u/L *# s/f]8 
&# nfv kl/rfng x'Fb} cfPsf] 5 . 

3=	 k|fljlws ;]jf

-s_	 ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L cg';/0f tyf ;]jf lj:tf/ 
sfo{qmdM

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] u|fdL0f If]qdf k|efjsf/L lbuf] 
n3'ljQ ;]jf k|jfxsf nflu :yfgLo k|0ffnL ljsf; 
ug{ gjk|jt{gLo cEof;sf ?kdf ;fgf ls;fg 
;xsf/L cg';/0f sfo{qmd ;~rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . 
;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L cg';/0f sfo{qmdcGtu{t ;fgf 
ls;fg ;xsf/Lsf] ;]jf gk'u]sf If]qsf ljkGg tyf 
;fgf ls;fgx¿nfO{ ;Ël7t u/L cfjZos n3'ljQ 
;]jf lbg ;Ifd ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yfsf] 
u7g u/L lbuf] / lg/Gt/ ;]jf pknAw x'g] Joj:yf 



18

ldnfOG5 . cg';/0faf6 lgld{t ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L 
;+:yfn] cfˆgf ;b:osf] cfly{s÷;fdflhs ljsf;sf 
nflu of]hgf th'{df tyf n3'ljQ ;]jfsf] sfof{Gjog 
ug]{ ;fdYo{;lxtsf] ;+:yfut ljsf;sf] of] kl/sNkgf 
g]kfnsf] dfq geP/ cGo d'n'snfO{ ;d]t cg';/0f of]Uo 
x'g] 7flgPsf] 5 . o;af6 u|fdL0f If]qdf n3'ljQ ;]jf 
k|bfg ug{df 7"nf] ;xof]u k'u]sf]]] 5 . cg';/0f sfo{qmddf 
g]kfn ;/sf/sf] dxTjk"0f{ ;xof]u /xFb} cfPsf] 5 . 
ljQLo ;+:yfn] ljZj a}Í cGtu{t ;LhLPkLaf6 k|fKt 
k'/:sf/ /fzLnfO{ cg';/0f sf]ifsf ?kdf :yfkgf u/L 
;f] ;d]t o; sfo{qmddf k|of]u ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . To:t} 
ljutdf cg';/0f sfo{df hL=cfO{=h]8= / s[lif ljsf; 
a}Ísf] ;d]t ;xof]u /x]sf] 5 . o; sfo{qmd cGtu{t 
o; cf=j @)*!÷)*@ df yk * j6f ;xsf/L u7g 
ug]{ nIo cg'?k yk * j6f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yfx¿sf] :yfkgf eO{ ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/Lsf] ;]jf 
gk'u]sf yk * If]qdf ;]jf lj:tf/ ePsf] 5 . cf=j 
@)*!÷)*@ df o; sfo{qmd tkm{ g]kfn ;/sf/af6 
k|fKt cg'bfg /sd ?=! s/f]8 vr{ ePsf] 5 . 

-v_	 tflnd÷uf]i7L÷cjnf]sg -Ifdtf ljsf;_ sfo{qmd M 

-c_	ljQLo ;+:yf ;|f]t M o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cf=j=@)*!÷*@ 
df cfˆgf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] Ifdtf tyf bIftf clea[l4sf 
nflu ljleGg #$ j6f tflnd÷uf]i7L÷;ldIff÷j}b]lzs 
e|d0f h:tf sfo{qmdx¿df @*% hfgf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ 
;xeflutf u/fPsf] lyof] . 

-cf_ ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] Ifdtf clej[l4sf 
nflu ljleGg lsl;dsf Jofj;flos s[lif, ;+:yfut 
;'zf;g, ;+:yf ;~rfng / n]vf Joj:yfkg, g]t[Tj 
ljsf; ;DaGwL tflnd, sfo{qmdsf] ;dLIff, /0fgLlt 
th'{df uf]i7L cflb h:tf Ifdtf ljsf;sf sfo{qmdx? 
;~rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . o; cGtu{t cfly{s jif{ 
@)*!÷*@ df @)) j6f sfo{qmd ;~rfng ug]{ u/L 
g]kfn ;/sf/af6 cg'bfg ah]6 ?=! s/f]8 k|fKTf 
ePsf]df ?=(( nfv (& xhf/ & ;o %( dfq 
vr{df hDdf ^)^ sfo{qmd ;DkGg ePsf] 5 . o; 
sfo{qmdaf6 #! xhf/ % ;o %& hgf  ;fgf ls;fgx? 
nfeflGjt ePsf 5g\ . ;fy} cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df o; 
sfo{qmd tkm{ g]kfn ;/sf/af6 k|fKTf cg'bfg /sd ?= 
! s/f]8dWo] vr{ gePsf] ?=@ xhf/ @ ;o $! g]kfn 
;/sf/nfO{ lkmtf{ k7fOPsf] 5 .

-u_	 ;fdflhs÷;fd'bflos Pjd\ k"jf{wf/ ljsf; sfo{qmd M 

	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;fdflhs÷;fd'bflos ljsf; sfo{qmd 
cGtu{t :yfgLo:t/df cfjZos ;fd'bflos ejg 

lgdf{0f tyf cGo ef}lts k"jf{wf/sf] ljsf;sf sfo{x¿ 
;~rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . o; cGtu{t u|fdL0f If]qdf 
;'ne zf}rfno, ljBfno dd{t, k'nk'n];f], s'nf]dd{t, 
s[lif;8s :ofxf/–;Def/, j[Iff/f]k0f, ;fd'bflos ejg, 
tflnd ejg, afnljsf;, s[lif cf}hf/, :6«]r/ Joj:yf, 
;"rgf k|ljlw x:tfGt/0f cflb ;fdflhs÷;fd'bflos 
ljsf;sf sfo{qmd ;~rfng ug{ ;+:yfx¿nfO{ ;–;fgf] 
;xof]u pknAw u/fOG5 . cf=j= @)&*÷@)&( 
b]lv o; sfo{qmd tkm{ g]kfn ;/sf/sf] ah]6 Joj:yf 
gePsfn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifaf6 g]kfn 
/fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg cGtu{t /xL lg/Gt/tf lbOb} cfPsf] 
5 .

-3_	 s[lif tyf kz'kfng k|j4{g sfo{qmd M 

	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] s[lif tyf kz'kfng ug]{ ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] 
s[lif tyf kz'kfng Joj;fosf] Joj;foLs/0fsf nflu 
s[lif tyf kz'kfng k|j4{g sfo{qmd ;~rfng ub}{ 
cfPsf] 5 . cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df g]kfn ;/sf/af6 
!)) j6f sfo{qmd ;~rfng ug]{ u/L ?= ! s/f]8 cg'bfg 
k|fKt ePsf]df ?= 99 nfv &^ xhf/ # ;o &% vr{ 
eO{ @@@ j6f sfo{qmd ;~rfng u/L ( xhf/ # ;o 
^! hgf ;fgf ls;fg kl/jf/x? nfeflGjt ePsf 5g\ . 
o; cGtu{t kz'kfng Joj:yfkg tyf pkrf/ tflnd, 
pGgt gZnsf Aof8sf] af]sf÷/fFuf÷efn]sf] Joj:yf, 
kz' EoflS;g, vf]/, uf]7 ;'wf/, k|fljlws ;]jf tyf 
k|rf/ k|;f/ Pjd\ cWoog cg';Gwfg ;DaGwL ;xof]u 
pknAw u/fpg] ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy} cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df 
o; sfo{qmd tkm{ g]kfn ;/sf/af6 k|fKTf cg'bfg /sd 
?=! s/f]8 dWo] vr{ gePsf] ?=@# xhf/ ^@% g]kfn 
;/sf/nfO{ lkmtf{ k7fOPsf] 5 .

-ª_	 ;+:yfut ;'b[9Ls/0f sfo{qmd M  

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;fem]bf/ ;xsf/L ;+:yfsf 
;~rfns ;ldlt, n]vf ;'kl/j]If0f ;ldlt / 
sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ ;xsf/L P]g / lgodfjnL, ;'zf;g, 
shf{ lj:tf/ / lgis[o shf{ c;'nL h:tf ljifox¿df 
1fg, ;Lk k|bfg tyf Ifdtf clej[l4sf nflu s[lif 
pBdlzntf tyf cfd k|lzIf0f, cGt/lqmof, s[lif 
;xsf/L ;+:yf Joj:yfkg tyf z';f;g uf]i7L, g]t[Tj 
ljsf;, ;+:yf ;'b[9Ls/0f th'{df uf]i7L u/L s'n @^( 
j6f tflnd÷sfo{qmd ;DkGg ul/Psf] 5 . 

	 cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df t'ngfTds ?kdf sdhf]/ ;fgf 
ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿sf] ;'b[9Ls/0f u/L 



19

ljkGg tyf ;fgf ls;fgx¿df Jofks?kn] ;]jf k|jfx 
ug{ ;fdYo{ agfpg sDtLdf klg #) ;fgf ls;fg s[lif 
;xsf/L ;+:yf klxrfg u/L ljz]if ;'b[9Ls/0f sfo{qmd 
;~rfng ul/g] nIo /x]sf]df @^^ j6f sfo{qmd 
dfkm{t ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ;'b[l9Ls/0f 
sfo{qmd ;DkGg ePsf] 5 . o;sf nflu 5f]6f] cjlwsf 
hgzlQmsf] Joj:yf u/L :ynut ?kdf g} k|fljlws 
;xof]usf] Joj:yf ldnfOPsf] lyof] . h; cGtu{t 
lkmN8:t/df ;x – ;+of]hs !,  lkmN8 k|lzIfs # 
/ s]Gb|df ! hgf ;+of]hs lgo'Qm u/L sdhf]/ ;+:yf 
k'g/;+/rgf / ;'b[9Ls/0f ug{] sfd ;DkGg ePsf] 5 . 
o; sfo{qmddf cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df o; sfo{qmd tkm{ 
g]kfn ;/sf/af6 k|fKTf cg'bfg /sd ?= ! s/f]8 
dWo] vr{ gePsf] ?=@**÷– g]kfn ;/sf/nfO{ lkmtf{ 
k7fOPsf] 5 .

-r_	 n3' ladf ;xof]u -kz', afnL, :jf:Yo_  sfo{qmd 

	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] kz'kfns ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] kz'wg 
Iflt Go"gLs/0fsf nflu kz'wg ;'/If0f sfo{qmdx¿ 
;~rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . n3' ladf ;xof]u sfo{qmd 
-kz'ladf lk|ldod cg'bfg_ cGtu{t cf=j= @)*!÷*@ 
df ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;dGjodf ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L 
;+:yfx¿n] @* xhf/ ! ;o @) ;fgf ls;fg kl/jf/sf 
?=@ ca{ %% s/f]8 $* nfv ^@ xhf/ d"Nosf  %& 
xhf/ %)$ kz'j:t'sf] ;'/If0f u/]sf 5g\ . kz'ladf 
lk|ldod cg'bfg tkm{  cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df  ?= 
* s/f]8 &% nfv ^) xhf/ / n3' ladf k|j4{g 
sfo{qmd tkm{ !)) sfo{qmd ;~rfng ug]{ u/L ?=&$ 
nfv $) xhf/ ;d]t u/L hDdf /sd ( s/f]8 %) 
nfv cg'bfg ah]6 k|fKt ePsf]df *)Ü lk|ldod 
cg'bfg tkm{ ?=* s/f]8 &% nfv ^) xhf/ e'QmfgL 
eO{ vr{ ePsf] 5 . kz'kfns ls;fgsf] of]ubfg ?=@ 
s/f]8 &@ nfv * xhf/ /x]sf] 5 . n3'ladf k|a4{g 

sfo{qmdtkm{ !@& j6f k|jå{g sfo{qmd ;DkGg eO{  ^& 
xhf/ ((# hgf ls;fg nfeflGjt ePsf 5g\ . o;df 
?=&$ nfv $) xhf/ g]kfn ;/sf/sf] cg'bfgaf6 / 
;xsf/L÷ls;fgsf] of]ubfgaf6 ?= @) xhf/ ;d]t s'n 
?=&$ nfv ^) xhf/ vr{ ePsf] 5 . :yfgLo :t/sf] 
;fd'bflos kz'wg ;'/If0f ;ldltn] g]kfn ;/sf/af6 
k|fKt lk|ldod cg'bfg / kz'kfnssf] of]ubfg ;lxtsf] 
lk|ldod /sd kl/rfng u/L pQm /sdaf6 Ifltk"lt{ / 
k|fljlws ;xof]usf] vr{ u/L ar]sf] /sdnfO{ sf]ifsf] 
?kdf kl/rfng ug]{ Joj:yf 5 . 

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ljleGg s[ofsnfksf nflu cfly{s 
jif{ @)*!÷*@ df g]kfn ;/sf/af6 k|fKt ?=!# 
s/f]8 %) nfv dWo] dfly plNnlvt sfo{qmdx¿sf 
nflu cg'bfg ;xof]u tkm{af6 ?=!#,$(,&#,*#$÷– 
vr{ eO{ ?=@^,!%$÷– g]kfn ;/sf/sf] /fhZj 
vftfdf lkmtf{ ul/Psf]] 5 . ljQLo ;+:yf, ;xsf/L 
;+:yf, :yfgLo lgsfo, tyf ;fgf ls;fgsf] of]ubfg 
;d]t ?=#,#%,)&,#%)÷–  / g]kfn ;/sf/ cg'bfg 
;xof]uaf6 ?= ?= !#,$(,&#,*#$÷– u/L hDdf 
?=!^,*$,*!,!*$÷– a/fa/sf] nfutdf !@@( 
sfo{qmd÷lqmofsnfk ;DkGg eO{ ?=@ ca{ %% s/f]8 
$* nfv ^@ xhf/ d"Nosf %&%)&  kz'j:t'sf] 
;'/If0f ePsf 5g\ .

-5_	 ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]if M

	 g]kfn /fi6« a}Ísf] æ3Æ ju{sf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿nfO{ 
hf/L ul/Psf] lgb]{zg @)*! sf] lgb]{zg g+= ^ sf] !$ 
df ePsf] Joj:yf cg';f/ ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;+:yfut 
;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]ifdf tkl;n adf]lhd Joj:yf 
u/]sf]5 . o; sf]ifdf ePsf] kl/jt{g OlSj6Ldf ePsf] 
kl/jt{g ;DaGwL ljj/0fdf cGo hu]8f tyf sf]ifdf 
b]vfOPsf] 5 .

tflnsf g+= % ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]ifsf] ljj/0f

qm;+ sfo{qmdsf] gfd /sd ?=

ut cf=j sf] z'?sf] df}Hbft -s_ 3,78,88,046÷33

o; cf=j df ePsf] vr{ -v_ 1,20,26,381÷57

v

>L /fwfs[i0f ;]jf ;+:yfnfO{ dxfdlt k|f0fgfy ;+:s[t ljBfkL7sf ljBfyL{sf nflu  
8]:s, a]Gr, lzIfssf nflu 6]an s'l;{, XfO6af]8{, lstfa tyf kmfONf /fVg] b/fh / 
k|f]h]S6/ vl/b ug{ ;xof]u .

2,42,999÷99

zfvf sfof{no cQl/of cGtu{t >L lqzStL dfWolds ljBfnonfO{  vfg]kfgL dd{t 
tyf lgdf{0f of]hgfdf ;xof]u .

2,96,760÷94



20

qm;+ sfo{qmdsf] gfd /sd ?=

dxfdf/LhGo /f]uaf6 ;'/lIft /fVg, /f]syfd ug{ tyf pkrf/ ubf{ ePsf] vr{ 3,461÷75

>lds dfWolds ljBfno x]6f}F8f, dsfjfgk'/nfO{ afn sIff Joj:yfkg tyf ljBfyL{sf 
nflu z}lIfs ;fdu|L vl/b ug{ ;xof]u .

12,5000÷-

dxfdf/LhGo /f]uaf6 ;'/lIft /fVg / /f]syfd ug{ cf}ifwL tyf ;fdu|L vl/bdf ePsf] 
vr{ 

3,982÷25

ljQLo ;fIf/tf tflnd -@((#( hgf ;b:onfO{_ 9,95,5665÷-

g]kfn afn kmfp08];g gofF afg]Zj/sf ljBfyL{x¿sf] nflu :s'n h'Qf -sfnf] / ;]tf]_ 
tyf 6«ofs ;'6 ljt/0f .

73,536÷64

u|fdL0f ljsf; s]Gb|, lj/f6gu/ cGtu{t h]i7 gful/ssf[ nflu lkmlhof]y]/fkL ;~rfng 
ug{ cfjZos ;fdfu|L / l;l;l6le vl/b ug{

1,00,000÷-

;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 5q]b]p/fnL, wflbªnfO{ zf}rfno lgdf{0f ug{ . 2,50,000÷-

;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= r}gk'/, wflbªnfO{ vfg]kfgL of]hgf OG6]s dd{t, @ 
yfg kfgL tfGg] df]6/ vl/b Kofgn af]8{ @ yfg / af9L lgoGq0fsf] nflu kvf{n lgdf{0f  
ug{ .

38,0000÷-

dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ;/fËsf]6, sf:sLnfO{ ko{6lso kfs{df 
;fj{hlgs rf}tf/L lgdf{0f ug{sf] nflu .

1,60,000÷-

8]leh kmn art tyf C0f ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln. dfkm{t >L eljio lgdf{0f df=ljnfO{ 
afnd}qL zf}rfno lgdf{0f ug{

1,00,000÷-

km]bLvf]nf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= km]bLvf]nf, :ofËhf dfkm{t >L l;4fy{ 
df=lj= km]bLvf]nf :ofËhfnfO{ @ yfg :df6{sf]8{ vl/b ug{

2,95,000÷-

dfg'ifL n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= ag]kf, sfe|]sf] z]o/ ;b:ox¿nfO{ kmnkm'nsf] lj?jf 
ljt/0fsf] nflu

39,975÷-

 hDdf -v_ 1,20,26,381÷57

o; cf=j df d'gfkmfaf6 ! k|ltzt yk -u_  87,50,057÷84

o; cf=j df d'gfkmfaf6 ! k|ltzt yk -s–v±u_  3,46,11,722÷60

	 *;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]if

	 @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtdf u|fxs ;+:yfsf s"n @((#( ;b:ox¿nfO{ u|fxs ;+:yfdfkm{t ljQLo ;fIf/tf tflnd jfkt 
/sd ?=((,%%,^^%÷– ;xof]u pknAw u/fOPsf] 5 . u|fxs ;+:yfsf] ;fd"lxs lxtsf] kl/of]hgfsf] nflu /sd 
?=@),&),&!^÷%& a/fa/sf] /fxt ;xof]u ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]ifaf6 pknAw u/fOPsf] 5 .

-h_ 	 u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if M

	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+sssf] æ3Æ ju{sf n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿nfO{ hf/L ul/Psf] lgb]{zg @)&( sf] a'Fbf g+=$=! -h_ sf] Joj:yf 
cg';f/ ljQLo ;+:yfn] u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifdf lgDg adf]lhd Joj:yf u/]sf] 5 . o; sf]ifdf ePsf] kl/jt{g OlSj6Ldf 
ePsf] kl/jt{g ;DaGwL ljj/0fdf cGo hu]8f tyf sf]ifdf b]vfOPsf] 5 .
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tflnsf – 6 u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifsf] ljj/0f 

qm ;+ sfo{qmdsf] gfd /sd ?=
ut cf=j sf] z'?sf] df}Hbft -s_ 18,42,49,715÷67
o; cf=j df ePsf] vr{ -v±u_        1,79,53,423÷37

v

;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] Ifdtf ljsf; tyf jflif{s ;dLIff uf]i7L 36,92,139/09
ljQLo kx'Fr lj:tf/ tyf :t/Ls/0f tflnd 13,46,446/81
;fem]bf/ ;+:yfsf kz' k|fljlwsx¿sf] nflu Ifdtf ljsf; tflnd 5,23,075/-
u|fdL0f pBd shf{ Joj:yfkg tflnd 24,29,055/34
:ynut cEof;fTds n]vf l;sfO{ tflnd 62,70,351/-
;fgf ls;fg 5fqj[lQ sfo{qmd -l8Knf]df s[lif tyf e]6]l/g/L_ 4,16,560/-
;DklQ z'4Ls/0f lgjf/0f ;DaGwL tflnd -;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿sf] nflu_ 2,81,037/82
;DklQ z'4Ls/0f s/ Joj:yfkg tyf ;+:yfut Ifdtf ljsf; ;DaGwL tflnd 2,19,065/-
;DklQ z'4Ls/0f lgjf/0f ;DaGwL tflnd -er'{cn_ 1,28,000/-
pBdzLntf ljsf; tflnd 3,61,986/98
cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f tflnd 8,02,597/49
shf{sf] u'0f:t/ ;'wf/ tyf Joj;fo lj:tf/ ;DaGwL tflnd 1,79,984/57
;xsf/L cu'jfx¿sf] nflu cfd k|lzIf0f sfo{qmd -zfvf sfof{no alb{jf;_ 4,00,874/71
g]t[Tj ljsf; tflnd -zfvf sfof{no O{6x/L_ 14,750/-
s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf Joj:yfkg tyf ;'zf;g uf]i7L -zfvf sfof{no kf]v/f_ 12,500/-
sf]zL k|b]z Jofh cg'bfg ;DaGwL cGt/lqmof sfo{qmd 73,000/-

 tflnd uf]i7L ;dLIff hDdf -v_ 1,71,51,423÷37

u

nfxfrf]s ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=, df5fk'R5«] sf:sL -s'v'/fkfng 
Joj;fo Iflt ePsf ;b:onfO{ cfly{s ;xof]u_

4,00,000/-

bf]bf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= z+s/k'/, s~rgk'/ -df5fkfng 
Joj;fodf af9Laf6 Iflt x''Fbf /fxt pknAw_

50,000/-

;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ch'{grf}kf/L, :ofËhf -af9L lk8Lt 
;b:ox¿nfO{ cfly{s ;xof]u_

1,00,000/-

nfxfrf]s ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=, df5fk'R5«] uf=kf= $ sf 
;b:ox¿nfO{ cfly{s ;xof]u .

1,40,000/-

 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=, 9f]/lkmbL{ tgx' -;b:ox¿nfO{ ;j{;'ne 
?kddf lapm pknAw u/fpg 6g]n lgdf{0f_

1,12,000/-

cGo sfo{qmddf ePsf] vr{ hDdf -u_ 8,02,000÷–
o; cf=j df Aofh cfDbfgL -3_  63,36,144÷50

o; cf=j df d'gfkmfaf6 !=% k|ltzt yk -ª_  1,31,25,056÷77
hDdf -s–v–u±3±ª_  18,57,57,523÷57

	 *u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if

	 cf=j @)*!÷)*@ c;f/ d;fGt;Dddf u|fxs ;+:yfaf6 !^ hgf ljkGg ul/a tyf h]x]Gbf/ ljBfyL{x¿nfO{ k|fljlws 
lzIff tyf Joj;flos tflnd kl/ifb\ -CTEVT_ cGtu{tsf lzIffnodf cWoogsf nflu 5fqj[lQjfkt /sd 
?=#,(!,%^).— ;xof]u pknAw u/fOPsf] 5 . u|fxs ;+:yfsf] ;b:ox¿sf] s'v'/fkfng, df5f kfng kl/of]hgfsf ;fy} 
af9Llk8Lt ;b:ox¿nfO{ IftL jfkt ;xof]usf] nflu /sd ?=^,(),))).— a/fj/sf] /fxt ;xof]u u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifaf6 
pknAw u/fOPsf] 5 . u|fxs ;+:yf ;b:ox¿sf] lxtsf nflu ;j{;'ne d'Nodf ;b:ox¿nfO{ ljpljqmLsf] nfuL /sd 
?=!,!@,))).— pknAw u/fPsf] 5 . ;fy}, u|fxs ;+:yfsf] kbflwsf/Lx¿sf] Ifdtf ljsf; ;DaGwL ljleGg tflndx¿df 
ePsf] vr{ /sd ?=1,71,51,423÷#& a/fj/sf] ;xof]u u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifaf6 pknAw u/fPsf] 5 .
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4=	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] efjL of]hgf

	 efjL lbgdf ljQLo ;+:yf tyf o;df cfj4 
;+:yfx¿nfO{ ;"rgf–k|ljlw;Fu hf]8\g], ljQLo ?kdf 
:j:y / ;an agfpg], u|fxs ;+:yfx¿sf] Joj:yfksLo 
/ ljQLo l:ylt alnof] agfpg cfjZos sfo{qmdx¿ 
;~rfng ug]{, lbuf] ljQLo ;|f]tdf kx'Fr agfpg] 
ljleGg ;xof]uL lgsfo÷;+:yfx¿;Fu ;dGjo u/L 
n3'ljQdfkm{t s[lifIf]qsf] ljsf;df of]ubfg k'¥ofpg] 
;Gbe{df o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] b]xfocg';f/sf] efjL 
sfo{qmdx¿df hf]8 lbg]5 . 

-!_	 n3'ljQ ;]jf gk'u]sf / ckof{Kt /x]sf ;a} 
ef}uf]lns If]qx¿df ljQLo ;]jf lj:tf/sf 
nflu qmdzM sfo{qmd ;~rfng ub}{ nlug] 5 . 

-@_	 n3'ljQ ;]jfaf6 jl~rt ju{ cflbjf;L, dw];L, 
blnt, hghftL, ;'s'Daf;L / vf; u/L ljkGg 
u|fdL0f dlxnfsf] n3'ljQ ;]jfdf kx'Fr a9fpg 
cg';/0f sfo{qmd tyf Joj;fo lj:tf/sf 
pko'Qm gd'gfx¿nfO{ k|efjsf/L ?kdf lj:tf/ 
ug]{ sfo{nfO{ lg/Gt/tf  lbO{g]5 . 

-#_	 g]kfn ;/sf/sf] C0f ;xof]udf ;~rflnt s[lif 
tyf kz'kG5Lkfng Joj;fo shf{ sfo{qmd 
-kz'kfng tyf t/sf/L v]tL_ nfO{ cem 
k|efjsf/L agfO{ lj:tf/ ul/g]5 . 

-$_	 ljkGg tyf ;fgf ls;fgx¿nfO{ s[lif 
d"Noz[ª\vnfsf ljljw kIfx¿df ;xefuL u/fO{ 
;fem]bf/ ;xsf/L dfkm{t u|fdL0f pBd Joj;fo 
:yfkgf u/fpg Pl;ofnL ljsf; a}+s tyf 
ljleGg ;xof]uL lgsfox¿;Fusf] ;dGjodf 
;~rflnt u|fdL0f pBd shf{ sfo{qmdnfO{ 
k|efjsf/L ?kdf lj:tf/ ul/g]5 . 

-%_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] p2]Zo k|flKtdf ;3fp k'¥ofpg] / 
;xof]u cfbfg k|bfg x'g ;Sg] ;DefJo /fli6«o 
tyf cGt/f{li6«o ;+3 ;+:yfx¿ klxrfg u/L 
;xsfo{sf] nfe lng] jftfj/0f ldnfO{g]5 . 

-^_	 k|efjsf/L cg'udg / lg/LIf0f Joj:yfaf6 
;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿df ;'zf;gsf] cj:yf ;'b[9 
u/fO{g]5 . 

-&_	 ;+:yfsf] ljQLo :jf:Yo tyf u|fdL0f ljsf;df 
k'¥ofPsf] of]ubfgsf] cfwf/df ;+:yfdf ;+nUg 
g]t[Tjju{ / Joj:yfkgdf ;+nUg sd{rf/Lx¿sf] 

;d]t Ifdtf clej[l4 x'g] cj;/x¿sf] vf]hL 
u/L oyf]lrt k|aGw ldnfO{g] 5 . 

-*_	 ljkGg tyf ;fgf ls;fgx¿df ljQLo ;]jfsf] 
;xh kx'Fr lj:tf/ ug{ Pjd\ kf/bzL{ / k|efjsf/L 
;]jfsf nflu ;'b[9 ;"rgf tyf ;~rf/ k|ljlwsf] 
pkof]usf] ;fy} pko'Qm df]afO{n a}+lsËsf] 
;Defjgf vf]hL ul/g]5 . 

-(_	 u'0f:t/Lo shf{ nufgLsf] lj:tf/, cfDbfgLsf] 
;|f]t lj:tf/ / vr{sf] plrt Joj:yfkg 
ub}{ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] d'gfkmfdf j[l4 u/L 
z]o/wgLx¿nfO{ oyf]lrt k|ltkmn pknJw  
u/fOg]5 . 

-!)_	s[lifsf] ?kfGt/0f tyf pBdzLn ;+:s[tLsf] 
ljsf;df ;3fp k'¥ofpg ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] 
nflu pBdzLntf ljsf; ;DaGwL sfo{qmd 
;~rfng ug]{ tyf gd"gf sfo{qmdx¿ cg';/0f 
ug{] Joj:yf ;d]t ldnfOg]5 . 

-!!_	 ljutb]lv cg';/0f sfo{qmdaf6 :yfkgf eO{ 
;~rfngdf /x]sf kl/kSj ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿nfO{ 
dfkb08sf] cfwf/df ljQLo ;+:yf;Fusf] 
sf/f]af/df cfj4 u/fpFb}   nlug]5 .

-!@_	s[lifsf] ?kfGt/0fdf o'jfx¿sf] of]ubfg yk 
k|efjsf/L agfpg ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/Ldf cfj4 
kl/jf/sf o'jfx¿nfO{ s[lif tyf kz'kG5Lkfng 
;DaGwL k|fljlws ;Lk÷1fg k|fKt ug{ k|fljlws 
lzIff tyf Joj;flos kl/ifb (CTEVT) 
nufot :jb]ZfL tyf ljb]ZfL tflnd s]Gb|x¿df 
k7fOg]5 . 

-!#_	g]kfn ;/sf/, cy{ dGqfno, k|wfgdGqL s[lif 
cfw'lgsLs/0f kl/of]hgf tyf ljsf; ;fem]bf/ 
;+:yfx¿;Fu ;dGjo u/L pko'Qm If]qx¿df wfg, 
ux'F, ds}, s]/f, t/sf/L, pv', cfn', kmnkm"n, 
t]nxg, kz'kG5Lkfng, df5fkfng cflb 
nufotsf s[lif pkhdf Jofj;flos ?kdf 
s]lGb|t x'g] u/L ks]6 kl/of]hgf ;~rfng ug{ 
;xsfo{ ul/g]5 . 

-!$_	k|b]z ;/sf/x¿;Fu ;xsfo{ u/L ljkGg / ;fgf 
ls;fgnfO{ ;'ne shf{ kx'Frsf nflu sfo{s|d 
;~rfng ug{ kxn ul/g]5 . 

-!%_	ljQLo sf/f]jf/df l8lh6n k|ljlwsf] clwstd 
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pkof]u ug]{ cj:yf lgdf{0f ul/g]5 . 

-!^_	hnjfo' kl/jt{gsf] c;/ sd ug{ / kof{j/0f 
d}qL s[lif ljsf; ug{ plrt lsl;dsf] ljQLo 
;]jf k|jfxsf nflu ljleGg ;xof]uL lgsfo;Fu 
;d]tsf] ;dGjodf cfjZos sfo{x¿sf] yfngL 
ul/g]5 . 

-!&_	jftfj/0f ;+/If0fsf nflu xl/t sf]if (Green 
fund) df kFx'r k'¥ofO{ ;f] k|fKt ug]{ nufot 
gjLs/0fLo phf{sf] clwstd k|of]u ug]{ 
u/fOg]5 . 

-!*_	s[lif tyf u|fdL0f ljQsf nflu ljlzi6Ls[t ;]jf 
k|bfg ug]{ a}+s÷ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ?kdf :yflkt 
x'g cfjZos kxn ul/g]5 . 

-3_	 sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus jf Jofj;flos ;DaGw M

	 ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= k|rlnt 
P]g adf]lhd klAns lnld6]8 sDkgLsf] ?kdf ldlt 
@)%*÷)#÷@@ df sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{nodf btf{ 
gfdfs/0f kfO{ g]kfn /fi6« a}Ísf] ldlt @)%*÷!!÷@& 
sf] kqaf6 ;~rfng :jLs[lt kfPsf] ;+:yf xf] . a}Í 
tyf ljQLo ;+:yf P]g cg';f/ of] ;+:yf yf]s n3'ljQ 
sf/f]af/ ug]{ …3Ú ju{sf] n3'ljQ ;+:yfsf] ?kdf sfo{/t 
5 . ldlt @)&)÷)^÷!$ df g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h;Fu 
;Demf}tf u/L :6s dfs]{6df ;"rLs[t ePsf] o; ljQLo 
;+:yfn] ldlt @)&!÷)*÷!& df ;L=8L=P;=;L= 
tyf lSnol/Ë;Fu ;d]t ;Demf}tf u/L l8Dof6 k|s[of 
;'? ul/;s]sf] 5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;+:yfks 
z]o/wgL ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ ;d]t o;sf 
u|fxs ;+:yf x'g\ . o; afx]s klg n3'ljQ ;]jf k|bfg 
ug]{ cGo ;xsf/L÷ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ ;d]t o; ;+:yfn] 
cfkm\gf ;]jf k|bfg ub{5 . ljQLo ;+:yfn] lgodfg';f/ 
df}h'bf ;"rLdf /x]sf Jofj;flos kmd{x¿;Fu lgoldt 
vl/b ub{5 eg] l;df dflysf] xsdf v'Nnf af]nkq 
cfJxfg dfkm{t j:t' tyf ;]jf vl/b ug]{ ub{5 . o;sf 
cltl/Qm o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Jofj;flos ;DaGw 
/x]sf lgsfo÷;+3÷;+:yfx¿ ;DaGwdf tn ;+lIfKtdf 
k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 .

1=	 g]kfn ;/sf/ M– g]kfn ;/sf/ ;d]tsf] z]o/ 
:jfldTjdf of] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] :yfkgf ePsf] xf] . ;fgf 
ls;fgx¿sf] ax'dt :jfldTj /xf]; eGg] clek|fon] 
g]kfn ;/sf/af6 kl5 cfˆgf] z]o/ :jfldTj ;fgf 

ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿nfO{ g} laqmL ul/of] . 
g]kfn ;/sf/af6 o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ lgoldt ;xof]u 
xF'b} cfPsf] 5 . h;df ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln=x¿sf] ;'b[9Ls/0f, ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/Lx¿sf] 
;]jf lj:tf/sf nflu cg';/0f sfo{qmd, ;fdflhs 
;d'bflos ljsf;, kz'wg ;'/If0f, kz'kfng tyf 
;f]sf] k|a¢{gsf nflu cfjZos cg'bfg ;xof]usf] 
lg/Gt/tf /xFb} cfPsf] 5 . o;sf cnfjf ;fgf ls;fg 
ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu cfa4 ;fgf ls;fg 
;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= dfkm{t b'w tyf df;'hGo kz'kfns 
/ t/sf/L v]tL ug]{ ;fgf ls;fgnfO{ nufgL ug]{ u/L 
@)*@ c;f/;Dd ?=@) ca{ ^) s/f]8 ^) nfv 
C0f ;xof]u k|fKt ePsf] 5 . ;+:yfn] pQm /sdsf] 
@)*@ c;f/ d;fGt;Ddsf] ;Dk"0f{ Aofh / ?=& ca{ 
!! s/f]8 *# nfv #$ ;fjfF e'QmfgL ul/;s]sf] 
5 . o; sfo{qmd k|lt ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] cfsif{0f 
/ k|efjsfl/tfsf cfwf/df cfufdL jif{x¿df cem} 
lj:tf/ ;lxt lg/Gt/tf lbOg' kg]{ dx;'; x'g cfPsf] 
5 . ls;fgsf nflu pGgt ljpljhg sfo{qmd cGtu{t 
;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/Lsf] ;]jf lj:tf/ tyf s[lif shf{sf] 
Joj:yf, e'sDk lkl8t ;d'bfosf] nflu ljkb hf]lvd 
Go"lgs/0f tyf hLljsf]kfh{g k'g/:yfkgf sfo{qmd / 
u|fdL0f pBd shf{ sfo{qmd h:tf ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] 
nflu cGo nfebfos sfo{qmdx¿ oxL ;xsfo{sf 
pbfx/0fx¿ x'g\ .

2=	 afUfdtL k|b]z ;/sf/;Fu nufgL ;Demf}tf M– afudtL 
k|b]zsf] cfly{s dfldnf tyf of]hgf dGqfno tyf 
;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yflar ldlt 
@)&& dª\l;/ !* ut] pTkfbg tyf /f]huf/L l;{hgfsf 
nflu ;x'lnotk"0f{ C0f nufgL sfo{ljlw @)&( 
adf]lhdsf] shf{ sfo{s|d ;~rfng ug{ ePsf ;Demf}tf 
cg';f/ cf=j= @)*)÷*! df ?= ^) s/f]8, cf=j= 
@)&(÷*) df ?= @$ s/f]8 / cf=j= @)&*÷&( df 
?= *) s/f]8 / u/L hDdf ?= ! cj{ ^$ s/f]8 k|fKt eO{ 
@)*@ c;f/ d;fGt;Dd ?= *) s/f]8 @& nfv ;fjfF 
e'QmfgL ul/;s]sf] 5 .

3=	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+s M– ;fd'bflos e"ldut hn l;~rfO{ 
;]S6/ cfof]hgf cGtu{t ?= ! s/f]8 * nfv shf{ 
k|fKt eO{ ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ dfkm{t l;+rfO{ 
sfo{qmd ;~rfng ul/Psf] lyof] . g]kfn ;/sf/sf] ldlt 
@)&%.*.@$ sf] lg0{fosf] cfwf/df g]kfn ;/sf/, 
g]kfn /fi6« a}Í / ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo 
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;+:yf lar u|fdL0f :jfjnDag sf]ifsf sfo{qmd ljQLo 
;+:yf dfkm{t ;~rfng ug]{ u/L ldlt @)&^.#.#! df 
lqkIfLo ;Demf}tf ;DkGg ePsf] 5 . ;fljsdf g]kfn 
/fi6« a}Íaf6 ;~rflnt of] sfo{qmd ljQLo ;+:yf dfkm{t 
;~rfng ug{ sf]ifsf] /sd ?=(* s/f]8 %^ nfv !^ 
xhf/ !&^ ?k}ofF &! k};f dfq :jfjnDag shf{sf] 
?kdf o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ k|bfg ePsf] lyof] .

4=	 s[lif ljsf; a}+s ln= M– ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] :yfkgfsf] cu'jfO{ ub}{ ?= & s/f]8 
z]o/ k'FhL nufgL u/L o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] d'Vo 
k|j4{ssf] ?kdf s[lif ljsf; a}Ín] lg/Gt/ ;xof]u 
k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . nfdf] cjlw;Dd o; ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] Joj:yfkg ;Dxfn]/ ;+:yfsf] cfˆg} dfgj 
;+zfwg ljsf; ug]{ ;Ddsf sfo{x¿df s[lif ljsf; 
a}Ísf] cxd\ e"ldsf /x]sf] 5 . ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L 
;+:yf;Fu /x]sf] ?= ! ca{ @^ s/f]8 *& nfvsf] shf{ 
kf]6{kmf]lnof] o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ x:tfGt/0f ug'{ dfq 
geP/ yk cfjZos C0f–k'FhL lg/Gt/ ?kdf pknAw 
u/fO{ /x]sf] 5 . 

5=	 Pl;ofnL ljsf; a}+s M– o; ljQLo ;+:yf tyf cfj4 
;+:yfx¿sf] cj:yf cWoog ljZn]if0f, k'g/;+/rgf 
sfo{qmd th'{df, sDKo'6/ ;ˆ6j]o/, xf8{j]o/ tyf 
h]g]/]6/ vl/b, sdhf]/ ;+:yfx¿sf] ;'b[9Ls/0fdf 
;xof]u Pjd\ k/fdz{bftfsf] ;]jf, kxf8L If]qdf n3'ljQ 
;]jf lj:tf/ cflb sfo{x¿df Pl;ofnL ljsf; a}Ín] 
dxTjk"0f{ ;xof]u u/]sf] lyof] . e'sDk k|efljtsf 
nflu ;~rfng ePsf] DRRLREAC kl/of]hgf 
gf]e]Da/ @)!( df ;dfKt eO;s]sf] pQm kl/of]hgfn] 
e'sDk k|efljtsf nflu kl/of]hgf cjlwe/;Dd ? 
*@ s/f]8 !( nfv shf{ k|jfx u/]sf] lyof] . o;sf 
;fy} Pl;ofnL ljsf; a}+ssf] cd]l/sL 8n/ % s/f]8 
a/fa/sf] C0f ;xof]u -?= ^,!@,^%,)),)))÷–_ 
;x'nLot shf{ cGtu{t O{=;=@)@) af6 u|fld0f pBd 
nufgL kl/of]hgf (Rural Enterprise Financing 
Project) ;~rfngdf /x]sf] 5 . pQm kl/of]hgfsf 
nflu Pl;ofnL ljsf; a}+s / g]kfn ;/sf/ lar 
@)!( l8;]Da/ !) df ;Demf}tf ePsf] lyof] eg] 
;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf / g]kfn 
;/sf/ lar ldlt @)&&÷)!÷)& df ;xfos C0f 
;Demf}tf ePsf] lyof] . pQm kl/of]hgfn] Joj;flos 
s[lif pBdsf nflu %) j6f ;fd'lxs tyf %)) j6f 
JolQmut kl/of]hgf ;+rfng ug{ s[lif shf{ k|jfx u/L 

;fgf ls;fgx¿nfO{ pBdL agfpg] p2]Zo lnPsf] 5 . 
pQm kl/of]hgfaf6 cf=j= @)*!÷*@ ;Dddf @$(^ 
j6f JolQmut pBd / $& j6f ;d"xut u/L s'n 
@%$# kl/of]hgfdf ?=%,$(,$$,#&,)))÷– shf{ 
nufgL ePsf] 5 .

6=	 hL=cfO=h]8 M– ;fgf ls;fg ;+:yfut ljsf; 
sfo{qmdsf] cf/Deb]lv g} tTsflng hL=6L=h]8= xfn 
lhcfOh]8n] dxTjk"0f{ ;xof]u /x]sf] lyof] . o; ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] :yfkgf, ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿sf] 
;'b[9Ls/0f / ljsf;, cg';/0f sfo{qmd, ;]jf lj:tf/ 
sfo{qmd, ljQLo ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ pRr lzIff 
tyf ;fgf ls;fg ;d]tnfO{ cGt/f{li6«o tflnd e|d0f 
cflb h:tf sfo{qmdx¿df hL=cfO=h]8=sf] ;xof]u 
/x]sf] lyof] .

7=	 g]kfn s[lif ;xsf/L s]Gb|Lo ;+3 M– ;fgf ls;fg 
;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿sf] Ifdtf ljsf; / u}/ ljQLo ;]jfx¿ 
k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] g]kfn s[lif ;xsf/L s]Gb|Lo ;+3;Fu 
o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;+:yfx¿sf] ;'b[9Ls/0f / ljsf;df 
;xsfo{ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . o;sf cnfjf ;fgf ls;fg 
;xsf/L cg';/0f / tt\;DaGwL tflnd tyf k/fdz{ ;]jf 
lbg] sfo{df ;d]t ;+3n] ;xsfo{ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 .  

8=	 s[lif ljsf;sf nflu cGt/f{li6«o sf]if M– ;fgf ls;fg 
;xsf/L ;+:yf lj:tf/sf nflu g]kfn ;/sf/ s[lif 
tyf kz'k+IfL ljsf; dGqfno dfkm{t s[lif ljsf;sf] 
nflu cGt/f{li6«o sf]if (IFAD) af6 dWo klZrd / 
klZrdf~rnsf ?s'd k"j{, ?s'd klZrd, /f]Nkf, ;Nofg, 
Ko"7fg, u'NdL / c3f{vfFrL u/L & lhNnfdf ls;fgsf 
nflu pGgt ljpljhg sfo{qmd ;~rfngdf /x]sf] 5 . 
pQm sfo{qmddf ;fljssf * / gofF :yfkgf x'g] &% 
;+:yf ;lxt *# ;+:yfaf6 s'n $% xhf/ kl/jf/df ;]jf 
k'¥ofpg] nIo cg'?k ljQLo ;+:yfn] g]kfn ;/sf/af6 
;x'lnot b/df ?= *) s/f]8 shf{ k|fKt u/L *# ;xsf/L 
dfkm{t s[lif shf{ nufgL u/]sf]] 5 .

9=	 NREP-Clean Cooking Solution Project: ;fgf 
ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf / Alternate Energy 
Promotion Center (AEPC)/Central Renewable 
Energy Fund CREF aLr n'lDagL k|b]zdf Clean 
Cooking Solution sfo{qmd ;~rfngsf nfuL FEB-
11,2022 df ;Demf}tf ePsf] lyof] . kl/of]hgfn] ;fgf 
ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yfsf ;b:ox¿nfO{ E-cooking 
k|aw{g ug]{ p4]Zo lnPsf] lyof] . o; kl/of]hgfn] n'lDagL 
k|b]zsf !),%)) 3/w'/Ldf ljB'lto r'Nxf] k|j4{g ug]{ nIo 



25

lnPsf] lyof] . kl/of]hgf ;~rfngsf nfuL AEPC ;+u 
s'n ?=(*,%(,#&%÷– ?k}of a/fa/sf] ;Demf}tf ePsf]df 
kl/of]hgf cGtu{t n'lDagL k|b]zsf ljleGg lhNnfx¿ 
-afFs], alb{of, bfË, Ko'7fg, ?kGb]xL, gjnk/f;L, kfNkf, 
c3f{vfFrL / u'NdL_ df ljB'lto r'nf]sf] k|a4{g, If]lqo 
tyf lhNnf :tl/o cled'vLs/0f, hgr]tgf clea[4L 
;DaGwL sfo{qmd nufotsf k|a4{gfTds sfo{qmd ;DkGg 
ePsf 5g\ . o; kl/of]hgfdf @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGt ;Dd 
?= 84,22,156.91 ÷– vr{ ePsf] 5 eg] ljQLo ;+:yfn] 
**!# j6f ljB'lto r'Nxf] ;b:ox¿;fd' ljt/0f u/]sf] 
5 .

10=	 IFC (International Finance Corporation) M– 
cGt/f{li6«o ljQ lgud (IFC), cd]l/sfn] o; ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] ;+:yfks z]o/df nufgL u/]sf] 5 . ;fljs 
cf/Pd8L;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf / cGt/f{li6«o ljQ 
lgud lar h'g @(, @)@@ df IFC Advisory services 
kl/of]hgf ;DaGwdf ;Demf}tf eP cg';f/ ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] Ifdtf tyf ljsf;sf] nflu Internantional 
Finance Corporation -IFC_ n] d'VotM # j6f 
laifox¿ M 

-!_	 Strengthening the Operating Model for 
Wholesale Lending 

-@_	 Exploring Opportunities for Co–Lending 
Business / 

-#_	 Accelerating Growth – 
(a)	 Digital banking and data analytics, 
(b)	 Scorecard, 

(c)	 Retail microfinance h:tf kIfdf 

Advisory Service k|bfg ug]{ ;DaGwdf 

;xfotf k|bfg ug{sf] nflu ;xsfo{ ePsf] 

xf] . o;df pQm kl/of]hgfsf nflu ljQLo 

;+:yfn] Joxf]g'{kg]{ /sd Swiss Agency 

for Development and Cooperation 

(SDC) n] Joxf]g]{ ;DaGwdf ;d]t ;Demf}tf 

ePsf] lyof] . cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ 

;Dddf cGt/f{li6«o ljQ lgud (IFC) nfO{ 

*&,#)) 8n/ z'Ns e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5 eg] 

Swiss Agency for Development and 

Cooperation (SDC) af6 ;f]wegf{ afkt 

/sd ?=!,!&,!@,*!* k|fKt ePsf] 5 .

11=	 cfk|fsf Asia and Pacific Rural Agricultural 
Credit Association (APRACA) :– o; ljQLo 
;+:yfn] APRACA sf] ;b:otf k|fKt u/]sf]5 . 
ck|fsfn] ;~rfng ug]{ ljleGg sfo{qmdx¿df ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] ;d]t k|ltlglwTj /xFb} cfPsf] 5 . o;af6 
cGt/f{li6«o ?kdf o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] klxrfg cem 
;'b[9 ePsf] 5 .

12=	 l;S6\ofa (Centre for International 
Cooperation and Training in Agricultural 
Banking (CICTAB), India M– g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, 
s[lif ljsf; a}+s nufotsf g]kfnsf a}+s tyf ljQLo 
;+:yfx¿ ;b:o /x]sf] CICTAB, India sf] of] ljQLo 
;+:yf klg Ps ;lqmo ;b:osf] ?kdf /x]sf] 5 . n3'ljQ 
ljQLo ;+:yf tyf ;xsf/L ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ 
;do ;fk]If tflnd tyf uf]i7Lx¿df ;xefuL 
u/fpFb} cfPsf] l;S6\ofasf] kxndf ;do ;dodf o; 
;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx¿n] a}s'07 d]xtf /fli6«o ;xsf/L 
k|jGw ;+:yfg cGt/ut kf]i6 Uo|fHo'P6 l8Knf]df O{g 
sf]ck/]l6e lahg]; Dofg]hd]06 sf];{df cWoog ub}{ 
cfPsf 5g\ .  

13=	 sDKo'6/ ;ˆ6j]o/ M– o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] o'/fg; 
;ˆ6j]o/ k|of]u ub}{ cfPsf] 5 .  

14=	 ;]G6/ km/ dfO{qmf]kmfO{gfG; M– o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf 
;fem]bf/ n3'ljQ tyf ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿nfO{ ;d]t 
tflnd, Ifdtf ljsf; tyf k|fljlws ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] 
u/L :yflkt ;]G6/ km/ dfO{qmf]kmfO{gfG;sf] ;+:yfks 
z]o/wgLsf] ?kdf of] ljQLo ;+:yfn] nufgL u/]sf] 5 .

15=	 g]zgn a}+ls· OlG:6Ro'6 lnld6]8 M– o; ljQLo 
;+:yfsf ;fem]bf/ n3'ljQ tyf ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿nfO{ 
/fli6«o tyf cGt//fi6«Lo :t/sf tflndx¿ k|bfg ug]{ ul/ 
:yflkt g]zgn a}+lsË OlG:6Ro'6 lnld6]8sf] ;+:yfks 
z]o/wgLsf] ?kdf of] ljQLo ;+:yfn] nufgL u/]sf] 5 .

16=	 /lhi6«f/ 6' z]o/M– o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ 
/lhi6«f/sf] ?kdf sfo{ ug]{ u/L >L nIdL ;g/fOh\ 
Soflk6n lnld6]8;Fu ;Demf}tf eO{ ;f]xL cg';f/ sfo{ 
x'Fb} cfPsf] 5 .

17=	 g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h M– of] ljQLo ;+:yf g]kfn 
:6s PS:fr]~hdf ;"rLs[t klAns lnld6]8 sDkgL 
xf] . z]o/ lnli6Ë tyf sf/f]af/ ;DaGwdf g]kfn :6s 
PS;r]~h;Fu ;Demf}tf eP cg'?k sfo{ eO{/x]sf] 5 .
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-ª_	 ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f]sf] sf/0f 

	 cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns 
;ldltdf ;+:yfks z]o/wgLx¿sf] tkm{af6 $ hgf, 
;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgLx¿sf] tkm{af6 @ hgf / :jtGq 
;~rfns ! hgf u/L & hgf ;~rfnsx¿ /xg' 
ePsf] 5 . ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfdf >L v]d 
axfb'/ kf7s -k|ltlglw, ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln=, r}gk'/, wflbË_ /xg' ePsf] 5 . ;+:yfks 
z]o/wgL g]kfn a}+s ln= sf] tkm{af6 k|ltlglwTj ub}{ 
cfpg' ePsf >L ;dtf kGt -e§_ sf] :yfgdf ldlt 
@)*@÷#÷@! b]lv >L bLk]Gb|/fh sfˆn] / s[lif 
ljsf; a}+s ln= sf] tkm{af6 8f= afa'sfhL yfkfsf] 
:yfgdf ldlt @)*@÷$÷!# b]lv >L o1 k|sfz 
Gof}kfg] dgf]lgt x'g' eO{ ;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj 
ub}{ cfpg' ePsf] 5 . k"j{ ;+rfnsx¿ >L ;dtf kGt 
-e§_ / 8f= afa'sfhL yfkfn] o; ;+:yfdf k'¥Øfpg' 
ePsf] of]ubfgsf] ;/fxgf ub{} ;+rfns ;ldlt tyf d]/f] 
tkm{af6 pxfFx¿nfO{ wGoafb lbg rfxG5' .

-r_	 sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx¿

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/df c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo 
hf]lvdsf ?kdf b]xfosf s'/fx¿nfO{ lnOPsf] 5M– 

•	 s]xL ;fem]bf/ ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
x¿df alnof] ?kdf ;'zf;gsf] cj:yf sfod 
/fVg g;s]df jf ;~rfns Pjd\ sd{rf/Lx¿df 
k"0f{ ?kdf k]zfut bIftf, cfly{s cg'zf;g 
Pjd\ cg'ejsf] cefj /x]df pTkGg x'g ;Sg] 
hf]lvdx¿,

•	 lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿af6 ;do–;dodf gLlt–
lgoddf ePsf] abnfjsf sf/0faf6 x'g ;Sg] 
;Defljt hf]lvdx¿,

•	 k'FhLahf/df cfpg ;Sg] ptf/r9fjaf6 o; 
ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ k|fKt x'g] shf{ / ;f]sf] 
Aofhb/df j[l4 x'g ;Sg] hf]lvdx¿,

•	 n3'ljQ If]qdf ;d:ofsf ?kdf /x]sf] c:j:y 
k|lt:kwf{, ljgflwtf] shf{ k|jfx, shf{ cg'udgdf 
sdL cflb sf/0fn] b]vfkg]{ hf]lvdx¿,

•	 jt{dfg cj:yfdf n3'ljQsf lj?4df x'g] 
cfGbf]ng, gsf/fTds k|rf/ cflbsf sf/0f shf{ 
nufgL tyf c;'nLdf pTkGg x'g] hf]lvdx¿,

•	 ;b:ox¿af6 C0fsf] dfu Go"g x'Fbf / nufgLdf 
/x]sf] C0fsf] u'0f:t/ sdhf]/ x'Fb} hfFbf pTkGg 
x'g] hf]lvdx¿,

•	 b]zsf] cfly{s / /fhgLlts cj:yfdf cfpg] 
kl/jt{gaf6 kg{ ;Sg] hf]lvdx¿, 

•	 n3'ljQ If]qdf bIf hgzlQm cfsif{0f, Ifdtf 
ljsf; / l/6]G;g;DaGwL hf]lvd .

•	 ax';ª\Vos ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿ cfkm} lgIf]k 
;+sngstf{ /x]sf / ;a} lsl;dsf a}+s tyf 
ljQLo ;+:yfx¿n] n3'ljQ If]qdf yf]s shf{ 
k|bfossf] ?kdf sfd ug{ kfpg] Joj:yfn] yf]s 
shf{ k|bfos o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ahf/ u'Dg] 
hf]lvd . 

-5_ 	 n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] 
eP ;f]pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof

	 n]vfk/LIfssf] k|f/lDes n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf 
pNn]v ePsf s}lkmotx¿ Kf|To]s jif{df ;'wf/ 
ul/Fb} cfPsf] 5 . o; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgoldt 
sf/f]af/df b]lvPsf] ;fdfGo s}lkmotx¿ af]xs  
n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} vf; pNn]vgLo l6Kk0fL 
/x]sf] 5}g . n]vfk/LIfsn] cf}NofPsf clws+fz 
s}lkmotx¿ ;'wf/ ul/;lsPsf] / afFsL s}lkmotx¿ 
;'wf/ x'g] qmddf /x]sf 5g\ .

-h_	 nfef+z afF8kmfF8 ug{ l;kmfl/; ul/Psf] /sd M

	 ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 ;fwf/0f;ef ;dIf cf=j= 
@)*!÷*@ sf] d'gfkmfaf6 r'Qmf k'FhL ?= 
$,#!,@^,@!,%!#÷&* sf] !$=@%Ü k|ltztn] x'g] ?= 
^!,$%,$*,%^%÷&! a/fa/sf] af]g; z]o/ / nfef+z 
s/ k|of]hgsf] nflu r'Qmf k'FhLsf] )=&%Ü k|ltztn] 
x'g] gub nfef+z ? #,@#,$$,^^!÷#% u/L s'n hDdf 
r'Qmf k"FhLsf] !%Ü n] x'g] /sd  ?=^$,^*,(#,@@&÷)& 
nfef+z ljt/0fsf nflu k|:tfj ul/Psf] 5 .

-em_ 	z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/;ª\Vof, 
To:tf] z]o/sf] clÍt d"No, To:tf] z]o/ hkmt 
x'g'eGbf cufj} ;f]afkt sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf 
/sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ laqmL 
u/L sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /sd tyf hkmt ePsf] 
z]o/afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 

	 s'g} klg z]o/ hkmt ePsf] 5}g . 
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-`_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / o;sf] ;xfos 
sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/sf] k|ult / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] 
cGtdf /x]sf] l:yltsf] k'g/fjnf]sg M

	 o; sDkgLsf] s'g} klg ;xfos sDkgL 5}g . ;fy}, 
sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/sf] k|ult ;+nUg n]vfk/LIf0f 
k|ltj]bg tyf o;} k|ltj]bgsf] tt\;DaGwL v08x¿df 
k|sfz kfl/Psf] 5 . 

-6_ 	 sDkgL tyf To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{df 
;DkGg u/]sf] k|d'v sf/f]af/x¿ / ;f] cjlwdf 
sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/df cfPsf] s'g} dxTjk"0f{ kl/jt{gM 

	 o; sDkgLsf] s'g} klg ;xfos sDkgL 5}g . ;fy}, 
o; k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v u/] afx]s o; sDkgLdf s'g} 
dxTjk"0f{ kl/jt{g ePsf] 5}g . 

-7_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t 
z]o/wgLx¿n] sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/LM

	 o; k|sf/sf] s'g} klg hfgsf/L cfwf/e"t 
z]o/wgLx¿af6 k|fKt ePsf] 5}g . 

-8_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf 
kbflwsf/Lx¿n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f 
/ sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/df lghx¿ ;+nUg /x]sf] 
eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx¿af6 sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] 
hfgsf/L M

	 o; sDkgLsf ;+:yfks z]o/wgLx¿sf tkm{af6 

k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ;~rfnsx¿ ;+:yfut ?kdf k|ltlglw 
eO{ cfPsf] x'Fbf lghx¿n] JolQmut ?kdf o; ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] z]o/ vl/b ug{ cfjZos 5}g . o; ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] ;du| z]o/ ;+/rgf tn k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 M

1=	 k'FhL ;+/rgf

	 lj=;+= @)%* df n3'ljQ ;+:yf :yfkgf ubf{ g]kfn 
;/sf/, s[lif ljsf; a}Í, g]kfn a}Í ln=, glan a}Í ln= 
/ @! j6f ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ ;+:yfkssf] 
?kdf /x]sf lyP . 

	 of] n3'ljQ ;+:yf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yfx¿nfO{ nlIft u/L :yfkgf ul/Psf] x'Fbf s'n 
z]o/ kF'hLsf] clws lx:;f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yfx¿sf] geP;Dd g]kfn ;/sf/ tyf s[lif ljsf; 
a}Í ln=n] cf–cfˆgf] :jfldTjdf /x]sf] z]o/ qmdzM 
;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿nfO{ laqmL ug]{ gLlt 
cg'?k g]kfn ;/sf/sf] k'/} / s[lif ljsf; a}Í ln=sf] 
s]xL lx:;f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=x¿sf 
gfddf laqmL ul/of] . 

	 @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtdf o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL 
?= $ ca{ #! s/f]8 @^ nfv @! xhf/ %!# k'u]sf] 
5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf b]xfo cg';f/sf] 
/x]sf] 5 .

tflnsf – 7  M ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf
-@)*@ c;f/ d;fGt_

;d"x r'Qmf k'FhL  -?=df_ k|ltzt
;~rfns ;ldltdf 
k|ltlglwTj ;ª\Vof

;d"x -s_ k|jw{s ;d"x -:jb]zL :jfldTj_ leGg c+s;lxt 2,91,43,41,843=38 67=58 4
æsÆ ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt ;+:yfx¿ 1,67,76,62,100.00 38.90 2
cGo Ohfhtkqk|fKt ;+:yfx¿ 41,78,900.00 0.10
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cGo ;+:yfx¿ 1,20,86,45,000.00 28.03
cGo -k|mfS;g ;lxt_ 2,38,55,843.38 0.55
k|jw{s ;d"x -j}b]lzs :jfldTj_ 10,15,98,800.00 2.36
;d"x -v_ ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL -k|mfS;g ;lxt_ 1,29,66,80,870.40 30.06 2
Jofj;flos ;~rfns 1

hDdf 4,31,26,21,513=78 100=00 7

gf]6 M	 cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] !$=@%Ü af]g; z]o/ k|:tfj kfl/t ePkl5 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'n r'Qmf z]o/ /sd 
?=$,(@,&!,&),)&(.$(  k'Ug]5 .
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2=	 ;~rfnsx¿sf] gfddf b]lvg] z]o/sf] :jfldTj -@)*@ c;f/ d;fGt_

	 ;+:yfks ;d"xsf z]o/wgLdWo] JolQmut z]o/ wf/0f ug]{ ;~rfns k|ltlglw / ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL ;~rfnsx¿sf] 
gfddf b]lvg] z]o/ :jfldTj b]xfo cg';f/ /x]sf] 5 M 

tflnsf – 8 ;~rfnsx¿sf] gfddf b]lvg] z]o/sf] :jfldTj

qm;+ Gffd kb z]o/wgL g+= z]o/ ;+Vof ;d"x

! >L pd]z nD;fn ;b:o !#)!!*))))))$))^ !*,!@^ ;j{;fwf/0f

@ >L led k|;fb kGt ;b:o !#)!#%)))))))(&) @%( ;j{;fwf/0f

-9_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;Fu ;DalGwt 
;Demf}tfx¿df s'g} ;~rfns tyf glhssf] 
gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{sf af/]df pknAw 
u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Aoxf]/fM

	 o; k|sf/sf] s'g} ;Demf}tf ePsf] hfgsf/L k|fKt ePsf] 
5}g .

-0f_ 	sDkgLn] cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm}Fn] vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L 
cfˆgf] z]o/ vl/b ug'{sf] sf/0f, To:tf] z]o/sf] 
;ª\Vof / clÍt d"No tyf To;/L z]o/ vl/b 
u/]afkt sDkgLn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sd M

	 sDkgLn] cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm}Fn] vl/b u/]sf] 5}g .

-t_ 	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] 
eP ;f]sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f M

	 o; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfn] k|efjsf/L cfGtl/s 
lgoGq0f k|0ffnL :yflkt u/]sf] 5 . ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
;+/rgf, ;'zf;g / cfGtl/s lg0fGq0f k|0ffnLsf af/]df 
b]xfo cg';f/ k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 M 

1=	 ;'zf;g tyf ;·7gfTds ;+/rgf M

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL g]kfn 
/fi6« a}Í nufot ;DalGwt lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿af6 
k|fKt dfu{ lgb]{zgx¿ pRr k|fyldstfsf ;fy kfngf 
ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;'zf;g clej[l4 
Pjd\ ;+:yfn] ug]{ sfo{x¿ kf/bzL{ Pjd\ lgod;Ët 
ug{sf nflu ;~rfns ;ldlt, n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, 
sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt, ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg 
;ldlt, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt / cfGtl/s n]vf 
k/LIf0f PsfO lqmofzLn /x]sf] 5 . ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
sf/f]af/nfO{ Jojl:yt ug{ cfGtl/s gLlt, lgod tyf 

lgb]{zgx¿ th'{df u/L nfu' ul/Psf] 5 . ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
;+:yfut ;'zf;g sfod ug{ b]xfoadf]lhdsf ;ef, 
;ldlt, pk;ldlt, a}7s / kbflwsf/Lsf] dxTjk"0f{ 
of]ubfg /x]sf] 5 .

-c_	 jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef

	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;jf]{Rr cË ;fwf/0f ;ef xf] . o; 
ljQLo ;+:yfn] :yfkgf b]lv xfn;Dd lgoldt ?kdf 
jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . ;fwf/0f ;efdf 
;a} z]o/ ;b:ox¿sf] k|ltlglwTj x'g ;Sg] u/L ;dodf 
;"rgf k|jfx ug]{, ljQLo ;+:yfsf jflif{s ultljlw 
/ of]hgfsf ;DaGwdf 5nkmn ug]{ Pjd\ dxTjk"0f{ 
lg0f{ox¿ ug]{ s'/fdf jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef Hofb} 
k|efjsf/L /lxcfPsf] 5 .

-cf_	 ;~rfns ;ldlt

	 z]o/ ;b:ox¿af6 dgf]gLt / lgjf{lrt k|ltlglwx¿af6 
o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt u7g x'g] Joj:yf 
/x]sf] 5 . ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s lgoldt ?kdf 
a;L ;+:yfsf] sfo{ k|ultsf] ;dLIff ug]{, k|rlnt 
sfg'gx¿, ;+:yfsf] k|aGwkq / lgodfjnL, g]kfn /fi6« 
a}Ísf lgb]{zgx¿, ;d;fdlos cfly{s÷;fdflhs 
cj:yf, ahf/ / k|lt:kwL{x¿ ;d]tnfO{ Wofgdf /fvL 
cfjZos gLltut Joj:yfx¿ ug]{ sfo{df ;~rfns 
;ldlt k|lta4 /x]sf] 5 .

	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgodfjnL cg';f/ o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf 
slDtdf ! -Ps_ hgf dlxnf ;lxt & -;ft_ hgfsf] 
;~rfns ;ldlt /x]sf] 5 . ;d"x – …sÚ ;+:yfks 
z]o/wgL ;d"xaf6 $ -rf/_ hgfn] k|ltlglwTj 
u/]sf 5g\ . ;d"x–…vÚ M ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL ;d"xaf6 
;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL dWo]af6 lgjf{lrt b'O{ hgfn] 
k|ltlglwTj u/]sf 5g\ / a+}s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL 
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P]g, @)&# sf] bkmf !$ sf] pkbkmf # adf]lhd 
;~rfns ;ldltaf6 lgo'Qm :jtGq ;~rfns Ps 
hgfn] k|ltlglwTj u/]sf 5g\ . 

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf ;+:yfks ;fgf ls;fg s[lif 
;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿sf] tkm{af6 >L v]d axfb'/ kf7s / 
>L ;'vb]j Gof}kfg] ;~rfns ;ldltdf /xg'ePsf] 5 . 
;+:yfks jfl0fHo a}+sx¿sf] tkm{af6 s[lif ljsf; a+}Í 
ln=sf] tkm{af6 8f= afa'sfhL yfkf / g]kfn a}+s ln=sf] 
tkm{af6 >L ;dtf kGt -e§_ n] k|ltlglwTj ub}{ cfpg' 
ePsf]df ;~rfns >L ;dtf kGt -e§_ sf] :yfgdf 
ldlt @)*@÷#÷@! b]lv >L bLk]Gb|/fh sfˆn] / s[lif 

ljsf; a}+s ln= sf] tkm{af6 8f= afa'sfhL yfkfsf] 

:yfgdf ldlt @)*@÷$÷!# b]lv >L o1 k|sfz 

Gof}kfg] dgf]lgt x'g' ePsf] 5 . To;}u/L ;j{;fwf/0f 

z]o/wgLsftkm{af6 >L pd]z nD;fn / >L led k|;fb 

kGt ;~rfns ;ldltdf /xg' ePsf] 5 . :jtGq 

;~rfnssf] ?kdf >L cf:yf e§ ;lxt & hgfsf] 

;~rfns ;ldlt /x]sf] 5 . ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 

cWoIf kbdf >L v]d axfb'/ kf7s /xg' ePsf] 5 . 

cf=j=@)*!÷*@ df ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  @) j6f 

a}7s a;]sf] 5 . 

tflnsf – ( jt{dfg ;~rfns ;ldltsf kbflwsf/Lx¿

qm;+ Gffd kb k|ltlglwTj u/]sf] ;+:yf
! >L v]daxfb'/ kf7s cWoIf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= r}gk'/, wflbª
@ >L o1 k|sfz Gof}kfg] ;b:o s[lif ljsf; a}Í ln=, /fdzfx ky, sf7df8f}F
# >L bLk]Gb| /fh sfˆn] ;b:o g]kfn a}+s ln=, wd{ky, sf7df8f}F
$ >L ;'vb]j Gof}kfg] ;b:o ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= cfgGbjg, ?kGb]xL
% >L pd]z nD;fn ;b:o ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL
^ >L led k|;fb kGt ;b:o ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL
&= >L cf:yf e§ ;b:o :jtGq

-O_	 ;~rfns ;ldlt ;+of]hs /xg] u/L ul7t ;ldltx¿ M

	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+såf/f …3Ú ju{sf n3'ljQ ljQLo 
;+:yfx¿sf nflu hf/L ul/Psf] Plss[t lgb]{zg g++= ^ 
df ePsf] Joj:yf adf]lhd ;~rfnssf] ;+of]hsTjdf 
u7g x'g] pk ;ldltx¿df hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, 
;DklQ z'4Ls/0f ;ldlt, sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf 
;ldlt / n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] k'gu{7g ug{ cfjZos 
ePsf]n] ldlt @)*)÷!)÷!) df a;]sf] ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] @( cf}F a}7saf6 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf 
ljleGg ;ldltx¿df b]xfo cg';f/sf kbflwsf/L 
/xg] u/L k'gu{7g ul/Psf]df @)*@ c;f/ d;fGt 
;Dddf lgDgfg';f/sf kbflwsf/Lx¿ /xg] u/L ;ldlt, 
pk;ldltx¿ /x]sf 5g\ .

1=	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt M 

	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfly{s 
cj:yfsf] ;dLIff, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f, n]vfk/LIf0f 
;DaGwL sfo{qmd / n]vfk/LIf0fsf] kl/0ffd ;DaGwdf 
lj:t[t 5nkmn u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg 
lbg] ub{5 . ljQLo ;+:yfsf] n]vf tyf ljQLo kIfx¿sf] 
cWoog ug]{, cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0fsf] Joj:yf 
ldnfpg], cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0fsf s}lkmotx¿ ;'wf/ 

ug{ nufpg] / ;f]sf] cg'udg ug]{, clGtd n]vfk/LIf0fsf] 
Joj:yf ug]{, ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg / 
;'emfjx¿ lbg] sfo{ ub{5 . cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df o; 
;ldltsf] !! j6f j}7s a;]sf] 5 .

-s_	 ldlt @)*!÷$÷@( b]lv @)*@÷@÷@& ;Dd 

!=	 >L pd]z nD;fn, ;~rfns 	 – ;+of]hs

@= 	 >L led k|;fb kGt, ;~rfns 	 – ;b:o

#= 	 >L O{zf s]=;L=, d'Vo k|aGws 	 – ;b:o ;lrj

-v_ 	 ldlt @)*@÷@÷@* b]lv @)*@÷#÷#@ ;Dd

!=	 >L pd]z nD;fn, ;~rfns 	 – ;+of]hs

@= 	 >L led k|;fb kGt, ;~rfns 	 – ;b:o

#= 	 >L s[i0f s'd/L zdf{, jl/i7 k|aGws	 – ;b:o ;lrj

2=	 sd{rf/L ;]jf–;'ljwf ;ldlt M 

	 sd{rf/L ;]jf–;'ljwf ;ldltn] k|rlnt sfg'g tyf gLlt 
lgb]{zgdf plNnlvt Joj:yfx¿sf] kfngf x'g] u/L 
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t nufot ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx¿sf] 
kfl/>lds÷;'ljwfx¿ j[l4 ug'{ kg]{ b]lvPdf ;f]sf] 
cfwf/x¿ ;lxt ;~rfns ;ldltdf l;kmfl/; ug]{ h:tf 
sfo{x¿ u/L ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ;xof]u / 
;'emfj k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . cf=j=@)*!÷*@ df o; 
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;ldltsf] ( j6f a}7s a;]sf] 5 .

sd{rf/L ;]jf–;'ljwf ;ldltsf kbflwsf/Lx¿ M

!=	 8f= afa'sfhL yfkf, ;~rfns 	 ;+of]hs 

@=	 8f= lzj/fd k|;fb sf]O/fnf,  
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t	 ;b:o

#=	 >L dlGbkf bfxfn, d'Vo k|aGws	 ;b:o ;lrj 

3=	 hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt M 

	 hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltn] ;+:yfsf] Jofj;flos 
ultljlwdf lglxt hf]lvdsf] :t/, hf]lvd axg Ifdtf, 
hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu ePsf /0fgLlt, gLltut 
Joj:yf, ;DefJo hf]lvdx¿ ljZn]if0f u/L kf]6{kmf]lnof] 
cWoog Pjd\ jt{dfg / ;DefJo hf]lvdx¿ cg'udg 
ljZn]if0f tyf lgoGq0f ug]{ sfo{ s]–s;/L eO/x]sf] 5 
;f] ;DaGwdf 5nkmn u/L ;~rfns ;ldltdf cfjZos 
;'emfj k]z ug]{ sfo{ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . cf=j=@)*!÷*@ 
df o; ;ldltsf] % j6f a}7s a;]sf] 5 . 

hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt kbflwsf/Lx¿ M

!=	 >L ;dtf kGt -e§_, ;~rfns	 ;+of]hs

@=	 >L pd]z nD;fn, ;~rfns 	 kb]g ;b:o

#= 	 >L O{zf s]=;L=, d'Vo k|aGws              	;b:o

$=	 >L ?k axfb'/ v8\sf, d'Vo k|aGws	 ;b:o ;lrj

4=	 ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt M 

	 ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f -dlg nfpG8l/ª_ lgjf/0f P]g, @)^$ 
n] tf]s] adf]lhdsf] ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f  -dlg nfpG8l/ª_ 
lgjf/0f ;DaGwdf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sfo{k|s[lt adf]lhd 
;fem]bf/ ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/sf] cg'udg ug]{ k|lqmof / 
hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;DaGwL k|lqmof h:tf ljifodf 
s]lGb|t eO{ sfo{ljlw tof/ u/L ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿df 
cg'udg ug]{ sfo{ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . cf=j=@)*!÷*@ df 
o; ;ldltsf] % j6f a}7s a;]sf] 5 .

	 ;DklQ z'l4s/0f cg'udg ;ldltsf kbflwsf/Lx¿M

!=	 >L ;'vb]j Gof}kfg], ;~rfns	 ;+of]hs 

@=	 8f= lzj/fd k|;fb sf]O/fnf, 
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t	 ;b:o

#=	 >L lnnfw/ lwtfn, d'Vo k|aGws	 ;b:o

$=	 >L= lzjxl/ cof{n, d'Vo k|aGws	 ;b:o ;lrj

2=	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL M

-c_	 gLlt lgod M 

	 a}Í tyf ljQLo ;+:Yff;DaGwL P]g @)&#, sDkgL 
P]g @)^# tyf k|rlnt sfg'gx¿ / g]kfn /fi6« a}Ín] 

ljleGg ;dodf hf/L ug]{ lgb]{zg Pjd\ kl/kqx¿sf] 
clwgdf /xL ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf Jofj;flos 
sf/f]af/x¿ ;~rfng ub{5 . ;fwf/0f ;efsf] 
lgb]{zg Pjd\ ;~rfns ;ldltsf lg0f{ox¿af6 ;+:yfsf 
lqmofsnfkx¿ lgb]{lzt x'g] ub{5g\ . ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
k|aGwkq, lgodfjnL, sd{rf/L ;]jf ljlgodfjnL, 
@)*), cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL, @)*), shf{ 
sfo{ljlw, @)*),  shf{ ckn]vg ljlgodfjnL @)*), 
shf{ c;'nL sfo{ljlw, @)*! h:tf ljlgodfjnL, 
gLlt tyf sfo{ljlw, lgb]{zg cflbsf clwgdf /xL 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf sfo{x¿ ;~rfng x'g] ub{5g\ .

-cf_	 ;'zf;gsf nflu cGo Joj:yf M

1=	 n]vfk/LIf0f tyf cg'kfngf PsfO{ M 

	 n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfdf n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] 
lgb]{zgdf /xg] u/L cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f tyf 
cg'kfngf PsfO{ /x]sf] 5 . o; zfvfn] dftxtsf ;a} 
sfof{nox¿sf] lgoldt ?kdf cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f 
ug]{ ub{5 eg] shf{ sf/f]af/ ug]{ u|fxs ;+:yfx¿sf] 
:oflDKnª u/L lg/LIf0f / cg'udg ;d]t ug]{ ub{5 .

2=	 clGtd n]vfk/LIf0f M 

	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] k|To]s cfly{s jif{sf] jfXo n]vfk/LIf0f 
:jtGq rf6{8 PsfpG6]G6\;af6 lgoldt ?kdf u/fpFb} 
cfPsf] 5 . cf=j=@)*!÷*@ sf] n]vfk/LIf0f >L 
h]=aL= /fhe08f/L P08 l8jLG;, rf6{8{ PsfpG6]G6;\af6 
;DkGg ePsf] 5 .

3=	 sd{rf/L a}7s M 

	 k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] cWoIftfdf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] 
a}7s a;L ;xeflutfd"ns ljlwaf6 5nkmn u/L lg0f{o 
ug]{ k4lt /x]sf] 5 . a}7sdf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] p2]Zo 
xfl;n ug{ ;~rfng ul/Psf ljleGg sfo{qmdx¿sf] 
k|ultsf] ;dLIff ug'{sf ;fy} cfufdL lbgdf sfd 
sf/jfxLx¿nfO{ cem k|efjsf/L / ;xh ?kdf ;~rfng 
ug{ ckgfOg] /0fgLltx¿sf] th'{df ;d]t ug]{ u/]sf] 5 . 

4=	 k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t M 

	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] b}lgs sfo{ ;~rfng, of]hgf th'{df, 
;|f]t Joj:yfkg, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f, ;dGjo / 
;DaGw ljsf; h:tf ofjt\ sfo{x¿ k|d'v sfo{sf/L 
clws[taf6 x'g] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . k|d'v sfo{sf/L 
clws[t cGtu{t ljleGg ljefu / zfvf sfof{nox¿n] 
Jofj;flos ultljlw ;~rfng ug]{ ub{5g\ . k|d'v 
sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] Joj:yfksLo If]qdf nfdf] 
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cg'ej, Jofj;flos bIftf, cGt/j}olQms Ifdtf, b"/
b[li6 / s'zn Joj:yfkgn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|ultdf 
dxTjk"0f{ e"ldsf v]n]sf] 5 .

5=	 sd{rf/L sfo{ ljj/0f (Job Description) : 

	 sd{rf/Lx¿df :ki6 sfo{ljefhg, sfo{;Dkfbg d"NofÍg 
k4lt, clwsf/ / lhDd]jf/L k|bfg, plrt ;]jf–;'ljwf 
cflb sf/0fn] ubf{ sd{rf/Lx¿sf] pRr dgf]ansf ;fy 
sfd ug]{ jftfj/0f sfod /x]sf] 5 .

6=	 jflif{s÷cw{jflif{s ;dLIff÷uf]i7L M  

	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] lgoldt ?kdf s]Gb|Lo / zfvfsf 
sfof{no;lxtsf] jflif{s / cw{jflif{s k|ult ;dLIff 
/ sfo{qmd tyf ah]6 th'{df uf]i7Lsf] cfof]hgf ub}{ 
cfPsf] 5 . To;} u/L cfa4 ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿;Fu ;d]t 
lgoldt ?kdf k|ult ;dLIff tyf /0fgLlt th'{df uf]i7L 
cfof]hgf x'Fb} cfPsf] 5 .

-y_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{sf] s"n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f

sd{rf/L vr{ –	 ?= 31,33,72,498.72      

sfof{no ;~rfng vr{ – 	 ?= 8,97,84,994.07

x|f;s§L tyf ckn]vg vr{ –	?=   2,91,96,135.37

	   hDdf –	 ? 43,23,53,628.16

-b_ 	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿sf] gfdfjnL, 
lghx¿n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf, 
;f] ;ldltn] u/]sf] sfd sf/afxLsf] ljj/0f / ;f] 
;ldltn] s'g} ;'emfj lbPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f

	 o; sDkgLdf u}/sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L 
pd]z nD;fnsf] ;+of]hsTjdf tn tflnsfdf pNn]v 
u/]cg';f/sf] tLg ;b:oLo n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt /x]sf] 
5 . o; ;ldltn] sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% df 
tf]lsP adf]lhdsf sfo{x¿ ug]{, g]kfn /fi6« a}+såf/f 
hf/L lgb]{zgdf n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] ug'{kg]{ egL 
pNn]v u/]sf sfo{x¿ ug]{, n]vfk/LIfsn] lbPsf] 
k|ltj]bgpk/ bkmfjf/ cWoog u/L ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ 
k|ltj]bg;lxt ;'emfj / Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] 
Pjd\ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] ;'b[9Ls/0fsf 
nflu cg'udg, lg/LIf0f / ;'emfj k|bfg ug]{ h:tf 
sfo{x¿ ug]{ ub{5 . o; ;ldltn] ;DklQsf] shf{sf] 
u'0f:t/ clej[l4 ug]{, k'/fgf lx;fax¿ km/kmf/s ug]{ 
cflb nufotsf dxTjk"0f{ ;'emfjx¿;lxtsf] k|ltj]bg 
;~rfns ;ldltdf k]z u/]sf] / ;~rfns ;ldltn] 

;f]sf] k|efjsf/L sfof{Gjogsf nflu Joj:yfkgnfO{ 
lgb]{zg lbPsf] 5 . 

tflnsf – 10 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf 
kbflwsf/Lx¿sf] gfdfjnL tyf ;'ljwf

gfd kb ;'ljwf 

>L pd]z nD;fn ;+of]hs k|lt a}7s eQf 
?= &,%)).–>L led k|;fb kGt ;b:o

>L s[i0f s'df/L zdf{ ;b:o ;lrj
k|lt a}7s eQf 
?= @,))).–

-w_ 	 ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, 
sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhsf 
gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;·l7t 
;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL eP ;f] 
s'/f

	 ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf 
cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf 
lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;Ël7t ;+:yfn] 
sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL 5}g .

-g_  	;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf 
kbflwsf/Lx¿nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf 
tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd

-c_  ;~rfnsx¿nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf 
tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd M

•	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf efu lnP jfkt k|lt 
a}7s k|lt ;b:o ?=&,%))÷– dfq eQf lbg] 
Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . 

•	 ;~rf/ ;'ljwf M ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfnfO{ 
k|lt dlxgf ?=#,)))÷– / cGo ;~rfnsnfO{ 
k|lt dlxgf k|lt JolQm ?=@,))).– dfq ;~rf/ 
;'ljwf lbg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 .

•	 kqklqsf jfkt M ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfnfO{ 
k|lt dlxgf ?=!,)))÷– / cGo ;~rfnsnfO{ 
k|lt dlxgf k|lt JolQm ?=%))÷– dfq kqklqsf 
jfkt ;'ljwf lbg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 .

•	 sf7df8f}F pkTosf aflx/af6 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 
a}7sdf efu lng cfpFbf jf ljQLo ;+:yfsf]] 
sfdsf] l;nl;nfdf sf7df8fF} cfpFbf jf 
sf7df8fF} pkTosf afx]s cGoq ljQLo ;+:yfsf]] 
sfhdf vl6O hfFbf b}lgs eQf ?=@,%))÷– 
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b/n] pknAw u/fOg]  Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . 

•	 sf7df8f} pkTosf aflx/sf ;~rfnsnfO{ 
sf7df8f}+ pkTosf aflx/af6 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 
a}7sdf efu lng cfpFbf Psd':6 ?=@,%))÷– 
/ sf7df8f}+ pkTosf leqsf ;~rfnsnfO{ 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf efu lng cfpFbf 
Psd':6 ?=@,)))÷– :yfgLo kl/jxg tyf e}k/L 
vr{ lbg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . 

•	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] lg0f{ofg';f/ 
dgf]gog eO{ ljb]z e|d0f ubf{ o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf 
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tn] kfP ;/xsf] b}lgs 
tyf e|d0f eQf tyf cGo vr{, ;'ljwf pknAw 
u/fOg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 .

•	 sDkgLsf] sfdsf] l;nl;nfdf xjfO{hxfhaf6 
ofqf u/]df xjfO{hxfhdf nfu] adf]lhdsf] l6s6 
vr{ / xjfO{hxfhsf] ;'ljwf pkef]u gu/L a;af6 
ofqf u/]df a;ef8fsf] bf]Aa/sf b/n] e|d0f 
eQf pknAw x'g] . sf7df8f}F pkTosf aflx/ 
h'g;'s} 7fpFaf6 a;af6 ofqf u/L ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] a}7sdf efu lng cfpg] ;~rfnsnfO{ 
a;ef8fsf] bf]Aa/sf b/n] e|d0f eQf pknAw 
u/fpg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 .

-cf_	 k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 8f= lzj/fd k|;fb 
sf]O/fnfnfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf 
;'ljwfsf] /sd M

	 o; cfly{s jif{df k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ tna, 
eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf jfkt ?= $%,$),##@.– e'QmfgL 
ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy}, k|rlnt P]g tyf lgodfg';f/ sd{rf/L 
af]g; tyf sNof0fsf/L sf]if k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . 

-k_	 z]o/wgLx¿n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sd

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtdf ljt/0f ug{ 
afFsL gub nfef+z ?= #,(&,%!,^@&÷(@ /x]sf] 5 .

-km_	 bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf 
s'/fsf] ljj/0f 

	 o; k|sf/sf] ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL gePsf] .

-a_	 bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgLaLr ePsf] 
sf/f]af/sf] ljj/0f

	 of] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] d'Vo sf/f]af/ g} ljleGg a}Í, ljQLo 
;+:yf tyf ljQ k|bfos lgsfox¿;Fu shf{ k|fKt u/L  

o;df cfj4 ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ dfkm{t tL ;+:yfsf 
ljkGg tyf ;fgf ls;fg ;b:ox¿;Dd n3'ljQ shf{ 
k|bfg ug]{ k|of]hgsf nflu yf]s shf{ k|bfg ug'{ xf] . 
g]kfn /fi6« a+}Ísf] lgb]{zgsf] clwgdf /xL o; ljQLo 
;+:yfn] o;sf ;+:yfks z]o/wgL /x]sf ljleGg a}+s 
tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿;+u ;d]t shf{ k|fKt ug]{ / a'emfpg] 
nufotsf lgoldt Jofkfl/s sf/f]af/ afx]s cGo s'g} 
sf/f]af/ u/]sf] 5}g . 

-e_	 o; P]g tyf k|rlnt sfg'gadf]lhd ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg'kg]{ cGo s'g} s'/f M 

	 cfjZos ;Dk"0f{ dxTjk"0f{ s'/fx¿ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 
k|ltj]bgdf v'nfOPsf] 5 .

-d_	 cGo cfjZos s'/fx¿ M

-c_	 k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] x]/km]/ / ;f] sf] sf/0f

	 ;+:yfsf tTsflng k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 8f= 
lzj/fd k|;fb sf]O/fnfsf] kbfjlw ldlt @)*@÷%÷!$ 
af6 ;dfKt ePsf] x'Fbf ;f]xL ldltb]lv nfu' x'g] u/L 
gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t >L k[y axfb'/ yfkfnfO{ 
sfod d'sfod k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] lhDd]jf/L 
lbOPsf] / ldlt @)*@÷(÷# b]lv nfu' x'g] u/L l/Qm 
/x]sf] k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t kbdf >L jf;' clwsf/L 
lgo'Qm x'g' ePsf] a]xf]/f o; ;efnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpg 
rfxG5' . gj lgo'Qm k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t >L jf;' 
clwsf/LnfO{ o; ;+:yfsf] k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 
h:tf] ul/dfdo kbdf lgo'Qm x'g' ePsf]df xflb{s awfO{ 
lb+b} ;kmn sfo{sfnsf] nflu z'esfdgf JoQm ub{5' . 

	 tTsflng k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 8f= lzj/fd k|;fb 
sf]O/fnfn] cfˆgf] sfo{sfndf ;+:yfsf] k|ultsf] 
nflu k'¥ofpg' ePsf] of]ubfgsf] nflu xflb{s wGojfb 
1fkg ub{5' . ;fy} l/Qm /x]sf] k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 
kbdf lgo'Qm gx'Fbf;Dd sfod d'sfod k|d'v sfo{sf/L 
clws[tsf] lhDd]jf/L ;kmntfk"j{s ;DkGg u/L lbg' 
ePsf]df gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t >L k[y axfb'/ 
yfkfnfO{ xflb{s wGojfb 1fkg ub{5' .

-cf_	 km/jf8{ dfO{qmf]kmfOgfG; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= df 
nufgLdf /x]sf] z]o/ ljlgj]z M 

	 o; ;+:yfsf] gfddf /x]sf] km/jf8{ dfO{qmf]kmfOgfG; 
n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= sf] #(,$%! lsQf ;+:yfks 
;]o/ g]kfn /fii6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zfg';f/ ;fj{hlgs ?kdf 
af]nsaf]n a9fa9 u/L ljqmL ug{ k|lqmof ul/Psf]df 
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hDdf ^,))) lsQf ;]o/ v/Lb laqmL ePsf] / afFsL 
;]o/ oyflz3| ljqmLsf] nflu k|lqmof ul/g]5 . 

-O_ 	 dfgj ;+;fwg

1=	 b/aGbL 

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx¿ / Joj:yfkg 
larsf] ;f}xfb|{k"0f{ ;DaGw / sd{rf/Lx¿sf] lhDd]jf/L / 
pQ/bfloTj k|ltsf] nufjn] ubf{ ;ª\VofTds ?kdf yf]/} 

sd{rf/L /x]tf klg 5f]6f] cjlwdf g} ;+:yfn] dxTjk"0f{ 
pknlAw xfl;n ug{ ;s]sf] 5 . ljQLo ;+:yfn] 
sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ k|ltli7t z}lIfs ;+:yfdf cWoogsf] 
cj;/ lbg], /fli6«o–cGt/f{li6«o tflnd tyf uf]i7Lx¿df 
;xefuL u/fpg] cflb h:tf j[lQ ljsf;sf cj;/x¿ 
k|bfg ug]{ u/]sf] 5 . o; ;+:yfdf @)*@ dª\l;/ 
d;fGt;Dd sfo{/t sd{rf/L ;ª\Vof :yfoL !@# / 
s/f/÷Hofnfbf/L ;]jfdf & u/L s'n !#) /x]sf] 5 . 

tflnsf – 11 M b/aGbL  Pjd\ sfo{/t sd{rf/L ;ª\Vof

qm=;+= ;]jf k|sf/ sfo{/t sd{rf/L ;ª\Vof @)*@÷*# sf] b/aGbL

1 :yfoL sd{rf/L 123 134

2 s/f/ ;]jfsf sd{rf/L 7 8

s'n hDdf 130 142

2=	 egf{ / ljsf; M 

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf sfdsf] rfknfO{ dWogh/ u/L 
cfjZos sd{rf/Lx¿sf] b/aGbL ;[hgf ug{] tyf 
pko'Qm ljlwsf] cfwf/df 5gf}6 ug{] k|s[ofnfO{ cufl8 
a9fOPsf] 5 . k|s[of k"/f u/L egf{ ePsf sd{rf/LnfO{ 
pko'Qm :yfgdf kb:yfkg ug{] tyf j[lQ ljsf;sf] 
nflu ljleGg tflnd, uf]i7L tyf ;]ldgf/x¿df ;xefuL 
u/fpg] s'/fdf Joj:yfkg ;w} nflu k/]sf] 5 . o;sf 
;fy} kbf]Gglt tyf ;?jfsf] k|s[of klg lgodfjnL 
cg'?k cufl8 al9/x]sf] 5 . 

3=	 kfl/>lds / ;'ljwf M 

	 ljQLo ;+:yfdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ ;+:yfn] 
pknAw u/fpb} cfPsf] kfl/>lds / ;'ljwf cGtu{t 
dfl;s tnj, eQfsf cltl/Qm bz}F vr{, cf}iflw vr{ 
tyf lgodfg';f/ af]g; ;'ljwf cflb pknAw u/fpFb} 
cfPsf] 5 . 

4=	 ljQLo ;+:yf Joj:yfkg M 

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] b}lgs tyf k|zf;lgs sfo{ 
;~rfngfy{ k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t, @ hgf gfoj 
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t tyf % hgf d'Vo k|aGws 
;lxtsf] Joj:yfkg ;d"x 5 . ;fy} ljleGg zfvfx¿df 
cfjZostf cg';f/sf jl/i7 k|aGws, k|aGws, 
clws[t tyf ;xfos sd{rf/Lx¿ lgo'lQm eO{ k|efjsf/L 
?kdf sfo{x¿ ;~rfng ePsf 5g\ .

5=	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf sfof{nox¿ M

	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf7df8f}+df Ps s]Gb|Lo sfof{no 

;lxt ljleGg ef}uf]lns If]q ;ldl6g] u/L !@ j6f 
zfvf sfof{nox¿ dfkm{t ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 ljQLo 
tyf u}x|ljQLo ;]jf÷k|ljlws ;xof]u pknAw u/fpg] 
Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿nfO{ ;xh?kdf 
;]jf÷;xof]u pknAw u/fpg dWo afg]Zj/ -sf7df8f}+_, 
latf{df]8 -emfkf_, O6x/L -;'g;/L_, alb{jf; -dxf]Q/L_, 
nxfg -l;/fxf_, x]6f}F8f -dsjfgk'/_, uh'/L -wflbª_, 
a'6jn -?kGb]xL_, kf]v/f -sf:sL_, g]kfnu~h -afFs]_, 
jL/]Gb|gu/ -;'v{]t_ / cQl/of -s}nfnL_ df zfvf 
sfof{nox¿ :yfkgf ePsf 5g\ . zfvf sfof{nox¿n] 
cfˆgf] sfo{If]q cGtu{tsf ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
nufot cGo ;xsf/L Pjd\ n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿nfO{ yf]s 
shf{, u}x|ljQLo ;]jf Pjd\ cGo k|fljlws ;xof]u k|bfg 
ub}{ cfPsf 5g\ .

-O{_	 ;Ddfg / k'/:sf/ M

-!_ 	;fgf ls;fgsf] :jfldTj / ;fgf ls;fgaf6} ;~rfng 
tyf Joj:yfkg eO{ clt Go"g lz/f]ef/ vr{df u|fdL0f 
u/Lasf] hLjg:t/ ;'wf/df ;xof]u ug]{ ;fgf ls;fg 
s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf h:tf] u|fdL0f n3'ljQ ;+:yfsf] 
gd"gf (Model) / o;sf] e"ldsfnfO{ sb/ ub}{ ljZj a}Í 
cGtu{tsf] sG;N6]l6e u|'k 6' cl;:6 b k'j/ (CGAP) 
af6 o; ljQLo ;+:yf ;g\ @))# df k'/:s[t ePsf] 5 . 
pQm %) xhf/ cd]l/sL 8n/ /flzsf] k'/:sf/ /sdnfO{ 
cIfo sf]ifdf /fvL ;f]sf] kl/rfngaf6 cg';/0f 
sfo{qmd ;~rfng u/fO{ yk ljkGg ju{nfO{ n3'ljQ 
;]jfsf] kx'Frdf Nofpg] sfo{ o; ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 x'Fb} 
cfPsf] 5 . o:t} s[lif ljsf;sf nflu cGt/f{li6«o sf]if 
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(IFAD) af6 ;d]t ;Ddflgt ePsf] 5 .

-@_	 o; ljQLo ;+:yf -;fljs cf/Pd8L;L n3'ljQ ljQLo 
;+:yf ln=_ n] g]kfn ;/sf/, cy{ dGqfno / PlzofnL 
ljsf; a}+ssf] ;xof]udf ;g\ !((( b]lv ;g\ @))& 
;Dd u|fdL0f n3'ljQ kl/of]hgf (Rural Microfinance 
Project) k|efjsf/L ?kdf ;~rfng u/] afkt PlzofnL 
ljsf; a}+saf6 ;g\ @))!, ;g\ @))@, ;g\ @))$ 
/ ;g\ @))% df u/L $ k6s pTs[i6 sfo{ ;Dkfbg 
k'/:sf/ k|fKt u/]sf] 5 . 

-#_ 	2nd Newbiz Business Conclave and Awards-2014 
sf tkm{af6 ljt/0f x'g] Best Managed Microfinace 
Company of the Year  af6 of] ljQLo ;+:yf ;Ddflgt 
ePsf] 5  .

-$_ g]kfn ;/sf/ cy{ dGqfno / Pl;ofnL ljsf; a}Ín] 
;g\ @)@) df sf]le8sf] ;ª\s6sfnLg cj:yfdf klg 
u|fdL0f pBd nufgL kl/of]hgf (REFP) k|efjsf/L 
?kdf sfof{Gjog u/]jfkt ;Ddfg :j?k k|df0fkq 
k|bfg u/]sf] 5 .  ;fy} g]kfn ;/sf/ cy{ dGqfno / 
PlzofnL ljsf; a}+sn] @)*) a}zfv * ut] ;Do'Qm 
?kdf cfof]hgf u/]sf] Country Portfolio Review 
Meeting af6 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] a]i6 Dofg]hd]G6 l6d 
cjf8{ k|fKt u/]sf] 5 .

wGojfb 1fkg M –

cGTodf, d ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
k|ult tyf ;d[l4sf nflu lg/Gt/ ;xof]u, ;'emfj lbO/xg' 
ePsf xfd|f ;Dk"0f{ ;+:yfks z]o/wgL tyf ;j{;fwf/0f 
z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿, z'elrGtsx¿ 
tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] pQ/f]Q/ ljsf;sf nflu cxf]/fq 
vl6g'ePsf nugzLn ;a} sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ xflb{s wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' . ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|ultsf] nflu lg/Gt/ dfu{bz{g 
ug{] g]kfn /fi6« a}Í, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] 
sfof{no, g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh nufot ;Dk"0f{ ;DalGwt 
;/sf/L tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿, /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o 
;xof]uL ;+:yfx¿ k|lt s[t1tf JoQm ub{5' . 

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] gljg sfo{qmd / pknlAwnfO{ ;sf/fTds 
?kdf hg;dIf k'¥ofpg ;xof]u ug{] ;~rf/ dfWod / 
k|ToIf÷ck|ToIf ?kdf ;+:yfsf] k|ultdf ;xof]u ug'{x'g] 
;Dk"0f{ z'e]R5'sx¿ k|lt cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . o; ul/dfdo 
;efdf k|:t't ul/Psf ;a} ;fwf/0f tyf ljz]if k|:tfjx¿df 
5nkmn u/L kfl/t ul/lbgsf nflu z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿df 
xflb{s cg'/f]w ub}{ cfufdL lbgx¿df klg ;a} If]qaf6 ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] k|ultsf nflu cem a9L ;xof]u, :g]x tyf ;b\efj 
k|fKt x'g] cfzf ub{5' .

wGojfb .

v]d axfb'/ kf7s
cWoIf

/ ;~rfnsx¿
ldlt M @)*@ kf}if @% ut] .
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jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;dfj]z ug''{kg]{ ljj/0f 

-lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg lgodfjnL, @)&# sf] lgod @^ sf] pklgod -@_ ;Fu ;DalGwt cg';"rL – !% 

jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;dfj]z ug'{kg]{ ljj/0f

1=	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg M	 ;+nUg 5 . 

2=	 n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg M	 ;+nUg 5 .

3=	 n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf] ljQLo ljj/0f M	 ;+nUg 5 .

4=	 sfg'gL sf/afxL ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

	 b]xfo cg';f/sf] s'g} klg d'2f bfo/ gePsf] M

-s_ 	q}dfl;s cjlwdf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] jf ;+:yfsf] lj?¢ s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] .

-v_	 ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnsn] jf ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnssf] lj?¢df k|rlnt lgodsf] cj1f jf 
kmf}Hbf/L ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] .

-u_	 s'g} ;+:yfks jf ;~rfns lj?¢ cfly{s ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] .

5=	 ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/ tyf k|ultsf] ljZn]if0f M

-s_	 lwtf]kq ahf/df ePsf] ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ ;DaGwdf Joj:yfkgsf] wf/0ff M 

		  o; ;+:yfsf] lwtf]kq ahf/df z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ tyf d"No ;Gtf]ifhgs /xg'n] ahf/ /fd|f] /x]sf] dfGg ;lsG5 . 
;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/ k|rlnt P]g, lglt, lgod, l;åfGt tyf lgb]{lzsf cg';f/ x'g] u/]sf] .

-v_	 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] clwstd, Go"gtd / clGtd d"Nosf ;fy} j'mn sf/f]af/ z]o/ 
;+Vof / sf/f]af/ lbg M

		  g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh lnld6]8sf] j]a;fO6 cg';f/ ut jif{ k|To]s q}dfl;s cjlwdf ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] 
clwstd, Go"gtd / clGtd d"Nosf ;fy} s'n sf/f]af/ z]o/ ;+Vof / sf/f]af/ lbg tkl;n cg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .

tkl;n

qm=;+=
@)*!÷*@ 

q}dfl;s cjlw

z]o/sf] d"No ?= s'n sf/f]af/ 
z]o/ ;+Vof

s'n
sf/f]af/ lbgclwstd d"No Go"gtd d"No clGtd d"No

!= k|yd !!)%÷– *$&÷– (^^÷– @@)@* %&

@= bf]>f] (*$÷#) &(#÷*) *!!÷– *(^^ %%

#= t]>f] **@÷– &*!÷– &((÷^@ *&$^ %^

$= Rff}yf] *(&÷^) &*)÷– **$÷$! !)^@) ^#

6=	 ;d:of tyf r'gf}tL M 

	 ;d:of M 

-s_	 cfGtl/s ;d:of M

	 cfw'lgs l8hL6n k|ljlwsf] pkof]usf] ult lta| x'g g;s]sf] / dfgj >f]tsf] bIftf clea[l4 k"0f{ ?kdf e} 
g;s]sf] . pTs[i6 cEof; / ;+:s[lt sfod ub}{ dh{/kl5sf] Joj;fo / ;]jfnfO{ ;'Jojl:yt agfpg] r'gf}lt /x]sf] . 
s[lif d"No>[ª\vnfsf] ljsf; sdhf]/ x'g' . 
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-v_	 afXo ;d:of  M

	 b]zsf clwsf+z If]qaf6 ;]jf lj:tf/sf nflu dfu eO{ cfPtf klg ef}uf]lns sl7gfO{ / a;fO{ ;/fO{sf] sf/0f ck]lIft 
?kn] ;]jf lj:tf/ ug{ g;lsPsf] . n3'ljQ tyf ;xsf/Lsf u|fxsx¿ aLr bf]xf]/f]kgf x'g', s]xL C0fLx¿ ;Lldt JolQmx¿sf] 
nxnx}df e8\sL C0f gltg'{, lgltut hf]lvd sfod /xg' .

	 r'gf}tL M 

	 cfly{s cj:yfdf b]vf k/]sf] ;':ttf, b]zsf] u|fdL0f e]udf k"jf{wf/ ljsf;df sdL x'g', ljQLo If]qdf lta| k|lt:kwf{ / 
;+:yfut ;'zf;gdf sdhf]/ b]lvg', gLltut hf]lvd, :yfgLo txsf] k'g/u7gaf6 u|fxs ;+:yfsf] ;+/rgfdf k/]sf] k|efj, 
;+:yfsf] dh{/, /fhg}lts cl:y/tf, ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿ Joj;flos e} g;Sg' o; ;+:yfsf]] d'Vo r'gf}tLsf] ?kdf /x]sf] 5 .   

	 /0fgLlt M

	 s[lifsf] Joj;flos ?kfGt/0f Pjd\ ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] pTkfbsTj clej[l4 ug{ ;+:yfn] ljleGg sfo{qmd ;~rfng u/]sf] 
5 . n3'ljQ If]qdf b]lvPsf u|fxs bf]xf]/f]kgfsf] ;d:of sd ug{ ;+:yfn] ljQLo ;]jf jl~rt If]qnfO{ k|fyldstf lbg] 
Pjd\ Ps sfo{ If]q Ps ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfsf] gLlt cjnDag u/]sf] 5 . k|lt:kwf{Tds jftfj/0fdf o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf]] 5lj 
pRr /fVg / sfo{ bIftf a9fpg u|fxsd}qL ;]jf ;'ljwfdf hf]8 lbg] Pjd\ ;"rgf k|ljlwsf] ;d"lrt pkof]u a9fpg] gLlt 
lnPsf] 5 . ;fgf / ljkGGf ls;fgnfO{ pBdzLn / Joj;foL agfpg s[lif d"Noz[ª\vnf k|jw{gdf hf]8 lbOPsf] 5 .

7=	 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g M

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL g]kfn /fi6« a}+s Pjd\ ;DalGwt lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿af6 k|fKt dfu{ 
lgb]{zgx¿ pRr k|fyldstfsf;fy kfngf ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . ;+:yfsf] ;'zf;g clej[l4, ;+:yfn]] ug]{ sfo{x¿ kf/bzL{ Pjd\ 
lgod ;+ut ug{sf nflu ;~rfns ;ldlt, n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, 
;DklQ z'¢Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt / cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f PsfO lqmofzLn /x]sf 5g\ . ;+:yfsf]] sf/f]jf/nfO{ Jojl:yt 
ug{ cfGtl/s gLlt, lgod tyf lgb]{zgx¿ th'{df u/L nfu' ul/Psf] 5 .

;+:yfut ;'zf;g clej[l4sf nflu ;+:yfåf/f rflnPsf sbd ;DaGwL ljj/0f lgDgfg';f/ 5g\M

•	 ;+:yfdf ;~rfns ;ldlt, n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt / ;DklQ 
z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt tyf Joj:yfkg dftxtdf /x]sf ;ldlt tyf pk;ldltx¿ ;+:yfut ;'zf;g sfod /fVg 
lqmoflzn /x]sf 5g\ . 

•	 ;~rfng hf]lvdx¿ sd ug{ tyf sf/f]af/nfO{ Jojl:yt ug{ ljleGGf cfGtl/s gLlt, lgod tyf lgb]{lzsfx¿sf] 
th'{df u/L nfu' ul/Psf] 5 tyf ;"rgf k|ljlw÷;ˆ6j]o/sf] k|of]u u/L hf]lvd Go"gLs/0f ul/Psf] 5 . 

•	 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g sfod ug{ ;~rfns, k|dv sfo{sf/L clws[t / sd{rf/Lx¿n] kfngf ug'{kg]{ cfrf/;+lxtf hf/L 
u/L ;f]sf] cg'udg ;d]tsf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . 

•	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ Jojl:yt ug{ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIfsaf6 lgoldt ?kdf n]vfk/LIf0f u/fO{ k|ltj]bgdf 
lbOPsf ;'emfjx¿ sfof{Gjog u/fpg tyf ;dLIff ug{ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf a}7sx¿ lgoldt ?kdf a:g] u/]sf 
5g\ . 

gfd		  M >L clgn s[i0f hf]zL
kb		  M sDkgL ;lrj
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;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL jflif{s cg'kfng k|ltj]bg
-g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{sf] æ;"rLs[t ;+ul7t ;+:yfx¿sf] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf, @)&$Æ adf]lhd_

;"rLs[t ;·l7t ;+:yfsf] gfd ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

7]ufgf afudtL k|b]z, sf7df8f}F lhNnf, sf7df8f}F dxfgu/kflnsf j8f g+= !!, aa/dxn .

j]a;fO6 www.skbbl.com.np

Od]n info@skbbl.com.np

kmf]g g+= )!–%#@)(!#, %()(^!@

k|ltj]bg k]z ul/Psf] cf=j= @)*!÷*@ 

!=	 ;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_ 	;~rfns ;ldlt cWoIfsf] gfd, lgo'lQm ldlt M >L v]d axfb'/ kf7s -@)*)÷(÷@(_

-v_ 	;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf ;DaGwL ljj/0f -;+:yfks, ;j{;fwf/0f tyf cGo_ M 

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf -@)*@ c;f/ d;fGt_

;d"x r'Qmf k'FhL  -?=df_ k|ltzt
;~rfns ;ldltdf 
k|ltlglwTj ;ª\Vof

;d"x -s_ k|jw{s ;d"x -:jb]zL :jfldTj_ leGg c+s;lxt 2,91,43,41,843=38 67=58 4

æsÆ ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt ;+:yfx¿ 1,67,76,62,100.00 38.90 2

cGo Ohfhtkqk|fKt ;+:yfx¿ 41,78,900.00 0.10

2
cGo ;+:yfx¿ 1,20,86,45,000.00 28.03

cGo -k|mfS;g ;lxt_ 2,38,55,843.38 0.55

k|jw{s ;d"x -j}b]lzs :jfldTj_ 10,15,98,800=00 2=36

;d"x -v_ ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL -k|mfS;g ;lxt_ 1,29,66,80,870=40 30=06 2

Jofj;flos ;~rfns 1

hDdf 4,31,26,21,513=78 100=00 7

gf]6M	cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] !$=@%Ü af]g; z]o/ k|:tfj kfl/t ePkl5 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'n r'Qmf z]o/ /sd ?= 
$,(@,&!,&),)&(.$(  k'Ug]5 .

-u_ 	 ;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

qm=;+
;~rfnsx¿sf] gfd 

tyf 7]ufgf
k|ltlglwTj ePsf] ;d"x z]o/ ;+Vof

lg
o'l

Q
m e

Ps
f] l

dl
t

Kfb
 t

yf
 u

f]k
lg

ot
fs

f] 
z

ky
 ln

Ps
f] l

dl
t

;~rfns lgo'lQmsf] t/Lsf -ljlw_

!
>L v]d axfb'/ kf7s 
-;+:yfut_

;+:yfks
-;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln=, r}gk'/, wflbË_

*(,!%&

@)
*)

÷
(÷

@(

@)
*)

÷
!)

÷
)*

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] @@ cf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f 
;efaf6 ;+:yfks z]o/wgL ;d"x cGtu{t 
lglj{/f]w lgjf{lrt .
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qm=;+
;~rfnsx¿sf] gfd 

tyf 7]ufgf
k|ltlglwTj ePsf] ;d"x z]o/ ;+Vof

lg
o'l

Q
m e

Ps
f] l

dl
t

Kfb
 t

yf
 u

f]k
lg

ot
fs

f] 
z

ky
 ln

Ps
f] l

dl
t

;~rfns lgo'lQmsf] t/Lsf -ljlw_

@

8f= afa'sfhL yfkf
-;+:yfut_

;+:yfks
-s[lif ljsf; a}+s ln=, 
/fdzfxky, sf7df8f}F_

%^,!%,#&(

@)
*)

÷
(÷

@(

@)
*)

÷
!)

÷
)*

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] @@ cf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f 
;efaf6 ;+:yfks z]o/wgL ;d"x cGtu{t 
lglj{/f]w lgjf{lrt .

#
>L bLk]Gb|/fh sfˆn]
-;+:yfut_

;+:yfks
-g]kfn a}+s ln=, wd{ky, 

sf7df8f}F_

!%,&%,*)!

@)
*@

÷
#÷

@!

@)
*@

÷
#÷

@! ljQLo ;+:yfsf] @@ cf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f 
;efaf6 ;+:yfks z]o/wgL ;d"x cGtu{t 
lgjf{lrt 
;+:yfks z]o/wgL a}+saf6  dgf]lgt .

$
>L ;'vb]j Gof}kfg]
-;+:yfut_

;+:yfks
-;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 

;+:yf ln=, cfgGbjg, 
?kGb]xL_

@,$),@$&

@)
*)

÷
(÷

@(

@)
*)

÷
!)

÷
)*

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] @@ cf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f 
;efaf6 ;+:yfks z]o/wgL ;d"x cGtu{t 
lglj{/f]w lgjf{lrt .

% >L pd]z nD;fn

;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL 
-Eofln OGe]i6 P08 
Dofg]hd]06 ;le{;]h 
k|f=ln=, sf7df8f}F_ 

!*,!@^
@)

*)
÷

(÷
@(

@)
*)

÷
!)

÷
)*

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] @@ cf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f 
;efaf6 ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL ;d"x cGtu{t 
lglj{/f]w lgjf{lrt .

^ >L led k|;fb kGt ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL @%(

@)
*)

÷
(÷

@(

@)
*)

÷
!)

÷
)*

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] @@ cf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f 
;efaf6 ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL ;d"x cGtu{t 
lglj{/f]w lgjf{lrt .

& >L cf:yf e§ :jtGq 

@)
*!

÷
!÷

#)

@)
*!

÷
@÷

@) ldlt @)*!÷!÷@* df a;]sf] ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] #^ cf}F a}7ssf] lg0f{ofg';f/ 
lgo'Qm .

-3_	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s M

	 o; cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ldlt @)*!÷$÷!  b]lv ldlt @)*@÷#÷#@  ;Dd @)  j6f a}7s 
a;]sf] 5 .

	 s'g} ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s cfjZos u0fk'/s ;+Vof gk'uL :ylut ePsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 5}g .

	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f M

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf ;~rfns jf j}slNks ;~rfns pkl:yt eP–gePsf] 
-gePsf] cj:yfdf a}7ssf] ldlt ;lxt sf/0f v'nfpg]_ M

j}slNks ;~rfns 
gePsf] .  

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt ;~rfnsx¿, 5nkmn ePsf] ljifo / tT;DaGwdf 
ePsf] lg0f{osf] ljj/0f -dfO{Go"6_ sf] 5'§} clen]v /fv] g/fv]sf] M

/fv]sf] .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf lgwf{/0f ;DaGwdf a;]sf] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ldlt M @)&(÷!@÷!)

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lt a}7s eQf ?= &,%))÷–

cf=j=sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf vr{ ?= !),)%,))).– 
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@= 	 ;~rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwL tyf cGo ljj/0f M

;~rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwdf ;DalGwt ;+:yfsf] cfrf/ ;+lxtf eP÷gePsf] ePsf] .
Psf3/ kl/jf/sf] Ps eGbf a9L ;~rfns eP ;f] ;DaGwL ljj/0f M gePsf] .
;~rfnsx¿ Jfflif{s ?kdf l;sfO{ tyf k'g/tfhuL sfo{qmd ;DaGwL ljj/0f M
qm= 
;+=

ljifo ldlt
;xefuL 

;~rfnssf] ;+Vof
Tfflnd ;~rfng

ePsf] :yfg

!
Director's Refresher 
Course (NBI)

@)*@÷@÷(
-23 May, 2025)

^ Hilton Hotel, sf7df8f}F .

k|To]s ;~rfnsn] cfkm" ;~rfnssf] kbdf lgo'Qm jf dgf]gog ePsf] kGw| lbgleq b]xfosf 
s'/fsf] lnlvt hfgsf/L u/fPsf]÷gu/fPsf] / gu/fPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M
	;+:yf;Fu lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] s'g} lsl;dsf] s/f/ u/]sf] jf 

ug{ nfu]sf] eP ;f] sf] ljj/0f,
	 lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] ;+:yf jf ;f] ;+:yfsf] d'Vo jf ;xfos 

sDkgLdf lnPsf] z]o/ jf l8a]Gr/sf] ljj/0f,
	 lgh cGo s'g} ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf ;~rfns /x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f,
	 lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:o ;+:yfdf kbflwsf/L jf sd{rf/Lsf] x}l;otdf sfd 

ul//x]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f .

hfgsf/L u/fPsf] .

;~rfnsn] p:t} k|s[ltsf] p2]Zo ePsf] ;"lrs[t ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns, tnaL kbflwsf/L, sfo{sf/L 
k|d'v jf sd{rf/L eO{ sfo{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M

pQm sfo{ gu/]sf] .

;~rfnsx¿nfO{ lgodg lgsfo tyf cGo lgsfox¿af6 s'g} sf/jfxL ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] 
ljj/0fM

gePsf] .

#=  ;+:yfsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_	 hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M u7g ePsf] . 

-v_	 hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt ;DaGwL hfgsf/L M 

-c_	 ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof M  % k6s

-cf_	 ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M 

•	 ;+:yfsf] hf]lvd klxrfg tyf Joj:yfkg k|0ffnLsf] kof{Kttf / pko'Qmtf ;DaGwdf ;~rfns 
;ldltnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpg] / pko'Qm k|0ffnLsf] ljsf;df nflu ;'emfj lbg], 

•	 Jofj;flos ultljlwdf lglxt hf]lvdsf] :t/, hf]lvd axg Ifdtf, hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu 
ljsf; u/]sf] /0fgLlt, gLltut Joj:yf / dfu{bz{gsf] lgoldtsf] lgoldt k'g/fjnf]sg u/L ;f]sf] 
kof{Kttf af/] hfgsf/L u/fpg],

•	 Joj:yfkgaf6 lgoldt ?kdf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg k|ltj]bg lnO{ hf]lvdsf] cfFsng, d"Nof+sg, lgoGq0f 
tyf cg'udgaf/] 5nkmn ug]{ / ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ;'emfj lbg] .

-u_ 	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf] M ePsf] . 

-3_ 	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M n]vfk/LIf0f 
;ldltn] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;DaGwL sfo{ ug]{ Joj:yf /x]sf]] .

-ª_ 	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

-c_	 ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox¿sf] gfd tyf kb_ M a'Fbf g+= ^ -v_ adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 . 

-cf_	 ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof M cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df !! k6s n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7s a;]sf] 5 . 

-O_	 ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M o; ;ldltn]] sDkgLsf] n]vf tyf ljQLo ljj/0fx¿sf] k'g/fjnf]sg 
ug]{ / To:tf ljj/0fx¿df plNnlvt tYosf] ;Totf olsg ug]{, sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s ljQLo lgoGq0f k|0ffnL 
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tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg k|0ffnLsf] k'g/fjnf]sg nufot sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL sfo{sf] 
;'kl/j]If0f tyf k'g/fjnf]sg ug]{ sfo{ u/]sf] 5 .

-r_	 cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL eP÷gePsf] M ePsf] .

$= 	 ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfx ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_ 	;+:yfn] ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfxsf] ljj/0f M  

ljifo dfWod ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ldlt 

Jfflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf 
cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs
gofF klqsf /fli6«o b}lgs

@)*!÷)(÷)@ 
@)*!÷)(÷)*

ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf xfn gePsf] –
jflif{s k|ltj]bg jflif{s k|ltj]bg lstfa –

q}dfl;s k|ltj]bg

gofF klqsf /fli6«o b}lgs –k|yd
gofF klqsf /fli6«o b}lgs –bf]>f]
g]kfn ;dfrf/kq /fli6«o b}lgs –t]>f]
gofF klqsf /fli6«o b}lgs –rf}yf]

@)*!÷&÷@(
@)*!÷!)÷@$
@)*@÷!÷@(
@)*@÷$÷#)

lwtf]kqsf] d"Nodf k|efj kfg]{ 
d"No ;+j]bgzLn ;"rgf

cf=j= @)*)÷*! sf] k|:tfljt nfef+z ;DaGwdf @)*!÷*÷!&
lwtf]kq ;"rLs/0f ul/Psf] ;DaGwdf @)*!÷!@÷& 
;~rfns lgo'QmL ul/Psf] af/]
;~rfns lgo'QmL ul/Psf] af/]

@)*@÷#÷!!
@)*@÷$÷!#

cGo gePsf] gePsf] 

-v_ 	;"rgf ;fj{hlgs gu/]sf] jf cGo sf/0fn] lwtf]kq af]8{ tyf cGo lgsfoaf6 sf/jfxLdf k/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwL 
hfgsf/L M sf/afxLdf k/]sf] 5}g . 

-u_ 	 kl5Nnf] jflif{s tyf ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M @)*!÷(÷@# 

%= 	 ;+:yfut ;+/rgf / sd{rf/L ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_	 sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ;+/rgf, kbk"lt{, j[lQ ljsf;, tflnd, tna, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf, xflh/ / labf, cfrf/;+lxtf 
nufotsf s'/fx¿ ;d]l6Psf] sd{rf/L ;]jf zt{ ljlgodfjnL÷Joj:yf eP gePsf] M Joj:yf ePsf] 5 . 

-v_ 	;+fu7lgs ;+/rgf ;+nUg ug]{ M o;};fy /x]sf] @$cf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷*@ df ;+nUg 5 . 

-u_ 	 pRr Joj:yfkg txsf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] gfd, z}lIfs of]Uotf tyf cg'ej ;DaGwL ljj/0fM 

	 o;};fy ;+nUg @$  cf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷*@ df pNn]v 5 .

-3_ 	 sd{rf/L ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f M  

;+/rgf cg';f/ sd{rf/L kbk"tL{ ug]{ u/]÷gu/]sf] M u/]sf] .
gofF sd{rf/Lx¿sf] kbk"lt{ ubf{ ckgfPsf] k|s[of M lnlvt, df}lvs, cGt/jftf{
Joj:yfkg :t/sf sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vof M !) 
s'n sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vof M !## -@)*@ c;f/ d;fGtsf]_ 
sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ;S;];g Knfg eP÷gePsf] M gePsf] 
cf=j= sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ lbOPsf] tflnd ;+Vof tyf 
;lDdlnt sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vof M

Tfflnd ;+Vof–##, ;lDdlnt sd{rf/L ;+Vof–@*# 
-ljleGg tflnddf u/L_ 

cf=j=sf] sd{rf/L tflnd vr{ ?= 60,86,441.92 
s'n vr{df sd{rf/L vr{sf] k|ltzt M 10.25Ü 
s'n sd{rf/L vr{df sd{rf/L tflnd vr{sf] k|ltztM 3.62Ü
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^=	 ;+:yfsf] n]vf tyf n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_	 n]vf;DaGwL ljj/0f 

;+:yfsf] kl5Nnf] cf=j= sf] ljQLo ljj/0f NFRS cg';f/ 
tof/ u/]÷gu/]sf], gu/]sf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M

cf=j= @)*!÷*@  sf] ljQLo ljj/0f NFRS cg';f/ 
tof/ ul/;lsPsf] 5 . 

;~rfns ;ldltaf6 kl5Nnf] ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] 
ldlt M

@)*@÷&÷@^ 

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg u/]sf] ldlt M 

@)*!÷&÷@( k|yd
@)*!÷!)÷@$ bf]>f]
@)*@÷!÷@( t]>f]
@)*@÷$÷#) rf}yf]

clGtd n]vfkl/If0f ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M @)*@÷^÷% 

;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldlt
cf=j= @)*)÷*!  sf] ljQLo ljj/0f ldlt 
@)*!÷(÷@#  df :jLs[t ePsf]

;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f M
-c_	 cfGtl/s ?kdf n]vf k/LIf0f ug]{ ul/Psf] jf afXo   

lj1 lgo'Qm ug]{ ul/Psf], 
-cf_	 afXo lj1 lgo'Qm ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f,
-O_	 cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f slt cjlwsf] ug]{ ul/Psf] 

-q}dfl;s, rf}dfl;s jf cw{jflif{s_

-c_	 cf=j= @)*!÷*@  df cfGtl/s ?kdf 
n]vfk/LIf0f ljefuaf6 ul/Psf] .

-cf_	 gePsf] .   
-O_	 cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f q}dfl;s cjlwsf] ug]{ 

ul/Psf] .

-v_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M -cf=j= @)*!÷*@_

;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox¿sf] gfd, kb tyf of]Uotf M

gfd kb of]Uotf

>L pd]z nD;fn ;+of]hs Pd=aL=P;=

>L led k|;fb kGt ;b:o Pd=lkmn=-cy{zf:q_

>L s[i0f s'df/L zdf{ ;b:o ;lrj Pd=aL=P;=

n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt a}7s ljj/0f M cf=j= @)*!÷*@

qm= 
;+=

a}7s a;]sf] 
ldlt

;ldlt 
kbflwsf/L 

;Vof

pkl:yt 
;b:o 
;+Vof

k|lt a}7s eQf ?=
n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] cfˆgf] sfd 
sf/afxLsf] k|ltj]bg ;~rfns 

;ldltdf k]z u/]sf] ldlt
! @)*!÷$÷@$ # #

;~rfnssf] tkm{af6 
k|ltlglwTj ug]{ 

;~rfnsx¿sf] k|lt a}7s 
eQf b/ ?= &,%))÷– / 

;b:o ;lrjsf] k|lt a}7s 
eQf b/ ?= @,)))÷–

@ @)*!÷%÷!^ @ @ @)*!÷^÷*
# @)*!÷&÷( # #
$ @)*!÷&÷@^ # #
% @)*!÷&÷@* # #
^ @)*!÷*÷!) # # @)*!÷*÷!@
& @)*!÷(÷@ # #
* @)*!÷!!÷* @ @
( @)*!÷!@÷& # # @)*!÷!@÷!)
!) @)*@÷!÷% # # @)*@÷!÷!%
!! @)*@÷@÷@% # # @)*@÷@÷@^
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&= 	 cGo ljj/0f 

;+:yfn] ;~rfns tyf lghsf] Psf3/sf kl/jf/sf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] JolQm, a}Í tyf ljQLo 
;+:yfaf6 C0f jf ;fk6L jf cGo s'g} ?kdf /sd lnP÷glnPsf]

glnPsf] 

k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd sDkgLsf] ;~rfns, z]o/wgL, sd{rf/L, ;Nnfsf/, k/fdz{bftfsf] x}l;otdf 
kfpg] ;'ljwf jf nfe afx]s ;"rLs[t ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] s'g} JolQm, kmd{, sDkgL, 
sd{rf/L, ;Nnfxsf/ jf k/fdz{bftfn] ;+:yfsf] s'g} ;DklQ s'g} lsl;dn] ef]urng u/]÷gu/]sf]

gu/]sf] 

lgodsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{ tf]s]sf] zt{x¿sf] kfngf eP÷gePsf] ePsf] 

lgodsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg lg/LIf0f jf ;'k/Lj]If0f ubf{ +;+:yfnfO{ lbOPsf] lgb]{zg kfngf 
eP÷gePsf]

ePsf] 

;+:yf jf ;~rfns lj?¢ cbfntdf s'g} d'2f rln/x]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f grn]sf] .

kl/kfng clws[tsf] gfd	 M >L clgn s[i0f hf]zL

kb		  M jl/i7 k|aGws÷sDkgL ;lrj

ldlt 		 M  

;+:yfsf] 5fk	 M
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;"rgfsf] xs ;DaGwL P]g, @)^$ sf] bkmf % sf] pkbkmf -#_ / ;"rgfsf] xs ;DaGwL lgodfjnL, 
@)^% sf] lgod # adf]lhdsf] ;fj{hlgs ul/Psf] ljj/0f

!= 	 ;"rgfsf] xs ;DaGwL P]g, @)^$ sf] bkmf % sf] pkbkmf -#_ cg';f/sf] ljj/0f M
-s_ 	 lgsfosf] :j?k / k|s[lt M 
	 ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= sDkgL P]g, @)^# adf]lhd :yfkgf eO{ a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf 

;DaGwL P]g, @)&#  adf]lhd g]kfn /fi6« a+}saf6 …3Ú ju{sf] yf]s n3'shf{ k|bfos n3'ljQ ;+:yf xf] .
-v_ 	 lgsfosf] sfd, st{Jo / clwsf/ M
	 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g @)&#, sDkgL P]g @)^#, g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 Ohfhtkq k|fKt …3Ú ju{sf] 

n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿nfO{ hf/L ul/Psf] lgb{]zgdf Joj:yf eP adf]lhdsf] sfd, st{Jo / clwsf/ /x]sf] 5 .
-u_	 lgsfodf /xg] sd{rf/L ;+Vof / sfo{ ljj/0f M
	 @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtsf] ljj/0f cg';f/ o; n3'ljQ ;+:yfsf] sfo{/t s'n sd{rf/L ;+Vof !@*/x]sf] / sfo{ ljj/0f 

o; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfn] tf]s] cg';f/ /x]sf] . 
-3_ 	 lgsfoaf6 k|bfg ul/g] ;]jf M
	 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf P]g @)&# adf]lhd …3Ú ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt yf]s n3'shf{ k|bfos ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ?kdf 

lbg ;Sg] ;Dk"0f{ ;]jfx¿ .
-ª_ 	 ;]jf k|bfg ug{] lgsfosf] zfvf / lhDd]jf/ clwsf/L M
	 ;]jf k|bfg ug]{ lgsfosf] zfvf / lhDd]jf/ clwsf/Lx¿sf] ljj/0f o; ;+:yfsf] j]a;fO{6 www.skbbl.com.np 

df pknAw 5 .
-r_ 	 ;]jf k|fKt ug{ nfUg] b:t'/ / cjlw M
	 o; n3'ljQ ;+:yfaf6 k|jfx ul/g] yf]s shf{ ;]jfsf] Aofhb/ k|To]s q}dfl;s?kdf ;"rgf kf6L / j]a;fO6df 

k|sfzg u/] cg';f/ x'g]5 . 
-5_ 	 lg0f{o ug{] k|s[of / clwsf/L M
	 n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfn] k|bfg ug{] ;]jfsf ;DaGwdf k|rlnt P]g, lgod, gLlt, lgb{]lzsf tyf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 

lg0f{ox¿sf] clwgdf /xL tf]lsPsf sfo{x¿ ;Dkfbg ug{sf lglDt tf]lsPsf clwsf/Lx¿n] lg0f{o ug{ ;Sg] 
Joj:yf ldnfOPsf] 5 . ;~rfns ;ldltsf] lg0f{ox¿sf] clwgdf /xL Joj:yfksLo k|d'vsf] ?kdf n3'ljQ 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;du| sfo{ ;~rfng ug{sf nflu k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ lhDd]jf/L k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .

-h_ 	 lg0f{o pk/ ph'/L ;'Gg] clwsf/L M
	 lg0f{o pk/ ph'/L ;'Ggsf nflu gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ u'gf;f] ;'Gg] clwsf/Lsf] ?kdf /xg] Joj:yf 

ul/Psf] 5 . lghsf] 7]ufgf o; k|sf/ /x]sf] 5 M
	 8f= gj/fh l;Dv8f, gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t
      ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, aa/dxn, sf7df8f}F .
	 kmf]g g+= M )!–%#@)(!#÷%()(^!@÷$!!!*(%, Od]n navraj.simkhada@skbbl.com.np
-em_	 ;Dkfbg u/]sf] sfdsf] ljj/0f M
	 a+}s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g, @)&# adf]lhd …3Ú ju{sf] yf]s n3'shf{ k|bfos ljQLo ;+:yfn] ug{ ;Sg] 

;Dk"0f{ sf/f]af/x¿ ;Dkfbg eO{/x]sf] 5 . 
-`_ 	 ;"rgf clwsf/L / k|d'vsf] gfd / kb M

-!_	 u|fxsx¿nfO{ cfjZos ;"rgf k|bfg ug{ tkl;n adf]lhdsf clwsf/LnfO{ ;"rgf clwsf/L tf]lsPsf] 5 M
	 >L emn]Gb| e§/fO{, gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t
	 ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, aa/dxn, sf7df8f}F
	 kmf]g g+ M )!–%#@)(!#÷%()(^!@÷$!!!*(%, Od]n jhalendra.bhattarai@skbbl.com.np
-@_	 o; n3'ljQ ;+:yfsf] k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] gfd / 7]ufgf o; k|sf/ /x]sf] 5 M–
	 >L k[y axfb'/ yfkf, sf=d'= k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t
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	 ;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, aa/dxn sf7df8f‘}         
	 kmf]g g+= M )!–%#@)(!#÷%()(^!@÷$!!!*(%,  Od]n prith.thapa@skbbl.com.np

6_ 	 P]g, lgod, ljlgod jf lgb{]lzsfsf] ;"rL M
	 n3'ljQ ;+:yfn] k|rlnt a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g @)&#, g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 …3Ú ju{sf n3'ljQ ljQLo 

;+:yfnfO{ hf/L ePsf] lgb]{zg, @)&( / sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf cltl/Qm ;Dk"0f{ P]g, lgod, ljlgod jf lgb{]lzsfx¿ 
kfngf ug'{kg{] x'G5 eg] n3'ljQ ;+:yf ;~rfngsf nflu cfjZos kg]{ lgodfjnL, ljlgodfjnL, sfo{ljlw cflb 
agfO{ nfu' ul/Psf] 5 .

-7_ 	 cfDbfgL, vr{ tyf cfly{s sf/f]af/ ;DaGwL cBfjlws ljj/0fx¿ M
	 n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfDbfgL, vr{ tyf cfly{s sf/f]af/ ;DaGwL ;Dk"0f{ ljQLo ljj/0fx¿ q}dfl;s ?kdf 

/fli6«o :t/sf] kqklqsfdf k|sflzt ul/b} cfPsf] 5 eg] o; n3'ljQ ;+:yfsf] j]a;fO{6 www.skbbl.com.np df 
;d]t /flvFb} cfPsf] 5 .

-8_	 tf]lsP adf]lhdsf cGo ljj/0f M
	 lgodfg';f/ tf]lsP adf]lhdsf] cGo ljj/0f;d]t /fli6«o:t/sf] b}lgs klqsfx¿df k|sfzg ug'{sf ;fy}  o; ljQLo 

;+:yfsf] j]a;fO{6 M www.skbbl.com.np  df ;d]t /fVg] ul/Psf] 5 .
@= 	 ;"rgfsf] xs ;DaGwL lgodfjnL, @)^% sf] lgod # adf]lhdsf] ljj/0f b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 M

-s_ 	cl3Nnf] cfly{s jif{df ;fj{hlgs lgsfon] s'g} sfo{qmd jf cfof]hgf ;~rfng u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] jj/0f M
	 o; n3'ljQ ;+:yfn] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= tyf ;dfg k|s[ltsf cGo ;+:yfx¿ dfkm{t ljkGg, ul/a 

Pjd\ ;fgf ls;fgx¿sf] Ifdtf clej[l4 u/L ljQLo kx'Fr a9fP/ pgLx¿sf] cfly{s tyf ;fdflhs ljsf; ;Dej 
t'Nofpg yf]s shf{ ;]jfsf cltl/Qm ljleGg sfo{qmdx¿ ;~rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 5 .  

-v_	 ;fj{hlgs lgsfosf] j]a;fO6 eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M
	 o; ;+:yfsf] j]a;fO{6 M www.skbbl.com.np /x]sf] 5 . 
-v!_	n3'ljQ ;+:yfn] k|fKt u/]sf] j}b]lzs ;xfotf, C0f, cg'bfg Pjd\ k|fljlws ;xof]u / ;Demf}tf ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

n3'ljQ ;+:yfn] k|fKt u/]sf] j}b]lzs ;xfotf, C0f, cg'bfg Pjd\ k|fljlws ;xof]u / ;Demf}tf ;DaGwL ljj/0fx¿ 
;d]6L tof/ kfl/Psf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgx¿ / q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0fx¿df k|sfzg ul/Psf] 5 . pQm ljj/0fx¿ 
lgodg lgsfosf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ tf]lsPsf] ;dodf /fli6«o:t/sf] b}lgs kqklqsfdf k|sfzg ug]{, k':tssf ?kdf 
k|sfzg u/L ;fwf/0f ;ef / cfjZostf cg';f/ ljt/0f ug]{ / n3'ljQ ;+:yfsf] j]a;fO6df lgoldt?kdf k|sfzg 
ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 .

-v@_	;fj{hlgs lgsfon] ;~rfng u/]sf sfo{qmd / ;f]sf] k|ltj]bg M 
	 o; ;+:yfn] ;~rfng u/]sf sfo{qmdx¿sf] ljj/0f ljQLo ;+:yfsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf pknAw 5 . ;fy} n3'ljQ 

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ljQLo ljj/0fx¿ q}dfl;s ?kdf ljleGg /fli6«o :t/sf] kqklqsfdf k|sflzt u/L ;+:yfsf] 
j]a;fO6df ;d]t lgoldt?kdf k|sfzg ul/G5 . jflif{s k|ltj]bg nufot cGo ;Dk"0f{ ljj/0fx¿ n3'ljQ ;+:yfsf] 
j]a;fO{6 M www.skbbl.com.np af6 8fpgnf]8 ug{ jf k|fKt ug{ ;lsG5 . 

-v#_	;fj{hlgs lgsfon] juL{s/0f tyf ;+/If0f u/]sf] ;"rgfsf] gfdfjnL / To:tf] ;"rgf ;+/If0f ug{ tf]lsPsf] 
;dofjlw M n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgodfg';f/ .

-v$_	;fj{hlgs lgsfodf k/]sf ;"rgf dfu;DaGwL lgj]bg / ;f]pk/ ;"rgf lbO{Psf] ljifo M gePsf] .
-u_	 ;fj{hlgs lgsfosf] ;"rgfx¿ cGoq k|sfzg ePsf] jf x'g] ePsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 

-!_	 q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0fx¿ M s'g} Ps /fli6«o:t/sf] b}lgs kqklqsfdf q}dfl;s?kdf k|sfzg ul/G5 . ;fy}, 
n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] j]a;fO6df ;d]t lgoldt ?kdf k|sfzg ul/G5 .

-@_	 jflif{s k|ult k|ltj]bg M jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf / n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] a]a;fO6df, sfof{no ;dodf 
n3'ljQ ;+:yfaf6 k|fKt ;d]t ug{ ;lsG5 .

-#_ 	cGo ;"rgfx¿ M n3'ljQ ;+:yfsf] d'vkq …;fgf ls;fgÚ, ;do ;dodf ul/g] k|sfzgx¿ / j]a;fO6df x]g{ 
;lsG5 .

ldlt M @)*@÷)^÷#!
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;+:yfks z]o/wgL  
;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=x¿sf]  

z]o/ :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f
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;+:yfks z]o/wgL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=x¿sf] 
z]o/ :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f

-@)*@ ;fn d+l;/ d;fGtsf] ljj/0f cg';f/_

qm=;+= cfj4tf 
gDa/

z]/wgL 
gDa/

l8Dof6 gDa/÷  
z]/wgL gDa/ ;+:yfsf] gfd

7]ufgf z]o/ 
;ª\\VoflhNnf kflnsf j8f

zfvf sfof{no latf{df]8 hDdf  663,617 

1 10058 4 1301370000784750 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= k[YjLgu/ emfkf e›k'/ gu/kflnsf 1  75,354 

2 10205 5 1301120000971829 ;fgf ls;fg  ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= >LcGt' Onfd ;"of]{bo gu/kflnsf 4  36,580 

3 10207 25 1301650000010995 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= kfFruf5L emfkf lzj;tfIfL gu/kflnsf 4  38,599 

4 10197 26 1301370000722368 h'/f]kfgL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emfkf uf}/fbx gu/kflnsf 7  50,370 

5 10130 27 1301370000780441 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= afx'g8fFuL emfkf d]rLgu/ gu/kflnsf 4  45,961 

6 10131 28 1301060001114449 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= v'bgfjf/L emfkf ch{‘gwf/f gu/kflnsf 3  35,468 

7 10028 29 1301240000123201 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 3}nf8'Aaf emfkf sGsfO{ gu/kflnsf 7  10,564 

8 10199 30 1301370000584651 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ky/Lof emfkf srgsjn ufpFkflnsf 2  5,167 

9 10239 31 1301650000011017 ;fgf ls;fg  ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ;dfnj'Ë Onfd ;"of]{bo gu/kflnsf 5  30,973 

10 32 ;fgf ls;fg  ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= hLtk'/ Onfd  22,515 

11 10155 111 1301370000722372 >L dxf/flgemf]8f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln emfkf uf}/fbx gu/kflnsf 5  88,719 

12 10129 118 1301370000771665 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= jfn''jf8L emfkf srgsjn ufpFkflnsf 7  26,245 

13 10200 119 1301370000588846 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= w/dk'/ emfkf lzj;tfIfL gu/kflnsf 2  40,136 

14 10040 120 1301370000766695 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln dxfef/f emfkf uf}l/u~h ufpFkflnsf 1  34,306 

15 10206 147 1301370000767705 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= dx]zk'/ emfkf e›k'/ gu/kflnsf 4  21,210 

16 10039 161 1301060000446434 >L j}u'Gw'/f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= emfkf uf}/fbx gu/kflnsf 9  29,986 

17 10227 219 1301370000780659 >L ;fgf ls;fg dlxnf s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yf ln 
sf]xj/f emfkf uf}/fbx gu/kflnsf 5  10,106 

18 10218 220 1301370000765989 uf}/fbx ;fgf ls;fg dlxnf  ;xsf/L ;+:Yf ln 
uf}/fbx emfkf uf}/fbx gu/kflnsf 2  11,678 

19 10497 1301370007541480 6f3g8'Aaf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emfkf emfkmf ufpFkflnsf 3  1,773 

20 10764 1301260002582189 >L l;nf}6L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= Onfd lkmlbd gu/kflnsf 3  887 

21 10591 1301370007525671 b]jfg5fk ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
O/f}6f/ Onfd /f]ª ufpFkflnsf 5  887 

22 10900 1301370007526301 hubDaf ;fgf ls;fg dlxnf s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= Onfd O{nfd gu/kflnsf 5  2,453 

23 10680 1301120004957951 sGofd ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= Onfd ;"of]{bo gu/kflnsf 7  1,133 

24 10516 1301120004956732 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= kz'kltgu/ Onfd ;"of]{bo gu/kflnsf 2  1,773 

25 10531 1301370007505055 hfu[lt ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
uf]nwfk emfkf xNbLaf/L ufpFkflnsf 3  887 

26 10590 1301060003233776 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=sf]Na'ª Onfd /f]ª ufpFkflnsf 3  1,773 

27 10268 1301370007541495 ;fgf ls;fg dlxnf s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
bfgfjf/L Onfd dfO{ gu/kflnsf 4  1,773 

28 10269 1301720001227735 r'nfr'nL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf Onfd r'nfr'nL ufpFkflnsf 2  886 

29 10513 1301370007525686 rsrsL  ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emfkf afx|bzL ufpFkflnsf 4  3,773 

30 10568 1301370007527250 wfOhg ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emfkf d]rLgu/ gu/kflnsf 11  887 

31 10444 1301370007525200 uf}/Lu+h ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emfkf uf}l/u~h ufpFkflnsf 3  3,104 

32 10381 1301370007526388 lxd lzv/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=, 
zflGtgu/ emfkf a'4zflGt ufpFkflnsf 5  887 

33 10474 1301370007540322 HofdL/u9L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emfkf d]rLgu/ gu/kflnsf 15  887 

34 10445 1301370007535542 vh'/ufF5L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emfkf uf}l/u~h ufpFkflnsf 6  887 

35 10407 1301370007525215 nvgk'/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emfkf sdn ufpFkflnsf 6  2,248 

36 10592 1301370000768386 xlNbaf/L ;fgf ls;fg ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln= emkf xNbLaf/L ufpFkflnsf 3  2,351 
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qm=;+= cfj4tf 
gDa/

z]/wgL 
gDa/

l8Dof6 gDa/÷  
z]/wgL gDa/ ;+:yfsf] gfd

7]ufgf z]o/ 
;ª\\VoflhNnf kflnsf j8f

37 10514 1301370007830264 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= u/fdgL emfkf latf{df]8 gu/kflnsf 7  1,000 

38 10496 1301370007525745 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=z/0ffdlt emkf emfkf ufpFkflnsf 6  1,886 

39 10442 1301370007526578 zlgZr/] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emkf ch'{gwf/f gu/kflnsf 8  2,886 

40 10476 1301370007543420 lzju~h ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emkf lzj;tfIfL ufpFkflnsf 7  1,773 

41 10475 1301370007526428 >L b'jfu9L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emkf d]rLgu/ gu/kflnsf 14  8,546 

42 10478 1301370007525291 >L sf]/f]jf/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emkf uf}l/uGh ufpFkflnsf 2  1,887 

43 10427 1301370007824949 >L gf}nf] eljZo ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= emkf srgsjn ufpFkflnsf 5  680 

44 10503 1301570001102612 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= a'wjf/] emfkf a'4zflGt ufpFkflnsf 4  1,773 

zfvf sfof{no O6x/L hDdf  1,011,643 

45 10030 6 1301060000928183 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ;'Gb/k'/ df]/+u ;'Gb/x/}+rf gu/kflnsf 6 125,085 

46 10193 7 1301580000164954 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= w/fg ;'g;/L w/fg pkdxfgu/kflnsf 3  28,251 

47 10074 33 1301100000567238 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= n]6fË df]/+u n]6fª gu/kflnsf 4 105,522 

48 10034 34 1301090000742007 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= d[uf}lnof df]/+u ;'Gb/x/}+rf gu/kflnsf 11  37,461 

49 10364 35 1301520000044843 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= dw]nL ;'g;/L u9L ufpFkflnsf 1  32,106 

50 10081 36 1301580000176797 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= dw'jg ;'g;/L a/fx gu/kflnsf 11  28,185 

51 10523 94 1301370000763911 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= emf]/xf6 df]/+u u|fdyfg ufpFkflnsf 2  23,735 

52 10048 95 1301580000177275 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= alaofljtf{ df]/+u /+u]nL gu/kflnsf 1  84,008 

53 10574 96 1301370000765750 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= dw'dNnf df]/+u ldSnfh'Ë ufpFkflnsf 9  9,560 

54 10073 97 1301580000174289 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ksnL ;'g;/L O{6x/L pkdxfgu/kflnsf 17  71,409 

55 10295 98 1301080000230363 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= l56fxf ;'g;/L u9L ufpFkflnsf 3  38,769 

56 10101 124 1301060000181124 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= dx]Gb|gu/ ;'g;/L a/fx gu/kflnsf 6  86,336 

57 10045 125 1301370000764552 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= aSnf}/L ;'g;/L /fdw'gL gu/kflnsf 7  30,105 

58 10046 126 1301220000280084 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
df]tLk'/ df]/+u u|fdyfg ufpFkflnsf 6  52,076 

59 10240 127 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= a}hgfyk'/ df]/+u la/f6gu/ dxfgu/kflnsf 19  32,769 

60 10054 160 1301580000176778 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= kf6L df]/+u s]/faf/L ufpFkflnsf 1  30,346 

61 10919 170 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= nvGt/L df]/+u u|fdyfg ufpFkflnsf 1  38,949 

62 10033 182 1301580000176860 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= b'nf/L df]/+u ;'Gb/x/}+rf gu/kflnsf 7  59,240 

63 10150 183 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= dWoxiff{xL ;'g;/L b]jfguGh ufpFkflnsf 1  31,737 

64 10032 184 1301580000176117 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= a]njf/L df]/+u a]naf/L gu/kflnsf 1  42,783 

65 10369 1301100001955597 pT;fxL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= df]/ª
ky/L ;lgZr/] 
gu/kflnsf

1  269 

66 10566 1301120004955422 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, 8fFuLxf6 df]/ª a]naf/L gu/kflnsf 11  1,133 

67 10365 1301260002582569 l;+luof ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'g;/L /fdw'gL gu/kflnsf 3  269 

68 10870 1301370007503706 O{Zj/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, 
xf6vf]nf df]/ª lj/f6gu/ dxfgu/kflnsf 8  4,532 

69 10575 1301370007540113 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf lnld6]8, afo/jg df]/ª sfg]kf]v/L ufpFkflnsf 3  1,133 

70 10806 1301370007541592 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, 8folgof df]/ª ;'gjifL{ gu/kflnsf 9  269 

71 10219 1301370007541691 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, l;h'jf df]/ª /t'jfdfO{ gu/kflnsf 6  1,077 

72 10493 1301370007541706 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, hfFt] df]/ª n]6fª gu/kflnsf 8  269 

73 10623 1301370007541763 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, x;Gbx df]/ª
ky/L ;lgZr/] 
gu/kflnsf

6  269 

74 10993 1301370007541803 hAbL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'g;/L O6x/L pkdxfgu/kflnsf 19  269 

75 10518 1301370007541837 s]/faf/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln df]/ª s]/faf/L ufpFkflnsf 10  269 

76 10622 1301370007541894 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln cd/bx df]/ª ;'gjifL{ gu/kflnsf 2  269 

77 10375 1301370007542085 PsDaf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'g;/L O6x/L pkdxfgu/kflnsf 16  3,965 

78 10644 1301370007542091 ;an ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'g;/L ah'{ ufpFkflnsf 6  538 

79 10920 1301370007542237 ;Eo ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'g;/L Og?jf gu/kflnsf 6  269 
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80 10270 1301370007542752 ;[hgftds ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln df]/ª ldSnfh'Ë ufpFkflnsf 4  1,133 

81 10517 1301520001959262 b|a]zf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= df]/ª /+u]nL gu/kflnsf 9  269 

82 10494 1301260002582535 sf]dn ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'g;/L a/fx gu/kflnsf 5  2,266 

83 10662 1301680000095070 >L u'Kt]Zj/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln z+v'jf;ef kfFrvfkg gu/kflnsf 5  1,133 

84 10571 1301720001227317 hLjgHof]tL dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln= df]/ª pnf{af/L gu/kflnsf 9  269 

85 10585 1301370007541685 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, uf]ljGbk'/ df]/ª /t'jfdfO{ gu/kflnsf 5  269 

86 10805 1301370007540259 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=, 6s'jf df]/ª ;'gjifL{ gu/kflnsf 5  538 

87 10583 1301370007541588 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=, em'ls{of df]/ª /t'jfdfO{ gu/kflnsf 4  2,266 

88 10886 1301370007541573 dxfnIdL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= wgs'6f dxfnIfL gu/kflnsf 7  269 

zfvf sfof{no nfxfg cGtu{t  574,716 

89 10215 8 1301120000974492 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lji0f'k'/ l;/fxf lji0f'k'/ 1 105,434 

90 10214 37 1301240000124110 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= gs6L/fok'/ ;Kt/L kfFrvfkg–%, z+v'jf;ef 1  44,712 

91 10317 38 1301720000843261 ;fgf ls;fg  ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= x/Lx/k'/ ;Kt/L pn{faf/L–)(, df]cfª 3  10,345 

92 10391 39 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= asw'jf ;Kt/L
clUg;fO/ s[i0f ;j/g 
uf=kf=

6  13,722 

93 40 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= nIdLk'/ l;/fxf  18,478 

94 46 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= t]/xf}tf ;Kt/L  5,019 

95 114 ;fgf ls;fg  ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= a;fxf pbok'/  8,210 

96 10120 150 1301090000742064 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= 
;'Gb/k'/ pbok'/ rf}b08Lu9L gu/kflnsf 5  44,040 

97 10108 185 1301580000177562 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= k8/Lof l;/fxf nxfg gu/kflnsf 11  71,487 

98 10126 187 1301250000179476 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= cf]b|fxf ;Kt/L ;Ktsf]zL gu/kflnsf 8  26,518 

99 10107 192 1301100000567354 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= j:tLk'/ l;/fxf nxfg gu/kflnsf 13  66,210 

100 10114 203 1301120000974756 ;fgf ls;fg  ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= l;:jfj]NxL ;Kt/L v8s gu/kflnsf 1  39,265 

101 10116 221 1301240000119818 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= kftf] ;Kt/L 8fSg]Zj/L gu/kflnsf 5  36,563 

102 10104 222 1301120000952415 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= b]p/L pbok'/ lqo'uf gu/kflnsf 5  58,494 

103 10213 225 1301120000986658 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= dxgf}/ l;/fxf cg{df ufpFkflnsf 1  6,939 

104 10234 226 1301370000790422 afnf;'Gb/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= 
eujfgk'/ l;/fxf eujfgk'/ ufpFkflnsf 1  18,204 

105 10332 1301370007538733 dfF ejfgL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= nfxfg
nIdLk'/ ktf/L 
ufpFkflnsf

6  269 

106 10263 1301720001228711 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, c;gk'/ nfxfg uf]nahf/ gu/kflnsf 6  269 

107 10542 1301370007540624 /fdgu/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln nfxfg agfn lax'n ufpFkflnsf 5  269 

108 10384 1301520000137581 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=, 
/fdk'/ 7f]lS;nf nfxfg a]nsf gu/kflnsf 9  269 

zfvf sfof{no alb{af; cGtu{t 1,428,855 

109 10106 24 1301580000181980 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln=hAbL ;nf{xL nfnaGbL gu/kflnsf 4  58,930 

110 10103 41 1301090000763840 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;v'jf 
dx]Gb|gu/ wg'iff lIf/]Zj/gfy gu/kflnsf 5  94,073 

111 10105 42 1301090000740622 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= gs6flemh wg'iff ldlynf gu/kflnsf 2  151,019 

112 10118 43 1301580000164633 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lk8f/L ;nf{xL xl/k'/ gu/kflnsf 9  25,621 

113 10181 44 ;fgf ls;fg  ax\d\vL ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
O6xjf{s§L dxf]Q/L dg/f lz;jf gu/kflnsf 2  8,305 

114 10486 45 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= demf}/f 
lji0f'k'/ dxf]Q/L dl6xfgL gu/kflnsf 4  12,517 

115 10117 105 1301090000772114 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lbuDj/k'/ wg'iff lIf/]Zj/gfy gu/kflnsf 9  142,183 

116 10112 107 1301090000771505 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= zfGtLk'/ wg'iff a6]Zj/ ufpFkflnsf 5  117,607 

117 10160 128 1301600000052831 ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= aUbx ;nf{xL uf]8}6f gu/kflnsf 9  12,492 

118 10102 148 1301070000294851 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= /3'gfyk'/ wg'iff ;a}nf gu/kflnsf 12  59,166 
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119 10147 149 1301120000985124 ;fgf ls;fg  ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= aGrf}/L dxf]Q/L anjf gu/kflnsf 1  30,759 

120 10111 164 1301090000767218 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= xl/x/k'/ wg'iff lIf/]Zj/gfy gu/kflnsf 7  68,130 

121 10182 168 1301120000978955 ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= l;Uofxd8fg wg'iff sdnf gu/kflnsf 6  40,446 

122 10167 169 1301070000298670 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= wg'iff 
uf]ljGbk'/ wg'iff wg'iffwfd gu/kflnsf 2  63,688 

123 10195 186 1301390000157248 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= /fduf]kfnk'/ dxf]Q/L /fd uf]kfnk'/ gu/kflnsf 5  15,693 

124 10216 188 1301120000989017 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lu4f wg'iff lab]x gu/kflnsf 6  10,236 

125 10127 189 1301060000935741 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= z+s/k'/ ;nf{xL afudtL gu/kflnsf 10  69,477 

126 10113 190 1301090000765394 ;fgf ls;fg ax'p2]ZoLo ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= e+ufxf dxf]Q/L eFufxf gu/kflnsf 5  49,882 

127 10159 191 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= k'iknk'/ wg'iff ldlynf gu/kflnsf 4  7,138 

128 10109 193 1301580000164561 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= uf}/Lz+s/ ;nf{xL O{Zj/k'/ gu/kflnsf 14  28,322 

129 10192 194 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= xl/k'jf{ ;nf{xL xl/k'jf{ gu/kflnsf 5  18,303 

130 10148 195 1301090000760611 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= e/tk'/ wg'iff u0f]zdfg rf/gfy g=kf= 1  53,075 

131 10196 196 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= km'nufdf wg'iff gu/fOg gu/kflnsf 4  14,475 

132 10183 197 1301090000774563 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ldlyn]Zj/ wg'iff
ldlynf laxf/L 
gu/kflnsf

3  24,389 

133 10168 198 1301120000986662 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= wg'iffwfd wg'iff wg'iffwfd gu/kflnsf 3  42,458 

134 10110 199 1301580000164667 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= xl/k'/ ;nf{xL xl/k'/ gu/kflnsf 2  38,925 

135 10115 200 1301580000178737 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= elQmk'/ ;nf{xL O{Zj/k'/ gu/kflnsf 3  27,581 

136 10119 201 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= nIdLk'/ ;nf{xL xl/k'/ gu/kflnsf 6  37,238 

137 10121 202 ;fgf ls;fg  ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= lw/fk'/ dxf]Q/L dl6xfgL gu/kflnsf 2  32,321 

138 10164 223 1301600000052791 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= gf}s}njf ;nf{xL a|Xdk'/L ufpFkflnsf 5  24,389 

139 224 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= xnvf]/L dxf]Q/L  3,827 

140 10727 1301370007527153 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= wdf}/f dxf]Q/L anjf gu/kflnsf 11  1,699 

141 10655 1301370007531567 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
;'uflgsf; wg'iff x+;k'/ gu/kflnsf 5  2,492 

142 10415 1301370007530850 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=l;+UofxL wg'iff e+ufxf gu/kflnsf 2  1,133 

143 10702 1301370007525439 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, sflGtahf/ dxf]Q/L uf}zfnf gu/kflnsf 12  1,133 

144 10587 1301370007524251 dlxnf ;gf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln rSs/ wg'iff cf}/xL ufpFkflnsf 5  4,532 

145 10586 1301370007531421 dlxnf ;gf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, cf}/xL wg'iff cf}/xL ufpFkflnsf 4  4,532 

146 10724 1301370007527208 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= uf]8}tf ;n{fxL uf]8}tf gu/kflnsf 4  3,399 

147 10700 1301370007530052 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
nIdLlgofFahf/ ;n{fxL nIdLlgofF ufFpkflnsf 7  2,266 

148 10725 1301370007542980 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, l;;f}l6of ;n{fxL uf]8}tf gu/kflnsf 11  3,399 

149 10611 1301370007540041 ;jf]{bo ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
sf}8]gf ;n{fxL sf}8]gf ufpFkflnsf 3  4,532 

150 10741 1301370007532011 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, ;f]gfdfO{ wg'iff cf}/xL gu/kflnsf 6  1,133 

151 10488 1301370007539737 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, eml6ofxL wg'iff x+;k'/ gu/kflnsf 8  2,266 

152 10533 1301370007526369 dlxnf ;gf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, 
afnfafv/ wg'iff zxLbgu/ gu/kflnsf 1  2,266 

153 10532 1301370007528201 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
;tf]if/ wg'iff ;a}nf gu/kflnsf 9  2,266 

154 10654 1301370007537921 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= a3rf}8f wg'iff x;k'/ gu/kflnsf 2  1,133 

155 1301370007532687 dlxnf ;gf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, tf/fk§L wg'iff ldlynf & 7  2,266 

156 10653 1301370007538729 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= x+;k'/ 
s7k'Nnf wg'iff x;k'/ gu/kflnsf 3  1,133 

157 10535 1301370007524908 /fdhfgsL dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= 9'u|]vf]nf ;n{fxL afudtL gu/kflnsf 2  1,133 

158 10487 1301370007539741 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, gf}jfvf]/ 
k;f{xL wg'iff x+;k'/ gu/kflnsf 7  2,266 
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159 10681 1301370007536225 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= x¶Lk'/ 
x8jf/f

wg'iff zxLbgu/ gu/kflnsf 6  269 

160 10656 1301370007527265 dlxnf ;gf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, 
;f]lgufdf wg'iff x+;k'/ gu/kflnsf 6  269 

161 10393 1301090004255195 dlxnf ;gf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, /fgLu+h ;n{fxL nfnaGbL gu/kflnsf 17  269 

162 10392 1301090004255180 >L dlxnf ;gf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, 
k/jfgLk'/ ;n{fxL nfnaGbL gu/kflnsf 16  404 

zfvf sfof{no x]6f}+8f cGtu{t 16,52,546

163 10018 9 1301170000358402 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= 8'd/jfgf af/f
hLtk'/l;d/f 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

15 215,826 

164 10133 10 1301390000140831 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lkKn] lrtjg /fKtL gu/kflnsf 2  128,319 

165 10134 11 1301070000302177 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= s'd/f]h lrtjg v}/xgL gu/kflnsf 13  110,051 

166 10061 12 1301040000218913 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= dgx/L dsjfgk'/ dgx/L ufpFkflnsf 8  99,057 

167 10157 47 1301080000229803 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= kmQ]k'/ af/f
hLtk'/l;d/f 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

12  89,664 

168 10029 48 1301070000151983 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= jL/]Gb|gu/ lrtjg /fKtL gu/kflnsf 8  110,141 

169 10053 49 1301390000151607 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= a5\of}nL lrtjg /Tggu/ gu/kflnsf 6  72,805 

170 10093 50 1301070000301646 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= d]3f}nL lrtjg e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf 27  46,238 

171 10095 106 1301220000279602 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= z'qmgu/ lrtjg e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf 25  68,071 

172 10132 117 1301580000177047 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= e08f/f lrtjg /fKtL gu/kflnsf 5  61,788 

173 10062 121 1301090000596729 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= dgxjf{ af/f
hLtk'/l;d/f 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

18  67,493 

174 10156 122 1301090000764576 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= h]7l/of /f}tx6 od'gfdfO{ ufpFkflnsf 1  38,030 

175 10135 123 1301090000764616 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;Gtk'/ /f}tx6 rG›k'/ gu/kflnsf 8  72,317 

176 10096 151 1301070000302333 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg  ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= s7f/ lrtjg v}/xgL gu/kflnsf 10  48,564 

177 10060 172 1301040000218909 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ah|af/fxL dsjfgk'/ yfxf gu/kflnsf 6  33,952 

178 10083 173 1301040000219351 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ef]8fxf af/f sn}of pkdxfgu/kflnsf 22  51,988 

179 10162 176 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;v'jf wdf}/f /f}tx6 a[Gbfjg gu/kflnsf 7  19,123 

180 10084 177 1301040000212890 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= O{gjf{l;/f af/f
hLtk'/l;d/f 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

19  26,916 

181 10085 179 1301070000301817 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= v}/xgL lrtjg v}/xgL gu/kflnsf 6  37,611 

182 10082 180 1301120000972155 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= bf/]rf]s lrtjg OR5fsfdgf ufpFkflnsf 4  33,037 

183 10212 204 1301090000764557 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= pbok'/3'ld{ k;f{ la/uGh dxfgu/kflnsf 27  27,283 

184 10165 205 1301090000763612 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= sgsk'/ /f}tx6 u'h/f gu/kflnsf 4  46,699 

185 10382 206 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lgr'6f k;f{ k6]jf{ ;'uf}nL ufpFkflnsf 5  8,290 

186 10161 207 1301090000764274 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= /Ëk'/ /f}tx6 rG›k'/ gu/kflnsf 1  23,557 

187 10094 208 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= x/}of af/f s/}ofdfO{ ufpFkflnsf 1  27,222 

188 10158 209 1301090000764595 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln lkk|f/hj8f /f}tx6
dfwj gf/fo0f 
gu/kflnsf

7  18,286 

189 10063 227 1301090000764177 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= xf+8Lvf]nf dsjfgk'/ dgx/L ufpFkflnsf 3  17,866 

190 10059 228 1301090000764181 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= a;fdf8L dsjfgk'/ x]6f}8f pkdxfgu/kflnsf 19  17,755 

191 10163 229 1301070000302960 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= kbdk'/ lrtjg sflnsf gu/kflnsf 5  20,233 

192 10354 1301840000099221 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=, k/;f}gf af/f sf]NxjL gu/kflnsf 4  269 

193 10505 1301370007541174 nfnLu'/fF; ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln dsjfgk'/ eLdkm]bL ufpFkflnsf 4  269 

194 10424 1301370007535538 ubL{ dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= lrtjg df8L gu/kflnsf 1  538 

195 10257 1301370007541778 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= xl6of x]6f}F8f x]6f}F8f pkdxfgu/kflnsf 17  269 

196 10385 1301090004264404 :j/f]huf/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln=,cfde~HofË dsjfgk'/ dsjfgk'/u9L ufpFkflnsf 5  807 

197 10729 1301370007541058 eo{fËsfnL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln dsjfgk'/ /flS;/fª\u ufpFkflnsf 3  269 

198 10508 1301080001194023 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, 5tfkLk/f af/f
hLtk'/l;d/f 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

9  269 
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199 10588 1301090004263491 >L km'naf/L dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln

lrtjg e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf 15  269 

200 10577 1301370007540527 >L lutfgu/ ;f=ls= ul/jL lgjf/0f s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= lutfgu/ lrtjg e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf 6  269 

201 10322 1301720001228057 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, 8'dl/of /f}tx6 rG›k'/ gu/kflnsf 9  269 

202 10419 1301090004264763 xfd|f] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln e};] dsjfgk'/ eLdkm]bL ufpFkflnsf 2  538 

203 10425 1301370007534154 a3f}8f dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= lrtjg df8L gu/kflnsf 3  538 

204 11037 1301370007541881 l;d/f dlxnf art tyf C0f ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= af/f
hLtk'/l;d/f 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

2  807 

205 10376 1301040002799691 >lds ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln dsjfgk'/ dsjfgk'/u9L ufpFkflnsf 3  807 

206 10249 1301370007540453 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= xgf{df8L x]6f}+8f x]6f}+8f pkdxfgu/kflnsf 18  538 

207 10730 1301370007537461 >L lbJogu/ dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln lrtjg e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf 26  269 

208 10865 1301370007534781 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, df]tL;/ af/f sn}of pkdxfgu/kflnsf 18  269 

209 10864 1301370007540930 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln k|;f}gL af/f kf;f}gL ufpFkflnsf 2  269 

210 10509 1301370007541161 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, cdfj af/f sf]NxjL gu/kflnsf 10  269 

211 10501 1301370007541155 kfj{tLk'/ dlxnf ls;fg ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln lrtjg e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf 21  269 

212 10319 1301370007540584 :jR5Gb ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln=lrTnfª dsjfgk'/ yfxf gu/kflnsf 9  269 

213 10502 1301370007537613 hutk'/ dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln lrtjg e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf 23  807 

214 10423 1301370007532581 cof]Wofk'/L dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln lrtjg df8L gu/kflnsf 8  538 

215 10355 1301370007540449 cd/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln dsjfgk'/ O{Gb|;/f]j/ ufpFkflnsf 2  322 

216 10426 1301370007540512 sNof0fk'/ dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln lrtjg df8L gu/kflnsf 7  538 

217 10244 1301070001790521 u'~hgu/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= lrtjg e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf 20  538 

218 10313 1301370007534777
sdnkf]v/L u/LaL lgjf/0f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif 
;xsf/L ;+:yf ln lrtjg e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf 22  538 

219 10233 1301520001959150 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, t]tl/of af/f s/}ofdfO{ ufpFkflnsf 5  673 

220 10668 1301370007540434 ultlzn ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
kmfv]n dsjfgk'/ O{Gb|;/f]j/ ufpFkflnsf 4  322 

221 10945 1301720001227866 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, l;d|f}gu9 af/f l;d|f}gu9 gu/kflnsf 6  269 

222 10983 1301720001227851 >L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= l;d|f}gu9, 
srf]{jf af/f l;d|f}gu9 gu/kflnsf 8  269 

223 10844 1301370007540571 lxdr'nL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln af/f lghu9 gu/kflnsf 9  269 

224 10728 1301120004957945 zlStvf]/ dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= lrtjg sflnsf gu/kflnsf 9  269 

225 10353 1301840000099141 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, ;kxL af/f sf]NxjL gu/kflnsf 4  673 

zfvf sfof{no sf7df8f}+ cGtu{t  146,211 

226 10035 181 1301120000809811 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= /jLcf]kL sfe|]knf~rf]s w'lnv]n gu/kflnsf 2  53,998 

227 10092 210 1301060000446421 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= cg}sf]6 sfe|]knf~rf]s kfFrvfn gu/kflnsf 2  46,467 

228 10829 1301370007539912 emf]/ dxf+sfn ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sf7df8f}+ 6f]vf gu/kflnsf 1  2,221 

229 10671 1301370007529211 r08]gL d08g ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sfe|]knf~rf]s d08g b]pk'/ gu/kflnsf 6  2,266 

230 10682 1301370007538471 >L OG›fjtL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln l;Gw'kfNrf]s OGb|fjtL ufpFkflnsf 2  3,965 

231 10669 1301060003235545 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, u'08' eQmk'/ सूर्यविनायक नगरपालिका 7  1,133 

232 10977 1301370007540318 dxfef/t ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sfe|]knf~rf]s महाभारत गाउँपालिका 6  1,133 

233 11024 1301370007539610 ho afu]Zj/L dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln= l;Gw'kfNrf]s x]nDa' ufpFkflnsf 4  1,402 

234 10820 1301120004962609 >L dy'/]Zj/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sfe|]knf~rf]s gdf]a'4 gu/kflnsf 1  269 

235 10789 1301370007536231 Hofld/] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln l;Gw'kfNrf]s d]nDrL gu/kflnsf 9  269 
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236 10818 1301370007536210 ef]6l;kf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln l;Gw'kfNrf]s OG›fjtL ufpFkflnsf 10  269 

237 10398 1301520001960753 >L uf]/vgfy ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sfe|]knf~rf]s kgf}tL gu/kflnsf 7  269 

238 10327 1301370007539703 efljio lgd{f0f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sf7df8f}F blIf0fsfnL gu/kflnsf 7  2,448 

239 10224 1301370007506175 ;"o{d'lv ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= l;Gw'kfNrf]s d]nDrL gu/kflnsf 1  2,940 

240 10338 1301370007538334 ;dk{0f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sfe|]knf~rf]s kgf}tL gu/kflnsf 9  1,628 

241 10853 1301370007539834 pa{/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln nlntk'/ afudtL ufpFkflnsf 3  269 

242 10830 1301370007540225 h/fo6f/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln l;Gw'kfNrf]s d]nDrL gu/kflnsf 11  2,804 

243 10884 1301370007533959 a|DxogL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s}nfnL afn]kmL ufpFkflnsf 2  4,871 

244 10395 1301370007539849 dfO{ pu|r08L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sfe|]knf~rf]s ag]kf gu/kflnsf 4  1,402 

245 10909 1301370007540185 lxt}ifL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln bf]nvf a}t]Zj/ ufpFkflnsf 6  1,704 

246 10399 1301370007540109 uf}/Lz+s/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sfe|] w'lnv]n gu/kflnsf 12  269 

247 10538 1301370007539055 dg;'g ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln /fd]5fk
lnv' tdfsf]zL 
ufpFkflnsf

6  1,359 

248 10722 1301370007540662 ;ofkf6L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln bf]nvf z}n'ª ufpFkflnsf 4  1,402 

249 10397 1301120004961911 snftL e"ldbfbf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln sfe|]knf~rf]s kfgf}tL gu/kflnsf 12  1,402 

250 10762 1301370007507316 Plss[t z}n'ª ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln bf]nvf z}n'ª ufpFkflnsf 8  1,402 

251 10763 1301370007529199 7'nf]l;?jf/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln l;Gw'kfNrf]s rf}tf/f ;fFufr]s6L g=kf= 13  538 

252 10788 1301370007556039 d}qL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln l;Gw'kfNrf]s rf}tf/f ;fFufr]s6L g=kf= 7  1,133 

253 10819 1301060003235127 yfªkfnwfk ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln l;Gw'kfNrf]s
kfFrkf]v/L yfªkfnwfk 
ufpFkflnsf

6  2,266 

254 11025 1301370007556024 af]r nfs'/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln bf]nvf led]Zj/ gu/kflnsf 8  1,089 

255 10990 1301120004996520 eujtL sfnfkfgL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln sfe|]knf~rf]s a]yfgrf]s ufpFkflnsf 2  1,133 

256 10976 1301370007535557 xfd|f] ;fxf/f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sfe|]knf~rf]s kgf}tL gu/kflnsf 2  1,358 

257 10576 1301370007556442 pHofnf] ls/0f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln nlntk'/ uf]bfj/L gu/kflnsf 10  1,133 

zfvf sfof{no uh'/L cGtu{t 1,141,209 

258 10123 13 1301390000145462 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln=r}gk'/ wflbª Hjfnfd'vL ufpFkflnsf 7  89,157 

259 10208 14 1301390000152241 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= 5q]b]p/fnL wflbª w'gLa]+zL gu/kflnsf 2  36,433 

260 10440 51 1301390000145745 e"d]:yfg ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= wflbª yfqm] ufpFkflnsf 2  74,189 

261 10185 52 1301390000152347 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= sNn]/L wflbª uN5L ufpFkflnsf 2  73,425 

262 10211 53 1301390000152731 a}/]gL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= wflbª uN5L ufpFkflnsf 6  74,490 

263 10201 54 1301390000145371 uf]ugkfgL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= wflbª yfqm] ufpFkflnsf 11  59,313 

264 10047 55 1301390000152254 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= s'Dk'/ wflbª l;4n]s ufpFkflnsf 6  121,996 

265 10036 56 1301390000152269 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;nfË wflbª l;4n]s ufpFkflnsf 4 125,254 

266 10017 57 1301390000152784 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= d}bL wflbª Hjfnfd'vL ufpFkflnsf 2  47,577 

267 10221 58 1301390000152750 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;'gf}nfahf/ wflbª gLns07 gu/kflnsf 6  26,857 

268 10179 59 1301390000145411 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;Nofg6f/ wflbª lqk'/f;'Gb/L ufpFkflnsf 1  47,538 

269 10016 60 1301390000145346 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= 9f]nf wflbª Hjfnfd'vL ufpFkflnsf 4  37,135 

270 10220 61 1301580000165865 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lqk'/]Zj/ wflbª lqk'/f;'Gb/L ufpFkflnsf 7  11,600 

271 10186 62 1301390000139826 hLjgk'/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= wflbª w'gLa]+zL gu/kflnsf 3  56,445 

272 10187 99 1301390000140105 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= w'iff wflbª a]gL3f6 /f]/fË ufpFkflnsf 7  26,443 

273 10222 103 1301390000139845 yfqm] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= wflbª yfqm] ufpFkflnsf 7  39,805 

274 10077 104 1301390000139851 s]jnk'/ dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff 
ln= wflbª yfqm] ufpFkflnsf 9  46,206 

275 10122 178 1301390000146865 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= Hofd?Ë wflbª gLns07 gu/kflnsf 11  36,943 

276 10204 211 1301390000152811 afu]Zj/L dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= g'jfsf]6 ;'o{u9L ufpFkflnsf 2  29,151 

277 10203 212 1301580000176915 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lhlnË g'jfsf]6 a]nsf]6u9L gu/kflnsf 8  37,329 
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278 10209 230 1301390000145439 >L s[i0f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln=v/L wflbª Hjfnfd'vL ufpFkflnsf 5  15,704 

279 10198 231 1301390000152862 d'/nLe`HofË ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff 
ln= wflbª gLns07 gu/kflnsf 8  15,434 

280 10606 1301370007539800 ;fd/L dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, g'jfsf]6 d]3fË ufpFkflnsf 5  269 

281 10596 1301370007539756 k|of;zLn dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln, kmf6fkf}jf g'jfsf]6 a]nsf]6u9L gu/kflnsf 2  269 

282 10744 1301370007539760 uf]:of{ª dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= g'jfsf]6 tf/s]Zj/ ufpFkflnsf 5  269 

283 10438 1301370007539775 tf?sf dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln, cfkr'/ g'jfsf]6 tf/s]Zj/ ufpFkflnsf 2  269 

284 10335 1301370007539781 lbofnf] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= wflbª a]gL3f6 /f]/fË ufpFkflnsf 2  269 

285 10528 1301370007539794 kfl/hft ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, 
rf/3/] wf/fkfgL g'jfsf]6 lab'/ gu/kflnsf 12  269 

286 10607 1301370007537062 kfyLe/f dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln, bdn] g'jfsf]6 a]nsf]6u9L gu/kflnsf 11  269 

287 10439 1301370007539167 b'Olkkfn dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln, g]kfnyf]s g'jfsf]6 a]nsf]6u9L gu/kflnsf 5  1,077 

288 10685 1301370007541229 cfzf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln g'jfsf]6 ssgL ufpFkflnsf 1  269 

289 10237 1301370007539927  ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=t;k'{ wflbª yfqm] ufpFkflnsf 4  1,077 

290 10386 1301370007540341 a;]/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln wflbª u+uf hd'gf ufpFkflnsf 6  269 

291 10210 1301370007540303 gf}la;] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln wflbª w'gLa]+zL gu/kflnsf 8  538 

292 10605 1301370007540702 kfp4f/ dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= g'jfsf]6 tf/s]Zj/ ufpFkflnsf 4  404 

293 10567 1301370007537457 chDa/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln g'jfsf]6 lab'/ gu/kflnsf 11  269 

294 10259 1301720001085469 k~rsGof ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
vfN6] wflbª l;4n]s ufpFkflnsf 2  1,077 

295 10527 1301370007540128 gjhLjg ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln wflbª uh'/L ufpFkflnsf 5  1,077 

296 10827 1301370007539606 >L yfgfklt dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln g'jfsf]6 lzjk'/L ufpFkflnsf 8  539 

297 10339 1301370007541039 >L pksf/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln wflbª a]gL3f6 /f]/fË ufpFkflnsf 3  1,077 

298 10284 1301370007539659 >L ;fd'bflos ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= gnfª wflbª l;4n]s ufpFkflnsf 2  1,077 

299 10743 1301370007536860 v8\ue~Hofª dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln g'jfsf]6 lab'/ gu/kflnsf 3  269 

300 10255 1301650002206303 ef]n{] lhalha] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln /;'jf sflnsf ufpFkflnsf 5  538 

301 10404 1301060003234862 >L ;Nofgsf]6 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln wflbª lqk'/f;'Gb/L ufpFkflnsf 4  269 

302 10403 1301060003233801 cfluGrf]s ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln wflbª lqk'/f;'Gb/L ufpFkflnsf 6  807 

303 10256 1301650002206322 w}a'ª sflnsf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= /;'jf sflnsf ufpFkflnsf 5  269 

zfvf sfof{no kf]v/f cGtu{t  765,669 

304 10189 15 1301610000193260 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= 9f]/lkmbL{ tgx'F z'Snfu08sL gu/kflnsf 8  60,289 

305 10202 63 1301010000372973 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= a]]Ufgf; sf:sL
kf]v/f n]vgfy 
dxfgu/kflnsf

31  35,579 

306 10190 64 1301120000973203 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= dgsfdgf uf]/vf zxLb nvg ufpFkflnsf 2  59,658 

307 10153 65 1301120000974167 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;'Gb/ahf/ ndh'ª ;'Gb/ahf/ gu/kflnsf 6  41,858 

308 10015 66 1301170000369524 km]bLvf]nf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= :ofªUhf km]bLvf]nf ufpFkflnsf 2  90,096 

309 10191 67 1301120000972214 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= gf/fo0f:yfg afun'ª afUn'Ë gu/kflnsf 14  49,971 

310 10178 68 1301450000057211 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= t+u|fd afun'ª sf7]vf]nf ufpFkflnsf 4  26,671 

311 10236 69 1301450000057152 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= es'08] afun'ª afUn'Ë gu/kflnsf 10  36,676 

312 10154 100 1301090000763213 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= bxy'd :ofªUhf eL/sf]6 gu/kflnsf 2  68,727 

313 10014 144 1301720000007622 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
;/fËsf]6 sf:sL

kf]v/f n]vgfy 
dxfgu/kflnsf

18  60,664 

314 10176 145 1301720000122287 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= k}o"kf6f afun'ª afUn'Ë gu/kflnsf 13  19,906 
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315 10175 146 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= jfh'Ë kj{t df]bL ufpFkflnsf 5  25,729 

316 10194 152 1301090000762870 dNnfh ;fgf ls;fg s[[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= kj{t hnhnf ufpFkflnsf 3  29,421 

317 10177 162 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lgd{nkf]v/L sf:sL
kf]v/f n]vgfy 
dxfgu/kflnsf

21  33,037 

318 10188 163 1301610000052600 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= dfem7fgf sf:sL
kf]v/f n]vgfy 
dxfgu/kflnsf

28  56,984 

319 10152 167 1301120000974741 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= /D3f6f/ ndh'ª dWog]kfn gu/kflnsf 4  35,999 

320 10467 213 1301720000592395 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ks'jf kj{t s'Zdf gu/kflnsf 11  20,010 

321 10530 1301370007542995 b]p/fnL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln uf]/vf uf]/vf gu/kflnsf 13  269 

322 11043 1301370007540605 wjnflu/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln DofUbL wjnflu/L ufpFkflnsf 7  269 

323 10329 1301370007532634 eLdb ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln tgx'F eLdfb gu/kflnsf 6  269 

324 10328 1301070001790044 t'n;L eGHofª ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln=t'n;L eGHofª :ofª\hf uNofª gu/kflnsf 3  269 

325 10283 1301370007543298 sf]6slnsf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln tgx'F z'Snfu08sL gu/kflnsf 11  269 

326 10832 1301370007540945 gfDh'Ë ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln uf]/vf zlxb nvg ufpFkflnsf 9  269 

327 10544 1301370007533735 k]nfsf]6 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln :ofª\hf uNofª gu/kflnsf 7  269 

328 10414 1301370007531571 huqfb]jL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln :ofª\hf uNofª gu/kflnsf 2  538 

329 10828 1301370007540282 O{zfg]Zj/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ndh'ª dWog]kfn gu/kflnsf 7  269 

330 10839 1301370007540721 tf/fgu/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln uf]/vf uf]/vf gu/kflnsf 11  269 

331 1301370007539821 ;Dk'0f{ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sf:sL kf]v/f !( 19  269 

332 11050 1301370007533720 >L w'+jfsf]6 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln uf]/vf kfn'Ë6fg/ gu/kflnsf 8  269 

333 10949 1301370007540054 lr;fkfgL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln :ofª\hf xl/gf; ufpFkflnsf 2  269 

334 10821 1301370007529963 >L 8x/]b]p/fnL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= :ofª\hf ch{‘g rf}k/L ufpFkfnsf 5  269 

335 10458 1301370007530884 s'jfsf]6 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln :ofª\hf rfkfsf]6 gu/kflnsf 10  1,077 

336 10785 1301370007541136 /]z ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln afUn'ª sf7]vf]nf ufpFkflnsf 7  269 

337 10944 1301370007529034 plbk'/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ndh'ª a];Lzx/ gu/kflnsf 1  269 

338 11433 1301370007541140 wldlns'jf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ndh'ª ;'Gb/ahf/ gu/kflnsf 10  269 

339 10897 1301370007543129 >L b/f}+ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= :ofª\hf ch{‘g rf}k/L ufpFkfnsf 6  269 

340 10417 1301370007543114 ?kfsf]6 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sf:sL ?kf ufpFkflnsf 6  269 

341 10619 1301370007541102 l5:tL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln afUn'ª h}d'gL gu/kflnsf 8  269 

342 10363 1301370007529978 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ;s'{jf afUn'ª h}d'gL gu/kflnsf 4  269 

343 10285 1301370007541214 u|fdL0f :jfanDag ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln :ofª\hf ch{‘g rf}k/L ufpFkfnsf 1  1,077 

344 10768 1301370007529997 csfnf gd'gf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln :ofª\hf jflnª gu/kflnsf 6  538 

345 10657 1301370007534173 h}bL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln afUn'ª h}d'gL gu/kflnsf 7  269 

346 10373 1301370007540833 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= /fªvfgL afUn'ª h}d'gL gu/kflnsf 10  269 

347 10564 1301370007530865 dfn'Ëf  ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= :ofª\hf uNofª gu/kflnsf 1  269 

348 10562 1301370007532649 >Ls[i0f u08sL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln :ofª\hf sfnLu08sL ufpFkflnsf 6  269 

349 10330 1301370007540852 dfemsf]6 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln tgx'F eLdfb gu/kflnsf 3  1,077 

350 10770 1301370007543283 jflnª ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln :ofª\hf jflnª gu/kflnsf 9  403 

351 10267 1301370007540611 afFu] km8\s] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= :ofª\hf km]bLvf]nf ufpFkflnsf 5  269 

352 10767 1301370007536069 hgsNof0f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln afUn'ª jflnª gu/kflnsf 2  269 

353 10625 1301370007541077 lwtfn ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sf:sL df5fk'R5«] ufpFkflnsf 6  269 

354 10334 1301370007540801 nfxrf]s ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sf:sL df5fk'R5«] ufpFkflnsf 4  807 

355 10344 1301370007541311 e/tkf]v/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sf:sL
kf]v/f n]vgfy 
dxfgu/kflnsf

32  269 

356 10624 1301370007540964 cd{nf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sf:sL
kf]v/f n]vgfy 
dxfgu/kflnsf

16  538 
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357 10978 1301370007541326 >L u08sL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln uf]/vf u08sL ufpFkflnsf 8  269 

358 10529 1301370007541081 tfSn'ª ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln uf]/vf zlxb nvg ufpFkflnsf 4  269 

359 10374 1301370007532862 kfr{] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= sf:sL d8L ufpFkflnsf 1  269 

zfvf sfof{no a'6jn  cGtu{t 2,560,576 

360 10009 16 1301100000269705 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= cfgGbjg ?kGb]xL ltnf]Qdf gu/fkflnsf 5 240,247 

361 10080 17 1301120000414235 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= enjf8 slknj:t' af0fu+uf gu/kflnsf 9  36,416 

362 10098 18 1301120000401023 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= df]ltk'/ slknj:t' af0fu+uf gu/kflnsf 7  85,094 

363 10089 22 1301370000220161 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= g/kfgL c3f{vfFrL ;lGwvs{ gu/kflnsf 6  48,526 

364 10013 70 1301100000185207 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;fnem08L ?kGb]xL ;}gfd}gf gu/kflnsf 10  89,191 

365 10024 71 1301100000171006 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= dwjlnof ?kGb]xL ltnf]Qdf gu/fkflnsf 15  117,362 

366 10075 72 1301100000175184 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= b]jbx ?kGb]xL b]abx gu/kflnsf 6  47,778 

367 10078 73 1301100000182886 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;]dnf/ ?kGb]xL a'6jn pkdxfgu/kflnsf 15  82,910 

368 10025 74 1301100000183778 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= z+s/gu/ ?kGb]xL ltnf]Qdf gu/fkflnsf 1  100,102 

369 10128 75 1301100000141701 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= s]/jfgL ?kGb]xL b]abx gu/kflnsf 3  67,226 

370 10049 76 1301220000071538 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lqj]0fL gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k'=_ lagoL lqj]0fL ufpFkflnsf 7  88,532 

371 10149 77 1301370000731993 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= /fdgu/ k/f;L ;'gjn gu/kflnsf 12  94,493 

372 10051 78 1301390000062261 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= k~rgu/ gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ ab{3f6 gu/kflnsf 9  53,769 

373 10044 79 1301390000061874 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= a~hl/of gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ /fdu|fd gu/kflnsf 18  80,338 

374 10050 80 1301370000895985 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= cUof}{nL gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k'=_ sfjf;f]tL gu/kflnsf 14  100,800 

375 10752 81 1301100000188928 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= a"4e"dL slknj:t' a'4e"dL gu/kflnsf 9  56,015 

376 10011 101 1301370000720736 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= dfs/ k/f;L ab{3f6 gu/kflnsf 4  110,169 

377 10091 102 1301370000220176 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lvNhL c3f{vfFrL e'ldsf:yfg gu/kflnsf 6  56,342 

378 10099 108 1301390000050752 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ltnsk'/ gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ ;/fjn ufpFkflnsf 1  73,823 

379 10023 109 1301100000188567 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= b'w/fIf ?kGb]xL ;}gfd}gf gu/kflnsf 8  88,184 

380 10052 113 1301100000181732 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= u+uf]lnof ?kGb]xL ltnf]Qdf gu/fkflnsf 17  55,203 

381 10027 115 1301370000732530 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= bfpGg]b]jL gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ ab{3f6 gu/kflnsf 14  73,834 

382 10242 116 1301650000005968 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= cu{nL kfNkf tfg;]g gu/kflnsf 14  28,447 

383 10012 129 1301100000180724 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= k/f{]xf ?kGb]xL ;}gfd}gf gu/kflnsf 4  87,946 

384 10072 130 1301100000567531 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= s/lxof ?kGb]xL ltnf]Qdf gu/fkflnsf 7  51,731 

385 10151 131 1301010000274532 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= uf]]gfxf ?kGb]xL dfofb]jL ufpFkflnsf 6  85,407 

386 10031 132 1301100000141735 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= l6s'nLu9 ?kGb]xL ltnf]Qdf gu/fkflnsf 14 117,342 

387 10076 133 1301120000412660 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= s'df/jtL{ gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k'=_ sfjf;f]tL gu/kflnsf 17  40,336 

388 10124 134 1301100000439471 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= a'8\8L slknj:t' a'4e"dL gu/kflnsf 4  57,216 

389 10731 135 1301650000005972 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= v:of}nL kfNkf l/AbLsf]6 ufpFkflnsf 3  23,348 

390 10097 153 1301120000985202 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= a8fufpF u'NdL d'l;sf]6 gu/kflnsf 3  72,269 

391 10125 154 1301100000182890 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= uf}F8fsf]6 u'NdL u'NdL b/af/ ufpFkflnsf 3  40,044 

392 10100 155 1301120000299785 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= vfrLsf]6 c3f{vfFrL ;lGwvs{ gu/kflnsf 7  47,342 

393 10071 214 1301100000186652 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= v8\jfjgufO{ ?kGb]xL ;'4f]wg ufpFkflnsf 2  27,789 

394 10090 215 1301650000005797 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= hxbf gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ ab{3f6 gu/kflnsf 13  26,127 

395 10670 1301370007532497 >L ;x;L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k'=_ b]jr'nL gu/kflnsf 17  269 

396 10615 1301370007541062 ;Fufnf] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ ;':tf ufpFkflnsf 4  269 

397 10706 1301170002140092 bofgu/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ?kGb]xL l;of/L ufpFkflnsf 5  269 

398 10704 1301370007541193 j;Gtk'/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ?kGb]xL cf]d;ltof ufpFkflnsf 4  269 

399 11028 1301370007537248 ltgfp ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln kfNkf tgfp ufpFkflnsf 3  269 

400 10639 1301370007540736 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;sf/L ;+:yf ln= lglUnxjf slknj:t' slknj:t' gu/kflnsf 9  269 

401 10349 1301370007540740 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= dfgks8L ?kGb]xL z'4f]wg ufpFkflnsf 5  269 

402 10348 1301370007540546 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, dgd6]l/of ?kGb]xL z'4f]wg ufpFkflnsf 7  269 
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403 10616 1301170002138919 ;f}hGo ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ k|tfkk'/ ufpFkflnsf 8  269 

404 10250 1301120000412675 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln gofF a]nxfgL gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ dWoljGb' gu/kflnsf 10  269 

405 10699 1301370007539152 km'naf/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln c3f{vfFrL dnf/fgL ufpFkflnsf 6  269 

406 10650 1301370007539148 l9s'/f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln c3f{vfFrL e'lds:yfg gu/kflnsf 9  269 

407 10719 1301370007538260 >L xft]dfnf] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln c3f{vfFrL e'lds:yfg gu/kflnsf 10  269 

408 10510 1301370007538106 c3f{ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln c3f{vfFrL ;lGwvs{ gu/kflnsf 10  269 

409 10396 1301370007540755 >L xl/ofnL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
b5f{ kfNkf /fdk'/ gu/kflnsf 3  269 

410 10808 1301370007540550 >L /Defb]jL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln kfNkf /Def ufpFkflnsf 1  269 

411 10245 1301370007540565 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, ;'qmf}nL gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ /fdu|fd gu/kflnsf 15  269 

412 10246 1301370007540761 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, xfs'O{ gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ /fdu|fd gu/kflnsf 16  269 

413 10251 1301370007540599 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, b'dlsaf; gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ lagoL lqj]0fL ufpFkflnsf 10  269 

414 10556 1301370007532459 ;lqmo ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ b]jr'nL gu/kflnsf 2  269 

415 10663 1301370007532444 bk{g ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ u}8fsf]6 gu/kflnsf 10  269 

416 10452 1301370007540774 /fdk'/jf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ kfNxLgGbg ufpFkflnsf 4  538 

417 10555 1301370007529982 k|ultgu/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ b]jr'nL gu/kflnsf 13  269 

418 10341 1301370007539101 k|;f}gL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ dWoljGb' gu/kflnsf 15  269 

419 10342 1301120000422546 td;l/of ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= gjnk/f;L -a=;'=k=_ dWoljGb' gu/kflnsf 7  269 

420 10409 1301370007539114 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln sf]k'jf slknj:t' af0fu+uf gu/kflnsf 5  269 

421 10410 1301370007532881 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, xyf};f slknj:t' af0fu+uf gu/kflnsf 11  269 

422 10252 1301100000185659 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, uh]8L ?kGb]xL sGrg upFkflnsf 1  1,077 

423 10694 1301370007539678 hgsn\of0f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln c3f{vfFrL dnf/fgL ufpFkflnsf 4  269 

zfvf sfof{no g]kfnu+h cGtu{t 1,236,039 

424 10068 19 1301170000370542 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= dxfb]jk'/L afFs] /fKtL ;f]gf/L ufpFkflnsf 8  67,215 

425 10070 82 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= nIdLk'/ bfª 3f]/fxL pkdxfgu/kflnsf 4  51,863 

426 10037 83 1301390000146392 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= p/x/L bfª
t'N;Lk'/ 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

11  72,592 

427 10140 84 1301070000295331 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ufa/l8xf bfª u9jf ufpFkflnsf 1  21,175 

428 10086 85 1301070000294281 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= afª\u];fn Ko'7fg ;?df/fgL ufpFkflnsf 1  33,245 

429 10138 86 1301170000355999 gf}jf:tf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= afFs] a}hgfy ufpFkflnsf 2  55,187 

430 10379 87 1301170000372803 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= srgfk'/ afFs] /fKtL ;f]gf/L ufpFkflnsf 2  23,577 

431 10139 88 1301170000356312 tf/ftfn ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= alb{of dw'jg gu/kflnsf 5  94,691 

432 10041 89 1301170000350285 ;fgf]>L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= alb{of dw'jg gu/kflnsf 8  77,161 

433 10064 112 1301170000357301 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= /fdk'/ bfª 3f]/fxL pkdxfgu/kflnsf 1  40,668 

434 10143 136 1301170000367512 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lr;fkfgL afFs] a}hgfy ufpFkflnsf 1  20,843 

435 10020 137 1301170000370557 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= sDbL afFs] 8'8'jf ufpFkflnsf 4  53,374 

436 10142 138 1301650000009525 g]pnfk'/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= alb{of 7fs'/afaf gu/kflnsf 1  42,841 

437 10067 139 1301170000367527 d}gfkf]v/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= alb{of a9}oftfn ufpFkflnsf 6  58,430 

438 10026 140 1301370000777667 a'9fg ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= kbgfxf alb{of af/alb{of gu/kflnsf 4  57,869 

439 10171 141 1301070000295646 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;tal/of bfª ndxL gu/kflnsf 3  27,271 

440 10136 142 1301390000153959 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= 
;f}l8of/ bfª 3f]/fxL pkdxfgu/kflnsf 6  69,932 

441 10019 157 1301170000370289 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= k'/}gL afFs]
g]kfnu~h 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

22  27,235 

442 10069 158 1301650000009734 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lzjk'/ alb{of 7fs'/afaf gu/kflnsf 6  42,558 

443 10043 159 1301390000154247 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= wgf}/L bfª zflGtgu/ ufpFkflnsf 7  45,989 

444 10137 166 1301390000148161 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= >LufpF bfª b+uLz/0f ufpFkflnsf 6  46,699 

445 10065 171 1301170000367907 8]p9fsnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= alb{of afF;u9L gu/kflnsf 8  65,234 

446 10146 175 1301310000156511 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= sflnsf alb{of a9}oftfn ufpFkflnsf 8  54,783 
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447 10184 232 1301170000356920 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= 9f]9/L alb{of dw'jg gu/kflnsf 4  24,308 

448 10463 1301370007532877 x]dGt ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln alb{of u]?jf ufpFkflnsf 6  4,532 

449 10462 1301370007538767 a;Gt ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln alb{of /fhfk'/ gu/kflnsf 5  4,532 

450 10461 1301370007539133 u|Lid ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= alb{of /fhfk'/ gu/kflnsf 2  4,532 

451 10464 1301370007538511 aiff{ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= alb{of u]?jf ufpFkflnsf 5  3,399 

452 10548 1301370007541121 ufFp3/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
du/fu9L alb{of af/alb{of  gu/kflnsf 6  4,532 

453 10460 1301370007538752 lzlz/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln alb{of u]?jf ufpFkflnsf 3  3,399 

454 10275 1301370007540639 lbbL alxgL alb{of /fhfk'/ gu/kflnsf 4  2,266 

455 10274 1301370007538771 k'ikf~hnL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
dfgk'/6k/f alb{of /fhfk'/ gu/kflnsf 6  3,399 

456 10273 1301370007539061 gf/L sNof0f alb{of /fhk'/ gu/kflnsf 8  4,532 

457 10672 1301370007540696 z'ef/De ;fgf ls;fg dlxnf s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln=, xnjf/ bfª

t'n;Lk'/ 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

7  1,133 

458 10549 1301370007540814 xfd|f] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=augfxf alb{of 7fs'/afaf gu/kflnsf 4  2,832 

459 10359 1301720001233785 6/LufFp dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= bfª

t'n;Lk'/ 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

12  2,832 

460 10471 1301850000321462 Afl6sf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=wwjf/ alb{of af/alb{of gu/kflnsf 11  1,699 

461 10230 1301370007533716 /h]gf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln afFs] sf]xnk'/ gu/kflnsf 5  1,133 

462 10551 1301370007541307 d+un ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln alb{of 7fs'/afaf gu/kflnsf 9  2,266 

463 10470 1301370007530871 k"l0f{df alb{of afF;u9L gu/kflnsf 2  1,699 

464 10558 1301370007540677 rG›ls/0f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln alb{of u'nl/of gu/kflnsf 11  1,133 

465 10272 1301370007540191 c~hnL alb{of /fhfk'/ gu/kflnsf 10  4,532 

466 10629 1301520001960578 l5jfª ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= bfª d'l;sf]6 gu/kflnsf 13  538 

467 10465 1301370007540789 z/b ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln alb{of /fhfk'/ gu/kflnsf 1  1,077 

468 10358 1301370007543093 uf]N6fs'/L dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln bfª b+uLz/0f ufpFkflnsf 2  269 

469 10232 1301370007533701 sf]xnk'/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln afFs] sf]xnk'/ gu/kflnsf 11  269 

470 10550 1301370007540244 :j/f]huf/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= alb{of dw'jg gu/kflnsf 2  269 

471 10350 1301370007540658 wgf{ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= bfª 3f]/fxL pkdxfgu/kflnsf 5  269 

472 10643 1301370007534796 lahf}/L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln bfª
t'n;Lk'/ 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

18  269 

473 10352 1301370007533433 gjHof]lt dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln alb{of a9}oftfn ufpFkflnsf 1  403 

474 10356 1301370007533239 dx]Zj/L dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln bfª 3f]/fxL pkdxfgu/kflnsf 10  269 

475 10485 1301370007534403 ljhogu/ dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= Ko'7fg Ko"7fg gu/kflnsf 3  269 

476 10351 1301370007536259 l9sk'/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln bfª 3f]/fxL pkdxfgu/kflnsf 8  269 

477 10472 1301370007541096 pHofnf] dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln bfª

t'n;Lk'/ 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

13  269 

478 10473 1301370007540531 8'?jf dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= bfª
t'n;Lk'/ 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

14  269 

479 10552 1301370007540151 yf]kf yf]kf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln alb{of af/alb{of gu/kflnsf 3  538 

480 10357 1301370007530768 dfgk'/ dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln bfª
t'n;Lk'/ 
pkdxfgu/kflnsf

17  269 

481 10782 1301370007541117 l;;xlgof ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln bfª /fKtL ufpFkflnsf 5  269 

482 10557 1301370007539853 eljio ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln albof a9}oftfn ufpFkflnsf 3  1,133 

zfvf sfof{no jL/]Gb|gu/ cGtu{t  345,513 

483 10145 20 1301170000356901 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= pQ/u+uf ;'v]{t aL/]G›gu/ gu/kflnsf 3 105,724 
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484 10088 90 1301170000356880 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= nf6Lsf]O{nL ;'v]{t aL/]G›gu/ gu/kflnsf 9  77,802 

485 10231 91 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= /fd3f6 ;'v]{t e]/Lu+uf gu/kflnsf 11  8,286 

486 10180 110 1301170000356916 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;f6fvfgL ;'v]{t n]sa]zL gu/kflnsf 9  28,383 

487 10315 143 1301520000042413 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= sk'/sf]6 ;Nofg sk'/sf]6 ufpFkflnsf 3  34,099 

488 10144 156 1301170000356895 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= n]vkm;f{ ;'v]{t n]sa]zL gu/kflnsf 1  45,253 

489 10170 165 1301090000776142 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= d]x]ns'gf ;'v]{t u'ef{sf]6 gu/kflnsf 8  35,743 

490 10869 1301370007537267 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, l5Gr' ;'v{]t e]/Lu+uf gu/kflnsf 12  269 

491 10860 1301370007539868 vn+uf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln hfh/sf]6 e]/Ldflnsf gu/kflnsf 4  269 

492 10717 1301070001791715 l;4s'dfv ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;Nofg l;4s'dfv ufpFkflnsf 3  269 

493 10401 1301370007537058 r]tgf dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'v{]t u'ef{sf]6 gu/kflnsf 2  269 

494 10481 1301370007540231 ;dfgtf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
jfljofrf}/ ;'v{]t k~rk'/L gu/kflnsf 5  269 

495 10482 1301370007540147 gjrfxgf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
;fnsf]6 sflnsf]6 k~rk'/L gu/kflnsf 2  269 

496 10856 1301370007539319 ldlnh'nL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'v{]t k~rk'/L gu/kflnsf 9  538 

497 10796 1301520001961474 k|ultzLn ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;Nofg zf/bf gu/kflnsf 8  269 

498 10628 1301370007539361 n]vkf]v/f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;Nofg 5q]Zj/L ufpFkflnsf 5  404 

499 10799 1301260002584167 bfdf{sf]6 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;Nofg bfdf{ ufpFkflnsf 2  269 

500 10582 1301370007539815 bfdfrf}/ ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;Nofg 5q]Zj/L ufpFkflnsf 2  538 

501 10500 1301260002583427 9fsfbfd dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln ;Nofg bfdf{ ufpFkflnsf 2  538 

502 10875 1301370007539663 l5Gr' dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ;'v{]t e]/Lu+uf gu/kflnsf 12  538 

503 10756 1301370007539585 h/a'6f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'v{]t jL/]Gb|gu/ gu/kflnsf 13  269 

504 10754 1301370007540210 3'dvx/] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'v{]t u'ef{sf]6 gu/kflnsf 10  269 

505 10614 1301840000099496 tfsdf/] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'v{]t a/fxtfn ufpFkflnsf 9  807 

506 10228 1301120004961998 dlxnf ;gf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s'gy/L ;'v{]t a/fxtfn ufpFkflnsf 5  807 

507 10400 1301520001961552 l;h{gf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'v{]t e]/Lu+uf gu/kflnsf 9  538 

508 10261 1301370007532600 dlxnf kl/jt{g ;fgf ls;fg ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= 
u'dL ;'v{]t u'ef{sf]6 gu/kflnsf 13  1,077 

509 10771 1301520001962385 :ofk'{tfn ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ?s'd klZrd afFkm]sf]6 ufpFkflnsf 4  269 

510 10761 1301520001962391 e]/Lbf]efg ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ?s'd klZrd ;fgLe]/L ufpFkflnsf 1  269 

511 10773 1301370007540132 >L cf7lj; 8fF8f ufpF ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L 
;+:yf ln= ?s'd klZrd cf7la;sf]6 gu/kflnsf 11  269 

512 10640 1301370007540069 Hjfnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln hfh/sf]6 lqj]0fL gnuf8 gu/kflnsf 2  269 

513 10774 1301520001962691 d'l;sf]6 ;fgf  ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ?s'd klZrd d'l;sf]6 gu/kflnsf 1  269 

514 10774 1301370007536871 uf]7LsfF8f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln ;'v{]t aL/]Gb|gu/ gu/kflnsf 14  403 

zfvf sfof{no cQl/of cGtu{t  388,200 

515 10172 21 1301090000764196 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= b}hL s~rgk'/ a]bsf]6 gu/kflnsf 3  74,894 

516 10141 23 1301130000169471 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= >Lk'/ s}nfnL uf]bfj/L gu/kflnsf 8  30,782 

517 10316 92 1301090000763627 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= k|tfkk'/ s}nfnL nlDs r'xf gu/kflnsf 9  29,607 

518 10166 93 1301090000763874 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= ;'8f s~rgk'/ a]bsf]6 gu/kflnsf 7  58,025 

519 10038 174 1301370000771437 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= u]6f s}nfnL uf]bfj/L gu/kflnsf 1  27,479 

520 10087 216 1301130000169701 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= lqe'jgjl:t s~rgk'/ k'gjf{; gu/kflnsf 5  34,972 

521 10066 217 1301090000385341 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= af}lgof s}nfnL ab{uf]l/of ufpFkflnsf 2  43,897 

522 10042 218 1301130000165253 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= dfnfv]lt s}nfnL uf]bfj/L gu/kflnsf 2  39,685 

523 10173 233 1301130000169716 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= k/f;g s~rgk'/ k'gjf{; gu/kflnsf 2  16,497 

524 10174 234 1301130000169720 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:Yff ln= sflnsf s~rgk'/ k'gjf{; gu/kflnsf 3  16,498 

525 10291 1301370007177674 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, rf}dfnf s}nfnL uf}/Lu+uf gu/kflnsf 1  4,532 

526 11020 1301370007541651 cfw'lgs ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, 
kxndfgk'/ s}nfnL 3f]8f3f]8L gu/kflnsf 10  1,133 
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527 11017 1301370007541953 :jl:ts ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s}nfnL 6Lsfk'/ gu/kflnsf 9  269 

528 10449 1301370007541535 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln hf]zLk'/ s}nfnL hf]zLk'/ ufpFkflnsf 1  1,077 

529 10660 1301370007541972 bf]bf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= s~rgk'/ nfnem8L ufpFkflnsf 3  269 

530 10824 1301370007541968 dgsfdgf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s}nfnL hfgsL ufpFkflnsf 9  269 

531 11018 1301370007542106 dft[e"ld ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s}nfnL 6Lsfk'/ gu/kflnsf 7  269 

532 10634 1301370007541404 gj afGgL di6f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= ahfª

5lj;kflye]/f 
ufpFkflnsf

5  322 

533 10822 1301370007541609 vKt8 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s}nfnL s}nf/L ufpFkflnsf 2  269 

534 10336 1301370007542125 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, alnof s}nfnL nlDs r'xf gu/kflnsf 2  942 

535 10448 1301370007541632 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=, /}sjf/ 
ljrjf s~rgk'/ s[i0fk'/ gu/kflnsf 8  538 

536 10825 1301370007541647 >L ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, rfFbgL s~rgk'/ dxfsf/L gu/kflnsf 4  269 

537 10823 1301370007541782 /fdf/f]zg ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s}nfnL s}nf/L ufpFkflnsf 9  269 

538 10637 1301370007542294 a]n8fF8L dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf 
ln= s~rgk'/ a]n8fF8L ufpFkflnsf 2  269 

539 10892 1301370007541797 ldng ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s~rgk'/ ledbQ gu/kflnsf 1  269 

540 10636 1301370007541818 b]vte'nL ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= s~rgk'/ s[i0fk'/ gu/kflnsf 3  269 

541 10989 1301370007542315 a|Xdb]j ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s~rgk'/ ledbQ gu/kflnsf 9  269 

542 10826 1301370007541398 >L /f= lj= ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= s~rgk'/ a]nf}/L gu/kflnsf 8  269 

543 10665 1301370007541900 kj]/f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s}nfnL s}nfnL ufpFkflnsf 5  269 

544 10881 1301370007541915 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ledbQ s~rgk'/ ledbQ gu/kflnsf 18  807 

545 10620 1301370007541419 a8Ldflnsf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= afh'/f a'9Lu+uf gu/kflnsf 9  538 

546 10632 1301370007541921 xft]dfnf] ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln afh'/f a'9Lu+uf gu/kflnsf 6  269 

547 10942 1301370007542009 sflnsf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s}nfnL 6Lsfk'/ gu/kflnsf 9  269 

548 10661 1301370007542013 l;dfgf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s~rgk'/ k'gjf{; gu/kflnsf 11  269 

549 10450 1301370007542066 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln=, ehgL s}nfnL ehgL gu/kflnsf 1  269 

550 10411 1301370007542070 dlxnf ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln 
emfnf/L s~rgk'/ z'SnfkmfF6f gu/kflnsf 10  269 

551 10447 1301370007541520 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, s[i0fk'/ s~rgk'/ s[i0fk'/ gu/kflnsf 5  269 

552 10314 1301370007541628 ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln, d;'l/of s}nfnL uf}/Lu+uf gu/kflnsf 5  326 

553 10941 1301370007542275 /fwfs[i0f ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln s}nfnL hfgsL ufpFkflnsf 1  269 

554 10666 1301370000754171 x;'lnof ;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= s}nfnL s}nfnL ufpFkflnsf 1 269
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SANA KISAN BIKAS LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Babarmahal, Kathmandu

Statement of Financial Position
As on Asar End 2082

Particular Notes  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Cash & Cash Equivalent 4.1         4,443,271,199.57         4,035,969,250.46 
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2            208,994,041.76            209,494,041.76 
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions 4.3         1,986,800,000.00         1,414,400,000.00 
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4                               -                                 -   
Other Trading Assets 4.5                               -                                 -   
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives(Net) 4.6        34,301,447,827.08        38,123,180,344.99 
Loan & advances to customers 4.7              62,380,147.84              46,822,096.87 
Investment Securities 4.8              27,634,813.35              26,250,238.19 
Current Tax Assets 4.9              10,433,921.70              16,425,616.71 
Investment Property 4.10                               -                                 -   
Property and Equipment 4.11            262,450,069.59            268,013,417.98 
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12              94,683,605.55              93,067,834.77 
Deferred tax assets 4.13              26,814,103.92              24,627,091.99 
Other assets 4.14              80,063,572.59              92,543,743.37 
Total Assets          41,504,973,302.96        44,350,793,677.09 
Liabilities      
Due to Bank & Financial Institutions 4.15         6,031,813,614.55        11,322,434,480.01 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16            118,247,541.54            118,423,039.94 
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17                               -                                 -   
Deposits from Customers 4.18         4,040,859,444.40         2,838,929,397.87 
Borrowing 4.19        20,586,038,667.00        20,146,222,372.50 
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9                                 -   
Provisions 4.20                               -                                 -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13                               -                                 -   
Other liabilities 4.21            404,388,962.99            437,702,917.61 
Debt Securities Issued 4.22                               -                                 -   
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23                               -                                 -   
Total Liabilities          31,181,348,230.48        34,863,712,207.93 
Equity      
Share Capital 4.24         4,312,621,513.78         3,806,373,798.57 
Share Premium                18,269,713.60              18,269,713.60 
Retained Earnings           1,849,111,820.83         1,757,955,758.41 
Reserves 4.25         4,143,622,024.27         3,904,482,198.58 
Total Equity          10,323,625,072.48         9,487,081,469.16 
Total Liabilities & Equity          41,504,973,302.96        44,350,793,677.09 
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.26              20,811,170.92              19,685,532.62 
Net assets value per share                           239.38                         249.24 

As per our report of even date
Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

CA. Mandipa Dahal
Chief Manager

Head Finance & Planning Div.

Pritha Bahadur Thapa
Acting CEO

Khem Bahadur Pathak
Chairman

CA. Kiran Dongol
Partner

For and on Behalf of 
J.B. Rajbhandary & DiBins

Umesh Lamsal
Director

Astha Bhatta
Director

Bhim Prasad Panta
Director

Sukhadev Neupane
Director

Dipendra Raj Kafle
Director

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Date: 2082-07-26
Place: Kathmandu
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CA. Mandipa Dahal
Chief Manager

Head Finance & Planning Div.

Pritha Bahadur Thapa
Acting CEO

Khem Bahadur Pathak
Chairman

CA. Kiran Dongol
Partner

For and on Behalf of 
J.B. Rajbhandary & DiBins

Umesh Lamsal
Director

Astha Bhatta
Director

Bhim Prasad Panta
Director

Sukhadev Neupane
Director

Dipendra Raj Kafle
Director

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Date: 2082-07-26
Place: Kathmandu

SANA KISAN BIKAS LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Babarmahal, Kathmandu

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the period from 1st Shrawan 2081 to 32nd  Asar 2082

Particular Notes  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Interest Income 4.27         2,897,967,345.82         4,154,343,299.32 

Interest Expense 4.28        (1,101,592,552.74)        (1,971,883,910.01)

Net Interest Income           1,796,374,793.08         2,182,459,389.31 

Fees & Commission Income 4.29                2,825,000.00                4,285,000.00 

Fees & Commission Expense 4.30                               -                                 -   

Net Fee & Commission Income                  2,825,000.00                4,285,000.00 

Net Interest, Fee & Commission Income           1,799,199,793.08         2,186,744,389.31 

Net Trading Income 4.31                               -                                 -   

Other Operating Income 4.32              13,575,517.68                7,385,994.19 

Total Operating Income           1,812,775,310.76         2,194,130,383.50 

Impairment (Charge)/ reversal for loans & other losses 4.33           (104,076,787.43)           (436,504,160.75)

Net Operating Income           1,708,698,523.33         1,757,626,222.75 

Personnel Expenses 4.34           (313,372,498.72)           (321,198,982.54)

Other Operating expenses 4.35             (89,784,994.07)             (92,474,720.44)

Depreciation & Amortization 4.36             (29,196,135.37)             (26,967,557.44)

Operating Profit           1,276,344,895.17         1,316,984,962.33 

Non Operating Income 4.37                2,318,499.83                2,617,628.07 

Non Operating Expense 4.38                               -                                 -   

Profit before Income Tax           1,278,663,395.00         1,319,602,590.40 

Income Tax Expense 4.39           (403,657,610.62)           (397,658,158.50)

Current tax             (408,369,842.91)           (405,195,912.70)

Deferred tax                  4,712,232.29                7,537,754.20 

Profit for the year              875,005,784.38            921,944,431.89 

Profit attribute to:      

Equity holder of the Financial Institution              875,005,784.38            921,944,431.89 

Profit for the year              875,005,784.38            921,944,431.89 

Earnings per share      

Basis EPS                            20.29                          24.22 

Diluted EPS                            20.29                          24.22 
As per our report of even date

Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements
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SANA KISAN BIKAS LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Babarmahal, Kathmandu

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the period from 1st Shrawan 2081 to 32nd  Asar 2082

Particular Notes 32  Asar 2082 31  Asar 2081

Net profit for the year              875,005,784.38            921,944,431.89 

Other comprehensive income      

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss      

Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value                  1,384,575.16             (31,302,985.00)

Gains/(losses) on Revaluation      

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans                  7,032,826.00              78,745,066.05 

Income tax relating to above items                 (2,525,220.35)             (14,232,624.32)

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                  5,892,180.81              33,209,456.74 

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss      

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge      

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)      

Income tax relating to above items      

Reclassify to profit or loss      

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss      

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax                  5,892,180.81              33,209,456.74 

Total Comprehensive income for the year              880,897,965.19            955,153,888.63 

Total comprehensive income for the period              880,897,965.19            955,153,888.63 
As per our report of even date

Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

CA. Mandipa Dahal
Chief Manager

Head Finance & Planning Div.

Pritha Bahadur Thapa
Acting CEO

Khem Bahadur Pathak
Chairman

CA. Kiran Dongol
Partner

For and on Behalf of 
J.B. Rajbhandary & DiBins

Umesh Lamsal
Director

Astha Bhatta
Director

Bhim Prasad Panta
Director

Sukhadev Neupane
Director

Dipendra Raj Kafle
Director

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Date: 2082-07-26
Place: Kathmandu
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SANA KISAN BIKAS LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Babarmahal, Kathmandu

Statement of Cash Flows
For the period from 1st Shrawan 2081 to 32nd  Asar 2082

Particular 32  Asar 2082 31  Asar 2081
Cash flow from operating activities    
Interest received       2,894,427,484.33        4,143,509,169.16 
Fees and other income received                             -                                -   
Divided received                             -                                -   
Receipts from other operating activities            15,645,544.28            11,135,348.50 
Interest paid      (1,107,964,263.98)       (1,974,667,752.11)
Commission and fees paid                             -                                -   
Cash payment to employees         (167,910,473.05)         (180,587,460.50)
Other expense paid         (103,923,944.07)         (106,364,557.11)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities       1,530,274,347.51        1,893,024,747.94 
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets       1,254,171,318.35        5,435,514,346.31 
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank                             -                                -   
Placement with bank and financial institutions      (2,478,455,003.81)         (371,411,696.23)
Other trading assets                             -                                -   
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions       3,717,655,730.48        5,807,193,732.54 
Loans and advances to customers           (15,558,050.97)              7,288,923.43 
Other assets            30,528,642.66             (7,556,613.43)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities      (3,807,315,341.88)       (5,251,713,683.47)
Due to bank and financial institutions      (5,290,620,865.46)       (6,825,672,247.75)
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank               (175,498.40)                              -   
Deposit from customers       1,201,930,046.53          983,342,977.71 
Borrowings          439,816,294.50          848,826,177.31 
Other liabilities         (158,265,319.05)         (258,210,590.74)
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid      (1,022,869,676.02)        2,076,825,410.78 
Income taxes paid         (414,361,537.93)         (394,053,658.38)
Net cash flow from operating activities      (1,437,231,213.95)        1,682,771,752.40 
Cash flow from Investing activities                             -    
Purchase of investment securities                             -                                -   
Receipts from sale of investment securities                             -                                -   
Purchase of property and equipment           (22,897,551.72)           (14,141,773.59)
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment                             -                                -   
Purchase of intangible assets             (2,351,006.04)             (1,339,242.99)
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets                             -                                -   
Purchase of investment properties                             -                                -   
Receipt from the sale of investment properties                             -                                -   
Interest received                             -                                -   
Dividend received                754,973.40                 535,645.69 
Net cash flow from Investing activities           (24,493,584.36)           (14,945,370.89)
Cash flow from financing activities                             -    
Receipt from issue of debt securities                             -    
Repayment of debt securities                             -    
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities                             -    
Repayment of subordinated liabilities                             -    
Receipt from issue of shares          506,247,715.21          474,755,594.13 
Dividends paid         (532,892,331.80)         (499,742,730.67)
Interest paid                             -                                -   
Other receipt/payment           (10,883,639.80)             (9,861,074.44)
Net cash flow from financing activities           (37,528,256.39)           (34,848,210.97)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents      (1,499,253,054.69)        1,632,978,170.53 
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2081       3,251,835,131.42        1,618,856,960.88 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held    
Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 2082       1,752,582,076.73        3,251,835,131.42 

As per our report of even date
Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

CA. Mandipa Dahal
Chief Manager

Head Finance & Planning Div.

Pritha Bahadur Thapa
Acting CEO

Khem Bahadur Pathak
Chairman

CA. Kiran Dongol
Partner

For and on Behalf of 
J.B. Rajbhandary & DiBins

Umesh Lamsal
Director

Astha Bhatta
Director

Bhim Prasad Panta
Director

Sukhadev Neupane
Director

Dipendra Raj Kafle
Director

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Date: 2082-07-26
Place: Kathmandu
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SANA KISAN BIKAS LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Babarmahal, Kathmandu

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 32nd Asar 2082

(As Per NRB Regulation)
Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Net Profit for the period              875,005,784.38           921,944,431.89 

1. Approprations    

a. General Reserve             (175,001,156.88)          (184,388,886.38)

 b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund    

c. Capital redemption reserve    

d. Corporate Social Responsiability                 (8,750,057.84)             (9,219,444.32)

e. Employee training fund    

f. Client Protection fund               (13,125,086.77)             (9,219,444.32)

g. Other                                 -                                -   

  Staff Welfare Fund                                 -                                -   

  RSRF Loan Loss Provision Reserve               (14,807,780.65)             (3,960,623.20)

  Institutional Strengthening Fund               (21,875,144.61)           (27,658,332.96)

  Reconstruction Fund               (43,750,289.22)           (46,097,221.59)

Restructuring Reserve                                 -             (37,869,224.40)

Investment Adjustment Reserve                 (1,389,104.82)             (6,623,545.18)

Other                   (237,323.65)           (53,225,126.39)

 Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment              596,069,839.94           543,682,583.16 

 Regulatory adjustment    

 a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)                 (1,072,562.03)             (5,532,802.25)

 b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)    

 c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)    

 d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)    

 e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)                 (2,187,011.94)              6,694,870.11 

 f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)                                 -                                -   

 g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)    

 h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)                                 -              17,419,210.91 

 i. Other (+/-)                                -   

 Net Profit for the period end available for distribution              592,810,265.97           562,263,861.93 

Opening Retained Earning           1,757,955,758.41        1,685,135,984.19 

Adjustment(+-)                31,238,128.25            10,298,642.95 

Reserve Added Through Acquisition                                 -                                -   

Transfer From Fair Value Reserve                                 -                                -   

Transfer From CSR Fund                12,026,381.57            10,298,642.95 

Transfer from Restructure Reserve                19,211,746.68                              -   

Distribution:             (532,892,331.80)          (499,742,730.67)

Bonus Share Issued             (506,247,715.21)          (474,755,594.13)

Cash Dividend Paid               (26,644,616.59)           (24,987,136.53)

 Total Distributable Profit as at Asar end 2081           1,849,111,820.83        1,757,955,758.41 

 Eligible Dividend Per share                            42.88                         46.18 
As per our report of even date 

Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

CA. Mandipa Dahal
Chief Manager

Head Finance & Planning Div.

Pritha Bahadur Thapa
Acting CEO

Khem Bahadur Pathak
Chairman

CA. Kiran Dongol
Partner

For and on Behalf of 
J.B. Rajbhandary & DiBins

Umesh Lamsal
Director

Astha Bhatta
Director

Bhim Prasad Panta
Director

Sukhadev Neupane
Director

Dipendra Raj Kafle
Director

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Date: 2082-07-26
Place: Kathmandu
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SANA KISAN BIKAS LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Babarmahal, Kathmandu

Comparision of Unadudited and Audited Financial Statements
Statement of Financial Position

As on Asar end 2082

Particular As Per Unaudited 
Financial Statement

As Per Audited 
Financial Statement

Variance
Reason of Variance

Amount %

Cash & Cash Equivalent 4,441,371,921.27 4,443,271,199.57 1,899,278.30 0.04% Finalization of Bank reconcilation 
Statement

Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 208,994,041.76 208,994,041.76                           -             -    

Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions 1986800000 1,986,800,000.00 1,986,800,000.00           -   Changes in presentation of investment 
in FD

Derivative Financial Instruments  -                            -                             -             -    

Other Trading Assets  -                            -                             -             -    

Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 34,267,222,257.41 34,301,447,827.08       34,225,569.67       0.00  

Loan & advances to customers 44,233,568.84 62,380,147.84 18,146,579.00 41.02% Subsequent valuation of Loan to staffs

Investment Securities 26,250,238.19 27,634,813.35 1,384,575.16 5.27% Revision of fair value of investment

Current Tax Assets 18,851,054.31 10,433,921.70 -8,417,132.61 -44.65% Change in provisining

Investment Property -                            -                             -             -    

Property and Equipment 264,494,438.49 262,450,069.59 -2,044,368.90 -0.77% Impact of Lease assets

Goodwill and Intangible assets 94,683,605.55 94,683,605.55                     (0.00)      (0.00)  

Deferred tax assets 24,627,091.99 26,814,103.92 2,187,011.93 8.88% Remeasurements

Other assets 93,493,673.08 80,063,572.59 -13,430,100.49 -14.36% Regrouping, netting and fair value 
measurement effect

Total Assets 41,471,021,890.89 41,504,973,302.94 2,020,751,412.05 -0.04  

Liabilities          

Due to Bank & Financial Institutions 6,031,813,614.55 6,031,813,614.55                           -             -    

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 118,423,039.94 118,247,541.54          (175,498.40)      (0.00)  

Derivative Financial Instrument - 0.00                           -             -    

Deposits from Customers 4,040,859,444.40 4,040,859,444.40                           -             -    

Borrowing 20,586,411,601.09 20,586,038,667.00          (372,934.09)      (0.00)  

Current Tax Liabilities - 0.00                           -             -    

Provisions - 0.00                           -             -    

Deferred Tax Liabilities - 0.00                           -             -    

Other liabilities 384,018,594.30 404,388,962.99 20,370,368.69 5.30% Regrouping, netting and fair value 
measurement effect

Debt Securities Issued -                            -                             -             -    

Subordinated Liabilities -                            -                             -             -    

Total Liabilities 31,161,526,294.28 31,181,348,230.48 19,821,936.20 0.06%  

Equity          

Share Capital 4,312,621,513.76 4,312,621,513.78 0.02 0.00%  

Share Premium 18,269,713.60 18,269,713.60                           -             -    

Retained Earnings 1,840,154,212.87 1,849,111,820.83 8,957,607.96 0.49%
Changes in profit appropriation to 
reserves from current year profit 

effected in Audited

Reserves 4,138,450,156.37 4,143,622,024.27 5,171,867.90 0.12% Appropriation to reserves from current 
year profit effected in Audited

Total Equity 10,309,495,596.60 10,323,625,072.48 14,129,475.88 0.14%  

Total Liabilities & Equity 41,471,021,890.88 41,504,973,302.96 33,951,412.08 0.08%  

As per our report of even date
Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

CA. Mandipa Dahal
Chief Manager

Head Finance & Planning Div.

Pritha Bahadur Thapa
Acting CEO

Khem Bahadur Pathak
Chairman

CA. Kiran Dongol
Partner

For and on Behalf of 
J.B. Rajbhandary & DiBins

Umesh Lamsal
Director

Astha Bhatta
Director

Bhim Prasad Panta
Director

Sukhadev Neupane
Director

Dipendra Raj Kafle
Director

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Date: 2082-07-26
Place: Kathmandu
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SANA KISAN BIKAS LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Babarmahal, Kathmandu

Comparision of Unadudited and Audited Statement of Profit and loss
For the period ended 32 Asar 2082

Particular  As Per Unaudited 
Financial Statement 

As Per Audited 
Financial Statement

Variance
Reason of Variance

Amount %

Interest Income 2,893,840,130.47    2,897,967,345.82 4,127,215.35 0.14%  Amortization of deferred employee expenditure 
updated and Interest income of CPF adjusted 

Interest Expense  (1,098,841,571.33)  (1,101,592,552.74) (2,750,981.41) 0.25%  Finalization of Bank reconcilation Statement 

Net Interest Income 1,794,998,559.14    1,796,374,793.08 1,376,233.94 0.08%  

Fees & Commission Income           2,825,000.00           2,825,000.00                             -             -    

Fees & Commission Expense                               -                               -             -    

Net Fee & Commission Income           2,825,000.00           2,825,000.00                             -             -    

Net Interest, Fee & Commission 
Income

1,797,823,559.14    1,799,199,793.08 1,376,233.94 0.08%  

Net Trading Income                            -                               -                               -             -    

Other Operating Income         13,575,517.68         13,575,517.68                             -   0.00%  Subsiquent adjustment in income 

Total Operating Income 1,811,399,076.82    1,812,775,310.76 1,376,233.94 0.08%  

Impairment (Charge)/ reversal for 
loans & other losses

    (138,302,357.10)     (104,076,787.43) 34,225,569.67 (0.33)  

Net Operating Income 1,673,096,719.72    1,708,698,523.33 35,601,803.61 2.08%  

Personnel Expenses     (288,562,074.48)     (313,372,498.72) (24,810,424.24) 7.92%
 Amortization of deferred employee expenditure 

updated, change in bonus as per profit 
change,actrual valuation and welfare fund 

Other Operating expenses       (91,630,246.89)       (89,784,994.07) 1,845,252.82 -2.06%  Valuation of rent expenses as Lease ( Leasehold 
Assets) 

Depreciation & Amortization       (16,569,064.64)       (29,196,135.37) (12,627,070.73) 43.25%  Depreciation on Leasehold Assets 

Operating Profit 1,276,335,333.71    1,276,344,895.17 9,561.46 0.00%  

Non Operating Income           2,318,499.83           2,318,499.83                             -   0.00%  Change in Depreciation Grant Income 

Non Operating Expense                            -                               -                               -             -    

Profit before Income Tax 1,278,653,833.54    1,278,663,395.00 9,561.46 0.00%  

Income Tax Expense     (399,952,710.30)     (403,657,610.62) (3,704,900.32) 0.92%  

Current tax     (399,952,710.30)     (408,369,842.91) (8,417,132.61) 2.06%  Update to income tax computation in line with 
income tax act 

Deferred tax                            -             4,712,232.29 4,712,232.29 100.00%  Deferred tax income recognition 

Profit for the period 878,701,123.24       875,005,784.38 (3,695,338.86) -0.42%  

Other Comprehensive Income           5,892,180.81 5,892,180.81 100.00%  Impact of updates in Acturial Valuarion 

Total Comprehensive Income 878,701,123.24       880,897,965.19 2,196,841.95 0.25%  

As per our report of even date
Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

CA. Mandipa Dahal
Chief Manager

Head Finance & Planning Div.

Pritha Bahadur Thapa
Acting CEO

Khem Bahadur Pathak
Chairman

CA. Kiran Dongol
Partner

For and on Behalf of 
J.B. Rajbhandary & DiBins

Umesh Lamsal
Director

Astha Bhatta
Director

Bhim Prasad Panta
Director

Sukhadev Neupane
Director

Dipendra Raj Kafle
Director

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Date: 2082-07-26
Place: Kathmandu
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1.	 REPORTING ENTITY

	 Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
(SKBBL / Microfinance/ the Company) was registered 
at Office of Company Registrar as Public Limited 
Company on 2058/03/22 with registration number 
of 105635/057/058. Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta 
Bittiya Sanstha Limited (SKBBL) or “the Microfinance” 
or “the Company”) obtained license from Nepal 
Rastra Bank as ‘D’ class national level financial 
institution for working as a major wholesale lending 
microfinance institution. SKBBL provides wholesale 
credit and technical support services to Small 
Farmers Cooperatives (SFACLs), "D" Class Financial 
Institutions and other cooperatives. It provides 
various development programs to ensure access to 
microfinance services for the poor and small farmers 
across the country.

	 SKBBL operates its business from its corporate office 
at Babarmahal, Kathmandu. It has 12 branch offices 
spread across Nepal. The Microfinance is listed in 
Nepal Stock Exchange and is trading under the code 
SKBBL.

	 Authorized capital of SKBBL is NPR 5,000,000,000.00 
(shares of NPR 100 each), Issued Capital of SKBBL is 
4,312,621,5.1376 (Shares of NPR 100 each), and Paid-
up capital is NPR 4,312,621,513.76. The shareholder 
composition of the microfinance (as of 2082-03-32) is 
presented in Note 4.24. 

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

	 The principal accounting policies applied in the 
preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. 

	 The financial statements comprise the Statement of 
Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown in 
two separate statements, the Statement of Changes 
in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes 
to the Accounts. The significant accounting policies 
applied in the preparation of financial statements are 
set out below in point number 3. These policies are 
consistently applied to all the years presented, except 
for the changes in accounting policies disclosed 
specifically. 

2.1	 Statement of Compliance

	 The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 

(NFRS) as adopted by the Accounting Standards 
Board (ASB) – Nepal. The financial statements have 
been prepared on the going concern basis.

	 SKBBL presents its statement of financial position 
broadly in order of liquidity, an analysis regarding 
recovery or settlement within twelve months after 
the reporting date (current) and more than twelve 
months after the reporting date (non-current) is 
presented in the respective notes.

2.1.1	Reporting pronouncements 

	 The Accounting Standards Board of Nepal has 
developed NFRS 2018 by converging with International 
Financial Reporting Standards 2018 (IFRS) as issued by 
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). 
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal has 
pronounced implementation of NFRS. Accordingly, 
the accompanying financial statements for the year 
ended July 16, 2025 are prepared in accordance with 
NFRS.

2.1.2	Carve-outs in NFRS 

	 Interest revenue shall be calculated by using the 
effective interest method (see Appendix A and 
paragraphs B5.4.1–B5.4.7). This shall be calculated 
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross 
carrying amount of a financial asset except for:

(a)	 purchased or originated credit-impaired 
financial assets. For those financial assets, the 
entity shall apply the credit-adjusted effective 
interest rate to the amortized cost of the 
financial asset from initial recognition.

(b)	 financial assets that are not purchased or 
originated credit-impaired financial assets but 
subsequently have become credit-impaired 
financial assets. For those financial assets, the 
entity shall apply the effective interest rate 
to the amortized cost of the financial asset 
in subsequent reporting periods. For bank or 
other financial institutions established /licensed 
by appropriate government bodies, interest 
revenue can be recognized as per the Guidance 
Note issued by respective regulators.

 	 SKBBL has recognized interest income in compliance 
with the “Guidance Note on Interest Income 
Recognition, 2025” issued by regulator.

 2.	 Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments or receipts through 

Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 32nd Asar 2082 (16th July, 2025)
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the expected life of the financial asset or financial 
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial 
asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. 
When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity 
shall estimate the expected cash flows by considering 
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument 
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar 
options) but shall not consider the expected credit 
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points 
paid or received between parties to the contract that 
are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see 
paragraphs B5.4.1–B5.4.3), transaction costs, and all 
other premiums or discounts, unless it is impracticable 
to determine reliably between parties to the contract 
that are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate (see paragraphs B5.4.1-B5.4.3), transaction 
costs, and all over premiums or discounts. There is a 
presumption that the cash flows and the expected 
life of a group of similar financial instruments can 
be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases 
when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash 
flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or 
group of financial instruments), the entity shall use 
the contractual cash flows over the full contractual 
term of the financial instrument (or group of financial 
instruments).

 	 SKBBL has no practice of charging management 
fees or commission on loans and advances. So, the 

applicable interest rate is effective interest rate for the 
loan.

 3. 	 Loss allowance is the allowance for expected credit 
losses on financial assets measured in accordance with 
paragraph 4.1.2, lease receivables and contract assets, 
the accumulated impairment amount for financial 
assets measured in accordance with paragraph 4.1.2A 
and the provision for expected credit losses on loan 
commitments and financial guarantee contracts 
unless the entity is bank or other financial institutions 
established /licensed by appropriate government 
bodies. For such entities, loss allowance shall be 
higher of total amount derived as per the respective 
regulatory norms for loan loss provision or measured 
as per paragraph 5.5.

2.2	 Reporting Period and Approval of financial 
statements

	 Reporting Period is a period from the first day of 
Sharwan (mid-July) of any year to the last day of Asar 
(mid-July) of the next year as per Nepalese calendar. 

	 The current year period refers to 1st Sharwan 
2081 to 32nd Asar 2082 as per Nepalese Calendar 
corresponding to 16th July 2024 to 16th July 2025 as 
per English Calendar and corresponding previous 
year period is 1st Sharwan 2080 to 31st Asar 2081 as 
per Nepalese Calendar corresponding to 17th July 
2023 to 15th July 2024 as per English Calendar.

Relevant Financial Statement Nepalese Calendar Date/Period English Calendar Date/Period

Statement of Financial Position 32 Ashad 2082 16 July 2025

Statement of Profit/Loss 1 Shrawan 2081 to 32 Asar,2082 16 July 2024 to 16 July 2025

Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income

1 Shrawan 2081 to 32 Asar,2082 16 July 2024 to 16 July 2025

Statement of Cash flow 1 Shrawan 2081 to 32 Asar,2082 16 July 2024 to 16 July 2025

Statement of Changes in Equity 1 Shrawan 2081 to 32 Asar,2082 16 July 2024 to 16 July 2025

	 Accompanied financial statements have been 
adopted by the Board of Directors on its meeting 
no 73 and have been recommended for approval by 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. SKBBL 
prepared its financial statements in accordance 
with the requirements of Nepal Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

2.3	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The financial statements are presented in Nepalese 
Currency (NPR) (rounded to the nearest paisa unless 
otherwise stated), which is the company’s functional 
currency. SKBBL determines the functional currency 
and items included in the financial statements are 
measured using that functional currency.

2.4	 Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

	 The preparation of SKBBL’s financial statements 
requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of 
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the 
accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities. Management believes that 
the estimates used in the preparation of the financial 
statements are prudent and reasonable estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis.

	 Information about assumptions, estimates and 
judgement used in preparation of financial statements 
for 2081/82 that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
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material adjustment within the next financial year are:

•	 Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow 
projections.

•	 Measurement of defined benefit obligations.

•	 Provisions, commitments and contingencies.

•	 Determination of net realizable value.

•	 Determination of useful life of the property, 
plants and equipment.

•	 Assessment of SKBBL’s ability to continue as 
going concern.

•	 Determination of fair value of financial 
instruments; and property and equipment.

•	 Impairment of financial and non-financial 
assets.

•	 Assessment of current as well as deferred tax.

Expected Credit Losses	

The measurement of impairment losses across the 
categories of financial assets under Nepal Financial 
Reporting Standard - NFRS 9 on “Financial Instruments” 
(NFRS 9) requires judgement, in particular, the estimation 
of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral 
values when determining impairment losses.

Accordingly, the Microfinance reviews its individually 
significant loans and advances portfolio at each reporting 
date to assess whether an impairment loss is to be 
recognized in the Income Statement. In particular, the 
Management’s judgement is required in the estimation 
of the amount and timing of future cash flows when 
determining the impairment loss. In estimating these cash 
flows, Management makes judgements about a borrower’s 
financial situation and the net realizable value of any 
underlying collateral (foreclosure) and expected cash from 
operations. These estimates are based on assumptions 
about a number of factors and hence actual results may 
differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment 
allowance made. 

A collective impairment provision is established for:

•	 Microfinance’s homogeneous loans and advances 
that are not considered individually significant; and

•	 Assets of microfinance that are individually significant 
but that were not found to be individually impaired.

	 Following NFRS 9, the Microfinance’s Expected 
Credit Loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of complex 
models with a number of underlying assumptions 
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their 
interdependencies. Elements of the Microfinance’s 
ECL models that are considered accounting 
judgements and estimates include:

•	 Criteria for qualitatively assessing whether there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) and 
if so, allowances for financial assets measured on a 

Lifetime Expected Credit Loss (LT - ECL) basis.

•	 Segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is 
assessed on a collective basis.

•	 Various statistical formulas and the choice of inputs 
used in the development of ECL models.

•	 Associations between macroeconomic inputs, such as 
GDP growth, inflation, interest rates, exchange rates 
and unemployment and the effect of these inputs on 
Probability of Default (PDs).

•	 Forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their 
probability weightings.

•	 Coupon rate of loan has been considered by the 
Microfinance as effective interest rate.

	 As such, the accuracy of the impairment provision 
depends on the model assumptions and parameters 
used in determining the ECL calculations.

	 Further, the Microfinance has assigned weightages 
for base (normal) case, best case and worst-case 
scenarios when assessing the probability weighted 
forward looking macro-economic indicators.

2.5	 Changes in Accounting policies

	 SKBBL has consistently applied the accounting 
policies to all periods presented in these financial 
statements except for new or revised statements and 
interpretations implemented during the year. The 
nature and effect of new standards and interpretations 
are discussed in note that follows.

2.6	 New reporting standards in issue but not yet 
effective

	 A number of new standards and amendments to the 
existing standards and interpretations have been 
issued by IASB- after the pronouncements of NFRS 
with varying effective dates. Those become applicable 
when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. The 
standards and interpretations that are issued, but not 
yet effective, up to the date of issuance of SKBBL’s 
financial statements are disclosed below. SKBBL 
intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when 
they become effective. 

	 NFRS 17 Insurance Contract has been issued but is 
not effective until current period.

2.7	 New Standard and Interpretation not adopted: 

	 All Accounting standards along with carve outs, 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Nepal (ICAN) has been incorporated.

2.8	 Discounting

	 Discounting has been applied where assets and 
liabilities are non-current where the impact of the 
discounting is material.
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3.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 The principal accounting policies applied by SKBBL 
in the preparation of these financial statements 
are presented below. These policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented unless 
stated otherwise.

3.1	 Basis of Measurement

	 The financial statements are prepared on the 
historical-cost basis except for the required material 
items in the statement of financial position where 
it has been disclosed as measured at fair value or 
otherwise.

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations 
of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. The estimates and judgements 
used in the preparation of the financial statements 
are continuously evaluated by SKBBL. Any revision 
to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively 
in the period in which the estimates are revised and 
in the future periods. The areas involving a higher 
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements, are disclosed in notes that 
follow.

3.2	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 The fair value of Cash and Cash Equivalents is the 
carrying amount. Cash and Cash Equivalents represent 
the amount of cash in hand, balances with other bank 
and financial institutions, money at short notice and 
highly liquid financial assets with original maturities 
of three months or less from the acquisition date 
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
their value and used by SKBBL in the management of 
short-term commitment.

3.3	 Financial assets and financial liabilities

	 Recognition

	 The Microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset 
or a financial liability in its statement of financial 
position when, and only when, it becomes party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. SKBBL 
initially recognize loans and advances and debt 
securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the 
date that they are originated which is the date that 
the microfinance becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. Investments in 
equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government 
securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse 
repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade 

date at which SKBBL commits to purchase/ acquire 
the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale 
of financial assets are recognized on trade date. All 
financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized 
at their cost value and are subsequently presented as 
per NFRS based on the respective classification.

	 Classification

i.	 Financial Assets

	 The Microfinance classifies the financial assets 
as subsequently measured at amortized cost 
or fair value on the basis of the Microfinance’s 
business model for managing the financial assets 
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of 
the financial assets. The two classes of financial 
assets are as follows:

1.	 Financial assets measured at amortized cost

	 The Microfinance classifies a financial asset 
measured at amortized cost if both of the 
following conditions are met:

a)	 The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets in order 
to collect contractual cash flows and

b)	 The contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

2.	 Financial asset measured at fair value

	 Financial assets other than those measured 
at amortized cost are measured at fair value. 
Financial assets measured at fair value are 
further classified into two categories as below:

a)	 Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss

	 Financial assets are classified as fair value 
through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are 
held for trading or are designated at 
fair value through profit or loss. Upon 
initial recognition, transaction costs are 
directly attributable to the acquisition are 
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 
Such assets are subsequently measured 
at fair value and changes in fair value are 
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b)	 Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

	 Investment in an equity instrument that 
is not held for trading and at the initial 
recognition, the Microfinance makes an 
irrevocable election that the subsequent 
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changes in fair value of the instrument is 
to be recognized in other comprehensive 
income are classified as financial assets at 
fair value though other comprehensive 
income. Such assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value and changes 
in fair value are recognized in other 
comprehensive income.

	ii.	 Financial Liabilities  

	 The Microfinance classifies the financial 
liabilities as follows:

a)	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss

	 Financial liabilities are classified as fair value 
through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held 
for trading or are designated at fair value 
through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, 
transaction costs are directly attributable to 
the acquisition are recognized in Statement of 
Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes 
in fair value is recognized at profit or loss

b)	 Financial liabilities measured at amortized 
cost

	 All financial liabilities other than measured at 
fair value though profit or loss are classified 
as subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using effective interest method.

	 Measurement

	 Financial assets at FVTOCI

	 On initial recognition, the Microfinance can make an 
irrevocable election (on an instrument-by instrument 
basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair 
value in other comprehensive income pertaining to 
investments in equity instruments. This election is not 
permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. 
These elected investments are initially measured at 
fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair 
value with gains and losses arising from changes in 
fair value recognized in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in the ‘Fair Value Reserve’.   The 
cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement 
of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

•	 it has been acquired principally for the purpose 
of selling it in the near term; or

•	 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio 
of identified financial instruments that the 
Company manages together and has a recent 
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

•	 it is a derivative that is not designated and 
effective as a hedging instrument or a financial 

guarantee. 

	 Dividends on these investments in equity instruments 
are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when 
the Microfinance’s right to receive the dividends is 
established, it is probable that the economic benefits 
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, 
the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of 
cost of the investment and the amount of dividend 
can be measured reliably. Dividends recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the ‘Net 
Trading Income’ line item.

	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL)

	 Investments in equity instruments are classified as 
at FVTPL, unless the Microfinance irrevocably elects 
on initial recognition to present subsequent changes 
in fair value in other comprehensive income for 
investments in equity instruments which are not held 
for trading.

	 Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost 
criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at 
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the 
amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are 
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

	 A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria 
or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may 
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if 
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces 
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that 
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or 
recognizing the gains and losses on them on different 
bases.

	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

	 Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the 
financial liability is held for trading or is designated as 
at FVTPL.

	 A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

•	 it has been incurred principally for the purpose 
of repurchasing it in the near term; or

•	 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio 
of identified financial instruments that the 
Company manages together and has a recent 
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

	 A financial liability other than a financial liability held 
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition if:

•	 such designation eliminates or significantly 
reduces a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

•	 the financial liability forms part of a company 



84

of financial assets or financial liabilities or 
both, which is managed and its performance 
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance 
with the Company’s documented risk 
management or investment strategy, and 
information about the Company is provided 
internally on that basis; or

•	 it forms part of a contract containing one 
or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9 
permits the entire combined contract to be 
designated as at FVTPL in accordance with 
NFRS 9 

	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, 
with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement 
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net 
gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit and 
Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial 
liability.

	 However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities 
that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of 
change in the fair value of the financial liability that 
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that 
liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, 
unless the recognition of the effects of changes 
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive 
income would create or enlarge an accounting 
mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects 
of changes in credit risk are recognized in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change 
in the fair value of liability is always recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value 
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that 
are recognized in other comprehensive income are 
reflected immediately in retained earnings and are 
not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

	 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at 
amortized cost

	 Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and 
are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at 
amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting 
periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities 
that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are 
determined based on the effective interest method. 
Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs 
of an asset is included in the ‘Interest Expenses’ line 
item.

	 The effective interest method is a method of 
calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability 
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant 
period. 

	 De-recognition

	 Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to 
receive cash flows from the assets have expired or 
where the Microfinance has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. If substantially all 
the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor 
transferred and the Microf inance has retained 
control, the assets continue to be recognized to the 
extent of the Microfinance’s continuing involvement.

	 Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are 
extinguished. A financial liability is extinguished when 
the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

	 Determination of fair value

	 ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in 
an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date in the principal or, in its 
absence, the most advantageous market to which 
SKBBL has access at that date. The fair value of a 
liability reflects its non-performance risk.

	 The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

	 Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived 
from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities.

	 Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for 
similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices 
for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets 
and financial instruments valued using models where 
all significant inputs are observable.

	 Level 3 portfolios are those where there are 
unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs 
are not based on observable market data.

	 The best evidence of the fair value of a financial 
instrument at initial recognition is normally the 
transaction price i.e. the fair value of the consideration 
given or received. If the Microfinance determines 
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from 
the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced 
neither by a quoted price in an active market for an 
identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation) nor 
based on a valuation technique that uses only data 
from observable markets (Level 02 valuation), then 
the financial instrument is initially measured at fair 
value, adjusted to defer the difference between the 
fair value at initial recognition and the transaction 
price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in 
profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of 
the instrument but not later than when the valuation 
is wholly supported by observable market data or 
the transaction is closed out. In case the fair value 
is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market 
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for an identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation), 
the difference between the transaction price and fair 
value is recognized in profit or loss immediately.

	 Impairment

 	 During the year FY 2081/82, The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and Accounting 
Standards Board of Nepal (ASB Nepal) has pronounced 
that full version of NFRS 9 containing Expected Credit 
Loss (ECL) to be effective from Shrawan 1st, 2081 and 
financial statements of Ashad end 2082 (including 
quarterly financials thereon) incorporates ECL 
reporting. In relation to the same, “NFRS 9 – Expected 
Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024 was pronounced 
by the Bank and Financial Institution regulation 
department of Nepal Rastra Bank on Jestha 1st 2081, 
providing detailed guidelines for the consistent and 
prudent application of NFRS 9.

	 Initially, the updated standard of NFRS 9: Financial 
Instruments (in line with NFRSs 2018) was pronounced 
by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) 
to be effective from 16th July 2021. However, due 
to various reasons including challenges posed by 
emergence of COVID, limited time availability and 
lack of technical expertise, full implementation of 
NFRS 9 was deferred till FY 2080/81, for banks and 
financial institutions. Hence, the provisions of NFRS 9 
that includes expected credit loss, is fully effective in 
the Microfinance from FY 2081/82. 

	 The Microfinance recognizes a loss allowance for 
expected credit losses on a financial asset that are 
measured at Amortized Cost (AC), Fair Value Through 
Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI), a lease 
receivable, a contract asset or a loan commitment 
and a financial guarantee contract to which the 
impairment requirements apply.

	 The ECL approach results in the early recognition of 
credit losses because it includes, not only losses that 
have already been incurred, but also expected future 
credit losses – it is a forward-looking model.

	 Any financial instrument classified and measured at 
FVTPL is not covered under impairment requirements 
of NFRS 9. The methods for the calculation of Expected 
Credit Loss is classified into 3 broad approaches:

1.	 General approach 

	 These approaches are applicable to financial 
assets measured at amortized cost, financial 
assets measured at FVOCI with recycling, 
Loan commitments (not at FVTPL), Financial 
guarantee contracts (not at FVTPL).

	 Lifetime ECL is recognized for all financial assets 
where the credit risk has increased significantly 

since initial recognition. 

	 At the reporting date, if the credit risk has not 
increased significantly since initial recognition, 
the microfinance measures the loss allowance 
for those financial assets at an amount equal to 
12- month ECL.

	 For loan commitments and financial guarantee 
contracts, the date that the entity becomes 
party to the irrevocable commitments is 
considered to be the date of initial recognition 
for the purpose of applying the impairment 
requirements. The microfinance recognizes in 
profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the 
amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) 
that is required to adjust the loss allowance 
at the reporting date to the amount that is 
required to be recognized in accordance with  
NFRS 9.

	 Under the general approach, NFRS 9 recognizes 
a three-stage approach to measure expected 
credit losses and recognize interest income.

	 Stage 1: 

	 The financial instruments that have not had 
a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition are classified in Stage 1. The Financial 
instruments at stage 1 require, at initial recognition, 
a provision for ECL associated with the probability 
of default events occurring within the next 12 
months (12-month ECL). For those financial assets 
with a remaining maturity of less than 12 months, a 
Probability of Default (PD) is used that corresponds to 
the remaining maturity. Interest is calculated on the 
gross carrying amount of the financial asset before 
adjusting for ECL.

This stage includes the following:

i.	 Initially recognized financial instruments (other 
than those purchased or originated credit 
impaired financial assets)

ii.	 Financial instruments having no significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

iii.	 Financial assets for which contractual payments 
are not overdue or are overdue for up to 1 
month.

iv.	 Financial instruments having low credit risk at 
the reporting date.

	 For this purpose, instruments with low credit risk 
include:

•	 All exposures on Nepal 
Government/Province/Local Level or Nepal 
Rastra Bank
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•	 Exposures fully guaranteed by Nepal 
Government/Province/Local Level.

•	 Foreign Sovereign exposures having rating 
BBB- and above from an external rating agency 
at the reporting date.

•	 All exposures on BIS, IMF, EC, ECB and multilateral 
development banks with risk weight of 0% as 
defined in Capital Adequacy Framework 2015.

•	 Debenture/bonds having rating of AA or above 
at reporting date from external credit rating 
agency.

 	 The microfinance determines at each reporting 
date whether the financial instruments meet the 
requirement of low credit risk. If the instrument 
does not meet the requirement of low credit risk, the 
Microfinance determines whether the risk of default 
on the financial instrument has been increased 
significantly or not after initial recognition. If the risk 
has been increased, the instruments are classified 
under stage 2 and accordingly lifetime ECL is 
recognized.

	 Stage 2:

	 The financial instruments having significant increase 
in credit risk since initial recognition are classified 
in Stage 2. A provision is required for the lifetime 
ECL representing losses over the life of the financial 
instrument (lifetime ECL). Interest income is continued 
to be recognized on a gross basis.

	 This stage includes the following:

i.	 Financial instruments having significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

ii.	 Financial instruments having contractual 
payments overdue for more than 1 month but 
not exceeding 3 months.

iii.	 Loans classified as ‘Watchlist’ as per NRB 
directive on prudential provisioning.

iv.	 Loans without approved credit line or with 
credit line revoked by microfinance.

v.	 Loan that has been restructured/rescheduled 
but not classified as non-performing loan as per 
existing provisions of NRB directives. However, 
rescheduling of installment/EMI based loans 
resulting in reduction in number of installments 
due to prepayments or change in number of 
installments due to change in interest rates 
under floating interest rate are not applicable.

vi.	 Claims on non-investment grade financial 
instruments i.e. with a credit rating of BB+ or 
below.

	 Stage 3:

	 The credit impaired or defaulted financial instruments 
are classified or moved to Stage 3. A provision is 
required for the lifetime ECL representing the losses 
over the life of the instrument (lifetime ECL) with the 
probability of default (PD) a 100%. Interest income is 
calculated on an actual receipt basis.

	 This stage includes the following:

i.	 Financial instruments having contractual 
payments overdue for more than 3 months 

ii.	 The Microfinance considers that the borrower 
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the 
Microfinance in full, without realizing securities 
(if held).

	 The indicators of unlikeness to pay include:

•	 The microfinance puts credit obligation on non-
accrued status.

•	 The Microfinance consents to distressed 
restructuring of credit obligation resulting in 
reduction in financial obligation due to material 
forgiveness, postponement of principal, interest

•	 The microfinance has filed for the debtor’s 
bankruptcy or a similar order in respect of the 
borrower’s credit obligation.

•	 The microfinance sells a part of the credit 
obligation at a material credit-related economic 
loss.

•	 The debtor has sought or has been placed in 
bankruptcy or similar protection where this 
would avoid or delay repayment of the credit 
obligation.

•	 There is evidence that full repayment based 
on contractual terms is unlikely without 
the Microfinance 's realization of collateral 
regardless of whether the exposure is current or 
past due by a few days.

iii.	 Loan is classified non- performing as per NRB 
prudential provisioning directive. 

iv.	 Credit impaired financial instruments with objective 
evidence of impairment. 

v.	 The financial assets classified as purchased or 
originated credit impaired (POCI) assets as per NFRS 9. 
POCI assets also refer to new loans disbursed during 
the current reporting period for accounts that were 
classified under Stage 3 at previous reporting date. 
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Definition of Credit Impaired Financial Instruments:

A financial instrument is credit-impaired when one or more 
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of that financial instrument have occurred. 
Evidence that a financial instrument is credit-impaired 
include observable data about the following events:

•	 Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the 
borrower.

•	 A breach of contract, such as a default or past due 
event.

•	 The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or 
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s 
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a 
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise 
consider.

•	 It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter 
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

•	 The disappearance of an active market for that 
financial instrument because of financial difficulties; 
or

•	 The purchase or origination of a financial instrument 
at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit 
losses.

	 Credit impaired financial instruments also includes 
credit impaired defined by the microfinance as per 
their risk management practices.

Indicators of significant increase in credit risk (SICR):

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition is required for determining whether the lifetime 
or the 12-month expected credit loss is to be recognized. 
NRB’s guidelines regarding Expected credit Loss has given 
the following conditions which are deemed as indicators of 
significant increase in credit risk.

i.	 More than one month past due

ii.	 Absolute lifetime PD is 5% or more

iii.	 Relative lifetime PD is increased by 100% or more

iv.	 Risk rating (internal or external) downgraded by 2 
notches since initial recognition 

v.	 Risk rating downgraded to non-investment grade by 
external credit rating agency (BB+ or below) or by 
microfinance’s internal credit rating system

vi.	 Deterioration of relevant determinants of credit risk 
(e.g. future cash flows) for an individual obligor (or 
pool of obligors)

vii.	 Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to 
financial difficulties

viii.	 Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries 
within which a borrower operates

ix.	 Borrowers affected by macroeconomic conditions 
based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.

x.	 Modification of terms resulting in 
restructuring/rescheduling

xi.	 Credit Quality Indicators determined as per internal 
credit assessment of performing loans which are 
subject to individual monitoring and review, are 
weaker than that in the initial recognition

xii.	 Management decision to strengthen collateral and/or 
covenant requirements for credit exposures because 
of changes in the credit risk of those exposures since 
initial recognition.

xiii.	 Both qualitative and quantitative factors are 
encouraged to be considered while assessing 
whether there have been significant increases in 
credit risk. Accurate identification of drivers of credit 
risk and reliable demonstration of linkage between 
those drivers and level of credit risk is also critical.

2.	 Simplified approach applicable to certain trade 
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables.

	 Under simplified approach, the entity measures loss 
allowance at an amount equal to the Lifetime ECL

•	 Mandatorily for the trade receivables or contract 
assets which do not contain the significant 
financing component.

•	 Has been applied optionally for the trade 
receivables, lease receivables and other contract 
asset which contain a significant financing 
component.

3.	 Specific approach for purchased or originated 
Credit-impaired Financial Asset. 

	 These approaches are applicable to loan and 
advances swapped, purchased or exchanged by the 
microfinances and has high credit risk.

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Nature 12 month expected credit 
loss 12 month expected credit loss 12 month expected credit loss

Risk No significant risk since initial 
recognition

Significant credit risk since initial 
recognition

Credit impaired (With objective 
evidence of impairment)

Nature Performing Performing Non-performing

Interest 
Revenue

Effective interest on gross 
carrying amount

Effective interest on gross 
carrying amount Interest on Actual Receipt Basis
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	 The microfinance is required to include the initial 
expected credit losses in the estimated cash flows 
when calculating the credit-adjusted effective 
interest rate for financial assets that are considered to 
be purchased or originated credit-impaired at initial 
recognition. Hence, only the cumulative changes in 
lifetime expected credit losses since initial recognition 
is recognized as a loss allowance for purchased or 
originated credit-impaired financial assets.

	 Portfolio segmentation:

	 Guidelines under NFRS 9 on the collective assessment 
of ECL,

•	 As per NFRS 9, depending on the nature of 
the financial instruments and the credit risk 
information available for particular groups of 
financial instruments, the microfinance may not 
be able to identify significant changes in credit 
risk for individual financial instruments before 
the financial instrument becomes past due.

•	 For the purpose of determining significant 
increases in credit risk and recognizing a loss 
allowance on a collective basis, the Microfinance 
groups financial instruments based on shared 
credit risk characteristics with the objective 
of facilitating an analysis that is designed to 
enable significant increases in credit risk to be 
identified on a timely basis.

	 The following factors are considered for Portfolio 
Segmentation while calculating ECL:

•	 The individual or collective assessment 
approaches is used depending on the ability to 
incorporate forward-looking information into 
the ECL estimate.

•	 Collective assessments is generally used for 
a large group of similar lending exposures, 
while individual assessments is considered for 
significant exposures or specific credit concerns 
as mentioned in policy

•	 Grouping exposures having similar risks helps 
estimate the impact of future factors like 
economic changes on ECL, when individual 
assessments cannot consider forward looking 
information. If the forward-looking information 
has already been considered in individual 
assessments, additional assessment on a 
collective basis is be avoided, if it results in 
double-counting.

•	 Grouping exposures in such a way that an 
increase in the credit risk of particular exposures 
is masked by the performance of the group as a 
whole is avoided.

	 Curing Period and Transfer Criteria Between 
Stages:

•	 Financial assets are transferred between 
the different categories (other than POCI) 
depending on their relative change in credit risk 
since initial recognition. Financial instruments 
are transferred out of stage 2 if their credit 
risk is no longer considered to be significantly 
increased since initial recognition based on 
the assessments described in Note and also as 
per the Policy on Upgrading of Credit Facilities. 
Financial instruments are transferred out 
of Stage 3 when they no longer exhibit any 
evidence of credit impairment as described 
above as per the Policy on Upgrading of Credit 
Facilities.

•	 The Microfinance has developed a 
comprehensive Policy on Upgrading of Credit 
Facilities in line with the NFRS 9- Expected Credit 
Loss Related Guidelines, 2024. Accordingly, 
credit facilities other than restructured and 
rescheduled facilities are upgraded to a better 
stage.

	 Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1:

	 Where there is evidence of significant reduction in 
credit risk, the Microfinance upgrades such exposure 
from Stage 2 to Stage 1. 

	 Transfer Out of Stage 3: 

	 Though the conditions for an exposure to be classified 
in Stage 3 no longer exist, the Microfinance continues 
to monitor for a minimum probationary period of 
three months to upgrade from Stage 3.

	 For Restructured/Rescheduled Exposures: 

	 The Microfinance monitors restructured/ rescheduled 
exposures classified under Stage 3 for a minimum 
probationary period of 24 months before up-
gradation.Upgrading of stages for exposures is 
executed by the Risk Management Department.

	 Provisioning for other financial assets at  
amortized cost 

	 In addition to the ECL for loans and investments as 
prescribed above, microfinance also holds other 
financial assets such as balances with bank, working 
advances and other financial assets. The microfinance 
recognizes ECL on such assets based on the historical 
loss experience measures (e.g. write off rates / 
provisioning rates) adjusted for expected losses in 
the future keeping in mind the nature of industry (e.g. 
regulated industry like banking) and credit ratings of 
such counterparties.
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	 ECL Calculation:

	 The microfinance measures ECL in a way that reflects 
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount 
determined by evaluating a range of possible 
outcomes and the reasonable and supportable 
information available without undue cost or effort 
at the reporting date, about past events, current 
conditions and forecast of future economic conditions. 
While estimating the ECLs, the Microfinance considers 
three probability-weighted scenarios (a base case, a 
best case and a worse case).

	 The calculation of ECL consists of three key 
components and discount factor:

-	 Probability of Default (PD)

-	 Loss Given Default (LGD)

-	 Exposure at Default (EAD)

	 ECL= PD*LGD*EAD*Discount Factor

i.		  Probability of Default (PD):

	 PD is an estimate of the likelihood of a default over a 
given time horizon. NFRS 9 requires separate PD for 
12-month duration and lifetime duration depending 
on the stage allocation of the borrower.  

	 For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is 
required. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 assets, a lifetime PD 
is required, for which a PD term structure needs to be 
built. 

	 PD describes the probability of a loan to eventually 
falling in default (>3 months past due) category. 
To calculate the PD, loans are classified in three 
stages based on risk profile of the individual loans. 
PD percentage is calculated for each loan account 
separately and is determined by using available 
historical observations. PD for stage 1: is derived 
as percentage of all loans in stage 1 moving into 
stage 3 in 12 months’ time. PD for stage 2: is derived 
as percentage of all loans in stage 2 moving into 
stage 3 in the maximum lifetime of the loans under 
observation. PD for stage 3: is derived as 100% 
considering that the default occurs as soon as the 
loan becomes overdue for 3 months which matches 
the definition of stage 3.

	 As per NRB Guidelines, PD is an estimate of the 
likelihood of a default over a given time horizon. With 
regards to PD estimation, the following measures are 
considered by the microfinance.

i.	 Derived PD based on historical default 
migration rates and/other data, internal and 
external credit rating etc.

ii.	 Incorporated forward-looking PD information 
as well by adjusting PD to its sensitivity to 
changes in certain macroeconomic factors.

iii.	 Used at least five-year historical data, where 
available, for calculating PDs and validate 
any smoothing of data or inputs by the Risk 
Management Department.

	 Irrespective of results derived by the model of 
the Microfinance, prudential floor of 2.5%  as 
prescribed by the NRB is used. 

ii.	 Loss Given Default (LGD):

	 LGD is the percentage of exposure that is not expected 
to be recovered in the event of a default. The LGD is 
usually defined as the amount of credit that is lost by 
a financial institution when an obligor defaults.

	 LGD models are developed based on historical data, 
historical experience of cash recovery from defaults 
(including settlements), cost and time of recoveries 
and all other relevant and supportable information 
(including forward looking information). 

	 While determining loss rate or recovery rate for the 
purpose of calculation of loss allowance, expected 
cash flows from collateral realization are to be 
considered based on latest reliable internal/external 
valuations. Microfinance deploys its internal team or 
forms a committee to review the value of collateral as 
required.

	 It is recommended to pursue computation of LGD in 
the following order: 

i.	 Use historical actual recovery rates in first place. 

ii.	 If historical rates are unavailable, use valuation 
(prudential floors) for ECL calculation as outlined 
in this guideline taking into account disposal 
time and costs until expected disposal of 
collateral or assets. However, value of collateral 
or assets for loans that have defaulted and BFIs 
have also not been able to realize within 5 years 
of default, cannot be used for determining loss 
or recovery rates. 

iii.	 If such net realizable value of collateral or other 
sources are reliably undeterminable and BFIs 
are unable to compute LGDs due to lack of data 
or inputs, they are required to obtain approval 
of the same from the board of directors. Such 
BFIs are required to use a minimum LGD of 45 
per cent for such credit exposures. 

	 Note: BFIs should demonstrate via sound back-
testing that the assumptions used are reasonable 
and grounded in observed experience. In this 
context, BFIs should regularly back-test their 
valuation history (last valuation before the asset 
was classified as a NPL or Stage 3) vs. their sales 
history (net sales price of collateral). 
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iii.	 Exposure at Default (EAD):

	 Exposure at Default (EAD) refers to the expected 
exposure to a borrower at the event of default. 

	 This is dynamic in nature and keeps changing when 
the borrower repays his debt or obligation or take 
additional debt.

 	 For  all stage accounts, the following elements is 
considered for computation of EAD under NFRS 9 at 
the instrument or facility level:

•	 Time horizon over which EAD needs to be 
estimated.

•	 Projected cash flows till the estimated default 
point.

•	 Residual maturity.

•	 Deterministic or non-deterministic nature of 
the payment terms.

	 The methodology of EAD varies according to 
the nature of the product. The products are 
separated into three main categories. 

•	 Funded Loans:

	 In the case of the funded loans made available 
at the predetermined moment or where the 
total amount is loaned at the initial recognition, 
the exposure at default is the total amount 
outstanding at that time plus any accrued 
interest receivable income booked  till  reporting 
date.

	 Consideration of Reasonable and Supportable 
Information:

	 The microfinance uses experienced credit judgment 
in determining whether the information used for 
the assessment of credit risk and measurement of 
ECL is, reasonable and supportable. The information 
considered includes the information about past 
events, present conditions and forecasts of future 
economic conditions.

	 Consideration of Forward-looking Information:

	 The microfinance incorporates forward-looking 
information into both its assessment as to whether the 
credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly 
since its initial recognition and its measurement of 
ECL.

	 The Microfinance also obtained experienced 
credit judgement from economic outlook and Risk 
Management Departments to formulate a base case, 
a best case and a worst-case scenario. The base case 
represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with 
information used by the microfinance for strategic 
planning and budgeting. Quantitative economic 

factors are based on economic data and forecasts 
published by the NSO, NRB, and other reliable sources 
and statistical models. The Microfinance also obtained 
experienced credit judgement from economic outlook 
and Risk Management Departments to formulate a 
base case, a best case and a worst-case scenario. The 
base case represents a most-likely outcome and is 
aligned with information used by the microfinance 
for strategic planning and budgeting. Quantitative 
economic factors are based on economic data and 
forecasts published by the NSO, NRB, and other 
reliable sources and statistical models.

	 Drivers of Credit Risk

	 Parameters	 Sources	

	 GDP 	 CBS

	 Agricultural GDP 	 NRB

	 Inflation 	 World Bank

	 Unemployment Rate 	 NRB

	 Interest Rate 	 NRB

	 Remittance Inflow 	 NRB

	 Per Capita Income 	 CBS

	 Consideration of Time Value of Money:

	 The lifetime Expected Credit Loss (LTECL) is discounted 
to the reporting date, not to the expected default 
or some other date, using the coupon interest rate 
determined at initial recognition or approximation 
thereof, that will be applied when recognizing the 
financial assets resulting from the loan commitment.

	 Collateral valuation

	 The microfinance seeks to use collateral, where 
possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The 
collateral comes in various forms such as cash, gold, 
Government Securities, Letters of Credit/Guarantees, 
real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-
financial assets and credit enhancements such as 
netting agreements, etc. While determining loss rate 
or recovery rate for the purpose of calculation of 
loss allowance, expected cash flows from collateral 
realization have been considered based on latest 
reliable internal/external valuations. 

	 Net realizable value of all other collateral or other 
sources that BFIs have legal right to recover from, 
shall be determined as current fair value less 25% 
haircut. 

	 The following table provides the quantitative 
information about the fair value of the collateral held 
by the microfinance for the financial assets that have 
been credit impaired (Stage 3) as at the reporting 
date:
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Type of Collateral
Total exposures in 

Stage 3
Fair Value of Collateral 

Pledged
Carrying Amount of Financial 

Assets Secured
Land 34,046,328.99 40,383,093.94 33,956,037.63
Buildings  

Vehicles    

cash deposits    

Securities    

Gold/Silver    

Other Assets    

Multiple assets class

	 No Impairment due to use of Collateral:
	 The information about the financial instruments for which the Microfinance has not recognized loss allowance 

because of the collateral has been disclosed below. The Net Realizable value of the collateral has been determined as 
the fair value less hair cut and realization cost as prescribed by NRB for different types of collateral.

	 The details of such financial assets ( loans and advances) are given below:

Loan Products Total Loan Exposures NRV of Collateral Pledged Description of Collateral
Collective 400,878,675.68 625,590,703.11 Land
Individual 3,138,647,653.91 6,586,058,630.85 Land

	 Impact on adoption of adoption of NFRS 9 
	 Impact on equity
	 The microfinance has transitioned to Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for recognizing impairment on the financial 

assets from the current year. In accordance with NFRS 9 and NRB Directives, the Microfinance has not restated prior 
period figures. Instead, the increase in impairment provisions resulting from the application of the ECL Model has 
been determined as Day 1 impact and disclosed separately. The additional provision, net of the tax, represents a 
reduction in the shareholder’s equity as at the date of the transition, although no adjustment has been made to the 
comparative financial statements of the prior periods.

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Total Equity as on 1st Shrawan 2081

Adjustment due to first time adoption of ECL

Adjusted Total Equity as on 1st Shrawan 2081

	 Impact on regulatory Capital
	 There is no impact on regulatory capital as the transition to impairment as per NFRS 9 applying from the fiscal year 

2081/82.

Particulars Tier 1 capital Tier 2 capital Total Capital Fund
Regulatory capital as on 1st Shrawan 2081 Same Same Same

Adjustment due to first time adoption of ECL

Adjusted Regulatory capital as on 1st Shrawan 2081

Total Risk weighted Assets (RWA)

CAR before adjustment

CAR after adjustment

	 Presentation of allowance for Expected Credit Loss in the statement of Financial Position:
	 Loss allowance as per the ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

•	 Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

•	 For advances measured at cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the advances.

•	 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision in other liabilities

•	 Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Microfinance cannot 
identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn component and 
instead presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a 
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deduction from the gross carrying amount of 
the drawn component. Any excess of the loss 
allowance over the gross amount of the drawn 
component is presented as a provision; and

•	 Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: No 
loss allowance is recognized in the statement of 
financial position because the carrying amount 
of these assets is their fair value. However, the 
loss allowance is disclosed and is recognized in 
OCI.

	 Scenario probability weighting (Microfinance)

Scenario
As on Asar 
end 2082

As on Asar 
end 2081

Best Case 20% 20%
Base (Normal) Case 30% 30%
Worst Case 50% 50%

	 The Microfinance has not changed probability 
weighting for the scenario through out the year.

	 Impairment of investment in equity instrument 
classified as fair value though other comprehensive 
income

	 Objective evidence of impairment of investment in 
an equity instrument is a significant or prolonged 
decline in its fair value below its cost. Impairment 
losses are recognized by reclassifying the losses 
accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to 
profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss is the difference between 
the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment 
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss 
recognized previously in profit or loss.

3.4	 Trading Asset:
	 Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held 

for trading) if they have been acquired principally for 
the purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of 
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are 
managed together and for which there is evidence 
of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They 
are recognized on trade date, when the bank enters 
into contractual arrangements with counterparties, 
and are normally derecognized when sold. They are 
initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs 
taken to profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their 
fair values are recognized in profit or loss.

3.5	 Property and Equipment
a)	 Recognition and Measurement
	 Property and Equipment are recognized if 

it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the assets will flow to the 
Microfinance and the cost of the asset can 
be reliably measured. The cost includes 
expenditures that are directly attributable 

to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-
constructed assets includes followings:

•	 Cost of materials and direct labour;

•	 Any other cost directly attributable to 
bringing the assets to the working condition 
for their intended use; and

•	 Capitalized borrowing cost

b)	 Depreciation-Rate applied is charged as per 
NAS-16 

	 Property, plant and equipment are depreciated 
from the date they are available for use, on 
straight line method over estimated useful 
lives as determined by the Management.  
Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss. 
Charging of depreciation is ceased from the 
earlier of the date from which the asset is 
classified as held for sale or is derecognized. 
Property, plant & equipment and Intangible 
assets (software) are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation (Cost Model).

	 For assets purchased/sold during the year, 
depreciation is provided up to the date of use 
on pro-rata basis. 

Assets Useful Life 
Computer & Accessories 4 Years
Furnishing 4 Years
Furniture and Fixtures    4 Years
Office Equipment 4 Years
Plant & Machinery 7 Years
Other Assets 7 Years
Vehicle 5 years
Building 20 years
Leasehold assets are capitalized at cost and 
amortized over period of lease.

	 The value of the assets fully depreciated but 
continued to be in use is considered not 
material.

	 At each reporting date, assets are also assessed 
for indicators of impairment. In the event that 
an asset’s carrying amount is determined to be 
greater than its recoverable amount, the asset 
is written down immediately to the recoverable 
amount.

	 Assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged 
off on purchase as revenue expenditure.

	 Gains and losses on disposals are included in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.6	 Goodwill Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets with finite useful lives that 
are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
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accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses.

	 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested 
for impairment annually either individually or at the 
cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not 
amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset with 
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine 
whether indefinite life assessment continues to be 
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life 
assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a 
prospective basis.

	 The intangible asset with finite useful lives is amortized 
over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the 
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization 
period and the amortization method for an intangible 
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at 
each financial year end. Changes in the expected 
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are 
accounted for by changing the amortization period 
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes 
in accounting estimates. The amortization expense 
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in 
the statement of profit or loss.

	 Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an 
intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized 
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognized.

	 Certain computer software costs are capitalized and 
recognized as intangible assets based on materiality, 
accounting prudence and significant benefits 
expected to flow therefrom for a period longer than 
one year. 

	 The estimated useful lives of significant items of 
intangible assets for current year and comparative 
periods are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life
Computer software 5 years

	 Goodwill arising out of acquisition is initially 
measured at cost. Goodwill is measured at the excess 
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred 
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed.

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is 
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 
At the reporting date, the company has recognized 
the goodwill as intangible asset that has been arisen 
from the acquisition of erstwhile RMDC Laghubitta 

Bittiya Sanstha Limited.

	 The Goodwill recognized upon acquisition of 
erstwhile RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
has been assessed for impairment and indication of 
impairment of such goodwill has not been observed 
at the end of the reporting period. These acquisitions 
have resulted in synergistic growth in the business 
of the Group with significant boost observed in 
many key areas. As the assets acquired from these 
acquisitions along with the goodwill will continue to 
provide support in generation of future cash flows as 
well, the probability of the goodwill being impaired 
is assessed to be very low. The impairment indicators 
are being monitored regularly.

3.7	 Investment Property:

	 Investment properties are land or building or both 
other than those classified as property and equipment 
under NAS 16 – “Property, Plant and Equipment”; and 
assets classified as non-current assets held for sale 
under NFRS 5 – “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 
and Discontinued Operations”. Land and Building 
acquired as non-banking assets are recognized as 
investment property. 

3.8	 Income Tax

	 The Microfinance is subject to tax laws of Nepal. 
Income taxes have been calculated as per the 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 2058.

	 Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. 
Income tax expense is recognized in the statement 
of profit or loss except to the extent it relates to 
items directly recognized in equity or in other 
comprehensive income.

	 Current Tax

	 Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on 
the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs 
from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of 
profit and loss because of items of income or expense 
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items 
that are never taxable or deductible. 

	 Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current 
period are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date in the countries 
where the Company operates and generates taxable 
income. Current income tax assets and liabilities also 
include adjustments for tax expected to be payable or 
recoverable in respect of previous periods.

	 Deferred Tax

	 Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability 
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method, on temporary differences arising between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax 
is determined using tax rate applicable to the Bank 
as at the reporting date which is expected to apply 
when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the 
deferred tax liability is settled.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable 
that future taxable profit will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

	 Deferred tax relating to items which are charged or 
credited directly to equity, is credited or charged 
directly to equity and is subsequently recognized 
in the statement of profit or loss together with the 
deferred gain or loss.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities 
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority.

3.9	 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated 
liabilities 

	 Institution's deposits consist of money placed into 
the Institution by its customers. These deposits are 
made to deposit accounts such as fixed deposit 
accounts, savings accounts, margin deposit accounts, 
call deposit accounts and current accounts. Details 
and further disclosures about deposits have been 
explained in Note that follows. 

3.10	 Provision

	 Provisions are recognized when the Microfinance has 
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation and 
when the amount can be reliably estimated.

	 The amount recognized as a provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is 
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 
present obligation, it’s carrying amount is the present 
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time 
value of money is material).

	 When some or all of the economic benefits required to 
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from 
a third party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received 
and the amount of the receivable can be measured 
reliably.

	 A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where 

there is:

-	 a possible obligation that arises from past 
events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the entity; or

-	 present obligation that arises from past events 
but is not recognized because:

	 It is not probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation; or

	 The amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability.

	 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from 
past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the entity.

	 Commitments- Where the Microfinance has confirmed 
its intention to provide funds to a customer or on 
behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, 
future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and 
the Microfinance has not made payments at the 
reporting date, those instruments are included in 
these financial statements as commitments.

	 Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets 
and commitments are reviewed at each reporting 
period.

	 Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized 
when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Microfinance from a contract are lower than the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations 
under the contract.

3.11	 Revenue Recognition

	 Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and 
commission. Revenue is recognized to the extent it 
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Microfinance and the revenue can be reliably 
measured. Revenue is not recognized during the 
period in which its recoverability of income is not 
probable. The bases of incomes recognition are as 
below:

	 Interest income

	 Pursuant to adoption of ECL model, recognition of 
interest income has been based upon NRB, Guidance 
Note on Interest Income Recognition, 2025. 

	 For Stage 1 and Stage 2 Loans and Advances: Interest 
on gross recognition following the accrual basis

	 For Stage 3 Loans and Advances: Interest on actual 
cash receipt basis.



95

	 NFRS Requirement

	 NFRS requires interest income to be recognized 
using the effective interest method, except for those 
classified at fair value through profit or loss. The 
effective interest method is a method of calculating 
the amortized cost of a financial asset and of 
allocating the interest income over the expected 
life of the financial instrument. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated 
future cash payments or receipts over the expected 
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, 
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the 
financial asset or financial liability. The effective 
interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the 
financial asset or liability by estimating the future 
cash flows after considering all the contractual terms 
of the instrument but not future credit losses. The 
calculation includes all amounts expected to be paid 
or received by the Microfinance including expected 
early redemption fees and related penalties and 
premiums and discounts that are an integral part of 
the overall return. Once financial asset or a group 
of similar financial assets has been written down 
as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is 
recognized using the rate of interest used to discount 
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring 
the impairment loss.

	 Fee and commission income

	 Fees and commission income that are integral to the 
effective interest rate on a financial asset are included 
in measurement of effective interest rate. SKBBL has 
practice of charging management fees or commission 
on loans and advances in some special cases only 
which is very negligible so the applicable interest rate 
is effective interest rate for the loan.

	 Where the estimates of cash flows have been revised, 
the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability is 
adjusted to reflect the actual and revised cash flows, 
discounted at the instrument’s original effective 
interest rate. The adjustment is recognized as interest 
income or expense in the period in which the revision 
is made.

	 If the financial asset has been reclassified, subsequent 
increases in the estimates of future cash receipts as a 
result of increased recoverability are recognized as an 
adjustment to the effective interest rate from the date 
of the change in estimate.

	 Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial 
assets has been written down as a result of an 
impairment loss, interest income is recognized using 
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash 
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment 

loss.

	 Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value 
of financial assets are recognized directly in profit or 
loss unless an irrevocable selection is done to charge 
it through Other Comprehensive Income. Once such 
selection is done the changes in fair value is also 
charged through Other Comprehensive Income 
unless the assets is derecognized. The gain or loss 
on disposal of available for sale financial assets is 
recognized directly in profit or loss.

	 Dividend Income

	 Dividend on investment in resident company is 
recognized when the right to receive payment is 
established. Dividend income are presented in other 
operating income.

	 Net Trading Income

	 Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses from 
changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss and 
dividend from financial assets through profit and 
loss. Trading expenses are deducted from the trading 
income and the amount net of trading expenses are 
disclosed in statement of profit and loss

	 Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at 
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 

	 Net income from other financial instrument measured 
at fair value through Profit or Loss includes all 
gains/(losses) arises from the revaluation of financial 
instrument at fair value.

3.12	 Interest expense

	 Interest expense on all financial liabilities are 
recognized in profit or loss. The interest expenses so 
recognized closely approximates the interest expenses 
that would have been derived under effective interest 
rate method.  The difference is not considered 
material. 

3.13	 Employees Benefits

a)	 Short Term Employee Benefits

	 Short term employee benefit obligations are 
measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability 
is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid 
under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus Act to 
pay the amount as a result of past service provided 
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably under short term employee benefits.

	 Short-term employee benefits include all the 
following items (if payable within 12 months after the 
end of the reporting period):

•	 wages, salaries and social security 
contributions;
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•	 profit-sharing and bonuses; and

•	 non-monetary benefits 

b)	 Post-Employment Benefit Plan

	 Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i.	 Defined Contribution Plan

	 A defined contribution plan is a post-employment 
benefit plan under which an entity pays a fixed 
contribution to a separate entity and has no legal 
or constructive obligation to pay future amounts. 
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution 
plans are recognized as personnel expense in profit 
or loss in the periods during which the related service 
are rendered by employees. Pre-paid contributions 
are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash 
refund or reduction in future payments is available. 
Contributions to a defined contribution plan being 
due for more than 12 months after the end of the 
period in which the employee render the service 
are discounted at their present value. The following 
is the defined contribution plan provided by the 
Microfinance to its employees:

	 Employees Provident Fund  

	 In accordance with law, all employees of the 
Microfinance are entitled to receive benefits under the 
provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which 
both the employee and the Microfinance contribute 
monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of 
the basic salary plus grades). Microfinance does not 
assume any future liability for provident fund benefits 
other than its annual contribution.

ii.	 Defined Benefit Plan

	 Gratuity

	 For defined benefit plans, the liability recognized 
in the statement of financial position is the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair 
value of plan assets. Such obligations are estimated 
on the basis of actuarial valuation.

	 Leave Benefit

	 The employees of the Microfinance are entitled to 
carry forward a part of their unavailed/ unutilized 
leave subject to a maximum limit. The employees can 
encash unavailed/ unutilized leave partially in terms 
of Employee Service Byelaws of the Microfinance. 
The Microfinance accounts for the liability for entire 
accumulated outstanding leave balance on actuarial 
basis.

3.14	 Leases

	 The determination of whether an arrangement is a 
lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of 
the arrangement at the inception date and requires 

an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 
asset or assets and the arrangement convey a right 
to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly 
specified in an arrangement. 

	 The Institution as a Lessee:

	 The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist 
of leases for Office Premises. The Company assesses 
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception 
of a contract. At the date of commencement of the 
lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset 
(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all 
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for 
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low value leases, the Company recognizes 
the lease payments as an operating expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The 
right-of-use assets and lease liability is initially 
measured at the present value of the future lease 
payments. The lease payments are discounted using 
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 
determinable, using the incremental borrowing 
rates in the country of domicile. The lease payments 
that are not paid at the commencement date are 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which 
is generally the case for leases in the Company, the 
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being 
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay 
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset 
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar 
economic environment with similar terms, security 
and conditions.

	 Lease payments included in the measurement of 
the lease liability comprise fixed lease payments 
(including in-substance fixed payments) payable 
during the lease term. The right-of-use assets are 
initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made at or prior to the commencement 
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any 
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from 
the commencement date on a straight-line basis 
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life 
of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are 
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying 
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. 
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the 
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value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating 
Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance 
Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

	 The Institution as a lessor:

	 SKBBL, as per prevailing laws and regulations relating to bank and financial institutions, doesn’t have any property 
which it avails for lease.

3.15	 Impairment Charge of the Microfinance for the FY 2081/82

	 The Microfinance for the current financial year has assessed impairment under para 5.5 of the NFRS 9 impairment 
model and the NRB Directive. 

	 The Microfinance, following regulatory backstop as mentioned Clause 16 of “NFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss Related 
Guidelines, 2024” has recognize impairment on credit exposures as the HIGHER of total ECL calculated as per NFRS 9 
and existing regulatory provisions as mentioned in Unified NRB Directives no 02. The Following table below depicts 
the calculation of impairment allowance as per NFRS 9 and NRB Directives:

S.N Financial Statement Items
2081/82 2080/81

As per NFRS 9 (ECL) As per NRB As per NFRS 9 (ECL) As per NRB

  On Balance Sheet Items:        

1 Cash and Cash Equivalent        

2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank        

3 Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions        

4 Derivative financial instruments        

5 Other trading assets        

6 Loan and advances to B/FIs        

7 Loans and advances to customers 1,605,892,859.66 1,292,433,571.57 1,458,386,358.29 1,501,816,072.23

8 Investment securities        

9 Current tax assets        

10 Investment in subsidiaries        

11 Investment in associates        

12 Other assets:        

       a) Lease Receivable        

       b) Contract Asset        

       c) Others        

  Off Balance Sheet Items:        

13 Loan Commitments        

14 Financial guarantee contracts        

15 Others

Total 1,605,892,859.66 1,292,433,571.57 1,458,386,358.29 1,501,816,072.23

	 Impairment Charge as per Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method

Particulars As as Asar end 2082

Loans and advances to customers (A)  1,605,892,859.66 

Other financial assets (B)

Off-balance sheet credit exposures (C)

Total impairment charges (D = A+B+C)  1,605,892,859.66 

Investments in subsidiaries (E)

Direct write-offs (F)

Total charge to Impairment Charge to Income Statements  1,605,892,859.66 
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Particulars
As at Asar end 2082

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Loans and advances to customers (A) 575,408,864.91 18,376,486.22 1,012,107,508.53 1,605,892,859.66

Other Financial Assets (B) -

Cash and cash equivalent -

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank -

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions -

Derivative Financial Instruments -

Other Trading Assets -

Other assets -

Off-balance sheet credit exposures (C) - - - -

Total impairment charges (D = A+B+C) 575,408,864.91 18,376,486.22 1,012,107,508.53 1,605,892,859.66

	 Particulars of Expected Credit Loss:

	 Advances-Exposures

Particulars
 Stage 

Receivables Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Opening Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2081 38,491,248,839.45 3,938,592.20 1,129,808,985.57 39,624,996,417.22

New Advances 18,112,674,747.74 - - 18,112,674,747.74

Repaid (12,199,172,092.93) (10,939.30) (67,854,855.91) (12,267,037,888.14)

Assets derecognized (9,444,168,256.15) (793,021.84) (118,331,312.09) (9,563,292,590.08)

Transfer to Stage 1  51,331,880.94 -   (51,331,880.94)

Transfer to Stage 2 (67,133,451.13) 67133451.13 -   

Transfer to Stage 3 (482,736,662.07) (3,134,631.06) 485,871,293.13

Off balance Sheet Exposures

Receivables

Total  34,462,045,005.85  67,133,451.13 1,378,162,229.76  -    35,907,340,686.74 

Amounts written off/charged off

Foreign Exchange Adjustments

Closing Balance 34,462,045,005.85 67,133,451.13 1,378,162,229.76 35,907,340,686.74

	 NPL as per regulatory provisions is 2.65% and as per ECL model is 3.87% as on Asar end 2082..	

	 Advances- Credit Loss Allowances

Particulars
                                              Stage

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Receivables Total

Opening Balance as on Shrawan 1 2081 638,249,581.73 1,048,225.22 819,088,551.34 1,458,386,358.29

Impact of adoption of NFRS 9

Balance on Shrawan 1 2081 after adopting NFRS 9

New Advances/Additional Charge 317,938,475.17 - -

Assets derecognized (166,557,177.54) (205,072.69) (85,905,431.89) (252,667,682.13)

Assets Repaid  952,554.15  -    (952,554.15) 82,235,708.33

Transfer to Stage 1 (18,376,486.22) 18,376,486.22 -

Transfer to Stage 2  (340,827,304.24)  (2,390,265.19)  343,217,569.43 

Transfer to Stage 3  144,029,221.87  1,547,112.67  (63,340,626.20)

Change in ECL Provision  144,029,221.87  1,547,112.67  (63,340,626.20)  -   

Off balance Sheet Exposures

Receivables

Total  575,408,864.91 18,376,486.22 1,012,107,508.53  -   1,605,892,859.66    

Amounts written off/charged off

Changes in risk parameters (PDs/LGDs/EADs)

Foreign Exchange Adjustments

Closing Balance as on Ashad 31, 2082  575,408,864.91 18,376,486.22 1,012,107,508.53 1,605,892,859.66



99

	 Loan Classification and Corresponding ECL:

Classification Stage
2081/82 2080/81

Outstanding amount ECL Outstanding Amount ECL

Performing Loans        

Pass Loan Stage 1 34,462,045,005.85 575,408,864.91 38,491,248,839.45 638,249,581.73

Watchlist Stage 2 67,133,451.13 18,376,486.22 3,938,592.20 1,048,225.22

Restructured from performing Stage 2                          -                           -                               -                            -   

Non- Performing Loans

Restructured from non-performing Stage 3 399,173,159.80 302,033,588.74 236,224,020.76 171,492,449.20

Substandard Stage 3 108,771,336.49 81,199,092.23 51,414,954.51 36,824,534.07

Doubtful Stage 3 86,086,880.65 41,642,903.53 534,381,903.13 387,330,181.32

Loss Loan Stage 3 758,084,179.61 567,778,761.02 276,078,610.37 200,421,122.97

Stage1 transferred to stage 3 Stage3  15,598,899.30  11,645,994.01  31,709,496.80  23,020,263.78 

Stage 2 transferred to stage 3 Stage3  10,447,773.91  7,807,169.00  -    -   

Off balance Sheet exposures                              -                            -   

Receivables

Total 35,907,340,686.74 1,605,892,859.66 39,624,996,417.22 1,458,386,358.29

Corresponding ECL

Stage 1 34,462,045,005.85 575,408,864.91 38,491,248,839.45 638,249,581.73

Stage 2 67,133,451.13 18,376,486.22 3,938,592.20 1,048,225.22

Stage 3 1,378,162,229.76 1,012,107,508.53 1,129,808,985.57 819,088,551.34

Off balance Sheet exposures                              -                            -   

Receivables                              -                            -   

Total 35,907,340,686.74 1,605,892,859.66 39,624,996,417.22 1,458,386,358.29

3.16	 Share Capital and Reserve

	 The Microfinance classifies the capital instruments 
as equity instruments or financial liabilities in 
accordance with the substance with the contractual 
terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual 
interest in total assets of an entity after deducting all 
its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity 
of the Microfinance and distributions thereon are 
presented in statement of changes in equity.

	 Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of 
an equity instruments are deducted from the initial 
measurement of the equity instruments.

	 The reserves include regulatory and other reserves 
excluding retained earnings.

3.17	 Earnings per share including diluted

	 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the profit/(loss) for the year by the weighted average 
number of equities shares outstanding during the 
year.

	 Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the profit/(loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, 
interest and other charges to expense or income 
(net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive 
potential equity shares, by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earnings per share and the weighted average number 
of equity shares which could have been issued on 
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only 

if their conversion to equity shares would decrease 
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary 
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are 
deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the 
period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

	 There are no instruments, such as convertibles, that 
would require dilution of EPS, therefore diluted EPS is 
same as basic EPS.

3.18	 Segment reporting
	 The Microfinance uses following basis for 

identification of the operating segments:

a)	 components from which the Microfinance earns 
revenues and incurs expenses,

b)	 components whose operating results are 
reviewed by the management to make decision 
about resource allocation to each segment and 
assess its performance, and

c)	 components for which discrete financial 
information is available.

	 Accordingly, the Microfinance has recognized 
its branch office as its operating segments since 
the Microfinance performs its business activities 
through these components.

	 Segment results that have been reported include 
items directly attributable to a segment as well 
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable 
basis. The income, expenses, assets & liabilities 
that cannot be allocated to segments identified 
or those related to head office are unallocated.
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4	 EXPLANATORY NOTES

	 The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:

4.1	 Cash & Cash Equivalent

	 The fair value of Cash and Cash Equivalent is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent represent the amount of cash in hand, balances with other bank and 
financial institutions, money at short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their value and used by the Microfinance in the management of short-term commitment.

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Cash in hand                               -   

Balances with B/FIs         1,543,538,034.95         3,042,321,089.65 

Money at call and short notice         2,899,683,164.62            993,628,160.81 

Other                    50,000.00                    20,000.00 

Total         4,443,271,199.57         4,035,969,250.46 

	 Cash and Cash equivalent balance presented under "Other" is related to balance maintained in digital wallet, Khalti.

4.2	 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

	 Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve has been presented under this account head. Balance with the central bank is 
principally maintained as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio required by the central bank.  There are regulatory and liquidity restrictions placed on the 
level of the balance with the central bank.

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Statutory balances with NRB            208,383,995.39            208,883,995.39 

Statutory balances with BFIs                               -                                 -   

Securities purchased under resale agreement                               -                                 -   

Other deposit and receivable from NRB                  610,046.37                  610,046.37 

Total            208,994,041.76            209,494,041.76 

4.3	 Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions

	 The fair value of placement with the Bank and Financial Institutions is the amortized cost discounted using the effective interest rate which is equivalent to 
interest rate in which the instrument has been placed.

	 There were placements with Bank & Financial Institution as follows:

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Placement with domestic FIs         1,986,800,000.00         1,414,400,000.00 

Less: Allowances for impairment                               -                                 -   

Total         1,986,800,000.00         1,414,400,000.00 

4.4	 Derivative Financial Instruments

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Held For trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward exchange contract

Other

Held for risk management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap
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Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Forward exchange contract

Other

Total                               -                                 -   

4.5	 Other Trading Assets

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Treasury bills

Government bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds

Equities

Other

Total                               -                                 -   

Pledged    

Non-pledged    

4.6	 Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives(Net)

	 Loan and advances given to Co-operative is shown at amortized cost and discounted using effective interest rate less the amount of impairment allowances. 

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Loans to microfinance institutions         3,223,302,825.35         3,047,731,511.75 

Loans to FIs

Loans to cooperative        32,684,037,861.39        36,577,264,905.47 

Less: allowance for impairment Other        (1,605,892,859.66)        (1,501,816,072.23)

Less: Allowances for impairment

Total        34,301,447,827.08        38,123,180,344.99 

4.6.1	 Allowances for Impairment

	 At each reporting date, the Microfinance has assessed whether there exists objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair 
value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably. 
The Microfinance deals with wholesale lending to Co-operatives and retail MFIs 

	 An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets 
measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity shall apply NFRS 9: Financial Instruments, to determine the amount of any 
impairment loss. The microfinance has measured the impairment loss on loan and advances  as the higher of amount derived as per Nepal Rastra Bank 
for loan loss provision and amount determined as per NFRS 9. The provision as per NFRS 9  is higher than the amount determined as per directive of Nepal 
rastra Bank. So, Impairment loss on Loan and Advances has been determined based  NFRS 9.

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Balance at Shrawan 1, 2081         1,501,816,072.23         1,065,311,911.48 

Impairment loss for the year:            104,076,787.43            436,504,160.75 

    Charge for the year         1,104,339,000.75            619,423,660.12 

    Recoveries/reversal        (1,000,262,213.32)           (182,919,499.37)

Amount written off

Balance at Asar 32, 2082         1,605,892,859.66         1,501,816,072.23 
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4.7	 Loan & advances to customers

	 Loan to employee provided according to the Microfinance’s Employee Byelaw is presented under this head. The staff loans have been discounted at interest rate 
of 7% and loans portion disclosed under loans and advances to customers.

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost              62,380,147.84              46,822,096.87 

Less: Impairment Allowances                               -                                 -   

Collective impairment                               -                                 -   

Individual impairment                               -                                 -   

Net Amount              62,380,147.84              46,822,096.87 

Loan and advances measured at FVTPL                               -                                 -   

Total              62,380,147.84              46,822,096.87 

4.7.1	 Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Product

Term loans                               -                                 -   

Short term, term loan                               -                                 -   

Long term, term loan                               -                                 -   

Hire purchase loans                               -                                 -   

Personal Residential Loans                               -                                 -   

Staff loans              53,710,697.61              39,330,896.64 

Other                               -                                 -   

Sub Total              53,710,697.61              39,330,896.64 

Interest receivable                8,669,450.23                7,491,200.23 

Total              62,380,147.84              46,822,096.87 

4.7.2	 Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Collateral

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Secured                               -                                 -   

Immovable assets              62,380,147.84              46,813,646.95 

Government guarantee                               -                                 -   

Collateral of Government securities                               -                                 -   

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt                               -                                 -   

Group guarantee                               -                                 -   

Personal guarantee                               -                                 -   

Other collateral                               -                                 -   

Sub Total              62,380,147.84              46,813,646.95 
Unsecured                               -                        8,449.92 

Total              62,380,147.84              46,822,096.87 

4.7.3	 Allowances for impairment

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:
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Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

     Charge for the year

     Recoveries/reversal during the year

Write-offs

Other movement

Balance at Asar end

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:

     Charge/(reversal) for the year

Other movement

Balance at Asar end

Total allowances for impairment                               -                                 -   

4.8	 Investment in Securities

	 Investments made by the Microfinance has been presented under this account head in three categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Financial assets at amortized cost                               -                                 -   

Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI              27,634,813.35              26,250,238.19 

Total              27,634,813.35              26,250,238.19 

4.8.1	 Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Debt securities                               -                                 -   

Government bonds                               -                                 -   

Government treasury bills                               -                                 -   

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds                               -                                 -   

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments                               -                                 -   

Other                               -                                 -   

Less: specific allowances for impairment                               -                                 -   

Total                               -                                 -   

4.8.2	 Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Equity instruments

     Quoted equity securities              11,835,300.00              10,446,195.18 

     Unquoted equity securities              15,799,513.35              15,804,043.01 

Total              27,634,813.35              26,250,238.19 

	 Investments in Center for Microfinance Pvt. Ltd.

	 This investment has been made as a strategic investment to support the Microfinance’s operational requirement. Similar investment in Center for 
Microfinance Pvt. Ltd. has been made by other Microfinance Institutions. This investment is not actively traded in the market and are therefore is not 
liquid.  The Microfinance has no intention to dispose these investments in foreseeable future. This investment has been carried at as the level 3 valuation, 
which is nearer to book value.
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4.8.3	 Information relating to investment in equities

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Investment in quoted equity

FORWARD Microfinance 39451 bonus share              11,835,300.00              10,446,195.18 

Investment in Unquoted equity

National Banking Institution 150994.18 Shares              15,789,513.35              15,794,043.01 

Center For MicroFinance Pvt Ltd 100 shares of Rs 100 each.                    10,000.00                    10,000.00 

Total              27,634,813.35              26,250,238.19 

	 Fair value of share investment in FORWARD Microfinance is calculated by taking total number of share due multiplied by closing market price of promotor 
share  as on Asar end 2082. In case of total number of share in National Banking Institution, 112768.18 share are bonus share.

4.9	 Current Tax Assets

	 This includes advance payment made by SKBBL towards income tax liabilities or other tax liabilities to the taxing authorities. 

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Current Tax Assets            402,447,204.37            421,621,529.42 

Current Year Income Tax Assets            402,447,204.37            416,137,918.08 

Tax assets of prior periods                5,483,611.34 

Current Tax Liabilities           (392,013,282.67)           (405,195,912.70)

Current Year Income Tax Liabilities           (392,013,282.67)           (405,195,912.70)

Tax liabilities of prior periods                               -                                 -   

Total              10,433,921.70              16,425,616.71 

4.10	 Investment Property

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2081

Addition/disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year

Adjustment/transfer

Net amount                               -                                 -   

Investment properties measured at cost

Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2081

Addition/disposal during the year

Adjustment/transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount                               -                                 -   

Total                               -                                 -   
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4.12	 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

	 Goodwill and intangible assets like computer software both purchased and internally generated etc. has been presented under this account head.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars   Goodwill 
Software

 Other Total 
 Purchased   Developed 

Cost          

As on Shrawan 1, 2080    89,808,920.83      4,747,479.24        94,556,400.07 
Addition during the Year                      -        1,339,242.99          1,339,242.99 

Acquisition                      -        1,336,750.00          1,336,750.00 

Capitalization                              -   

Disposal during the year                              -   

Adjustment/Revaluation   2492.99                2,492.99 

Acquired during the year                        -                            -   

Balance as on Asar end 2081    89,808,920.83      6,086,722.23        95,895,643.06 
Addition during the Year                      -        2,614,204.71          2,614,204.71 

Acquisition        2,614,204.71          2,614,204.71 

Capitalization                        -                            -   

Disposal during the year                              -   

Adjustment/Revaluation                              -   

Acquired during the year                        -                            -   

Balance as on Asar end 2082    89,808,920.83      8,700,926.94        98,509,847.77 
Amortization and Impairment                              -   

As on Shrawan 1, 2080        2,092,573.03          2,092,573.03 
Amortization charge for the Year           735,235.26             735,235.26 

Impairment for the year                              -   

Disposals                              -   

Adjustment                              -   

Acquired during the year                              -   

As on Asar end 2081        2,827,808.29          2,827,808.29 
Amortization charge for the Year           998,433.93             998,433.93 

Impairment for the year                              -   

Disposals                              -   

Adjustment                              -   

Acquired during the year                              -   

As on Asar end 2082        3,826,242.22          3,826,242.22 
Capital Work in Progress                              -   

Net Book Value                              -   

As on Asar end 2080    89,808,920.83      2,654,906.21        92,463,827.04 
As on Asar end 2081    89,808,920.83      3,258,913.94        93,067,834.77 
As on Asar end 2082    89,808,920.83      4,874,684.72        94,683,605.55 

4.13	 Deferred tax assets

	 Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry forward of unused tax losses, changes in tax rate etc. has been presented 
under this account head.

(Amount in NPR)

Deferred Tax on temporary differences on following item Deferred Tax asset
Deferred Tax 

Liabilities
Net Deferred Tax 
Asset/(Liabilities)

 Loan and Advance to B/Fis                            -   

 Loan and Advance to customers                           -   
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 Investment Properties                           -   

 Investment Securities     7,140,649.00      (7,140,649.00)

 Property & Equipment     7,328,925.25      (7,328,925.25)

 Employees defined benefit plan   30,365,673.10       30,365,673.10 

 Lease Liabilities  10,918,005.08       10,918,005.08 

 Other temporary differences                           -   

 Deferred tax on temporary differences  41,283,678.18  14,469,574.26     26,814,103.92 
 Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses                           -   

 Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate                           -   

 Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as on year end of Asar End 2082  41,283,678.18  14,469,574.26     26,814,103.92 
 Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2081        (24,627,091.99)

 Origination/(Reversal)during the year           2,187,011.94 

 Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in profit or loss       (4,712,232.29)
 Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in the comprehensive income       2,525,220.35 
 Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in directly in equity                       -   

4.14	 Other assets

	 The other assets that fall under the classification of financial instruments are carried at amortized costs and those other assets that do not fall within the 
definition are carried at cost. These instruments are regularly monitored for impairment

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Assets held for sale                               -                                 -   

Other non banking assets                               -                                 -   

Bills receivable                               -                                 -   

Accounts receivable              18,568,685.65              21,562,327.81 

Accrued income              16,042,651.37              12,502,789.88 

Prepayments and deposit                8,494,191.75                5,801,004.22 

Income tax deposit                               -                                 -   

Deferred employee expenditure              19,075,496.96              33,597,075.96 

Other

Consumables                1,705,198.38                1,326,593.27 

Inter branch balance                               -                                 -   

Replication advance                9,911,350.00                9,911,350.00 

Other institution advance

Receivable under Insurance Policy                4,927,638.50                7,290,342.50 

Other Staff Advance                1,338,359.98                  552,259.73 

Advance Tax-RMDC

Fixed Deposit                               -                                 -   

Total              80,063,572.59              92,543,743.37 

4.15	 Due to Bank & Finanacial Institutions

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Borrowing from BFIs         6,031,813,614.55        11,322,434,480.01 

Settlement and clearing accounts

Other

Total         6,031,813,614.55        11,322,434,480.01 
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4.16	 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of last report facility from NRB

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Other payable to NRB            118,247,541.54            118,423,039.94 

Total            118,247,541.54            118,423,039.94 

	 Other Payable to NRB comprises of Loan obtained from NRB for Rural Self Reliance Fund.

4.17	 Derivative Financial Instrument

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 

Held For trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward exchange contract

Other

Held for risk management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward exchange contract

Other

Total                               -                                 -   

4.18	 Deposits from Customers

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 

Institutions customers:

Term deposits

Call deposits

Other         4,040,859,444.40         2,838,929,397.87 

Individual customers:

Term deposits

Saving deposits

Savings from Members

Other

Total         4,040,859,444.40         2,838,929,397.87 

	 SKBBL doesn’t accept deposit from customer's, however has maintained liquidity and institutional deposit of SFACL.

4.19	 Borrowing

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government        20,586,038,667.00        20,146,222,372.50 

Other licensed Institutions                               -                                 -   

Other                               -                                 -   

Sub total        20,586,038,667.00        20,146,222,372.50 

Foreign Borrowing
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Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Foreign Bank and Financial                               -                                 -   

Institutions                               -                                 -   

Multilateral Development Banks                               -                                 -   

Other Institutions                               -                                 -   

Sub total                               -                                 -   

Total        20,586,038,667.00        20,146,222,372.50 

4.20	 Provisions

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Onerous contracts

Other

Total                               -                                 -   

4.20.1	Movement in provision

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2081

Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Asar 32, 2082                               -                                 -   

4.21	 Other liabilities

	 Non-financial liabilities are recorded and reported at cost based on legal and constructive obligation to the Microfinance. Liquidity & Institutional savings 
comprises of liquidity saving as per the liquidity saving policy approved by the BOD meeting held on 14th June 2020.

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations              38,307,423.63              36,002,152.28 

Liability for long-service leave              28,479,844.94              22,977,839.00 

Short-term employee benefits                               -                                 -   

Bills payable                1,252,893.01                    82,008.01 

Creditors and accruals              16,535,213.41              15,433,431.83 

Interest payable on deposit                               -                                 -   

Interest payable on borrowing                8,472,333.50              17,462,117.05 

Liabilities on deferred grant income                               -                                 -   

Unpaid Dividend                               -                    588,659.24 

Liabilities under Finance Lease              36,393,350.26              37,318,366.13 

Employee bonus payable            145,462,025.67            140,611,522.04 

Other

Employee Welfare Fund                               -                                 -   

Interbranch Balance                               -                                 -   
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Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Liquidity & Institutional Savings                               -                59,529,185.34 

Training fund                      1,798.25                      1,798.25 

Other Donation fund                2,752,053.71                2,752,053.71 

Payable operating expenses                5,463,558.06                5,157,893.59 

TDS Payables                7,204,378.29                9,150,668.84 

Staff payables                  174,791.56                2,257,201.78 

Replication programme              46,861,003.95              48,707,338.47 

Agriculture Internship Program Deposit              22,902,145.31              23,268,145.31 

Training programme                  847,019.00                  847,019.00 

Deposits              28,732,784.86                               -   

Information technology fund                1,000,000.00                1,000,000.00 

IT cyclic fund                1,000,000.00                1,000,000.00 

Sana Kishan Sammelan Fund                1,591,250.36                1,591,250.36 

Sana Kishan Rahat Fund                3,849,643.63                3,849,643.63 

Revolving Fund PF                7,105,218.75                7,105,218.75 

Tax Payable RMDC                               -                                 -   

Other                         232.84                1,009,405.00 

Total            404,388,962.99            437,702,917.61 

4.21.1	Defined benefit obligations

	 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Present value of funded obligations              72,739,065.40              72,949,532.00 

Total present value of obligations              72,739,065.40              72,949,532.00 

Fair value of plan assets              34,431,641.77              36,947,379.72 

Present value of net obligations              38,307,423.63              36,002,152.28 

Recognized liability for defined benefit o bligations              38,307,423.63              36,002,152.28 

4.21.2	Plan assets

	 Plan assets comprise

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Equity securities                               -                                 -   

Government bonds                               -                                 -   

Bank deposit                               -                                 -   

Other: CIT Fund              34,431,641.77              36,947,379.72 

Total              34,431,641.77              36,947,379.72 
Actual return on plan assets                1,495,783.80                5,577,395.06 

4.21.3	Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1              72,949,532.00            103,991,653.00 

Actuarial losses             (11,766,452.00)             (53,837,491.00)

Benefits paid by the plan               (4,124,393.60)                 (129,636.00)

Current service costs and interest              15,680,379.00              22,925,006.00 

Acquired                               -                                 -   

Defined benefit obligations at Asar end              72,739,065.40              72,949,532.00 
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4.21.4	Movement in the fair value of plan assets

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1              36,947,380.00              31,499,620.66 

Interest Income                1,495,783.52                5,577,395.06 

Contributions paid into the plan                               -                                 -   

Benefits paid during the year               (4,011,521.75)                 (129,635.72)

Actuarial (losses) gains                               -                                 -   

Expected return on plan assets                               -                                 -   

Aquired

Fair value of plan assets at Asar end              34,431,641.77              36,947,380.00 

4.21.5 	Amount recognized in profit or loss

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Current service costs              10,670,844.00              12,581,794.00 

Interest on obligation                5,009,535.00              10,343,212.00 

Expected return on plan assets                               -   

Total              15,680,379.00              22,925,006.00 

4.21.6	Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Actuarial (gain)/loss             (11,766,452.00)             (53,837,491.00)

Total             (11,766,452.00)             (53,837,491.00)

4.21.7	Actuarial assumptions

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Discount rate 9.0% 7.0%

Expected return on plan asset 0.0% 0.0%

Future salary increase 2.5% 2.5%

Withdrawal rate 0.0% 0.0%

4.21.8	Long-service leave

	 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 
Present value of funded obligations                               -                                 -   

Total present value of obligations              28,479,844.94              22,977,839.00 

Fair value of plan assets                               -                                 -   

Present value of net obligations              28,479,844.94              22,977,839.00 

Recognized liability for defined benefit o bligations              28,479,844.94              22,977,839.00 

4.22	 Debt Securities Issued

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities issued at amortized Cost

Total                               -                                 -   
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4.23	 Subordinated Liabilities

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31 Asar 2081 

Redeemable preference shares

Irredeemable cumulative preference share s (liabilities component )

Other

Total                               -                                 -   

4.24	 Share Capital

	 The Microfinance’s registered capital structure is as follows:

(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Ordinary shares                             4,312,621,513.78                    3,806,373,798.57 

Convertible preference shares (equity component only)                                                   -                                            -   

Irredeemable preference shares (equity component only)                                                   -                                            -   

Perpetual debt (equity component only)                                                   -                                            -   

Total                             4,312,621,513.78                    3,806,373,798.57 

4.24.1	Ordinary shares

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Authorized Capital

50,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each                             5,000,000,000.00                                          -   

50,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each                    5,000,000,000.00 

Issued capital

43,126,215.1376 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each                             4,312,621,513.78                                          -   

38,063,737.99 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each                    3,806,373,798.55 

Subscribed and paid up capital

43,126,215.1376 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each                             4,312,621,513.78                                          -   

38,063,737.99 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each                    3,806,373,798.57 

Total                             4,312,621,513.78                    3,806,373,798.57 

4.24.2	Ordinary share ownership

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular
 32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

 Percent   Amount  Percent   Amount 
Domestic ownership (Promoter)               67.58    2,914,341,843.38         67.58  2,572,232,450.32 
Nepal Government                    -                            -                -                          -   

A Class licenced institutions               38.90    1,677,662,100.00         38.90  1,480,725,600.00 

Other Licenced institutions                 0.10          4,178,900.00          0.10        3,688,343.05 

Other institutions               28.03    1,208,645,000.00         28.03  1,066,799,507.27 

Other                 0.55        23,855,843.38          0.55      21,019,000.00 

Domestic ownership (Public)               30.06    1,296,680,870.40         30.06  1,144,469,024.92 
Foreign Ownership (Promoter)                 2.36       101,598,800.00          2.36      89,672,323.33 
Foreign Ownership (Public)                    -                            -                -                          -   
Total              100.00    4,312,621,513.78       100.00  3,806,373,798.57 
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 Details of shareholders holding 0.5% or more share capital:
Particulars   % of Holding  Shares Holding(No of Shares) 

Agricultural Development Bank Ltd. 13.02%                               5,615,379 

Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd 4.10%                               1,767,481 

Nabil Bank Limited 6.13%                               2,644,987 

Himalayan Bank Limited 3.77%                               1,625,581 

Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited 3.02%                               1,302,249 

Nepal Bank Limited 3.65%                               1,575,801 

Nepal SBI Bank Ltd 1.48%                                 639,903 

Everest Bank Limited 1.30%                                 558,977 

Siddhartha Bank Limited 1.10%                                 474,127 

Global Ime Bank Limited 0.68%                                 291,213 

Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited 0.65%                                 280,920 

IFC   2.36%                               1,015,988 

	 Total 613 Small Farmers Agriculture Cooperatives hold 27.62% of share capital of the company under promotors group

4.25	 Reserves

	 The reserves including regulatory and other reserve excluding retained earnings are as following:

 (Amount in NPR) 

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Statutory general reserve                             2,128,734,631.97                    1,953,733,475.09 

Capital reserve                                775,168,831.25                       776,983,895.57 

Exchange equalization reserve

Investment adjustment reserve                                 11,845,300.00                        10,456,195.18 

Corporate social responsibility fund                                 34,611,722.60                        37,888,046.33 

Client Protection Fund                                185,757,523.57                       184,249,715.67 

Capital redemption reserve

Regulatory reserve                                124,279,644.81                       121,020,070.84 

Assets revaluation reserve                                 10,410,000.00                        10,410,000.00 

Fair value reserve                                 21,956,850.30                        20,987,647.69 

Dividend equalization reserve                                                   -                                            -   

Actuarial Reserve                                 42,625,313.53                        37,702,335.33 

Special reserve                                                   -                                            -   

Other reserve

Deferred Tax Reserve                                                   -                                            -   

Loan Amortization Fund                                103,661,613.00                       103,661,613.00 

Replication Fund                                 10,509,554.00                        10,509,554.00 

Institutional Strengthening Fund                                301,138,182.54                       283,303,116.37 

Rural Self Reliance Fund                                 37,830,861.15                        23,023,080.50 

Reconstruction Fund                                227,442,648.51                       183,692,359.29 

Remittance Risk Fund                                      274,833.67                             274,833.67 

Employee Training Fund                                      141,000.00                             141,000.00 

Merger/Acquisition Reserve                                 89,808,920.83                        89,808,920.83 

Restructuring Reserve                                 37,424,592.54                        56,636,339.22 

Total                             4,143,622,024.27                    3,904,482,198.58 

	 Institutional Strengthening Fund

	 Institutional Strengthening fund has been created for institutional development of cooperatives affiliated with SKBBL. 5% of net profit after reduction of current 
year’s allocation to client protection fund and corporate social responsibility fund is credited to this fund which amounts to NPR 21,875,144.61 The closing 
balance of the fund for the current period is NPR 301,138,182.54
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	 Client Protection Fund

	 Client Protection Fund has been created as per directive no. 079/4.1(Ja) of Nepal Rastra Bank’s directive to D class BFIs. 1.5% of net profit is transferred to this 
fund which amounts to NPR. 13,125,086.77 other and Interest income from fund during the year amounting to NPR 6,336,144.5 and Total expenses from the 
fund of NPR 17,953,423.37 (detail is given below). The closing balance of the fund for the current period is NPR 185,757,523.57

Detail of Expenses from Client Protection Fund

Particular Amount Rs

For training and capacity building of partners and members        16,734,863.37 

For group benfit of members             112,000.00 

For benefit of members in problem             690,000.00 

For education of children of members             416,560.00 

Total        17,953,423.37 

	 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

	 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund is created amounting 1% of Net Profit as per Nepal Rastra Bank’s Directive. Utilization of amount from last year has been 
transferred to Retained Earning.

	 1% of net profit is transferred to this fund which is amounted NPR 8,750,057.84 and NPR 12,026,381.57 has been expended from this fund (detail is given below) 
during current year. The closing balance of the fund for the current period is NPR 34,611,722.60

Detail of Expenses from Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

Particular Amount Rs

For Social welfare             878,572.57 

For Financial Literacy          9,955,665.00 

Direct Donation          1,185,000.00 

For Protection from epidemic                7,144.00 

Total        12,026,381.57 

	 Loan Amortization Fund

	 This fund includes the amount provided by Agricultural Development Bank at the time of handover of SFACL's to this financial institution. NRB has granted 
permission to include the amount of NPR  103,661,613.00 of this fund in primary capital as per its letter dated 2012.06.05. The amount of this fund has been 
shown under other reserve fund in Statement of Changes in Equity.

	 Replication Fund

	 This fund includes amount separated for the purpose of expansion of services and replication program of the financial institution, prize money of CGAP, support 
received from GIZ and amount deposited for this fund which includes total sum of NPR 105,09,554. The amount of this fund has been shown under other reserve 
fund in Statement of Changes in Equity.

	 Remittance Risk Fund

	 This includes amount of NPR 274,833.67 received through different sources for the purpose of remittance services provided by this financial institution to its 
member cooperatives before 2013. The amount of this fund has been shown under other reserve fund in Statement of Changes in Equity.

	 Investment Adjustment Reserve

	 As per the provisions of NRB directive,investment adjustmnent resrve is created with the amount equal to fair value of investment in securities of in FORWARD 
Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. of NPR  11,835,300.00 and Centre for Microfinance of NPR 10000.

	 Capital Reserve Fund

	 The amount of this fund has been shown under other reserve fund in Statement of Changes in Equity. The fund includes following amount:

Particulars Amount (NPR)
1.Amount received from loan exemption      25,622,812.00 

2. Credit Line from ADB, Manila    192,954,395.00 

3. Grant Assets        6,244,378.13 

4. Capital Reserve fund    304,905,900.00 

5.   Capital adjustment / equalization fund    245,441,346.14 

Total Capital Reserve Fund    775,168,831.27 
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1.	 Nepal Government has granted exemption for the credit 
provided to small and medium entrepreneurs through small 
farmer cooperatives for the fiscal year 2006/2007. The financial 
institution has included the claim amount received from the 
Government only to the extent it has impact on the net profit as 
per the directions of Ministry of Finance.

2.	 The grant amount received in the form of Line of Credit from 
Asian Development Bank for the project "Expanding Microfinance 
Program in Hill and Mountain of Nepal" from 2011 to 2014.

3.	 The assets received from different organizations has been 
included in the fund net of depreciation.

5.	 This is a non-statutory reserve created by appropriating amounts 
from current year’s profit and by crediting amounts for calls in 
advance towards raising capital.

	 Rural Self Reliance Fund

	 Nepal Government, ministry level decision dated 10th December 2018 
has handed over the RSRC fund from Nepal Rastra Bank to SKBBL. As per 
the above agreement, write back of loan loss provision due to realization 
of loan has been transferred to RSRF reserve until all the loans handed 
over are settled, which is NPR. 37,830,861.15

	 Fair Value Reserve

	 This reserve has been created to reflect the gain or loss in investments 
due to fair value adjustment through other comprehensive income. The 
closing balance of the reserve for the current period is NPR 21,956,850.30

	 Actuarial Reserve

	 This reserve has been created to reflect the actuarial gain or loss in 
defined benefit obligation of gratuity scheme of SKBBL. The closing 
balance of the reserve for the current period is NPR 42,625,313.53

	 Revaluation Reserve

	 This reserve has been created to reflect the revaluation made for the 
land. The land has been acquired by SKBBL along with it the revaluation 
reserve is acquired. The closing balance of the reserve for the current 
period is NPR 10,410,000

	 Restructuring Reserve

	 The restructuring reserve has been created for the amount where the 
restructuring of the loan has decreased the loan loss provision in Ashar 
2081 in comparison with the loan loss provision in FY 2080-81. Out 
of total loan loss provision related to restructured loan amount of Rs 
19,211,746.68 (net of bonus and tax) is transfered to retained profit 
which are related to the loan became good in six months. The closing 
balance of the reserve for the current period is NPR 37,424,592.54

Regulatory Reserve

It includes amount allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Microfinance as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which 
shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) and shall be presented under this account head. The regulatory reserve of the 
microfinance includes the reserve net of tax and employee bonus created relating to Accrued Interest Receivable as on Ashad End 2079 not recovered, Reserve on 
Deferred Tax Assets, Non-Banking Assets, reduction in fair value of investment in equity below cost price, actuarial loss etc.

Fiscal Year Interest 
receivable

Short 
Loan Loss 
Provision

Short Provision for 
possible losses on 

investment

Short 
Provision 
on  NBA

Deferred Tax 
Assets Goodwil

Gain on 
Bargain 

Purchase

Actuarial Loss 
Recognized 

in OCI

Fair Value Loss 
Recognised 

in OCI
Other Total

2077/78         293,983.46                  -                            -                 -        14,768,964.33                             -                     -             715,528.80                  -         -   15,778,476.59 

2078/79                      3.56                  -                            -                 -        22,117,171.58                             -                     -             297,087.00                  -         -   22,414,262.14 

2079/80      1,051,255.62                  -                            -                 -        31,321,962.10      89,808,920.83        17,419,210.91     139,601,349.46 

2080/81      6,584,057.87                  -                            -                 -        24,627,092.16      89,808,920.83                   -                               -                    -         -   121,020,070.85 

2081/82      7,656,619.91            26,814,104.09      89,808,920.83                               -       124,279,644.83 

Total 15,585,920.42                  -                            -                 -   119,649,294.26 269,426,762.48                   -   18,431,826.71                  -         -    

4.26	 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

	 The Microfinance seeks to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, 
but may be subject to regulatory actions and investigations, the outcome 
of which are generally difficult to predict and can be material to the 
Microfinance.

	 Where appropriate, the Microfinance recognizes a provision for liabilities 
when it is probable that an outflow of economic resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required and for which a reliable estimate can 
be made of the obligation(s).

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081

Contingent Liabilities - -

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - -

capital Commitment - -

Lease Commitment - -

Litigation 20,811,170.92 19,685,532.62 

Others - -

Total 20,811,170.92 19,685,532.62 
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4.26.1	Capital Commitment

	 Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the microfinance but provision has not been made in financial statements
 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Capital commitments in relation to property and Equipment - -

Approved and contracted for - -

Approved but not contracted for - -

Sub total - -

Capital commitments in relation to intangible assets - -

Approved and contracted for - -

Approved but not contracted for - -

Sub total - -

Total - -

4.26.2	Lease Commitment
 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Operating Lease Commitments - -

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease where the institution is lessee - -

not later than 1 year - -

later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -

later than 5 years - -

Sub Total - -

Finance lease commitments - -

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating, where institution is lessee - -

not later than 1 year - -

later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -

later than 5 years - -

Sub total - -

Total - -

4.26.3	Litigation
	 SKBBL has filed appeal at Inland Revenue Department against amended assessment issued by Large Taxpayers Office. The detail of the case is given below:

 (Amount in NPR)

Year Status Disputed Tax Amount
FY 2074.75 Appealed to Revenue Tribunal on 2081.04.03 for which decision is pending        7,346,821.79 

FY 2074.75 Appealed to IRD for Administrative review for which decision is pending        1,272,182.00 

FY 2075.76 Appealed to Revenue Tribunal on 2082.04.12 for which decision is pending        7,921,435.75 

FY 2076.77 Appealed to Revenue Tribunal on 2082.04.12 for which decision is pending        3,145,093.07 

FY 2077.78 Appealed to IRD for Administrative review for which decision is pending        1,125,638.31 

     20,811,170.92 

4.27	 Interest income
(Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank                          -                            -   

Placement with bank and financial institutions       112,422,965.11       139,030,451.66 

Loan and advances to financial institutions                          -                            -   

Loans and advances to customers    2,782,401,408.03    4,012,435,934.35 

Investment securities                          -                            -   

Loan and advances to staff          3,142,972.68          2,876,913.31 

Other                          -                            -   

Total interest income    2,897,967,345.82    4,154,343,299.32 
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4.28	 Interest Expenses

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Due to bank and financial institutions       546,484,293.93    1,477,021,900.55 

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank          2,371,430.15          5,049,926.85 

Deposits from customers                          -                            -   

Borrowing       409,526,807.18       366,544,172.71 

Debt securities issued                          -                            -   

Subordinated liabilities                          -                            -   

Other

Liquidity & Institutional Savings       140,591,949.17       120,417,876.98 

Agriculture Internship Program Deposit 

Interest on Lease          2,618,072.31          2,850,032.92 

Total    1,101,592,552.74    1,971,883,910.01 

4.29	 Fees & Commission Income

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Loan administration fees          2,825,000.00          4,285,000.00 

Service fees                          -                            -   

Commitment Fees                          -                            -   

Card Issuance Fees                          -                            -   

Prepayment and swap fees                          -                            -   

Remittance fees                          -                            -   

Brokerage Fees                          -                            -   

Other fees and commission income                          -                            -   

Total fees and Commission Income          2,825,000.00          4,285,000.00 

4.30	 Fees & Commission Expense

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Brokerage                          -                            -   

ATM management fees                          -                            -   

Visa Master card Fees                          -                            -   

Guarantee Commission Fees                          -                            -   

Brokerage                          -                            -   

DD/TT/Swift Fees                          -                            -   

Remittance fees and commission                          -                            -   

Other fees and commission expense                          -                            -   

Total fees and Commission Expense                          -                            -   

4.31	 Net Trading Income

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Changes in fair value of trading assets                          -                            -   

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets                          -                            -   

Interest income on trading assets                          -                            -   

Dividend income on trading assets                          -                            -   

Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction                          -                            -   

Other                          -                            -   
Net trading income                          -                            -   
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4.32	 Other Operating income

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Foreign exchange revaluation gain                          -                            -   

Gain/loss on sale of investment securities                          -                            -   

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties                          -                            -   

Dividend on equity instruments             754,973.40             535,645.69 

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment                          -                            -   

Gain/loss on sale of investment property                          -                            -   

Operating lease income                          -                            -   

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver                          -                            -   

Other

Examination Income                          -                            -   

Other        12,820,544.28          6,850,348.50 

Total        13,575,517.68          7,385,994.19 

4.33	 Impairment (Charge)/ reversal for loans & other losses

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs       104,076,787.43       436,504,160.75 

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total       104,076,787.43       436,504,160.75 

4.34	 Personnel Expenses

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Salary        78,667,264.08        77,064,851.60 
Allowances        29,666,000.96        29,143,694.91 
Gratuity expense        15,680,379.00        22,925,006.00 
Provident fund          7,525,032.94          7,232,678.51 
Uniform          1,754,500.00          1,712,444.79 
Training & development expense          6,086,441.92          5,817,910.30 
Leave encashment          6,404,899.00        13,628,012.86 
Medical          6,419,462.07          6,509,915.00 
Insurance          1,278,653.49          1,197,116.49 
Employees incentive                          -                            -   
Cash-settled share-based payments                          -                            -   
Pension expense                          -                            -   
Finance expense under NFRSs          1,491,357.63          1,118,235.20 
Dashain expenses          8,938,906.47          8,814,710.57 
Overtime expenses             467,300.00             520,865.00 
Remuneration expenses             188,700.00               58,375.00 
Bank day allowance          3,341,575.49          4,843,644.27 
Consultancy fee                          -                            -   

Newspaper Allowances

Other Benefits
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Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Sub Total       167,910,473.05       180,587,460.50 
Employees bonus       145,462,025.67       140,611,522.04 
Grand Total       313,372,498.72       321,198,982.54 

	 *Provision for staff bonus is mandatory under the requirement of the Bonus Act 2030 and Nepal Rastra Bank Directive and same has been complied. 
In F/Y 2080-81, as per NRB directive, total amount staff bonus of Rs. 5,409,889.20 related to writeback of loan loss provision on restructured loan has been 
deducted from total provision for staff bonus for F/Y 2080-81, out of which bonus provision of NPR 3,049,483.60 related to the loan which became good as per 
said directive is added to staff bonus provision of current F/Y.

	 As per the directives to D Class Bank & Financial Institution from Nepal Rastra Bank point no 6.5, 3% of staff expenses should be utilized in the training and other 
staff efficiency promotional activities. Total staff expense of previous year is NPR 180,587,460.50 and its 3% threshold is NPR 5,417,623.82. In the current fiscal 
year, NPR 6,086,441.92 has been spent as training expenses.

4.35	 Other Operating expenses

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Directors' fee          1,005,000.00          1,642,500.00 

Directors' expense          2,432,022.29          1,322,477.77 

Auditors' remuneration          1,130,000.00          1,130,000.00 

Other audit related expense             848,637.39             531,656.00 

Professional and legal expense                          -                            -   

Office administration expense                          -                            -   

Operating lease expense                          -                            -   

Finance cost under finance lease

Operating expense of investment properties                          -                            -   

Corporate social responsibility expense        12,026,381.57        10,415,594.45 

Client Protection expenses                          -                            -   

Onerous lease provisions                          -                            -   

Other        72,342,952.82        77,432,492.22 

Total        89,784,994.07        92,474,720.44 

4.35.1	Office Administration Expense

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

Water and electricity          2,495,940.97          2,403,146.24 

Repair and maintenance          2,497,445.37          3,285,968.58 

(a) Building                          -                            -   

(b) Vehicle          1,544,343.86          2,522,320.63 

(c) Computer and accessories                          -                            -   

(d) Office equipment and furniture             953,101.51             763,647.95 

(e) Other                          -                            -   

Insurance          1,751,523.41          1,936,108.80 

Postage, telex, telephone, fax          2,147,205.85          2,156,540.94 

Printing and stationery          1,680,940.81          2,515,578.35 

News paper, books and journals          1,063,255.35             950,434.94 

Advertisement             947,825.80             793,096.76 

Travel allowance and expense        16,952,680.73        15,162,997.64 

Entertainment          1,845,330.16          2,099,236.53 

Annual/special general meeting expense          1,524,560.16          1,324,339.31 

Other

(a) Share issuance cost          2,045,567.29          3,220,692.05 
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Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 

(b) Fuel expenses          3,542,686.45          3,875,301.01 

(c) Renewal fee             926,724.00          1,371,117.01 

(d) Subcommittee expenses          1,195,334.00             652,784.00 

(e) Recruitment expenses             613,608.00               73,168.00 

(f) Bank day / incentives          1,356,951.24          1,828,289.49 

(g) Business promotion          3,397,922.22          3,411,150.70 

(h) Trainee selection expenses                          -                            -   

(i) Loan Renewal and Bank Charges          6,384,161.33        14,373,445.63 

(j) Miscellaneous          8,418,708.76          4,862,249.06 

(k) Furnishing Expenses          1,011,283.68          1,634,711.10 

(l) Technical Consultancy Expenses          3,434,360.91          2,330,731.11 

(m) Membership Expenses             682,560.00             984,510.46 

(n) Write off Expenses             133,332.66             537,364.34 

(o) Cleaning Expenses          2,951,124.95          2,655,631.52 

(p) IT Expenses          2,972,490.74          1,981,760.43 

(q) Loss on Sale of Share

(r) Youth Agriculture Award expenses

(s) Merger Expenses

(t) Other Expenses             356,267.98          1,012,138.22 

Total        72,329,792.82        77,432,492.22 

4.36	 Depreciation & Amortization

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Depreciation of Property, plant & equipment (Refer note 4.11)        15,570,630.71        14,612,413.58 

Depreciation on investment property                          -                            -   

Amortization of Intangible assets (Refer note 4.12)             998,433.93             735,235.26 

Depreciation on Assets under finance lease        12,627,070.73        11,619,908.60 

Total        29,196,135.37        26,967,557.44 

4.37	 Non Operating Income

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Recovery of loan written off                          -                            -   

Other Non Operating Income          2,318,499.83          2,617,628.07 
(a) Gain From Sale of Fixed assets                          -                            -   

(b) Donation Assets Depreciation Reverse          2,318,499.83          2,417,379.12 

(c) Other                          -               200,248.95 

Total          2,318,499.83          2,617,628.07 

4.38	 Non Operating Expense

 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Other Non Operating Expenses                          -                            -   

Total                          -                            -   

4.39	 Income Tax Expense

	 The Microfinance current tax liabilities are calculated using the Income Tax Act, 2058 as applicable in Nepal. Current tax payable (or recoverable) is based on the 
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit reported in the statement or profit or loss, because some item of income or expense are taxable 
or deductible in different years or may never be taxable or deductible. 
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 (Amount in NPR)

Particular  32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Current Year Tax Expense       408,369,842.91       405,195,912.70 
Current Year       392,013,282.67       405,195,912.70 

Adjustment for Prior Years        16,356,560.24                          -   

Deferred tax expense         (4,712,232.29)         (7,537,754.20)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences         (4,712,232.29)         (7,537,754.20)

Changes in tax rate                          -                            -   

Recognition of previously unrecognized tax los ses                          -                            -   

Total       403,657,610.62       397,658,158.50 

4.39.1	Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

 (Amount in NPR) 

Particular 32  Asar 2082  31  Asar 2081 
Profit before tax    1,278,663,395.00    1,319,602,590.40 

Tax amount at tax rate of 30%       383,599,018.50       395,880,777.12 

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose        21,163,313.18        25,003,928.66 

Less: Tax effect on exempt income/ other deductables       (12,749,049.00)       (15,688,793.08)

Add/less: Tax effect on other items (Deferred tax)         (4,712,232.29)         (7,537,754.20)

Total income tax expense       387,301,050.38       397,658,158.50 
Effective tax rate 30.29% 30.13%

4.39.2	Tax Settlement Status

 (Amount in NPR)

Income Years Provision for Tax (as per self-assessment) Advance Tax Paid Advance Tax Net of Provision
2073.74 143,406,886.37 143,406,886.37 -

2074.75 169,419,228.86 173,686,063.97 4,266,835.11

2075.76 212,482,649.91 219,021,555.70 6,538,905.79

2076.77 242,606,075.04 244,651,035.97 2,044,960.93

2077.78 267,034,252.81 276,301,097.73 9,266,844.92

2078.79 305,668,639.79 320,054,778.63 14,386,138.84

2079.80 354,663,793.17 359,947,155.56 5,283,362.39

2080.81 411,877,208.85 422,331,490.01 10,454,281.16

Additional Information and Disclosures

5.1	 RISK ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT

	 Risk Management 

	 The Microfinance is exposed to various types of risks 
including credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal, 
compliance and reputation risks. The objective of the 
risk management framework at the Microfinance is to 
ensure that various risks are understood, measured 
and monitored and that the policies and procedures 
established to address these risks are strictly adhered 
to. 

	 The Board of Directors has oversight on all the risks 
assumed by the Microfinance. The board level sub-
committee (Risk Management Committee) has been 
established to facilitate focused oversight of various 
risks. The committee reviews the risk management 
policies as well as the Microfinance’s compliance with 

NRB Directives.

	 The Microfinance’s Risk Management Committee 
comprised during reporting period as following:

S.N. Members of Risk Management 
Committee Designation

1 Mr. Dipenda Raj Kafle Coordinator

2 Mr. Yagya Prakash Neupane Member

3 Mr. Roop Bahadur Khadka Member Secretary

4 Mrs Isha K.C Member

	 Risk Governance

	 Trained supervisors and analysts in the Microfinance 
examine and monitor the performance and activities 
of partner cooperatives. In addition to monitoring the 
financial condition of the cooperatives, supervisors 
also review compliance with terms and conditions of 
loan agreements and regulations and seek corrective 
action as and when necessary.
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	 Risk Management Department conducts periodical 
financial surveillance and monitoring and provides 
pre-examination analysis and other analytical support 
to onsite supervisors and management.

	 Through its risk management framework, the 
Microfinance seeks to efficiently manage credit, 
market and liquidity risks which arise directly 
through the Microfinance’s commercial activities 
as well as operational, regulatory and reputational 
risks which arise as a normal consequence of any 
business undertaking. As part of this framework, the 
Microfinance uses a set of principles that describe 
its risk management culture. The principles of risk 
management followed by the Microfinance include:

•	 Prepare quarterly report of financial position 
and performance for individual cooperatives 
and to conclude the trends and indicators on 
these.

•	 Analyze the financial position and performance 
indicators on quarterly basis.

•	 Provide all statistical data required for onsite 
supervision.

•	 Anticipating future risks and ensuring 
awareness of all risks.

•	 Efficient and effective risk management and 
control to gain competitive advantage.

	 In order to enhance governance/oversight and to 
enable earlier detection and mitigation of critical 
risks, Supervision System (SS) has been implemented 
in SKBBL. 

	 Following’s are the major risk faced by the 
microfinance and the mitigating measures 
followed by it:

	 Credit Risk

	 Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure 
of counterparty to meet its obligations to pay the 
Microfinance in accordance with agreed terms.

	 The Microfinance has Credit Policy that, inter alia, 
consist of areas of lending, eligibility of borrower, 
loan application format and requirement, necessary 
documents for processing loans, risk assessment 
areas, loan approval authority and other general credit 
principles. The credit policy has been formulated by 
keeping in mind the prudential norms given by NRB.

	 A standardized loan application form has been in 
use for facilitating collection and analysis of all the 
relevant data for evaluating credit worthiness and 
proper evaluation of the credit risk of the prospective 
borrower. The factors considered in evaluating 
loan applications normally included prospects of 
the business, management of the cooperative, 

financial analysis- income statement, balance sheet, 
cash flow statement, key financial indicators, key 
risk and mitigating factors. Further, inspection and 
supervision are also conducted before approval of 
the loan for pre-analysis and after the disbursement 
of loan as well for monitoring the utilization of loan.

	 Operation Risk 

	 Operational risk is the prospect of loss resulting from 
inadequate or failed procedures, systems or policies, 
employee errors, system failures, fraud or other 
criminal activity that disrupts business processes.

	 Operational risk exposures are managed through a 
consistent set of management processes that drive risk 
identification, assessment, control and monitoring. 
For the control of operational risk of institution, it 
has Financial Administration Policy, Employee Bylaws 
which guides the day-to-day operation.

	 Each risk control owner is responsible for identifying 
risks that are material and for maintaining an effective 
control environment across the organization. Risk 
control owners have responsibility for the control 
of operational risk arising from the management of 
the following activities: External Rules & Regulations, 
Liability, Legal Enforceability, Damage or Loss of 
Physical Assets, Safety & Security, Internal Fraud or 
Dishonesty, External Fraud, Information Security and 
Processing Failure. Operational risks can arise from 
all business lines and from all activities carried out 
by the Microfinance. Operational Risk management 
approach seeks to ensure management of operational 
risk by maintaining a complete process defined for all 
business segments, products and processes.

	 Market Risk

	 Risks arising out of adverse movements in interest 
rates and equity prices are covered under Market Risk 
Management. Market Risk is the potential for loss of 
earnings or economic value due to adverse changes in 
financial market rates or prices. Institutional exposure 
to market risk arises principally from institutional 
driven transactions.

	 In line with Risk Management Guidelines 
prescribed by NRB, the Microfinance focuses on risk 
management. In addition to that, Interest rate risk is 
assessed at a regular interval to strengthen market 
risk management. The market risk is managed within 
the risk tolerances and market risk limits set by ALCO.

	 Liquidity Risk

	 Liquidity risk is the potential that the Microfinance 
either does not have sufficient liquid financial 
resources available to meet all its obligations as they 
fall due, or can only access these financial resources 
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at excessive cost. The Liquidity Risk is managed by 
ALCO.

	 Reputational Risk

	 Reputational risk is a risk of loss resulting from 
damages to reputation of institution, in lost revenue; 
increased operating, capital or regulatory costs; or 
destruction of shareholder value.

	 Reputational risk is managed by the management 
committee which are responsible for protecting 
the institution’s reputation locally and has the 
responsibility to ensure that the Microfinance does 
not undertake any activities that may cause material 
damage to the reputation of institution.

	 Internal Control

	 The Board is committed to managing risks and in 
controlling its business and financial activities in 
a manner which enables it to maximize profitable 
business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which 
can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and 
enhance resilience to external events. To achieve this, 
the Board has adopted policies and procedures of 
risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and 
control/monitoring.

	 The effectiveness of the Microfinance’s internal 
control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, 
its Committees, Management and Internal Audit. 
The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness 
of the Microfinance’s system of internal control 
during the year and provided feedback to the Board 
as appropriate. SKBBL has in-house Internal Audit 
division that performs internal audit function of 
institution. The Internal Audit monitors compliance 
with policies/standards and the effectiveness of 
internal control structures across the Company 
through its program of business/unit audits. The 

Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of 
greatest risk as determined by a risk-based assessment 
methodology. Internal Audit reports are quarterly 
forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of all 
audits are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and 
Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective 
measures.

5.2	 Capital Management

i.	 Qualitative Disclosure

	 The microfinance has maintained the capital adequacy 
as per Capital adequacy framework, 2007 (Updated 
July 2008) as required by Nepal Rastra Bank. The main 
objective of this framework is to develop a safe and 
sound financial system by way of sufficient amount 
of qualitative capital and risk management practices. 
The total equity of the microfinance comprises of 
paid-up capital, statutory reserves and other reserves. 
Assessment of capital adequacy of microfinance is 
done on regular basis taking into considerations 
the exposure of microfinance. Also, the analysis of 
possible impact on capital adequacy is being done 
on regular basis taking into consideration the future 
impacts on assumptive basis. Capital adequacy of 
microfinance and impact in capital due to future 
change in nature and size of business is discussed in 
Risk Management Committee and is summarized in 
board. Regular monitoring of nature of business is 
being done so that unexpected negative impact could 
not take place in capital adequacy of microfinance. 
The internal capital adequacy assessment process 
(ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which requires 
board and senior management oversight, monitoring, 
reporting and internal control reviews at regular 
intervals to ensure the alignment of regulatory 
capital requirement with the true risk profile of the 
microfinance and thus ensure long-term safety and 
soundness of the microfinance. 

ii.	 Quantitative Disclosure

	 Capital adequacy of the microfinance as per regulatory requirement is as follows: 

Sana Kisan Bikas  Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Capital Fund

At the month end of Asar 2082

A. Core Capital Rs in '000'

S.N. Description
Period Previous

Current Current

1 Paid up Capital (ordinary shares) 4,312,621.51 3,806,373.80

2 Proposed bonus share - -

3 Share premium 18,269.71 18,269.71
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4 Irredeemable preferential share - -

5 General Reserve Fund 2,128,734.63 1,953,733.48

6 Accumulated profit/(loss) 1,849,111.82 1,757,955.76

7 Profit & loss a/c as per balance-sheet - -

8 Capital Redemption Reserve Fund - -

9 Capital Adjustment Fund

10 Calls in advance - -

11 Other Free Reserves 172,834.22 172,834.22

Deductions: (26,814.10) (24,627.09)

a Goodwill - -

b Deferred tax assets 26,814.10 24,627.09

b Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits 11845.30 -

c Investment to the company having financial interests -

d Fictitious Asset - -

e
Investment on land and building for self use not complying the 
Directives of NRB

-

f
Investment on land development and housing construction in excess of 
limits

-

g Underwriting share not sold within the stipulated time -

h Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws -

Total Core Capital (A) 8,442,912.49 7,684,539.87

B. Supplementary capital

S.N. Description
Period Previous

Current Current

1 Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan 593,785.35 500,798.46

2 Additional loan loss provision - 82,614.91

3 Hybrid capital instruments -

4 Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt -

5 Exchange Equalization Fund -

6
Assets revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital is added 
automatically)

10,410.00 10,410.00

7 Investment adjustment Fund 11,845.30 10,456.20

Total Supplementary Capital (B) 616,040.65 604,279.56

C. Total Capital Fund (A+B) 9,058,953.14 8,288,819.43

D. Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets:

1 Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA) 4360655.18 4,508,200.10

2 Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA) 2180327.59 2,254,100.05

3 Capital Fund maintained ( in %) 16.62% 14.71%

4 Core Capital maintained (in %) 15.49% 13.64%
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Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
A. On-Balance-sheet Items Rs in 000

S.N. Description Weight 
(%)

 Current Previous
Amount RWA Amount RWA

1 Cash Balance 0 50.00 0.00 20.00 0.00

2 Gold (Tradable) 0   0.00   0.00

3 NRB Balance 0 208994.04 0.00 209494.04 0.00

4 Investment to Govt. Bond 0   0.00   0.00

5 Investment to NRB Bond 0   0.00   0.00

6 Loan against Own FD 0   0.00   0.00

7 Loan against Govt. Bond 0   0.00   0.00

8 Accrued interests on Govt. bond 0   0.00   0.00

9 Investment to Youth and Small Entrepreneurs 
Self-employment Fund 0   0.00   0.00

10 Balance on domestic banks and financial 
institutions 20.00 3530338.03 706067.61 3042321.09 608464.22

11 Loan against other banks' and financial 
institutions' FD 20.00   0.00   0.00

12 Foreign bank balance 20.00   0.00   0.00

13 Money at call 20.00 2899683.16 579936.63 993628.16 198725.63

14 Loan against internationally rated bank 
guarantee 20.00   0.00   0.00

16 Inter-bank lending 20.00   0.00   0.00

17 Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100.00 27634.81 27634.81 26250.24 26250.24

18 Other investments 100.00   0.00   0.00

19 Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 100.00 34301447.83 34301447.83 38123180.34 38123180.34

20 Fixed assets 100.00 357133.68 357133.68 361081.25 361081.25

21 Net interest receivables (Toral IR - 8 - Interest 
supsense) 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

22 Net Non-Banking Asset 100.00   0.00   0.00

23 Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 100.00 169257.82 169257.82 163992.93 163992.93

24 Real estate/residential housing loans 
exceeding the limits 150.00   0.00   0.00

Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 41494539.38 36141478.38 42919968.06 39481694.62

B. Off-Balance-sheet Items

S.N. Description Weight 
(%)

 Current period Previous period
Amount RWA Amount RWA

1 Bills collection 0   0.00   0.00

2 Forward foreign exchange contract 10   0.00   0.00

3 L/C with maturity less than six months 
(Outstanding value) 20   0.00   0.00

4 Guarantee against International rated bank's 
counter guarantee 20   0.00   0.00

5 L/C with maturity more than six months 
(Outstanding value) 50   0.00   0.00

6 Bid bond, performance bond and 
underwriting 50   0.00   0.00

7 Loan sale with repurchase agreement 50   0.00   0.00
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8 Advance payment guarantee 100   0.00   0.00

9 Financial and other guarantee 100   0.00   0.00

10 Irrevocable loan commitment 100 17516009.40 17516009.40 15992721.80 15992721.80

11 Possible liabilities for income tax 100 20811.17 20811.17 19685.53 19685.53

12 All types of possible liabilities including 
acceptance 100   0.00   0.00

13 Rediscounted bills 100   0.00   0.00

14 Unpaid portion of partly paid share 
investment 100   0.00   0.00

15 Unpaid guarantee claims 200   0.00   0.00

16 Amount to be maintained for operational risk 
(2% of Total Assets) 100 829890.79 829890.79 858399.36 858399.36

 Total Off-Balance-sheet Items (B)   18366711.36 18366711.36 16870806.69 16870806.69

 Total Risk Weighted Assets (A) + (B)     54508189.74   56352501.31

iii.	 Compliance with external requirement

	 During the period the microfinance complied with all 
external imposed capital requirements to which it is 
subject to.

5.3	 Classification and Fair value of financial asset and 
liability

	 Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which 
fair values are disclosed have been classified into 
three levels according to the observability of the 
significant inputs used to determine the fair values. 
Changes in the observability of significant valuation 
inputs during the reporting period may result in a 
transfer of assets and liabilities within the fair value 
hierarchy. The Microfinance recognises transfers 
between levels of the fair value hierarchy when there 
is a significant change in either its principal market or 

the level of observability of the inputs to the valuation 
techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

	 Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived 
from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities.

	 Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for 
similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices 
for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets 
and financial instruments valued using models where 
all significant inputs are observable.

	 Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one 
input, which could have a significant effect on the 
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable 
market data.

	 Following is the classification of financial assets & 
financial liabilities as on 32-03-2082:

Financial Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash & Cash Equivalent 4,443,271,199.57 - -
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 208,994,041.76 - -
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions - - 1,986,800,000
Derivative Financial Instruments - - -
Other Trading Assets - - -
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives - - 34,301,447,827.08
Loan & advances to customers - - 62,380,147.84
Investment Securities 11,835,300.00 15,799,513.35 -
Other assets - - 80,063,572.59
Total Assets 4,664,600,541.33 15,799,513.35 36,350,627,974.92

Financial Liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Deposits from Customer - - 4,040,859,444.40
Due to Bank & Financial Institutions  -    -    6,031,813,614.55 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank  -    -    118,,247,541.54 
Borrowing  -    -    20,586,038,667.00 
Other liabilities  -    -   404,388,962.99
Total Liabilities  -   31,063,100,688.94
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5.4.3	Measurement of Operating segment profit or loss, asset and liabilities 

	 The Bank has determined segments based on the organizational geographical structure i.e. Area Office wise.

5.4.4	Reconciliation of Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, asset and liabilities

a)	  Revenue

Particular Amount in NPR
Total revenue for reportable segment 2,897,967,345.82
Other revenue                     18,719,017.51
Elimination of intersegment revenue -
Entity's Revenue 2,916,686,363.33

b)	 Profit or loss (Operating Profit)

Particular Amount in NPR
Total profit or loss for reportable segments 1,278,663,395.00
Other Profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Profit before income tax 1,278,663,395.00

c)	 Asset

Particular Amount in NPR
Total asset for reportable segments 41,504,973,302.96
Other Asset -
Unallocated amount -
Entity's Asset 41,504,973,302.96

d)	 Liabilities 

Particular Amount in NPR
Total Liabilities for reportable segments 41,504,973,302.96
Other Liabilities -
Unallocated amount -
Entity's Liabilities 41,504,973,302.96

5.4.5	Information about product and service

	 Revenue from each type of product and service described in point no 1(a) above 

Revenue generated from following products Amount in NPR
Loan to Cooperatives & Microfinance          2,782,401,408.03
Income from Deposit with banks               112,422,965.11 
Other 21,861,990.19
Total 2,916,686,363.33

5.4.7	Information about major customers 

	 The Microfinance does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity’s revenue.

5.5	 Share options and share based payment
	 There is no share-based payment made by the Microfinance.

5.6	 Contingent liabilities and commitment
	 Contingent liabilities and commitment include additional tax demanded by LTO on it’s tax assessment and irrevocable 

credit commitment. Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments made by the microfinance 
are disclosed on Note 4.26.

5.7	 Related Party Disclosure
	 The Microfinance identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24:

1.	 Directors of the Microfinance and their close family members, if any

2.	 Key Managerial Personnel and their close family members, if any
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3.	 Promoter Commercial Banks of the Microfinance

4.	 Promoter Small Farmer Agriculture Cooperative Limited (SFACLs) of the Microfinance

5.	 Subsidiary of major shareholders

	 The related party disclosures as presented below:

5.7.1.	 Promoter Commercial Banks and SFACLs of the Microfinance

Particulars
2081.82

% of Holding Shares Holding
Agricultural Development Bank Ltd. 13.02% 5,615,379
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd 4.10% 1,767,481
Nabil Bank Limited 6.13% 2,644,987
Himalayan Bank Limited 3.77% 1,625,581
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited 3.02% 1,302,249
Nepal Bank Limited 3.65% 1,575,801
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd 1.48% 639903
Everest Bank Limited 1.30% 558,977
Siddhartha Bank Limited 1.10% 474,127
Global Ime Bank Limited 0.68% 291,213
Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited 0.65% 280,920
Small Farmers Agriculture Cooperatives 27.62% 11,912,560
IFC 2.36% 1,015,988

5.7.2.	 Transaction with promoter commercial banks and their major shareholders for FY 2081.82

	 The outstanding balance of borrowings from promoter shareholder’s is given in the table below: 

Name of Bank Balance 
Nepal Bank 105,000,000.00
Global Bank 978,191,973.33
Nepal Investment Megha Bank 250,000,000.00
Nabil Bank 1,250,000,000.00
Agriculture Development Bank Ramshapath 1,105,882,352.94
Rastriya Banijaya  Bank 86,068,250.36
standard Chartered 1,550,000,000.00
Grand Total 5,325,142,576.63

5.7.3.	 Transaction with promoter SFACLs for the FY 2081.82

	 Promoter SFACLs has hold 27.62% of shareholding of SKBBL. Total outstanding balance of loan with total SFACL 
amounts to Rs. 30,538,785.04 thousand as on Ashad end 2082.

5.7.4.	 Transaction with and payments to directors of Microfinance

	 The details relating to compensation paid to directors were as follows:

Particulars 2081.82
Meeting Fees 1,005,000.00
Other expenses 2,432,022.29
Total 3,437,022.29

	 Details of the Board of Directors and their composition, and changes if any, during the period are disclosed in the 
director’s report

5.7.5.	 Transaction with and payment to Key Management Personnel (KMP)

	 The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director. Related party disclosure of 
directors is presented in above point. The microfinance considers Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to be its KMP. The 
details relating to the remuneration paid and other facilities provided to Dr. Shivaram Prasad Koirala, CEO of the 
Microfinance is as follows:
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Particulars 2081.82

Dr. Shiv Ram Prasad Koirala, CEO 4,540,332

	 *Bonus and welfare fund is provided as per prevalent rules and regulations. 

5.8	 Merger and Acquisition 

	 In the F/Y 2079-80, the Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited and erstwhile RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya 
Sanstha Limited was merged. There is no any merger and acquisition event in the current year. 

5.9	 Additional Disclosure of non-consolidated entities.

	 Not Applicable.

5.10	 Events after reporting date

	 Accounting Policy

	 The Microfinance monitors and assess events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and / or non-
adjusting events after the end of the reporting period.  All adjusting events are adjusted in the books with additional 
disclosures and non-adjusting material events are discloses in the notes with possible financial impact, to the extent 
ascertainable.

	 Explanatory Notes

	 There are no material events that has occurred subsequent to 32nd Asar 2082 till the signing of this financial statement.

5.11	 Programs implemented under the support from Donor Agencies

	 Rural Enterprise Financing Project

	 The Asian Development Bank (ADB) and Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya sanstha Ltd. (SKBBL) singed the Rural 
Enterprise Financing Project on 10 December 2019 to increase incomes of subsistence small farmers by helping them 
engage in rural enterprises. SKBBL in partnership with SFACs is financing rural enterprises comprising (i) collective 
enterprises that are owned and operated by group or smallholder farmers or Small Farmers’ Agriculture Cooperatives 
(SFACs) and (ii) individual enterprises, under REF Project. The REF Project has three expected outcomes (i) Output 1: 
collective enterprises developed and financed (ii) Output 2: individual enterprises promoted and financed and (iii) 
Output 3: rural enterprise financing capacity enhanced.

	 As of 16 July 2025, the REF Project has supported various SFACs providing loan to 2496 individual enterprises and 47 
collective enterprises. The total loan disbursed amount is NPR.5,494,437,000 and outstanding balance as on Ashad 
end 2082 amounted to NPR. 3,904,849,734.70

	 Clean Cooking Solutions Project (NREP)

	 SKBBL has signed an agreement with the Alternative energy Promotion Centre (AEPC)/Central Renewable Energy 
Fund (CREF) on February 11, 2022, for the promotion of clean cooking solutions in Lumbini Province. The project aims 
to promote E-cooking technology to the members of small farmers' agricultural cooperatives in the project area. 
The objective of the project is to increase awareness raising on clean cooking, strengthening supply chain electronic 
cooktops, establishment of after sales service at local level, wiring up-gradation and installation of e-cooking systems 
in 10500 household in Lumbini Province. 

	 The project was successfully completed on 28th February 2025, with a total expenditure of Rs. 84,22,156.91 from 
inception to completion. Out of the targeted 10,500 e-cooking system installations, Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta 
Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. successfully installed 8,813 units.

	 Collaboration with IFC

	 The SKBBL & The International Finance Corporation (IFC) entered an agreement to provide advisory services on 29th 

June, 2022 in the following three areas:

1.	 Strengthening the Operating Model for Wholesale Lending

2.	 Exploring Opportunities for Co–Lending Business

3.	 Accelerating Growth through:

o	 Digital banking and data analytics,

o	 Scorecard,

o	 Retail microfinance

	 These initiatives are being carried out to provide advisory services for the institutional strengthening and capacity 
enhancement of cooperatives. For these programs, the Swiss Agency for Development and Cooperation (SDC) has 



131

also provided technical and partnership support. As per this cooperation SKBBL has paid NRs. $ 87,300 from its 
inception till date to IFC & received the reimbursement amounting to NRs.11,712,818 from Sahaj Nepal Agricultural 
Market Development Program (NAMDP) Phase II

5.12	 Loan and Grants supported by the Government of Nepal

5.12.1	 Government of Nepal Supported Programs 

	 The government of Nepal (GoN) has been supporting SKBBL for SFACLs’ replication program, capacity development 
(training/workshop), agriculture and livestock business promotion program, and institutional reform program under 
the budget subhead 30500101 (P2). Additionally, the government of Nepal has been providing grant support for the 
livestock assurance program under the micro-insurance (Pasu, bali, Swashthya) support program, budget subhead 
30500102 (P1).

	 SFACLs’ Replication

	 In order to provide access to finance in the rural area of Nepal, SKBBL has been promoting the formation of new 
SFACLs through a process called SFACLs’ Replication Program. In this FY, NRs. 10 million was received from GON to 
implement 8 SFACL Replication programs. NRs. 10 million has been spent by establishing 8 SFACLs, where additional 
3,000 households of small farmers are benefitted.

	 Skill and Capacity Development (Training/Workshop) Program

	 SKBBL has been providing training/workshops for small farmers on business promotion, agriculture, institutional 
development, good governance, office management and accounting. During the reporting period, the total budget 
of NRs. 10 million was received from GoN for conducting 200 program activities. Due to the high demand of the 
programs, 606 program activities were conducted with total expenditure of NRs.1,44,30,056.00 (from GoN Support 
NRs. 99,97,759.00 and SFACL's contributions NRs. 44,32,297.00) for 31,557 small farmers. The unspent number of NRs. 
2241 under this heading paid back to the GoN by issuing cheque number 39507902 of Agricultural Development 
bank limited. dated on 25th Asar 2082.

	 Agriculture and Livestock Business Promotion Program

	 In order to promote the commercialization of agriculture and livestock, SKBBL has been carrying out an agriculture and 
livestock business promotion program with the support of the GoN. During the reported FY, the total budget of NRs 
10 million received from the GoN.  Altogether 222 programs were conducted with a total cost of NRs. 1,05,55,259.00 
(GoN NRs. 99,76,375.00 and contributions of SFACLs/peoples NRs 5,58,884.00) for 9361 families of small farmers. The 
unspent number of NRs. 23625 under this heading paid back to the GoN by issuing cheque number 39507902 of 
Agricultural Development bank limited. dated on 25th Asar 2082.

	 Institutional Strengthening  Program

	 The government of Nepal has been supporting for the institutional reform of relatively weaker SFACLs. During this 
fiscal year, Rs. 10 million budgets from GoN were received for this program. Altogether 266 SFACLs were reformed by 
spending NRs. 99,99,712.00 amount and 16,738 members of SFACLs are benefitted. The unspent number of NRs. 288 
under this heading paid back to the GoN by issuing cheque number 39507902 of Agricultural Development bank 
limited. dated on 25th Asar 2082.

	 Livestock Assurance Program (Livestock Security Program)

	 SKBBL has been promoting livestock assurance program to minimize the risk of livestock casualty of small farmers. 
Under this program, a total sum of NRs. 9,50,00,000.00 received from GoN, and provided a sum of NRs. 8,75,60,000.00 
as premium subsidy, targeting 40000 livestock’s insurance and Rs. 74,40,000.00 for 100 livestock assurance promotion 
programs respectively. Under this program, 57,504 livestock’s worth of NRs 2.55 billion were insured by SFACLs 
from 28,120 small farmer families and 127 livestock assurance promotion programs conducted by covering 67,993 
families of small farmers. In the period NRs. 12,26,89,000.00 including NRs. 2,76,89,000.00 contributions from small 
farmers and NRs. 9,50,00,000.00 as subsidy from GoN used for this purpose. 

5.12.2	Credit Support from the Government of Nepal

	 The government of Nepal has been providing loan support for agri-business to SKBBL. The credit programs supported 
by GoN are briefly mentioned below: 

	 Milk and Meat based Livestock Loan (credit) Program

	 The government of Nepal has been providing livestock loan to SKBBL to promote meat and dairy production in the 
country. SKBBL has been monitoring the proper utilization of the fund. SKBBL has received a loan of Rs. 1 billion from 
the GoN to provide it to 10,000 small farmers in the reported period. In the period, SKBBL has successfully lent Rs. 
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6.33 billion as loans 28318 farmers by achieving 283% and 633% of physical and financial targets respectively. GoN 
provided NRs. 18.38 billion as livestock loan to SKBBL until FY 2081/82. Out of the total received loan, SKBBL paid 
back total NRs. 6.95 billion to GoN and total NRs. 11.43 billion is remaining as outstanding livestock loan.

	 Vegetable Farming Loan Program

	 Since F/Y 2076/77, the government of Nepal has been providing vegetable loan to SKBBL.In the  F/Y 2081/82, the 
government provided Rs. 500 million to promote vegetable farming for 4,000 small farmers. In the period, SKBBL 
has provided Rs. 698.71 million as vegetable loan for 3559 small farmers. Until FY 2081/82, GoN provided NRs. 2226 
million as vegetable loan for SKBBL, where NRs. 160 million has been repaid and remaining NRs. 2066 million as 
outstanding vegetable loans.

	 Rural Enterprise Credit

	 Through the “Rural Enterprise Financing Program” with the credit support of the Asian Development Bank (ADB), the 
government of Nepal has been providing “Rural Enterprise Credit” support to SKBBL. During the FY 2081/82, NRs. 
1.12 billion budgets have been allocated to promote 800 agriculture enterprises in rural areas of the country. SKBBL 
has provided a total loan of NRs. 1.29 billion for 584 agriculture enterprises in the F/Y 2081/82. A total loan of NRs. 
5.7 billion has been received from GoN under this heading until F/Y 2081/82 out of which NPR. 0.24 billion has been 
paid till end of this year and NPR. 5.46 billion is balance loan outstanding payable to Government of Nepal.

	 Rural Self-Reliance Credit/Fund

	 To promote the self-reliance of the rural people, rural self-reliance credit program has been started with the credit 
support of the government of Nepal and Nepal Rastra Bank. Under this program, on the behalf of GoN, Nepal Rastra 
Bank handed over a total loan of NRs. 98,56,16,176.71 to SKBBL. SKBBL paid back NRs. 587,368,635.17 and the 
remaining loan balance is NRs. 398,247,541.54

	 Livelihood Restoration Credit Program

	 With the credit support of the Asian Development Bank, Livelihood Restoration Credit Program was initiated for 
supporting the rural earthquake affected people. In the end of reporting FY, total of loan amount NRs. 58,85,00,000.00 
has been paid. 

	 Agriculture Loan

	 The government of Nepal, with the credit support of IFAD, has provided a loan of NRs. 80,00,00,000.00 for promoting 
agricultural activities in seven districts of west and mid-west region (Rukum Purwa, Rukum Pashim, Rolpa, Gulmi, 
Arghakhanchi, Salyan and Pyuthan) rural areas through Kisanka Lagi Unnat Biu Bijan Karyakram, KUBK. Up to the end 
of FY 2081/82 Out of the total received loan amount, NRs. 40,00,00,000.00 has been repaid and the remaining loan 
balance is NRs. 40,00,00,000.00 to be paid.

	 Concessional Credit (Bagmati Province)

	 To support the rural deprived small farmers, the Bagmati province government has provided NRs. 1.64 billion to 
SKBBL as concessional credit out of which 0.837 billion is remaining payable outstanding. SKBBL provides this loan 
to the partner cooperatives at 1.5% interest rate and they provide small farmers at 3% interest rate per annum.  

	 Proposed Dividend

	 The Microfinance has proposed 14.25% Bonus share on Share capital as on Asar end 2082 which amounts to NPR. 
614,548,565.71 and 0.75% Cash dividend (for dividend tax) on Share capital as on Asar end 2082 which amounts 
to NPR. 32,344,661.35 Total amount of dividend is Rs.646,893,227.07. The Dividend is proposed for approval from 
upcoming AGM.

CA. Mandipa Dahal
Chief Manager

Head Finance & Planning Div.

Pritha Bahadur Thapa
Acting CEO

Khem Bahadur Pathak
Chairman

CA. Kiran Dongol
Partner

For and on Behalf of 
J.B. Rajbhandary & DiBins

Umesh Lamsal
Director

Astha Bhatta
Director

Bhim Prasad Panta
Director

Sukhadev Neupane
Director

Dipendra Raj Kafle
Director

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Date: 2082-07-26
Place: Kathmandu



133



134



135

;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= sf]
Joj:yfkg tx

s|=;= gfd kb z}lIfs of]Uotf cg'ej ljefu

! >L af;' clwsf/L k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t :gftsf]Q/ @* aif{

@= >L k[y axfb'/ yfkf Gffoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t :gftsf]Q/ #! aif{

#= >L emn]Gb| e§/fO{ Gffoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t :gfts #@ aif{

$= >L ?k axfb'/ v8\sf d'Vo k|aGws :gfts #@ aif{ cg'udg lgl/If0f tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu

%= >L O{zf s]=;L= d'Vo k|aGws l;=P=, :gftsf]Q/ !% jif{
hgzlQm, ;fdfGo k|zf;g, kl/of]hgf tyf ;'rgf 
k|ljlw ljefu

^= >L lzjxl/ cof{n d'Vo k|aGws :gftsf]Q/ !( jif{
;+:yfut ljsf; ljefu / C0f c;'nL tyf 
sfg'g ljefu 

&= >L lnnfw/ lwtfn d'Vo k|aGws :gftsf]Q/ @( jif{ shf{ Joj:yfkg ljefu

*= >L dlGbkf bfxfn d'Vo k|aGws l;=P=, :gftsf]Q/ !@ jif{ ljQ tyf  of]hgf ljefu

zfvf sfof{no / zfvf k|aGws
qm=;+= zfvf k|aGwssf] gfd zfvf sfof{no

! >L ef]nfgfy /]UdL x]6f}+8f

@ >L u0f]z k|;fb e§/fO{ ljtf{df]8

# >L ljzfn s'df/ t'nfw/ g]kfnu~h

$ >L z]/ axfb'/ rf}w/L a'6jn

% >L /fhs'df/ ofbj alb{af;

^ >L lxSdt axfb'/ ad cQl/of

& >L s]zj kf}8]n sf7df8f}F

* >L ;/f]h e§/fO{ O6x/L

( >L /fh]z e§/fO{ nxfg

!) >L /fd hgs rf}w/L lj/]Gb|gu/

!! >L lbks /fh kf08] uh'/L

!@ >L kbd /fh /]UdL kf]v/f



136

gf]6 M



;fgf ls;fg s[lif ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ tyf ;b:ox¿åf/f ;~rflnt s[lif Joj;fosf s]xL emnsx¿

;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= sf] @# cf}“ jflif{s ;fwf/0f;efsf s]xL emnsx¿

;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= sf] @$ cf}“ jflif{sf]T;jsf s]xL emnsx¿



aa/dxn, sf7df8f}F, g]kfn
kmf]g g+=M +(&&–$!!!*(%, %#@)(!#, %()(^!@

Od]nM info@skbbl.com.np, j]jf;O{6M www.skbbl.com.np

;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubittta Bittiyasanstha Ltd.

qm=;= :yfg kmf]g g+=

! x]6f}F8f, dsjfgk'/ 057-525388, 057-524122

@ latf{df]8, emfkf 023-542728, 023-542173

# g]kfnu~h, afFs] 081-415136, 081-415291

$ a'6jn, ?kGb]xL 071-420501, 071-420500

% alb{af;, dxf]Q/L 044-550403, 044-550322

^ cQl/of, s}nfnL 091-551318

qm=;= :yfg kmf]g g+=

& sf7df8f}+ 01-4594671, 01-4596684

* O6x/L, ;'g;/L 025-584334, 025-588600

( nxfg, l;/fxf 033-590091, 590092

!) jL/]Gb|gu/, ;'v]{t 083-523925

!! uh'/L, wflbª 010-402080, 010-402117

!@ kf]v/f, sf:sL 061-588335, 061-584913

zfvf sfof{nox¿

;fgf ls;fg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=


